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Dear Shareholder,

During the year 2009-10, your bank
delivered a stellar performance
despite the after effects of the
recession lingering in the financial
domain. The industry as a whole
was characterized by subdued
credit growth with y-o-y growth
moderating to 16.75% from 17.5%
a year ago. Though credit growth
{ in the industry was muted, Gross

NPAs in the banking system
increased during the year due to the effects of recession,
appreciation of Rupee and declining cash flows of companies.

Your bank did exceedingly well and achieved remarkable
progress on all major fronts even in the above adverse market
conditions. The Bank’s credit growth stood at 27.19% on a
yearly basis while the growth in deposits was an impressive
30.81%. The bank’s market share in both deposits and
advances improved, registering 12 bps increase in market
share in both deposits and advances compared to the
previous year.

Your Bank is fundamentally strong and sound. It is noteworthy
that even in the midst of such aggressive growth in credit
deployment, asset quality of your bank is not compromised.
Gross NPA to Gross Advances ratio of your bank at 0.86% is
still one of the lowest in the industry. Let me reiterate that
your bank was adjudged Number One in the asset quality
front by Business Today - KPMG study.

To enhance the brand image and visibility, your Bank has
unveiled the new mascot -’'Dolle’ during the year which
highlights the core values -viz., friendly, intelligent and
responsive. With customer satisfaction and customer focus
as the single point agenda, your bank developed a host of
new products like Tele Banking, SMS Alerts, Internet banking
etc. Your Bank also entered into a Joint Venture in Life
Insurance with Bank of Baroda and Legal & General plc of
U.K. The Joint Venture, christened IndiaFirst Life Insurance
Ltd did a business of Rs.250 Crore in the first quarter itself.
Your Bank also entered into a tie up to form a Joint Venture
banking subsidiary in Malaysia with Bank of Baroda and
Indian Overseas Bank.

In this backdrop, it gives me great pleasure to present to you
the financial performance of your Bank for the year ended
March 2010.

Balance Sheet Strength

1. Total Business increased by 29.26% to reach Rs
1,34,194 Crore as on 31.3.10 from Rs.1,03,818 Crore
as on 31.03.09

2. Deposits increased by 30.81% and stood at Rs.77,688
Crore against Rs.59,390 Crore in the previous year

3. Low-cost deposits (CASA) have gone up by 22.57% to
reach Rs 22864 Crore from Rs.18,653 crore. The share
of CASA in total deposits stood at 29.43%
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Gross Bank Credit increased by 27.19% to Rs.56505
Crore as on 31.3.10 from Rs.44428 Crore, as at the
end of Mar '09.

Credit-Deposit ratio stood at 73.05% as at the end of
Mar’10

Priority sector advances have gone up by 27.12% to Rs
19,012 Crore from Rs.14,955 Crore. Priority Sector
advances constituted 42.79% of Adjusted Net Bank
Credit (ANBC) against the RBI norm of 40%.

Agriculture advances increased to Rs.9,173 Crore from
Rs.6834 Crore. Agriculture advances constituted 20.65%
of Adjusted Net Bank Credit against RBI norm of 18%

Bank has accorded utmost importance for lending to
MSME Sector. Advances to Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises increased by 54.66% to Rs 8285 Crore as
at the end of Mar’10 as against Rs. 5,357 crore as at
the end of Mar’09.

“Retail Lending” stood at Rs 8904 Crore as on 31.03.10
with a growth of 47.37 %.

The Bank advanced loans to the Housing Sector (Direct
Finance) to the tune of Rs 3480 Crore for the financial
year ended 31.3'10 as against Rs 2232 Crore in the
previous year.

“Educational Loans” stood at Rs.1647 Crore as at the
end of Mar’10 compared to Rs.1446 Crore as at the
end of Mar’09.

“Capital and Reserves” increased to Rs. 4410 Crore,
an increase of 20.92%.

Earning Per Share increased to Rs.21.56 from Rs.13.46,
while Book Value Per Share increased from Rs.75.20
to Rs.90.93

Earnings Momentum

Net Profit earned was Rs.1046 Crore, as at the end of
Mar’10 compared to Rs.653 Crore as at the end of
Mar’09.

Operating profit increased from Rs.1288 Crore as on
31.3.’09 to Rs.1810 Crore as on 31.3.10.

“Cost to Income Ratio” stood at 42.72% which is an
improvement over 46.16% in the previous year.

“Net Interest Margin (NIM)” improved to 3.21% as at
the end of Mar’10 against 3.03% in the previous year.

“Return on Assets (ROA)” was 1.39%.

CRAR stood at 13.93% as on 31st Mar’10 compared to
13.22% as on 31st Mar’'09.

“Return on Average Net Worth” improved to 25.96% from
18.94% in the previous year.

Your Bank continues to be one of the Public Sector
Banks having the lowest level of Gross NPAs to Gross
Advances ratio. The ratio stood at 0.86% as at the end
of Mar’10. Net NPA ratio stood at 0.17%.

“NPA Provision coverage Ratio” stood at 91.56% as at
the end of March '10.
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Income and Expenditure

Total Income increased by 19.50% to Rs 7337 Crore as
against Rs.6140 Crore in the previous year.

Interest income increased by 18.57 % from Rs 5375
Crore to Rs.6373 Crore while non-interest income
increased by 26.03% to Rs 965 Crore from Rs.765 Crore

Income from investments was at Rs 1188 Crore as on
31.3'10.

Fee based income earned was Rs.108 Crore as on
31.3.10.

Dividend

The Board of Directors have recommended a dividend
of 50 % for the year 2009-'10.

Delivery channels

Your Bank’s network of delivery channels increased to
2502 by the end of March '10 i.e.,254 additional delivery
channels during the year.

Total branches increased from 1432 as at the end of
Mar ’09 to 1557 as at the end of Mar 10. Other delivery
channels include 859 ATMs, 48 Extension Counters and
38 Satellite Offices as on 31.3.10.

Strategic Initiatives

Having implemented CBS in all the branches, your Bank
took the next logical step of leveraging on the technology

_
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and introduced Internet Banking, Mobile alerts etc.

31. The Bank has entered into a Joint Venture with Bank of
Baroda and Legal and General Plc of U.K in Life
Insurance Business and started functioning. A banking
subsidiary in Malaysia will also be formed along with
Bank of Baroda and Indian Overseas Bank.

Your Bank has migrated to Basel-ll norms with effect from
March 31, 2009. The Bank has a comfortable capital
adequacy ratio and has also put in place robust risk
management systems. Proper systems are also in place for
approval, sanction and monitoring of credit to maintain a
healthy asset quality. During the year, five new Zones were
added, taking the total number of Zones to 22.Your Bank is
committed to all its stakeholders. Continuous support of
various stakeholders enabled your Bank to reach the present
stage and your Bank is looking forward to the valuable support
from all of you in the years ahead.

| place on record our sincere gratitude to all our shareholders,
customers, regulators, staff of the Bank and all concerned
with whose cooperation and support the Bank is able to
achieve a healthy performance year after year.

With best wishes,
Yours sincerely,

(R.S. Reddy)
Chairman & Managing Director

Hyderabad,
29.4.2010.
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FIHIX BT ITHH)

A Gouvt of India Undertaking
NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Tenth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Andhra Bank will be held on Wednesday;,
the 16th June, 2010 at SHILPA KALA VEDIKA, SHILPARAMAM, CRAFTS VILLAGE, NEAR HI-TECH CITY, MADHAPUR,
HYDERABAD-500 081 at 10.00 A.M., to transact the following business:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 315 March 2010 and the Profit and Loss Account for the year
ended on that date, the Report of the Board of Directors on the working and activities of the Bank for the period covered by
the Accounts and the Auditors’ Report on the Balance Sheet and Accounts.

To declare dividend on Equity Shares.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 29.04.2010

Notes:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITILED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE
MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY OR
PROXIERS TO ATTEND AND VOTE THERE AT INSTEAD
OF HIMSELF / HERSELF. APROXY NEED NOT BE A MEM-
BER.

A Proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited / lodged at
the Head Office of the Bank at least four days before the date
of the meeting. No employee of the Bank shall be appointed
as duly authorized representative or a proxy.

Appointment of a representative:

No person shall be entitled to attend or vote at the meeting as
a duly authorized representative of a Company, unless a copy
of the resolution appointing him as a duly authorized repre-
sentative certified to be a true copy by the Chairman of the
meeting at which it was passed shall have been deposited at
the Head Office of the Bank at Hyderabad not less than four
days before the date of the meeting.

Attendance slip cum entry pass:

For the convenience of the members, attendance slip is en-
closed to this report. Members are requested to fill in and affix
their signatures in the space provided therein and handover
the attendance slip cum Entry pass at the entrance of the venue
of the meeting. Proxy / Representative of the shareholder
should mark on the attendance slip as proxy or representative
as the case may be.

Book Closure:

The Register of Shareholders and Share Transfer Books would
remain closed from Saturday 5th June 2010 to Tuesday 15th
June 2010 (both days inclusive).

Dividend:

The Board of Directors recommended a dividend of Rs. 5.00
ps. per equity share (50%) for the Financial Year 2009-2010.
The dividend , if approved by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting, shall be paid to the shareholders holding
shares in physical form and whose names appear in the Reg-
ister of Shareholders and to the shareholders holding shares
in electronic form on the basis of the beneficiary position state-
ment provided by the depositories at the end of the day on
Friday 04th June, 2010 respectively, on Monday, 28th June
2010.

Bank mandate for dividend or Electronic Clearing Service:
In order to protect the investors from fraudulent encashment
of their dividend warrants, the Bank has offered Electronic
Clearing Service facility to the shareholders having Bank ac-
counts at the following centers:

(R.S Reddy)
Chairman & Managing Director

New Delhi, Chandigarh, Kanpur, Jaipur, Ahmedabad, Mumbai,
Nagpur, Hyderabad, Bangalore, Chennai, Thiruvanantha-
puram, Kolkata, Bhubaneswar, Guwahati, Patna, Ludhiana,
Amritsar, Jalandhar, Jammu, Allahabad, Varanasi, Lucknow,
Dehradun, Gorakhpur, Agra, Udaipur, Jodhpur, Rajkot, Baroda,
Surat, Panaji, Pune, Sholapur, Nasik, Aurangabad, Indore,
Bhopal, Gwalior, Jabalpur, Raipur, Tirupati / Chittoor,
Vijayawada, Nellore / Dargamitta, Visakhapatnam, Kakinada,
Mysore, Mangalore, Hubli, Pondicherry, Tiruchirapalli, Madurai,
Salem, Erode, Coimbatore, Kozhikode, Trissur, Ernakulam,
Budwan, Haldia, Siligiri, Dhanbad, Jamshedpur & Ranchi.
8. Consolidation of Folios:
The shareholders who are holding shares in identical order of
names in more than one account are requested to intimate to
the Registrars and Transfer Agent, the ledger folio of such
accounts together with the share certificates to enable the Bank
to consolidate all the holdings into one account. The share
certificates will be returned to the members after making nec-
essary endorsement in due course.
9. Lodgment for Transfers:
Share Certificates along with transfer deed should be for-
warded to the Registrars and Transfer Agent of the Bank at
the following address:
M/s. MCS Limited (Unit: Andhra Bank)
Kashiram Jamnadas Building
Office No. 21/22 Ground Floor
5, P.D’Mello Road, (Ghadiyal Godi)
Mumbai — 400 009
10. Request to Shareholders:
a. Please note that copies of the Annual Report will not be
distributed at the Annual General meeting as an Economy mea-
sure. Hence, shareholders are requested to bring their copies
of the Annual Report to the meeting.
b. Shareholders may kindly note that no gifts / coupons will be
distributed at the venue of the meeting.
c. Shareholders are advised to avoid bringing bags / brief
cases/ tape recorders / cameras etc. as these items are sub-
ject to a security check and may not be allowed at the venue.
Note:
Bank shall highly appreciate if shareholders, desirous of making
any suggestion, seeking clarification, etc. at the Annual General
Meeting, relating to the item of agenda only may send their sug-
gestions, queries, etc. so as to reach the shares Division & Inves-
tors Services Cell at Head Office of the Bank atleast 15 days be-
fore the date of meeting.
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Directors’ Report:

Directors of your Bank are happy to present the Annual Report
of the Bank together with the audited Statement of Accounts
and Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended March 31,
2010.

1. PROFITABILITY

The Bank continued its growth momentum of the previous
years and recorded reasonably good performance during the
financial year 2009-10. Profitability parameters saw
satisfactory growth. Buoyancy in the Bank’s Core income,
increased non interest income and good Asset quality
contributed to the improvement in profitability. Total income
increased by 19.50% from Rs.6140 crore to Rs 7337 Crore
while non- interest income registered a growth of 26.03%
and stood at Rs 964.62 Crore compared to Rs.765.38 crore
in the previous year. Operating Profit of the Bank increased
to Rs 1809.82 Crore from Rs.1288.03 Crore, registering an
increase of 40.51%. Net Profit increased by 60.15% to
Rs.1045.85 Core in 2009-10 from Rs.653.05 Crore in the
previous year.

Net Profit
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Table 1: Highlights of Revenue, Expenditure and Profitability

(Rs. in crore)

2008-09 | 2009-10 |Absolute [Percentage

Growth|  Growth

Total Interest Income 5374.62 | 6372.87 | 998.25 18.57

Total Interest expenditure 3747.71 | 4178.13 | 430.42 11.48

Net interest Income 1626.91 | 2194.74 | 567.83 34.90

Other income 765.38 | 964.62 | 199.24 26.03

Profit on sale of investments | 237.61 | 32450 | 86.89 36.57

Operating expenses 1104.26 | 1349.54 | 24528 2.2

Operating profit 1288.03 | 1809.82 | 521.79 40.51
Provisions and

contingencies 634.98 | 763.97 | 128.99 20.31

Net Profit 653.05 | 1045.85 | 392.80 60.15

1.1.  The Total Interest Income has shown a robust growth
of 18.57% from Rs.5374.62 Crore as on 31.3.2009 to
Rs 6372.87 Crore as on 31.3.2010. Of this, interest
income from advances grew by 22.45% from
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Rs.4215.06 Crore as on 31.3.2009 to Rs 5161.28
Crore as on 31.3.2010. Interest Income from
investments increased by 8.13% and stood at Rs
1188.32 Crore for the financial year ended March,
2010.

1.2. The focus on credit expansion, high yielding advances
in particular and the consequent increase in interest
income from advances has contributed for the
increase in Net Interest Income by 34.90%.

1.3. Of the total non interest income, fee based income
stood at Rs 107.52 Crore for the financial year ended
March 2010 against Rs.80.20 Crore in the previous
year.

1.4. Total expenses were Rs 5527.66 Crore as on
31.3.2010 as against Rs.4851.97 Crore as on
31.3.2009. Of this, operating expenses stood at
Rs.1349.54 Crore (an increase of 22.21%).
Establishment expenditure as a percentage of Total
Expenditure stood at 14.91 for the year ended
31.3.2010.

APPROPRIATIONS

The appropriations made out of Net Profit are shown in Table
2. An amount of Rs.262 Crore was transferred to statutory
reserves during 2009-10, and with this, the statutory reserves
now stand at Rs.1373.08 Crore. Transfer towards dividend
(including dividend tax) amounted to Rs.282.78 Crore.

Table 2: Appropriations out of Net Profit
(Rs. in crore)

2009-10
Appropriation out of Net Profit 1045.85
Transfer to Statutory Reserves 262.00
Transfer to Capital Reserves 93.36
Transfer to Revenue Reserves 300.00
Transfer to Special Reserves 60.00
Transfer to proposed dividend
(including dividend tax) 282.78
Profit Carried Over to Balance Sheet 200.65

2. KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

2.1. The Bank has shown good improvement in key financial
ratios. Net Interest Margin (NIM) stood at 3.21% compared
to 3.03% in the previous year. The capital adequacy ratio
improved t013.93% following improvement in reserves,
raising of Upper Tier |l bonds to the tune of Rs 800 Crore and
subordinated debt of Rs.320 Crore during 2009-10. Cost-to
income ratio improved from 46.16% to 42.72%, reflecting
enhanced operational efficiency. Buoyed by improved
profitability, Earning Per Share (EPS) increased from Rs 13.46
to Rs.21.56 and Book Value Per Share (BVPS) increased
from Rs.75.20 to Rs. 90.93.

The asset profile of the Bank continues to be very healthy.
Net Non-Performing Assets to Net Advances stood at 0.17%
and Gross Non-Performing Assets to Gross Advances stood
at 0.86%, as at the end of Mar’10
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Table 3 - Key Financial Ratios

Parameter 31.3.2009 |31.3.2010
Yield on Advances (%) 11.41 10.92
Cost of Deposits (%) 6.96 6.10
CRAR (%) 13.22 13.93
Return on Assets (%) 1.09 1.39
Yield on Funds(%) 8.97 8.49
Cost of Funds(%) 6.26 5.57
Net Interest Margin (%) 3.03 3.21
Cost-to-income Ratio (%) 46.16 42.72
Earning Per Share (Rs.) 13.46 21.56
Book Value Per Share ( Rs.) 75.20 90.93
Net NPA (%) 0.18 0.17
Gross NPAs (%) 0.83 0.86

3. CAPITAL & NET WORTH

3.1. There is no change in equity capital during 2009-'10 and
it stood at Rs.485 Crore. At the same time the Reserves and
Surplus increased from Rs.3161.99 Crore as on 31.03.2009
to Rs.3925.04 Crore. Thus, the Net worth (capital plus
reserves & surplus) increased from Rs.3646.99 Crore as at
the end of Mar'09 to Rs. 4410.04 Crore as at the end of
Mar’10.

4. CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The Bank raised subordinated debt of Rs.320 Crore during
December 2009 to augment its capital funds. The Bank has
also raised upper Tier-1l bonds to the tune of Rs. 800 Crore
(Rs.520 Crore in June 2009 and Rs. 280 Crore in December
2009). With this, the total capital funds stand at Rs.7530.27
Crore, up by 35.34% from Rs.5563.83 crore in the previous
year. The BASEL-Il Capital Adequacy Ratio is at 13.93%.
Coupled with this, a high Tier | capital ratio of 8.18% provides
the Bank sufficient headroom for future business expansion.
As per RBI guidelines, Bank has already moved over to Basel
Il Capital Adequacy norms with effect from 31.03.2009 and
computed CRAR for Credit risk, Operational risk and Market
risks. However, as advised by RBI, Bank continues to
compute the CRAR as per Basel | norms also as a parallel
run. Bank has also put in place a “Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process” (CAAP) for assessing the adequacy
of capital levels keeping in view the expected increase in
business levels and the additional capital requirement for
various Pillar Il risks.

Table 4: CRAR Position
(In Percentage)

31 March 2009 | 31 March 2010
Tier-1 capital 8.67 8.18
Tier-1I capital 455 5.75
Total 13.22 13.93
5. DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Bank has recommended a
dividend of 50% for the financial year 2009-'10.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISSCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
1. MACRO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENTS

The fiscal year 2009-10 was a period when green shoots of
recovery had started sprouting, just after the recession. This,
therefore, meant that there is still a long way to go before a
full fledged recovery. The Gross Domestic Product (GDP)
growth in 2009-10 was 7.2%, a full 50 basis points (bps) more
than the 6.7% recorded in 2008-09, but still short of our strong
potential for achieving 9% growth. It was also a year where
policy makers had taken suitable steps to nurture healthy
fiscal expansion in order to counter the negative fallout of the
global slowdown. Over the span of the year, the economy
posted a remarkable recovery, not only in terms of overall
growth figures but, more importantly, in terms of certain
fundamentals, which justify blooming optimism for the Indian
economy in the medium to long term.

The real turnaround came in the second quarter of 2009-10
when the economy grew by 7.9%. As per the advance
estimates of GDP for 2009-10,released by the Central
Statistical Organization (CSO), the economy grew at 7.2%in
2009-10, with the industrial and the service sectors growing
at 8.2% and 8.7%respectively. This recovery is impressive
for at least three reasons. First, it has come about despite a
negative growth of 0.2% in agricultural output, which was the
consequence of sub-normal monsoon. Second, it
foreshadows renewed momentum in the manufacturing
sector, which had earlier seen continuous decline in the
growth rate for almost eight quarters since 2007-08. Indeed,
manufacturing growth has more than doubled from 3.2%in
2008-09 to 8.9%in 2009-10. Third, there has been a recovery
in the growth rate of gross fixed capital formation, from a
significant decline in 2008-09.

1.1. Equity Market

Equity indices witnessed a turnaround from the low levels
seen in FY 2008-09. In the financial year 2008-09, equity
indices had gone down to as low as 8,500. Sensex regained
much of its lost ground and has been consistently showing
upward trend during the financial year. Surge in corporate
profitability and improvement in indices of industrial
production, exports etc., also contributed to the improvement
in Sensex. However, there is still some volatility, in the sense
that the index is hovering between the 17,000-18,000 levels.
Transition to the tightening monetary stance of RBI and
rollback of stimulus packages by the Union Government also
contributed to volatility in the Sensex.

1.2. Debt Market

While FY 2008-09 was characterized by low inflation level
coupled with lowering of policy interest rates, a reversal of
the trend was seen during FY 2009-10. Repo in corporate
bonds rated ‘AA’ is a measure which would impart more
breadth and depth to the corporate bond market. The product,
STRIPS was introduced during the financial year 2009-10,
marking yet another development in the bond market. As
economic growth gained traction and inflationary concerns
became more intense, a tightening of the policy stance has
come about. Bond yields moved up and crossed 8% mark.
However, banks had some respite in the month of March
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2010, since there was not much volatility in yields as the rate
hikes were already factored in by the markets. Measures
initiated by the Government and RBI like permitting more
entities to issue infrastructure bonds are expected to develop
the debt market further.

1.3. Foreign Exchange Market

The Indian Rupee, which averaged at more than 49 to the
U.S Dollar in the beginning of FY 2009-'10 continued to
appreciate, led by economic growth and the resultant capital
inflows. This has, however, put a strain on the profitability
and viability of some of the SME units, especially sectors like
textiles. As on the last reporting Friday of March 2010, the
country’s total forex reserves stood at US $ 276 billion. The
purchase of 200 MT of gold contributed to our reserves. Other
major developments in the foreign exchange market include
introduction of 2 year and 5-year Interest Rate Futures, futures
based on 10 year notional Govt. of India security etc., These
measures are expected to lead to greater depth and breadth
in the market for Interest Rate Futures.

1.4. Money Markets

Banks were major players in the money market mobilizing
funds through certificate of deposits at a discount. Mutual
Funds were the major subscribers. However, the concern
expressed by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) about
investments made by banks in mutual funds led to a decline
in assets under management of the Mutual Funds. Pullout of
funds by banks from Mutual Fund schemes to reduce risk
weights and improve CRAR also led to decline in mutual fund
business. Call money rates and other short term rates were
range bound, moving between 3%-3.5% during most part of
the financial year. Banks were flush with liquidity and hence
there was little change in the above rates.

1.5. Impact on other fronts:
1.5.1. Gross Domestic Product growth

During FY 2009-10, Indian economy grew by 7.2% compared
to 6.7% growth during FY 2008-'09. The recovery in economic
growth was broad based with all major indices staging a
recovery during the year. However, agriculture was an
exception recording a negative growth of 0.2% in 2009-10.
This has led to food inflation.

1.5.2. Exports and Imports

Export growth staged a recovery and entered into positive
territory during FY 2009-’10. The stimulus packages
announced by the Government and other sops helped the
recovery. However, weaknesses in sectors like Textiles still
continue. Imports also increased in response to recovery in
economic growth, widening the trade deficit.

1.6. Measures announced by RBI and Govt. of India

Keeping in pace with the recovery of economy, the
Government is gradually withdrawing the stimulus packages.
As part of this endeavour, Government restored excise duties
on several products to the pre-crisis levels and increased
excise duty on petrol and diesel. This was supplemented by
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the RBI increasing the key monetary rates and continuing
the tightening stance throughout the fourth quarter of 2009-
10 and subsequently in April 2010.

In the wake of the global economic crisis, the Reserve Bank
pursued an accommodative monetary policy beginning mid-
September 2008. The policy instilled confidence in market
participants, mitigated the adverse impact of the global
financial crisis on the economy and ensured that our economy
started recovering ahead of most other economies. However,
in view of the rising food inflation and the risk of it impinging
on inflationary expectations, the Reserve Bank embarked on
the first phase of exit from the expansionary monetary policy
by terminating some sector-specific liquidity facilities and
restoring the Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) of scheduled
commercial banks to its pre-crisis level in the Second Quarter
Review of October 2009. The process was carried forward
by the second phase of exit when the Reserve Bank
announced a 75 basis points increase in the CRR in the Third
Quarter Review of January 2010.

The policy stance for 2010-11 is guided by three major
considerations, viz., Consolidation of the recovery process,
accentuating inflationary pressures and higher Government
borrowings. In short, the stance of the monetary policy is
intended to a) Anchor inflationary expectations while being
prepared to respond appropriately, swiftly and effectively in
case of further build-up of inflationary pressures. b) Actively
manage liquidity to ensure that the growth in demand for credit
from both the private and public sectors is satisfied in a non-
disruptive way and c) Maintain an interest rate regime
consistent with price, output and financial stability.

Some of the major policy measures announced in the Annual
Policy statement 2010-'11 were:

® Increase in CRR, repo rate and reverse repo rate by 25
bps

Introduction of Interest Rate Futures on 5-year and 2-
year notional coupon bearing securities and 91-day
Treasury Bills

Allowing banks to classify their investments in non-SLR
bonds issued by companies engaged in infrastructure
activities and having a minimum residual maturity of seven
years under the Held To Maturity (HTM) category.
Considering investment in non-SLR debt securities by
banks where the security is proposed to be listed on the
Exchange(s) as investment in listed security at the time
of making investment

Introduction of a reporting platform for all secondary
market transactions in Certificate of Deposits and
Commercial Papers.

Mandating banks not to insist on collateral security in case
of loans up to Rs.10 lakh as against the present limit of
Rs.5 lakh extended to all units of the micro and small
enterprises (MSEs) sector.

Banks urged to keep in view the recommendations made
by the ‘Committee on credit to MSME’, viz., 20% y-o-y
mandated increase in credit to micro and small enterprises
and achievement of the target of 60% for lending to micro
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enterprises of total advances to micro and small
enterprises etc.,

® Banks permitted to engage any individual including those
operating Common Service Centres as “Business
Correspondents”, subject to the comfort level of the
individual banks

® To treat annuities under build-operate transfer (BOT)
model in respect of road/highway projects and toll
collection rights, as tangible securities subject to the
condition that banks’ right to receive annuities and toll
collection rights is legally enforceable and irrevocable.

® |Infrastructure loan accounts classified as sub-standard
to attract a provisioning of 15% instead of the current
prescription of 20% for banks which have in place an
appropriate mechanism to escrow the cash flows and a
clear and legal first claim on such cash flows

® Permitted banks to formulate their own policies towards
conversion of deposits for reinvesting in some other
schemes of the concerned bank.

® Implementation of the Supervisory Review and Evaluation
Process (SREP) framework for banks from the inspection
cycle 2010-11 as an integral part of the Annual Financial
Inspection (AFI).

1.6.1 Measures announced in Union budget 2010-’11
pertaining to banks

® Farm loan repayments under Agriculture Debt Waiver and
Debt Relief Scheme to be extended by 6 more months
and farm credit targets for FY 2010-11 increased to
Rs.3.75 lakh Crore against Rs.3.25 lakh Crore for FY
2009-10.

® Housing loans upto Rs.10 lacs (where the cost of house
does not exceed Rs.20 lakhs) to get interest subvention
of 1% upto March 2011.

® |[nterest subvention of 2% for exports to be extended for
one more year for specific sectors such as handicrafts,
carpets, handlooms and Small and Medium Enterprises.

® Additional Rs.16,500 Crore to be allocated to public sector
banks for recapitalization.

® Rs.1.74 lakh Crore, which is 46% of Plan outlay is
reserved for infrastructure development and an amount
of upto Rs.20,000 in long term infrastructure bonds to be
reckoned for standard deduction.

e Net market borrowings of the Government for FY 11
pegged at Rs.3.45 Lac Crore. Estimated fiscal deficit is
at 5.5% of GDP for FY ’11.

® NBFCs allowed to enter banking sector

1.7 Trends in Banking Industry:

Credit growth remained subdued throughout this financial
year for the banking system. For the banking industry, the
year-on-year credit growth stood at 16.75% as on the last
reporting Friday of March 2010 compared to 17.5% growth
achieved during the previous financial year. Though liquidity
was sufficient in the banking system, corporates resorted to
alternative avenues for raising funds which included External
Commercial Borrowings and Initial Public Offerings. This has
lowered interest income of Banks. Aggregate deposits also
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registered a lower growth of 17% as on the last reporting
Friday of March 2010 compared to the previous year’s growth
of 19.9%. The migration to calculating interest on SB deposits
on dally product basis is likely to increase cost of deposits
marginally for the banking system.

Non Performing Assets of the banking system are on an
increasing trend during the year due to the effects of
recession. CRISIL has estimated NPAs of the banking system
in India to double for 2010-11.

Banks are poised to switch over to the new ‘Base Rate’
System by 1 st July 2010.The ‘Base Rate System’ is aimed at
enhancing transparency in lending rates of banks and
enabling better assessment by transmission of monetary
policy of RBI.

2. Performance Highlights of the Bank

Total Deposits & Advances
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2.1 Business

During the financial year 2009-10, Andhra Bank’s Business
increased to Rs.1,34,194 Crore as on 31.3.2010 from
Rs.1,03,818 Crore in the previous financial year (2008-09),
recording an annual growth rate of 29.26%.

2.2 Deposits

Bank’s total deposits amounted to Rs.77,688 Crore as on
March 31, 2010, showing an absolute accretion of Rs.18298
Crore and a growth of 30.81% over previous year. The share
of low cost deposits (current and savings) in total deposits
stood at 29.43%.

Current deposits increased from Rs.5215.65 Crore as on
31.3.2009 to Rs.6746.25 Crore as on 31.3.2010, which is an
increase of 29.35%

Savings Bank deposits increased to Rs.16118.08 Crore in
FY 2009-'10 from Rs.13437.78 Crore in FY 2008-'09, with a
growth of 19.95%.

Term deposits increased from Rs.40736.59 Crore as on
31.3.2009 to Rs. 54,823.88 Crore, registering an increase of
34.58%.
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2.3 Advances

Gross Bank Credit increased by 27.19% from Rs. 44,428
Crore as on 31.3.2009 to Rs.56,505 Crore as on 31.3.2010.

Credit to agriculture sector registered an increase of 34.23
% from Rs. 6,834 Crore as on 31.3.2009 to Rs.9,173 Crore
as on 31.3.2010.

Credit to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises registered an
increase of 54.66 % from Rs. 5,357 Crore as on 31.3.2009 to
Rs.8,285 Crore as on 31.3.2010.

2.4 Profitability

Operating Profit stood at Rs.1810 Crore compared to
Rs.1,288 Crore in the previous year, recording a growth rate
of 40.51%.

Net Profit improved from Rs. 653 Crore during 2008-09 to
Rs.1046 Crore during 2009-10, registering a growth of 60.15%

Net Interest Income improved to Rs 2195 Crore, compared
to Rs. 1627 Crore during the previous year, an increase of
34.90%

2.5 Asset Quality

Gross NPAs to gross advances ratio stood at 0.86% and
quantum wise, Gross NPAs were Rs.487.87 Crore as at the
end of Mar’10. The Net NPAs as a percentage to Net
Advances improved from 0.18% as on 31.3.2009 to 0.17%
for the financial year ended 31.3.2010

2.6 Capital Adequacy

Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Bank (CRAR- Basel II)
improved from 13.22% (as on 31.3.2009) to 13.93 % as on
31.03.2010.

3. BUSINESS REVIEW

The Total Business (Total Deposits plus Gross Bank Credit)
of the Bank registered a growth of 29.26% from Rs.1,03,818
Crore as on 31.3.2009 to Rs.1,34,194 Crore as on 31.3.2010.
This was on top of 23.60% growth recorded in year 2008-09.
3.1. Aggregate Deposits

Aggregate Deposits (excluding inter bank deposits) registered
a growth of 30.66% from Rs.59,202 Crore as on 31.3.2009
to Rs.77,356 Crore as on 31.3.2010. Aggregate deposits
included Current deposits of Rs 6,643 Crore, Savings deposits
of Rs.16,118 Crore and Term deposits of Rs. 54,595 Crore.

Table 5: Category-wise classification of Aggregate
deposits
(Rs. in crore, except for percentages)

SI. | Type of Deposits Amount | Percentage of

No. total deposits

1 [ Current Deposits 6643 8.59

2 | Savings Bank Deposits 16118 20.84

3 | Term Deposits 54595 70.57

TOTAL (1+2+3) 77356 100.00
(30.66%)

Note: Figures in (') indicate annual growth rate over previous year
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Category-wise classification of Aggregate Deposits

6643 (8.59%)
54595
(70.57%)

16118
(20.84%)

[C]Current Deposits [] Saving Bank Deposits [ ] Term Deposits

Area-wise distribution of aggregate deposits (total deposits
less inter-bank deposits) as on 31.03.2010 is set forth in the
following Table.

Table 6: Area-wise classification of Aggregate deposits
(Rs. in Crore, except for percentages)

S.No.| Category of branches Amount % to total
1 Rural 5068 (17.50%) 6.55
2 Semi-Urban 12797 (16.22%) 16.54
3 Urban 18485 (22.08%) 23.90
4 Metro 41006 (42.70%) 53.01

TOTAL (1+2+3+4) 77356 (30.66%) 100.00

Note: Figures in (') indicate annual growth rate over the previous year

3.2 Gross Bank Credit

During the year ended March 2010, Bank registered a robust
y-0-y growth of 27.19% in Gross Bank Credit. In absolute
terms, Bank’s Gross Bank Credit stood at Rs.56505 Crore at
the end of March 2010, as compared to Rs. 44428 crore as
at end of March 2009. The credit growth, distributed across
all sectors was driven by SME and Retail credit.

Table 7: Classification of advances portfolio
(Rs. in Crore, except for percentages)

Category 31.03.09 |31.03.10 Var
1. Food Credit 905.78 | 94844 | 411
2. Non-Food Credit (2.1t02.4)

2.1 Advances to Agricultural Sector | 6685.58 | 9057.02 | 35.47
2.2 Advances to MSME sector 5356.59 | 8284.75 | 54.66
2.3  Large Industries 13775.43 |21680.70 | 57.39
24  Other Advances 17704.22 |16534.45 |(-) 6.61
GROSS BANK CREDIT (1+2) 44427.60 [56505.36 | 27.19
Of which, Lending to Priority sector 14955.42 |19011.97 | 27.12

3.2.1 Priority Sector Lending

The Bank’s priority sector lending increased to Rs.19011.97
Crore as on 31.3.2010 from Rs.14955.42 Crore as on
31.3.2009, i.e. an annual increase of 27.12%. As a percentage
to Adjusted Net Bank Credit (as defined by RBI), priority sector
advances of the Bank stood at 42.79%. This is well above
the RBI’'s norm for priority sector advances of 40% of Adjusted
Net Bank Credit. Of this, share of women belonging to minority
community in total micro credit to women stood at Rs.3296
Crore, comprising 6.48 lakh accounts. Total credit extended
to SC/ST beneficiaries under priority sector advances stood
at Rs.1003 Crore.
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Launching of Smart Card Project by Sri R.S. Reddy, Chairman & Managing Director

1'gmg of food (hstubutlon veh’

Vehicles sponsored by
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Managing of Food distribution vehicle for Midday Meal Scheme to poor School children has been conducted by the Bank through Akshaya Patra Foundation
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Payment of Social Security Pension through Smart Cards - Inauguration by
Sri Anil Girotra, Executive Director

Moy w,mﬁwﬁ%&m%ﬁwﬁaﬁwmmﬁg@

Launching of Tele Banking Services by Sri AA Taj, Executive Director
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e HoeiR ot &1 Afeanst & fog faas ok ®erg o
givrerr fG@™ 3 WrTage afegw 2w, J@mtaia &l §& o
TN fem

Our Bank donated to Bhagvathula Charitable Trust, Yellamanchilli for the
training conducted by them for the women of economically weaker section
in Tailoring & Embroidery

i o 0 & © P
oA g6 ST % STaTa §% W POl Bl FT TR b

Loans disbursed to the farmers under Kissan Chakra Scheme
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2roft 2009-10
1. grethesar gt &= ot (2 § 8) 19011.97
2. 3w (2.1 + 2.2) 9173.05
2.1 By =0 9057.02
2.2 = fasr 116.03
3. WP Ud @y Sga 5005.74
4. A1EHT FHOT 396.75
5. Siferss o 1647.11
6. A FOT (YT fac @ ) 2789.32
T 7
I. grerfiesar w2 ST (%) 42.79
I &% sl (%) 20.65
3.2.1.1 Ffw = =

GifeTdT S ATl bl BiY Ueb <aTd &l & §. §9 gwie 2010-11 &
P % fw £.3.75 B3 & @ed @1 T § S fued av & 15%
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e 3. fohaml % ®earn & Wy ugal & enage a foeaw fean
% fad ol e oM g o e i . eiY %
§% @ Tifq 9T IS F qT I ®I ¥ A @ W &
% o foTT FTIiHehdT U &= & Siaid Hiy & s 31.03.2009
B 5.6833.84 w3rE & 319 2010 @ €.9173.05 &3S a% §6
2. 389 5.9057.02 wis (Usw a¥ - das @ %.6685.58
HE) & BN FOT T 5.116.03 AT (dTE : 5.148.26 HRA) B
= A e ¥, B Bl SuR guEiTa fraw % Fon(di 96
Aes 18%) @1 fuew as § 19.78% a1 gawn & 2009-10 % 3R
20.65% ga.

32.1.2 $f & T e

o fEgwM el &l @G Td 93T &1 % 35aed ¥ fawrsoT
@l gfaen Suaer &YW &g 9% ¥ feam | sqatadl % fae us
T AT S R

b | BURS B 96 IAET B MU Giaar Gl B g
farcmaifea fear &

% T GRPT SEH Bl ITTHT BHA TG FOT ST I
HT % [0 w07 39 B g BeelEl & facmifta fear B,

BA Bels b Afteh/aRaeT wfies Yo @l SiET 9Ed 6 AR
G B BEA B Beg b [T B AME UL B vg G
Wl B HURE MRSl § Al RO 34 % fog U =&
TAISTT JA %l T

IV el fafee ¥ ey Giae? SRl & UTehl @l
Joq % AU es FOT GEIE WSR A &g Sb STHIG/
TETNd SRl B SN food o % [0 8 4 HEd I
ZiFed fufies % @iy ety fear &

gfd ge& & ©.50,000 @1 siferman i 7% faw & a9y 9=
T % OfaY UTUHITE % FEE Bl W O FIT b AT A
T % fou §% 7 =aaw gty % =0 § fE9 B-oeE
TS fAfHes, TaXEe &) Fgad 6o . 98 uEwe s
U ST TR % Hadh Ud fqemeee fei § wrattad e s
T &,

2E Y AR % I ASThl SIS &b XY fereqdiisre He
T 5.10.00 wr@ @0 @1 qe guivds gioufd W SR fu
fom wfq am %.2.00 v % fam % faggem €6 & 9fd a9
%.3.00 TTa Te6 Serdn T 7. T B U9 GHid HNb Arivad
2.

@it frae ud 39 fram, i 7ee W ¥w o 7, @ o
T faeral % usieRer WX SR & for ud pw eifaRiea st
% 91U T @ B o Gt B % T § T wlieT fewat
% ST TR ANTSTagendl &l e foba .

3.2.1.3 =@ wEEE AUE (TAUEE) Hl 949R

% I @Y GEa® GUEI H oA U FT oot % NG Agsh! o
& ol U JATE SR @M &, AHI07 8= % SAfeies faepr @& fo
Td IO TR q% UgaH % [ TAuES % e B U e qor
HEHAT % w0 F f@n @ ¥ vd §% 1998 & vHuast 9%
HHAT § afshadt § A & &1 8. 2009-10 % AR % 7 2.45
W@ THEl Bl Ha¥ (6a1 ¥ Ud 6.2221 H3Is qe fawig gerear &
S



Priority Sector Advances (Rs. in crores)
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Table 8 : Priority sector lending (as on 31.3.2010)

Category 2009-10
1. Priority sector advances (2 to 6) 19011.97
2. Agriculture (2.1 +2.2) 9173.05
2.1 Agriculture loans 9057.02
2.2 Eligible investments 116.03
3. Small enterprises 5005.74
4. Micro credit 396.75
5. Educational Loans 1647.11
6. Housing Loans (including indirect finance) 2789.32
Memo items
|. Priority sector advances (%) 42.79
II. Agriculture advances (%) 20.65

3.2.1.1 Credit to Agriculture

Agriculture is a thrust area for the policy makers. In the Union
Budget 2010-11, a target of Rs.3.75 lakh Crore is set aside
for agriculture, which is a 15% enhancement over the previous
year. A host of initiatives are envisaged for the welfare of
farmers which include further subventions and other
concessions. Bank’s policy towards agriculture is in perfect
harmony with the Budget pronouncements. For the Bank,

Agricultural Advances
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lending to agriculture under priority sector increased from
Rs.6833.84 Crore as on 31.3.2009 to Rs.9173.05 Crore as
31 March 2010. This included agriculture loans of Rs.9057.02
Crore (Previous Year - PY: Rs.6685.58 Crore) and eligible
investments of Rs.116.03 Crore (PY: Rs. 148.26 Crore).
Lending to agriculture constituted 20.65% of Adjusted Net
Bank Credit (RBI norm: 18%) during 2009-10 compared to
19.78 % in the previous year.

3.2.1.2 New initiatives in agriculture

Bank has formulated a new scheme facilitating the farmers
/entrepreneurs to avail finance for the purpose of purchase
and to undertake repairs to the existing Godowns.

Bank has extended finance to the Corporates to undertake
contract farming for seed production.

Bank has extended finance to Sugar factories for onward
lending to the sugarcane growers to meet the crop
production credit requirements.

A new scheme for sanction of individual loans to Harvest
Labour/Transport Labour batches for supplying farm work-
ers for harvesting of sugarcane crop during the crushing
season with the corporate guarantee of sugar factory was
launched.

Bank has entered MOU with M/s. International Tractors
Limited for extending Channel finance to their approved
and identified tractor dealers for granting Cash Credit limits
for the purchase of Tractors from International Tractors
Limited for onward sale to customers of the dealers.

Bank has appointed M/s Co-Options Technologies Limited
Hyderabad as Business Correspondent for extending
finance under top up crop loans to the members of PACS
within overall eligible scale of finance upto a maximum
limit of Rs.50,000/- per member. This is being
implemented in Medak and Visakhapatnam districts of
Andhra Pradesh on a pilot basis.

Existing scale of finance of Rs.2.00 lacs per barn
enhanced to Rs.3.00 lacs per barn without insisting on
collateral security upto a limit of Rs.10.00 lacs for the
finance extended through Tobacco Board under tie-up
arrangements. Small and marginal farmers will be
benefited with this measure.

Bank has relaxed the guidelines on Registration of lease
deeds extending Finance to fisheries both for owner
farmers and also farmers who have taken the tanks on
lease without insisting on registration of lease deeds and
stipulated certain additional conditions.

3.2.1.3 Lending to Self Help Groups (SHGs)

Bank continued its efforts to promote Micro Finance through
formation and credit linkage of Self Help Groups. Linkage of
SHGs has been seen as an important activity for the economic
development of the rural areas and for reaching out to the
rural poor and the Bank since 1998 has been actively
participating in SHG-bank linkage programme. During 2009-
10, Bank has covered 2.45 lakh groups and provided financial
assistance to the extent of Rs.2221 Cr.
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3.2.2 gl TE B IgEET 1 SR (THUNE)

BHIX d % fq Agshl Ud Bie IGTH T a919 B &9 . Highl U
B gl ® ® 41% @i av-az-ay giey &%t @i gy W 2009
% g a¥ o T ©.3550 B @ gam § 7 2010 B gere
T¥ % fiw £.5006 #3= @ & 7 2010 # g o v &
o B¢ sl @ ®=0 5.2801 #RIT @ STEih Agh g B
F07 5.2205 HAS W 7. AR §B T q Higw Aq & A
faazor & = fafafdse fer 6 wight vd B> SgEw &3 & F=w
gfay 20% e &. facia af % 3 39 &7 § 41% @1 gfew
i §% AMEEl ¥ o &.

3.2.3 FHAR O FH FO0

“Guein @’ % oiaTd SUREAIS @ surR 22.47% S § S
31.03.2009 =t 5.4891 == & 31.03.2010 @ 5.5990 &S
21 T R, S, HUA G bl RO GHES e Seb T (TUAETED)
1 13.48% . HHSIY o1 o Sicid ATHIER § STT1/STTeT SHRHAT,
AfedT SURGAl, Bl Ud M [ha, THUES e 9NfHd ©.

3.2.4 srasEasi F F0

T 2010 @ quw fociE 9y % fou ereaEeel R 2252
HAS @ S A WAHpaTT &= i & 11.85% .

3.2.5 1/ SaRaist Hi o

A 2010 & g9 fawim oy % o grefimaura 8= ofim %
ST 1OTI/3TTeT Seaarstl &l f&ar ar o1 31.03.2009 @
T a9 % U 5.784 #e @1 ga § 5.1003 HAS W 2
27.93% @1 giger ¥. SToT/3TT SURGATst i & T For § =
@ agar 31.03.2010 @ 34.86% %.

3.3 TaUATEE &= FEW

o W THUHUAE 89 § Ugd U BT S §. 5 9% & Stdfe, A1,
2005-06 & 2009-10, % 3feX 39 &= & ®T Ga® §LT B &
Ie9T § au-a-ay gaad 20% & gicy @i wifta % fae uogeag
& @1 m ¥ iy % foe @ wem Fuifa a1 % fog S8 @
TaTe & T . uHugens SR S 31.03.05 @ 5.1915 #3s
Fem A 2010 % o a% 8285 @ie = Tar st " 2005 &
332.64% %1 gftm & Forad seicaen % 39 Aeayyt & @ faw
@ AT H & AMES ¥ §gA OUH B TN §. THIHUAS & dH
=01 § 2009-10 % fow 54.66% 1 I a1 i T §. THUHUAS
&7 ¥ Afear IURHATSN B WeAed B b 0 9% = & A
0.50% Tama & a1 &, §% 3 THuauns SuRaEsdrst 1 R &
Wa Farw % fau gum s ug afl safas e §
TATAURS HAR AW Hi 2y fRY T ¥, §% THuauns 89 B 9uR
% G99y ¥ WA ST $e ud Aee &S & gfqeguar e & |
e HY @

3.4 g1 vaR

I TEM, FT AMGH &l TR Td Iod SUiE SR X &
Hithd ST b [T 9% b UTH U & Gadl Hisw §. Seb Bl Gal

=01 qrewitest 31.03.2010 & 5.8904 #34s @ & GET HO
Tebel S R BT 15.76% B. 3mard wor (Seger) 2008-09 fawim
v ¥ 5.2232 %ie ¥ gea? 5.3480 HAg & wan & < 55.91%
@ giger &. I =1 31.03.2009 @1 1446 &= & 5. 1647
HIS T 96 AT §. 9% ARG § Ud foer H S1euTT Hid % oy
faganfai @t #o AR et o W@ % % ¥ fagatiy & 5.415
FAT T 9845 T w1 W foean &, Aferd w01 AT F S
Aigen o @ @ a2 ° 0.50% Rama @ s @ g

a1 &7 % o a¥ 2009-10 % e Fa wefat 5.4139 &
el Taie Fiaaeur €.3518 #RAT @ FOT AT Y=l Bl HaTEN
9TEN Y o (o1T Seb F WIS AT Ta WA feen (qw) Yoot
oRY fear ¥ @ amemd For sfaet @1 STer UeX &Y d%h Ud
TRl Sog ARl & SH-dEd 99 qb. I8 UEae STHR U1
1557 omamsit & & 674 gmarshi ¥ yRY fear o &

ARON 9 : G T F FA Tek AR FATTEATEA
(5.HE ¥, 9 Bl BISH)

2008-09 2009-10 | arer (%)
T (o) 2232 3480 | 55.01
fareat 1446 1647 13.90
7 P =t 715 1382 | 93.29
forafer ot 551 642 16.52
ST 227 329 44.93
o= 871 1424 | 63.49
o 6042 8904 | 47.37

3.5 M - SN IR TFUER
T, THSIUEHT, SRLTZA ST B Tob T TG FIT THUSR 8. IS
10 TN B TFEETR b S FOT B 54.99% ¥ S fafaer ww
RIS ® giad B &.
ot 10 : SR F1 9@ AR TR

(B.HAS H, Afderd Bl BIswH)

31.03.2010 =1 [31.03.2010 =&t
fafer smenfxa SEET B %
TFUETY

qrax 7127.23 12.61
fmior wa afaemesr 4040.75 7.15
SET T I 3917.73 6.93
SATETE 2R 3609.99 6.39
T 2653.31 470
ECiT B 2475.49 4.38
aifuiosd ey J9aT 2358.00 4.17
YaifEm SaamE 1810.19 3.20
RESRE 1600.05 2.83
g (el Ud wmEe) 1476.99 2.61
T 31069.73 54.99




3.2.2 Lending to Micro & Small enterprises (MSE)

Micro and Small Enterprises is a thrust area for our Bank.
Lending to Micro and Small Enterprises stood at Rs.5006
Crore for the year ended March 2010 as against Rs.3550
Crore for the year ended March 2009, registering a year-on-
year growth of 41%. Credit to Small enterprises stood at
Rs.2801 Crore while credit to Micro enterprises stood at
Rs.2205 Crore for the financial year ended March 2010. In
its Annual Statement of Monetary Policy in April 2010, RBI
had stipulated that credit to Micro and Small Enterprises
segment should grow at 20% per annum. The growth in this
sector during the financial year at 41% is well above the RBI
norm.

3.2.3 Credit to Weaker Sections

The lending to borrowers under “weaker sections” increased
by 22.47% to Rs.5990 Crore as 31.03.2010 from Rs.4891
Crore as on 31.03.2009. Loans to weaker sections now
constitute 13.48% of Adjusted Net Bank Credit (ANBC).
Beneficiaries under weaker sections include SC/ST
borrowers, women borrowers, Small & Marginal Farmers,
SHGs etc.

3.2.4 Credit to minorities

For the financial year ended March’10, credit to Minorities
stood at Rs.2252 Crore, which constituted 11.85% of total
priority sector advances.

3.2.5 Credit to SC/ST Borrowers

For the financial year ended March 2010, total credit extended
to SC/ST borrowers under priority sector advances stood at
Rs.1003 Crore, compared to Rs.784 Crore for the year ended
31.3.09, an increase of 27.93%.The recovery to demand in
the credit extended to SC/ST borrowers stood at 34.86% as
on 31.3.2010.

3.3 Credit to MSME Sector

The Bank has a focused approach for MSME sector. Banks
were advised to fix self-set target for growth in advances to
MSME sector in order to achieve a minimum 20% year-on-
year growth with the objective to double the flow of credit to
this sector within a period of 5 years i.e. from 2005-06 to
2009-10. MSME advances which stood at Rs.1915 Crore as
on 31.3.'05 have gone up to Rs.8285 Crore by the end of
March 2010, which is an increase of 332.64% over March
2005, thereby far exceeding the norm of doubling finance to
this vital sector of the economy. Credit to MSME sector has
registered a growth of 54.66% for 2009-10. In order to
encourage the women borrowers in MSME sector, Bank is
extending a concession of 0.50% in the interest rate. Bank
has also set up MSME care cells at Head office and at all
Zonal offices to facilitate MSME borrowers for quick redressal
of their grievances. Bank is also adhering to the code of
commitment of Banking Codes and Standards Board of India
(BCSBI) regarding lending to MSME sector.

3.4 Retail Lending

Bank has a robust retail model to augment business, spread
the credit risk and to have focused attention on high yielding
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advances. Retail credit portfolio of the Bank stood at Rs.8904
Crore as on 31.3.2010. Retail credit constitutes 15.76% of
the Gross Bank Credit. Housing loans (direct) improved to
Rs. 3480 Crore as on 31.3.10 from Rs. 2232 Crore as on
31.3.’09, an increase of 55.91%. Educational Loans increased
to Rs.1647 Crore from Rs.1446 Crore as on 31.3.2009 Crore
in the previous year. The Bank has been sanctioning loans
to students, both for studies in India and abroad. The bank
has sanctioned 9845 new loans to students to the tune of
R.415 Crore. A concession of 0.50% in interest rate is
extended to the women borrowers under Educational Loan
scheme.

Total sanctions under retail segment for the year 2009-10
stood at Rs.4139 Crore while disbursements were Rs.3518
Crore. To facilitate quick processing of loan applications, bank
has introduced Lending Automation and processing System
(LAPS) package whereby branches can enter the data of
loan applications and submit to next higher authority on-line.
This is introduced on a pilot basis, in 674 branches out of
1557 branches

Table 9: Component Wise performance under Retail
credit
(Rs. in Crore, percentages)

2008-09 2009-10 | Growth (%)
Housing(Direct) 2232 3480 55.91
Education 1446 1647 13.90
Non Agricultural Gold Loans 715 1382 93.29
Clean loans 551 642 16.52
Consumer loans 227 329 44.93
Others 871 1424 63.49
Total 6042 8904 47.37

3.5 Advances— Industry-wise exposure

Bank’s major loan exposure is to various sectors like, power,
construction and contractors, iron & steel, housing loans,
NBFCs, textiles etc. Exposure to top 10 industries constitutes
54.99% of gross bank credit, signifying a diversified loan
portfolio.

Table 10: Industry-wise exposure of advances
(Rs.in Crore, except percentages)

Fund-based exposure | % to GBC

ason ason

31.03.10 31.3.10

Power 7127.23 12.61
Construction and Contractors 4040.75 7.15
Iron and Steel 3917.73 6.93
Housing Loans 3609.99 6.39
NBFC 2653.31 4.70
Textiles 2475.49 4.38
Commercial Real Estate 2358.00 417
Petroleum products 1810.19 3.20
Rice Mills 1600.05 2.83
Engineering (Heavy & Light) 1476.99 261
Total 31069.73 54.99
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3.6 Tk ¥k T N TRAT TR Rafa
31.03.2010 = sE®T & 9% FO0 & fGa<or e g o

Thd T AR H ATAR FHFIOT (303 F49 H)
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Byefor Dol Bl B werRE
aron : 11 "%a §& #07 - 31.03.2010 & 8@ q98 AR
%.49. 2oty SRl FA Bl %
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(22.84) 11.13
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(26.73) 14.45
3 R 12274.30

(41.12) 21.72
4 BEL 29779.38

(23.21) 52.70
5 g 56505.36

(27.19) 100

e () ¥ o T oiee fusw av & aifts gty @ gfed & ©.
4. A

R ¥ % AFTENTEGHTal & AR 9%l ® TASRNA % 25% T%
TaUEAR gfayfadl § a9 w7 % % Fag o Sites-
gieee SAI-3% I¥ STenia § Ud §% fafwame ud sidied
ARTESTTEEHTl 1 % IIa e & ©. Toha TR STuTd (HIaTea)
uq Hifafs Taffe S (TAUasR) § dafuq aifataes e
H IEE@E a1 S W §. PEEE T AGH T B S
R % erfafiea ool st & s dewifest & 29 sta
AT W@ B TS w9 fedey dewifwst % agg ¥ fawm
A9 @B A e emaR wR R T s o R

31 @ 2010 % fasr (qeagE & aw) 23.48% d% gews
31.03.2009 & 5.16911 ®1s & 5.20881 s e & 4T B.
TauweR asr 6.19,781 &g &t st 31.03.2010 @i Faw wim
Ud HAEl Al (TTeu) & 26.48% 7. fast 4 == og
2008-09 & 5.1098.98 == & 2009-10 & 1188.32 &S 9
T &, e @ fassr o @ 2009-10 % AR 6.324.50 w1
&1 safe g 2008-09 & A 237.61 &S o
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3.6 Area-wise position of Gross Bank Credit

The population group wise distribution of credit as on
31.3.2010 was as under:

Area-wise Classification of Gross Bank Credit (Rrs. in crore)

6289
(11.13%)

29779

(52.70%) 8163

(14.45%)

12274
(21.72%)

[ERural [0 Semi-Urban [ Urban @ Metro

Table :11 Gross Bank Credit- Population Group Wise as
on 31.3.2010

SI. No. Category Amount % to total
1 Rural 6288.93

(22.84) 11.13
2 Semi-Urban 8162.75

(26.73) 14.45
3 Urban 12274.30

(41.12) 21.72
4. Metro 29779.38

(23.21) 52.70
51 TOTAL 56505.36

(27.19) 100.00

Note: Figures in () indicate annual growth rate over the
previous year

4. Investments

In terms of RBI guidelines, the Bank is required to invest in
SLR securities to the extent of 25% of NDTL. Bank’s
investment decisions are based on risk-return trade-off and
bank is scrupulously following the regulatory and internal
guidelines. Statutory prescriptions relating to Cash Reserve
Ratio (CRR) and Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) are also
maintained. Risk Management in treasury operations has
been strengthened further by undertaking stress testing and
back testing of the investment portfolio at quarterly intervals,
besides daily monitoring of Duration and Value-at-Risk (VaR).
External rating migration of the bonds and debentures portfolio
is also being monitored on quarterly basis.

As on 315 March, 2010, the Investments (net of depreciation)
increased by 23.48% to Rs 20881 Crore from Rs.16911 Crore
as on 31.03.2009. SLR investments were Rs 19,781 Crore,
which constituted 26.48% of net demand and time liabilities
(NDTL) as on 31.3.2010. Interest income from investments
increased from Rs. 1098.98 Crore in 2008-'09 to Rs 1188.32
Crore in 2009-'10. Profit on sale of investments stood at Rs
324.50 Crore during 2009-10, while it was Rs.237.61 Crore
during 2008-09.
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Table 12: Classification of Investments
(Rs. in Crore, except for percentages)

2008-09 2009-10 Var (%)
1. Government Securities  |15215.03 19743.53 29.76
2. Other Approved Securities|  96.40 37.46 -61.14
3. Shares 165.51 106.46 -35.68
4. Debentures & Bonds 989.40 581.61 -41.22
5. Subsidiaries and / or
Joint Ventures 9.31 97.71 949.52
6. Others 435.46 314.23 -27.84
TOTAL (1 to 6) 16911.11 20881.00 23.48

4.1. Strategic Investments
4.1.1.Joint Venture Insurance

The Bank is having Joint venture in insurance with Bank of
Baroda and Legal and General Plc of UK christened IndiaFirst
Life Insurance Co.Ltd. The Bank’s stake in the venture is
30% while Bank of Baroda holds 44% and Legal and General
Plc holds 26% stake. Both the banks have commenced sale
of insurance policies through their branch outlets. The Bank’s
investment in the life insurance venture is Rs.60 Crore.

4.1.2. Banking subsidiary in Malaysia

The Bank, along with Bank of Baroda and Indian Overseas
Bank, has entered into a tie up for setting up a banking
subsidiary in Malaysia. The Bank’s stake in the venture is
25%, which comes to Rs.104 Crore. The structure of the new
subsidiary would be developed so that it can be incorporated
as soon as possible in Malaysia. Once the local subsidiary is
floated, Malaysian Central Bank will give the physical license
to commence commercial banking operations. The subsidiary
is the first of its kind in Malaysia and is expected to cater to
the needs of the Indian Diaspora there. Eight percent of the
population of Malaysia, which is approximately 2.1 million
are Persons of Indian Origin. The subsidiary is very much
beneficial considering that our bilateral trade with Malaysia
is rapidly growing and stands at approximately US $10 billion.

4.1.3. United Stock Exchange of India Ltd

United Stock Exchange of India Ltd is promoted by a
consortium of banks, of which the bank is also a partner. The
other major banks are Canara Bank, Bank of Baroda,
Allahabad Bank, Bank of India, Indian Overseas Bank and
Oriental Bank of Commerce. It has also tied up with Bombay
Stock Exchange and BSE will provide it the trading platform
and clearing services for the currency and interest rate
derivate products.

4.1.4. Multi Commodity Exchange of India Ltd.

With a view to be associated with one of the major commodity
exchanges, the bank has a tie up with the Multi Commodity
Exchange (MCX) Itd. The exchange commenced operations
during the financial year 2004-'05. The bank has an equity
stake of 4.6% in the exchange.
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4.2 Treasury & Forex Business

The Bank is an ‘Authorised Dealer’, to deal in foreign
exchange business through 43 designated B category
branches of the Bank. The Bank also has rupee drawing
arrangements with Two Exchange Houses and Speed
Remittance facility with one of the Exchange Houses. During
the previous financial year, the Bank has launched ‘Cheque
Mail Box facility’ with Bank of America, which enables NRIs
to deposit cheques for collection in Dallas (USA) itself, thereby
the time taken for realisation is reduced. The Bank has
entered into agreement with Citi Bank for truncation of
cheques which eliminates physical movement of instruments,
reducing the time taken for realization of cheques. Bank
entered in to agreement with CITI Bank for launching CITI
Global Remittance scheme with brand name ‘AB Speedway’.

Systems have been put in place for management of country
risk, exchange risk and other foreign exchange risks. The
country risk exposures for single country risk limit and
aggregate risk limits for the group of countries under each
risk category are fixed and are being monitored on daily basis.

During the year 2009-'10, the Bank recorded a merchant
turnover of Rs 20,402 Crore. The bank achieved Inter-bank
turnover of Rs.3,22,977 Crore as on 31st March ‘10 compared
to Rs. 2,17,282 Crore as at the end of Mar’09. Export finance
of the Bank stood at Rs 2187 Crore as on 31.03.2010.

5. Credit Card Business

The Total business turnover increased from Rs 1446 Crore
in March 2009 to Rs 1718 Crore in March 2010. Bank has
facilitated for several payment options to the cardholders like
online payments through CBS at all the Branches of the Bank
and to non customer cardholders for payment through NEFT.
Bask has launched issue of VISA/Master Credit Cards against
lien on Deposits for both Residents and Non-Residents. e-
Mail IDs of cardholders are collected and soft copy of the
Monthly bills are sent to the cardholders.

6. Merchant Banking Services

The bank has acted as a ‘Paying Banker’ for payment of
dividend warrants for a company and continued to act as
Debenture Trustee. A Shareholders and Investors Grievance
Cell is functioning as a part of the Division. The Bank has
received 25 complaints and 8068 requests during the year
under review. All the complaints and requests have been
addressed. Bank has also tied up with TATA AIG General
Insurance Company Ltd for covering Directors’ Liability for
an amount of Rs.50 Crore for a period of one year with effect
from 8.10.2009.

Bank is approved as Self Certified Syndicate Bank (SCSB)
by SEBI for the purpose of accepting ASBA (Application
Supported by Blocked Amount) applications from investors
of IPOs / FPOs. Bank participated in 34 IPOs / FPOs and
58,295 applications were accepted for Rs. 1.15 Crore.

7. Bancassurance & Fee-based Products
The Bank has been constantly focusing on augmenting non-
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interest income through diversification of income streams by
taking up marketing of life and non-life insurance products,
mutual fund products, collection of telephone bills, direct
taxes, commercial taxes, municipal taxes, utility payments
etc. Bank has recruited Client Relationship Officers
specifically for spreading awareness of our products and
services and marketing our products. Marketing officers are
posted at branches, with every Zone having a Nodal officer
for monitoring the marketing efforts. As part of marketing
initiatives, Bank has also entered into tie ups with Mutual
Funds for distribution of Mutual Fund products and with
automobile companies for financing automobiles.

7.1 Insurance

The Bank along with Bank of Baroda and Legal & General
Group Plc of UK has formed a joint venture life insurance
company named IndiaFirst Life Insurance Co Ltd and it was
formally launched in the month of March 2010. The Bank
has shareholding of 30% in the company, while Bank of
Baroda has 44% and 26% is held by Legal and General Group
Plc. As on 31.3.2010, bank sold 19,689 policies and collected
premium of Rs.53.44 Crore and earned a commission income
of Rs.2 Crore.

7.2 Mutual Fund Business

The Bank is having tie ups with Mutual Fund companies,
namely, UTI Mutual Fund, SBI Mutual Fund, Principal Mutual
Fund, Tata Mutual Fund, Sundaram Mutual Fund, Reliance
Mutual Fund, Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund, Fidelity Mutual Fund
and Kotak Mutual Fund. Bank has entered into tie up with
LIC Mutual Fund during 2009-10

7.3 Depository Services

Bank is offering depository Services to the public under the
brand name of “AB Demat’. The Bank is a Depository
Participant (DP) with Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL) as well as with National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL). 27 branches of the Bank are authorized to
open demat accounts.

7.4 Retail Sale of Gold Coins

Bank has entered into the bullion business in January 2009.
Bank sells gold coins (24 carat 99.99% purity). The retail
sale has been undertaken by the Bank across the country,
through its authorized branches in the denominations of 4
grams, 8 grams and 10 Grams. During the current financial
year, bank sold 420 kgs of gold coins and earned commission
income of Rs.3 Crore.

8. New Products & Services Introduced

8.1 AB Recurring plus

Bank has launched the deposit scheme ‘AB recurring Plus’
in the current financial year to encourage steady and gradual
saving by individuals and for mobilizing savings of those who
get income on monthly basis and can afford to set apart a
portion of their income. The salient feature of the scheme is
that the customer can vary the monthly installments upto 10
times the core amount during any or all months before maturity
of deposit. Such amounts can be deposited in the account



‘B 4T 5 ANDHRA BANK

S we orafer § oneHd (e ae) e wiasy srasassansti @t
T B I 3B TG &. A H 3T g @ g ¢ b T qfar
W W W AT GEE TS % G Al § (T W oty %
IAR), T dfud =T e % o @ .

8.2 Tt g Iaw T=a T @

§ I O Tew % udl UfaesT a9 qud 8 @i @ uel guk
I SUd §% @A b BT UEH B qog dieia Jarsi [ @i B
1 G AR B 3. OIS % ST Sad Wian @i % {9t
@I ST fobar T ¥ U SISl Bl SgAfd € S aawwiEl % oy
Y T

8.3 ¥ dfdk giaa &1 aRw

6 W UREH b [T B YT H 1Y A SfhT Glaen &1 gRy
festie 04.01.2010 & 3= S Haw, golae SR, LaXEE &
fpar %, 28 gfaen & SIRT ues Ta-fia (24x7) Fekfded @™
YT fee (SmEdieTRud) % SRU Ser § WY IURed | Bl g
T, STUN Wl i AT JT BT Tl 8. THIRT Tl (6T B e,
Foar iR TEE gieedt @ Brea, @ ares ol § g9e 8
T Y O 8 I b &1 &1 & UH T G a5d &9 % ST B
BT B.

B Yo H &1 T gfaensi ¥ 99 1 qs-ars, sifw i Awel
&1 R, @ ¥ A% @ Ry, @ foaxer % oo s, s
fpa ™ I@ @1 fafq ud o vd s9q 9% @l § e A
STRST HIE BT SMHS 8. HATel SHIah % AEel § @i faazor,
ST, WM B qRe, Ja 08, ST &Y, G @ ai v
ufyeraar ST Td FOT Wil % ArEwl § fgaren, €, g9
feT, Sepran T A, dRadt w0 Al ud Ea ai, o St
T, oifcw fepea ST wa e S Iats.

8.4 ez3e A i

AHITH e % g0 9 8% 3 TS[ 36 - e Sihn giaer,
R fean & 9% @@, 9, @ Tl b Iedrs, @ 9 6
UBATS, Ay % (T STRIE, U WA H SAR0T, 31T TSl SiRvl,
S WS HY &I, hise &S STEE 31T B,

8.5 gza s vduw

b 7 T I I | TUNT YW S1E9 S0 TEITH WRY fha B 3ER
G giaen I8 8 6 ae ¥ Sody i Ty & aRame fear s
e &.

9. wifsn T g

§% T AU AT AEHIE - ITAN H UGET AR SRl - BN A
sraferfa gfafdfaa s ¢ ua e wsear @ % fae uw & B
T BIARE TR ST Soh - ST THI STAIHATS & [T UeT
TETd 1 G R0 iAW Ud aey god gfdfdfad s gu e
.

b 1 Ticser AR TeM & [T 9 7 fai=T el ol @t @l §
ug fife ud sagite Hifsar % ARy v &ifsT, TR g, a9

28

9iweR, fafee ufaed sanfs % ST ag fasme &1 yar srieay
ST 3T B

10. = Sigdife age
% % B SfebTT Wiega (A7 &1 w8) H AU B STIET B g
AR AT UTes IX 391 W AN a1 9IRanstl & WaT o2 aebd §

TFee giaem % Y exe SihT ( GE Ud BUiRe ) B AT
i e % faw fear T B, 60,700 W (59477 gE
g 1253 HiUiRe Ues) o 3exe dfh giaen & fag 31.03.2010
% USipd b &.

AR TTed! &1 AEIUE § 52372 % ARU 30 &Y el H & [0
FEH ST 7T ©. 231 ST o ST gAY S Widl Ud 8T S
glaen % ST AR b & bise e (Swl Bl &1 B BN Giaen
& TR

gexne §fehT % TIRT Gd ¥ BIS T 6L Bl STIBT [THET Bl Afva
Y b [T SIS 1 J&H SHIET AT . a9 o QR 3231 Sihi
% 9IRT %.499 &3 & fow 14591 § 2o = At a9 &,

BAR Mgl bl USIUH HATEX0T/ foehl v (W3fwE) wee, S wg
& wi R, 31 5 2010 @ 11.27 @ra et 3 2@ giaen % fou
Ysiighd fopan & Td 9fd A1e Sfeas 50 @@ THuaTy §arg 99 S
2.

§ % UAUA H THUHTE W S Gaen % U doiigd e @
faeeT o1 Suwe §. THUAUA YW AT % Sia ed 9B Bl
THUHTE §STh] 9 91 WA G ga 9T B Ao 8. 399
Y @1 yu-ame, faavol, 9% ff sonfs @au e €.

M ¥ % Antesll fageidl % oAR gAR §% 3 ded snenia
Hiatzq SfeeT IR fohan . 3 giaent € - dieea § Hiaea o [
STAROT TG WERA § @ H, ARl B M T SUAIRET .
TTEH! o [T el §fehT U gexiferea arad Y| 1 I fopan .
e 2 % aY 1800-425-1515 S %Y bd & Ud i dle
9N SGR(h B 2B (TTSUHS) Td Jad <EH U9 Aecie
(STRESTTH) &1 79 HiEey g9 & @ Thigd (a1 17 &, a¥
% AR BHRI @S & SNy 5.72 WG HAESuE |es ug
8.57 WRI UHSURST TMad §U &.

9 ¥ Tl THOEHAR Hal § “ofiy gHaee” ¥ "M W @ R
o Gas H A9INW Seidel diEiT qfaad B 9 o W@ 8.

a¥ % SR S 3 T el s H A Zi-he™ Eeq drtftad
fepam 2.

EHI UTEab! ol 3ad IR % ST Sivege s giaen < o @
%, TAR Wed 39 gfawn % ARY AR AR HEHA § 9
W FHhd .

AT Wie b gid 918 B ¥ & U a9 IR Al sfse &
SR B BT e IR B T . a9 % AR W @ 4 oAfern



any number of times during the month subject to certain
conditions. It helps the depositors to accumulate their savings
over a period to meet future contingencies. It is handy, even
for business community, educational institutions and other
Associations, who wish to build a corpus over a period of
time to meet future requirements. Another major advantage
in the scheme is the deposit amount carries rate of interest
as in the case of other term deposits (as per the period of the
deposit) while the interest accrued is not subjected to TDS.

8.2 AB Super Salary SB Account

Bank has relauched its earlier ‘AB Privilege Salary SB
Account’ as ‘AB Super Salary Savings Bank Account’ with
value added services/benefits to the customers. Conditions
for opening of the SB Account are liberalized and provision
to allow TODs is created under the scheme, to suit salaried
employees.

8.3 Tele banking facility

Bank’s ‘Tele Banking Call Centre’ started functioning from
4th January, 2010 at Andhra Bank Buildings, Sultan Bazar,
Hyderabad. Customers can access information of their
accounts round the clock (24x7 basis) through Interactive
Voice Response System (IVRS) without visiting the branch
personally. The Bank’s ‘Tele Banking Call Centre’ works on
all days except on sundays and national holidays between
8.00 a.m and 8.00 p.m through Voice Response by CCCSE
personally.

The facilities provided at the Call Centre include Balance
Inquiry, Details of Last five Transactions, Cheque Status in
the account, Account Statement request, Status of Cheque
Issued and Noting of stop payment instructions for Current
and Savings accounts. In case of Term deposits, account
details like date of opening, principal amount, interest rate,
date of maturity and maturity amount and in case of loan
accounts, details like Original Loan Amount, Outstanding Loan
Amount, Next installment amount and due date, Loan Interest
rate, last installment amount and payment due etc.,

8.4 Internet Banking facility

Leveraging on the CBS platform, the Bank launched ‘AB
infinet' —the internet banking facility. It has features such as
All Accounts enquiry, Accounts balance enquiry, cheque book
request, transfer to own account, third party transfer, on line
tax payment, credit card payment etc.,

8.5 Drive up ATM:

Bank has launched its first drive-up ATM in the current
financial year. It has the unique facility that the ATM can be
operated while sitting in the vehicle.

9. Branding and Communications

Bank has unveiled its new Mascot- First of its kind in the
industry Dolle- which carries the motto-'Friendly, Responsive
and intelligent” - to reflect the stance of the bank and as a
step towards bringing national visibility.

The new corporate slogan “Andhra Bank—Enter for all your
needs”was launched reflecting good recall and visual value.

In order to improve the image of the bank further, bank has
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explored various channels and continued the publicity activity
through print and electronic media, out-door advertising
through hoardings, airport trolleys, bus shelters, different
magazines etc.,

10. IT initiatives

Following migration of the bank to Core Banking Solution
(CBS), all our customers can now transact from any of our
branches across the country.

Internet Banking (Retail and Corporate) with transaction
facility was launched for CBS Customers. 60,700 customers
(59447 Retail and 1253 Corporate customers) have registered
for Internet Banking facility as on 31st March 2010.

Our Customers are enabled to pay their taxes through Internet
Banking in CBS. Fund Transfer facility is made available for
our Bank accounts and other Bank accounts through Internet
Banking. Payment of our bank’s Credit Card Bills is also
enabled through Internet Banking facility.

Branches are enabled to remit their TDS recoveries to Income
Tax Department through Internet Banking. During the year
14591 eTax challans were remitted for Rs. 499 Crores through
Internet Banking.

SMS Alerts facility has been provided to our customers for
various types of transactions including ATM Drawals/Point of
Sale (POS) transactions, Online Internet banking
transactions. 11.27 Lakh customers registered for this facility
as on 31st March 2010, and on an average 50 Lakh SMS
messages are being sent every month.

Option to register for the SMS Push Alert facility was provided
on Bank’s ATMs also. Under SMS Pull facility, the customers
can get account related information as and when they require
by sending an SMS to Bank. The features include balance
enquiry, mini-statement, cheque status, etc.,

Our bank Introduced Transaction based Mobile Banking as
per RBI guidelines. This facilitates funds transfer from mobile
to mobile and mobile to account, donations to temples and
utility payments.

Tele-Banking and Interactive-Voice-Response has been
launched for Customers. Customer can dial up Toll-free
number 1800-425-1515 and register online.

National Electronic Fund Transfer (NEFT) and Real Time
Gross Settlement (RTGS) are integrated with new CBS
solution. During the year 5.72 Lakh RTGS transactions and
8.57 lakh NEFT transactions took place through our branches.

Bank is now participating in “Speed Clearing” at all MICR
Centres.

Bank is participating in National Electronic Clearing Service
at Mumbai.

Bank has implemented Cheque Truncation System at all Delhi
branches during the year.

Online Trading facility has been provided to our customers
through M/s Religare. Our customers can participate in Online
Trading activity through this facility.

A facility of issuing Non-Personalized Debit Card with PIN
immediately on opening an account across the counter has
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been introduced. More than ten lakh Non Personalized Cards
were issued during the year.

Number of ATMs increased from 726 as on 315 March 2009
to 859 as on 31st March 2010. Bank is operating four ATMs
with Biometric facility out of which 3 are mobile ATMs. Besides
the Bank owned ATMs, the ATM / Debit Cards issued by the
Bank are accepted on the NFS Network and VISA network
covering about 50,000 ATMs. Number of ATM / Debit cards
increased from 35.4 Lakhs as on 31t March 2009 to 49.72
Lakhs as on 31st March 2010.

Bank started issuing Debit Cards with Card Verification Value
(CVV) so that they can be used for Online payments. A new
security feature “Verified by VISA” was introduced as per
RBI guidelines for transactions through internet using Bank’s
Credit and Debit Cards.For remote branch and offsite ATM
connectivity, Bank has deployed 450 VSATs. Bank is also
sending Statements of Account through Email to all registered
customers.

A New MIS solution is launched through which 101 reports
are provided to Branches / Zonal Offices / Head Office
Departments. The solution facilitates export of data into
various report formats like excel, pdf etc. All the data of
pensioners is centralized and 34,772 pensioners are served
through 1003 branches.

11 Network Expansion

During the year, Bank opened 125 Branches (including up
gradation of 4 Extension Counters) and 133 ATMs. With this,
as at the end of 31st March 2010, Bank had 2502 Delivery
Channels consisting of 1557 Branches, 48 Extension
Counters, 38 Satellite Offices and 859 ATMs spread over 23
States and 3 Union territories. The Bank has 50 specialized
branches, catering to the needs of the specific segments of
clientele. The Bank also has two Representative (overseas)
Offices at Dubai (U.A.E) (opened in May 2006) and New
Jersey (U.S.A) (opened in November, 2008)

Classification of Branches

256
(16.44%)

422
(27.10%)

449
(28.84%)

430
(27.62%)

B Rural [JSemi-Urban M Urban [ Metro
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Table 13-: Classification of branches

S.No.| Category Number | % to total
1 Rural 422 27.10
2 Semi-urban 430 27.62
3 Urban 449 28.84
4 Metro 256 16.44

TOTAL 1557 100.00

As on March 31, 2010 the Bank had 50 Specialized Branches,
as detailed hereunder:

Table 14: Specialized Branches

Sl. | Category of Specialized Branches Number of
No. branches
1 |Specialized SME Branches 15
2 |Specialized Agriculture Finance Branches 3
3 |Specialized Agri-Hitech Branches 6
4 | Specialized Housing Finance Branches 4
5 |Personal Banking Branches 4
6 |Corporate Finance Branches 2
7 |Auto Tech Branch 1
8 |Overseas Branch 1
9 |Asset Recovery Management Branch 1
10 |[NRI Branches 5)
11 | Retail Credit Branches 8

TOTAL 50

11.1 Presence in Minority-Dominated Districts

The number of branches in Minority dominated districts
increased from 178 as on 31.3.2009 to 204 as on 31.3.2010.
Of the Bank’s total network across the country, the percentage
of branches in minority dominated districts stands at 13.10%
as on 31.3.2010.

11.2 Structural Changes

During the year 2009-10, bank has added five new Zones,
thus taking the total number of Zones to 22. This was done
with the intent to facilitate speedy decision making and for
the convenience of customers.

12. Qualitative Aspects:
121 Risk Management

The Bank has put in place a comprehensive “Integrated Risk
Management Policy” for the management of credit risk, market
risk and operational risk as per the guidance notes/guidelines
of RBI. Accordingly, all the risk management functions, viz.,
Credit risk, Asset-Liability Management (ALM), Mid-office of
the domestic treasury and Operational risk functions have
been integrated. The “Integrated Risk Management Policy”
of the Bank is being reviewed every year in tune with the
guidelines issued by the RBI.
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12.1.1 Credit Risk

e The Bank has constituted ‘Credit Risk Management
Committee’ for analyzing all issues relating to credit
matters and for recommending to the Board.

e The Bank has a well defined ‘Loan Policy’ duly approved
by the Board. The Bank has formulated policies and
procedures on standards for presentation of credit
proposals, financial covenants, rating standards and
benchmarks, delegation of credit approving powers,
prudential limits on large credit exposures, asset
concentrations, standards for loan collateral, portfolio
management, loan review mechanism, risk
concentrations, risk monitoring and evaluation, pricing of
loans, provisioning, regulatory/legal compliance, etc.,

e The Bank has in place comprehensive risk rating system
for various categories of exposures.

e Bank has entered into memorandum of understanding
with the External Credit Assessment Institutions (ECAIs)
for rating the corporate borrowers.

e The Bank utilizes industry reports from CRISIL and the
industry risk score service from CRISIL Research.

e The Bank undertakes portfolio studies on industries/sec-
tors where the exposures are substantial and the find-
ings of such studies are discussed at ‘Credit Risk Man-
agement Committee’.

12.1.2 Market Risk

The Bank has in place a well-defined ‘Market Risk
Management Policy’ and organizational structure for market
risk management functions. The Bank manages market risk
through ‘Asset-Liability Management (ALM) policy and
‘investments/forex policy’.

A high level executive committee, namely, Asset-Liability
Committee (ALCO) oversees the ALM in the Bank and
deliberates on liquidity and interest rate scenario in the market
and decides upon the pricing of various products. ALCO does
identification, measurement, monitoring and mitigation of
market risk on liquidity, interest rates, equity and currency
areas.

The ‘liquidity risk’ is measured and managed through ‘gap
analysis’ for maturity mismatches by reviewing structural
liquidity position on daily basis. For assets and liabilities, which
are of non-maturity nature, Bank is conducting behavioural
studies and factoring the observations in the gap analysis.
The behavioural study findings are subjected to back-testing
and validated regularly. Prudential limits are fixed for net gaps
and also for cumulative gap up to one year and these limits
are measured and monitored regularly. Liquidity profile of the
Bank is also measured regularly through various liquidity
ratios and monitoring of the same is done with the help of
prudential limits fixed thereon.

The ‘interest rate risk’ is managed through ‘gap analysis’ and
‘duration gap analysis’. Tolerance limits have been fixed for

_
FF RUie ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010 %

impact on net interest income (NII) due to adverse changes
in interest rates. To measure the impact of interest rate
changes on Bank’s equity, duration gap analysis is done and
prudential limit is set for modified duration of equity. The
position of Modified duration of equity is being monitored
regularly. VaR and duration analysis are used for measuring
market risk including treasury operations. The Interest Rate
Risk in Banking Book (IRRBB) is also being assessed on
monthly basis.

12.1.3 Operational Risk

Management of Operational Risk (OR) is a part of the
‘Integrated Risk Management Policy’ and the Bank has
focused attention for the management of OR in the light of
RBI’s guidelines. Bank has taken many initiatives in tune with
the notification of “Management of Operational Risk”.

‘Operational Risk Management Committee’ (ORMC) is
responsible for controlling/mitigating the Operational Risk
through periodical reviews and directions. Operational Risks
in the areas of Credit Management, Internal Control/House
Keeping, HRD and Technology are reviewed on a monthly
basis. Rating of the branches is being done under Risk-Based
Internal Audit (RBIA) and the position is reviewed every
quarter. The Bank has developed a system of capturing
historical data on operational losses. Particulars of
Operational losses/potential operational losses are collected
through event reports and the position of the same is reviewed
on a quarterly basis.

12.1.4 Basel - |l Preparedness

As per RBI guidelines, Bank has already moved over to the
Standardised Approach for credit risk, Standardised Duration
Approach for market risk and Basic Indicator Approach for
operational risk under the ‘New Capital Adequacy Framework.

Credit Risk: Bank has successfully migrated to Standardised
Approach for Credit risk for total balance sheet including the
HTM portfolio under investment as well as the Basic Indicator
Approach for operational risk as on March 31, 2009. Bank
has entered into memorandum of understanding with the
External Credit Assessment Institutions (ECAIs) for rating the
corporate borrowers. The Bank has also developed a Credit
Risk Rating Model (CRRM) with the consultancy assistance
of National Institute of Bank Management (NIBM), Pune. This
model is capable of providing transition matrices and default
probabilities and would help the Bank in moving to the
Advanced Measurement Approach in future.

Market Risk: The Bank is applying the Standardised duration
method for computing capital requirement for market risks
(investments in HFT and AFS categories) as per RBI’s
guidelines.

Operational Risk: Bank has provided capital for operational
risk as per the Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) with effect from
31.03.2009. Bank is also working towards meeting the
requirements of the Advanced Measurement Methodologies.
Business Lines Mapping Policy has been drawn to arrive at
Gross Income across eight business lines.
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12.1.5 Disclosure Policy

The Bank has a Disclosure Policy as per the disclosure
requirements contained in the RBI guidelines on the
implementation of the new capital adequacy framework. The
guidelines therein are strictly adhered to and compliance is
reported to the competent authorities.

12. 2 Management of Asset Quality

Gross NPAs of the bank stood at Rs 487.87 Crore as on
31.3.2010 and Gross NPAs as a percentage to gross
advances was 0.86% while Net NPAs as a percentage to net
advances stood at 0.17%. The Bank is continuing the position
as one of the banks with lowest gross NPAs to gross advances
ratio. ‘Business Today-KPMG Study’ has adjudged the bank
with the best asset quality. The Provision coverage of NPAs
as on March 31, 2010 was 91.56%.

Total reduction by recovery in NPA accounts amounted to
Rs.87.85 Crore. Special thrust was given on upgradation of
NPAs to performing category. Compromise/negotiated
settlement was adopted as another strategy to tackle NPAs.

Table 15: Position of non-performing assets
(Rs. in Crore, except for percentages)

2008-09 2009-10
Gross NPAs at the beginning of the year 372.43 368.14
Additions during the year 201.32 399.90
Reduction during the year 205.61 280.17
Gross NPAs at the end the year 368.14 487.87
Net NPAs 79.22 95.72

The segment-wise distribution of NPAs as on 31% March,
2010, is as under:
Table 16: Segment-wise non-performing assets

(Rs. in crore, except for percentages)

Segment Amount % to total
advances@

1. Agriculture 26 0.28
2. MSME 166 2.00
3. Retail Credit 113 1.27
4. Large and Mid Corporate 126 0.42
5. Others 57 3.33
Total 488 0.86

@Figures in column 3 indicate percentage of sectoral NPAs to
sectoral advances

Provisions held under different classes of NPAs are as under:

Table 17: Provisions held for non-performing assets
(Including floating provisions) (Rs. in crore)

Nature of Asset Amount Provision Held
Sub-standard Assets 330.75 234.74
Doubtful Assets 157.12 157.12
Loss Assets 0.00 0.00
Total 487.87 391.86
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12.2.1 Restructuring Mechanism

During FY 2009-10, 2077 accounts with outstanding of
Rs.1405.85 Crore were restructured in terms of the
restructuring packages. The total balances in restructured
accounts as at the end of March 2010 stood at Rs.2967 Crore
in 60,795 accounts.

12.2.2 Lending Practices

The bank has a Board approved loan policy in place and the
credit approval and Credit monitoring and Review
departments are working in tandem for formulating the loan
policy. As part of the loan policy, bank has delegated increased
powers to second level /third level officers at zonal Offices in
sanction of loans, so that credit sanctions can be speeded
up. The Bank has exposure limits for lending to individual
borrowers, Firms, Companies etc. Bank also has sector wise
internal exposure limits. Bank has also defined its internal
substantial exposure limit as 300% of capital funds as per
the Audited balance sheet of the previous financial year.

12.3 Management information System

Bank has developed a robust Management Information
System which captures data essential for vital functions such
as risk management and planning and which serves as an
effective tool for the Top Management in decision making.
This has facilitated quick decision making. The bank is in a
position to analyse performance in major parameters even
on a day to day basis using the information system available.
Leveraging on the CBS platform of the bank, the MIS has
facilitated speedy decision making and its implementation.

12.4 Inspection & Audit

As on 31.03.2009, the Bank had 1432 Branches, out of which
1239 Branches were due for inspection during the year 2009-
10. Bank has conducted inspection of all 1239 branches. Apart
from this, 43 branches were subjected to inspections under
FEMA. During 2009-10, 226 branches were brought under
the purview of Concurrent Audit covering 56.93% of deposits,
72.94% of advances, 63.91% of total business and 96.57%
of other risk exposure of the bank as on 31.12.2008.

All the 22 Controlling Offices and 20 H.O Depts were
subjected to Systems Inspection and Financial Audit during
2009-10.

Bank has also identified areas for Off Site Surveillance Audit
under CBS environment and developed tools for OSS Audit
covering identified areas. As a part of providing assistance to
the Inspectors of Branches for the on-site inspection and
improving the quality, the I. S. Audit Cell of Inspection & Audit
Department is providing various reports to Inspectors of
Branches immediately on commencement of inspection.

12.5 Quality Assurance

Bank has undertaken the revision of all application forms
keeping in view CBS environment and issued guidelines to
branches for using the new forms.
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HUG ST fbdl T, Tea Y€ O % HAUED! b 0 6T QA
Tl H NRAE USEE §RN, 0% & Ggdi § Sh% uREy H
T HRIpH ST 68 . foreh ge/ame few, ufsrs
WreRgRAe Hifd, onfs § Safe otiaiie Hriwd W1 ST 6 1.
T qE W SR/ eEddsl Bl Aged fae, Hd HETe,
gem %1 faaor § orgwa, Afear anfereiar, onfe wmismar § gfareor
&g fager ot Som . s st SR faftest % owman fafirs

36

&=t o fadve sl @ isrern fean . Fw 88 st diR
185 fafues wit foodr T

12.10 =i=ifier d€g

¥ # ofenfie d9er Aremyel ¥, AIaT W S HEeE U
1At HHART gE & Uiare % a1 g fomer § §gad %
o T . 9y 2009-10 % AR S Bl ST WM FEEd
ifcrat 7 Gt B T § Ud GHBH Sebl bl HiEl B FHN GER
feoam T &, HHAIREl % W % fou Sifereisr sedmor IurEl Ud
e seaTor ASTIST @l A | GHel # gfg @l T dwRE
Yo Taisl & Sifdiidd, Siafis WX ¥ T qHA & qHIEN
% foiU Yot o1 T Ug TeH AT % &= U HEAl F GEieE A
q gur fear .

12.10.1 gfsteqor

fawia a 2009-10 & §e% 3 @@y aewl & fefusl wd @he 11
6 % Al B Ha¥ BA gC 5197 wH=niar ai wfafem
foman, <t et wHIREl &1 46.58% &, T a9 § 2244 weaitar
& g &1 ug ¥ gfufea fea mn §6 3 79 wdt Tl % g
SRS GISTeT0T HrEishal o Siarar (At el § Sciig STTadhdl
gTereT srid ST fohd. aTe febe, Ioa & feaed, g,
Mg garer faem, For, fagelt g1, Arhfen SR T SihTEsT,
§fh § AT TE, ¥ TIPRH, AW YEEN, U7 U U U9,
RS aadbar, HRER # R I e ) G99 S
foar T %, 7% o WRd faRsh gE SR ww (FerE), 498
% qedTge ¥ aificge Jel oiR faim demsii & fae faxel gar
9§ N Uh HIU bl A |l fehar.

FHAR qE&AT

e T & %
SIECar] 8411 58.85
fafie® 3175 2222
R FHHAR 2706 18.93
EX| 14292 100.00

* HThIIeh GHIS IR hi BIEHT
12.11 swggiea A R ATEEA AAANA H AHE

Yoh ARA LB b ATTGIT [AGidl % AR 3 Ud STTeT % (Y
RV Hifd Hraivad &l o W & 31.03.2010 & §% %
PRIGH § 3T Ud ST ol iiierd %At 2546 ug 833 & s
31.03.2009 &1 % ®ried &1 17.81% wa'5.83% 3. ar 2010
% o § § ¥ oiftemal o e 8411 § fEd s gui %
aiterprr 1371 ¥ S st 9ot & 539 ¥, ARa 6K & AnEd
Al % AR §% T O UG ST HHANLE Bl AHES B
faem % U g™ SAaa § Us 981 96 H q91 oihd & &Y
9 g atiEfties Gl Bl qed G Sl & &0 H qeHIHd
fepa.



12.6 Compliance Policy

The Bank has a policy on “Compliance & Compliance
Functions” and timely reports are reviewed by the Audit
Committee of the Board. An Executive of the Bank in the
rank of General Manager has been appointed as the “Chief
Compliance Officer’. As per the policy, all the regulatory,
statutory and internal compliances are being monitored.

12.7 Adherence to Right to Information Act

The Bank is in compliance with the directives and principles
of the Right to Information Act. Accordingly, all ‘General
Managers’ are designated as ‘Public Information Officers’.
The Bank is committed to provide information to the public
on information sought by them. During the year 2009-10, Bank
received 357 requests for information under the RTI Act. All
the requests were suitably responded to within the stipulated
time frame.

12.8 Customer Service

Bank has established Centralized Pension processing Centre
at Hyderabad and is in the process of centralizing all pension
data relating to Central Government Pensioners.
Centralization of pension processing improves service to
Pensioners by timely credit of pensions without any
discrepancy. Steps are also taken for establishing a
centralized grievance redressal cell for Pensioners with Toll
free number. Nodal Officers from Zones are nominated to
attend to the grievances of pensioners.

There is also a well defined policy in place for addressing
customer complaints and their timely disposal. During the
current financial year, no awards were passed by the Banking
Ombudsman.

Towards further improvement in Customer Service, the ATM
cash withdrawal limit was enhanced from Rs.15,000 to
Rs.25,000. The Bank is providing free SMS Alerts to current
account/OC account holders for all debits of Rs.25,000 and
above.The Bank has also set up a separate Cell to redress
ATM related complaints. Bank has provided on-line
registration at branches of complaints relating to failed ATM
transactions.

12. 9 Human Resources Management

Bank has begun implementing succession planning. Keeping
in view the likely vacuum that would arise in Top, Senior and
Middle Management positions, bank has identified a group
of officers belonging to certain age bracket for grooming them
as future leaders. As part of Succession Planning, an in-house
Training programme styled as “High Performance Leadership
Workshop” was arranged to the group of officers identified to
occupy leadership positions in different levels in future.
Leadership programmes were also arranged for Executives
in Top Grade with the coordination of 1IM, Bangalore at their
campus in two batches. In-house Programmes in Forex /Soft
Skills, Public Procurement Policy etc were also arranged.
Good number of officers / Executives have been nominated
for Training Programmes in foreign locations, which include
programmes on Leadership Development, HR, Exposure
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Visits in Micro Finance, Women Empowerment etc., During
the year, Specialist Officers in different areas have been
inducted, besides General Officers and Clerks. The total
number of officers inducted stand at 88 and clerical staff at
185.

12.10 Industrial Relations

The Industrial Relations in the Bank are cordial. Joint meetings
were held with the representatives of the recognized Officers
Federation and the Award Employees Union in every quarter.
During the year 2009-10, many of the HR Policies of the Bank
were reviewed and improvements were made on par with
the peer Banks’ policies. Number of welfare measures and
enhancement in ceilings/limits in existing welfare schemes
were considered for the benefit of the employees. Apart from
the Central level Joint discussions, meetings were also held
at Zonal level to sort out the local issues and improvements
were made in the areas of customer service and work related
matters.

12. 10.1. Training

In FY 2009-’10, Bank imparted training to 5197 employees in
General Channels, which is 46.58% of the total staff strength
covering clerks and officers up to scale Ill. 2244 employees
were trained in CBS during this year. Bank also conducted
several Product Awareness Training Programmes at various
zones besides induction training programme for newly
recruited clerks. The thrust areas are Soft skills, High
performance, Leadership, HRD, Credit, Foreign Exchange,
Marketing and Product awareness, Latest trends in Banking,
Bancassurance. Risk Management, NPA management,
Preventive Vigilance, Operational efficiency in Computers etc
are also adequately covered. Besides this, the bank
organized a workshop on Foreign Exchange for Commercial
Banks and Financial Institutes on behalf of FEDAI, Mumbai.

Staff strength

Strength % to total
Officers 8411 58.85
Clerks 3175 22.22
Sub staff* 2706 18.93
Total 14292 100.00

* Excluding Part Time Sweepers

12.11. SC/ST Profile

The Bank has been implementing the reservation policy for
SCs & STs as per guidelines of the Government of India. The
representation of SCs and STs in the Bank’s work force is
2546 and 833 respectively, forming 17.81% and 5.83% of
the total workforce as on 31.03.2010. Officers’ strength in
the Bank as at end-March 2010 is 8411 of which 1371 are
officers belong to SC category and 539 belong to ST category.
As per Govt of India guidelines, bank has nominated the
General Manager as Chief Liaison Officer for SCs and STs
at Head Office and all Zonal Managers as Liaison Officers at
Zonal level to address the grievances of SC and ST
employees.
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ST UG S{9TSTl TSI hedIul Y o FiIerdl o a1l Yol faHel
T R Hifd IR T SfIIeAs SurEl & SR § e ®9 ¥ §6
TE HY @ T

12.12 =«

b IPpAl ST B P [0 Tl Bl WeAned H W &, ay
2009-10 % 3R §% W fbohe, PSS U oW S FB @Al A
Ipee faaitedt &1 wdl @i 8. a¥ 2009-10 % SR & 3 o9
ALY WX IR TGS &1 H %3 2Mbdl X HSd A< a8,
12.13 faera =i

Yo fereperm caferaal & Wdl & G99 H WA G¥hE & S9N ol
faaergut are sear & 31.03.2009 @1 fasai Sl % siava 96
A ga 246 = T Gd ¥ 76 st 138 fafues wa 25
S HHEI Td 7 Siehiicies dBls HHATR &.

12.14 wswmen

YR TR % NN HIAaaT BIEHhy b AR S qid a¥ f&w
% BT % [T ATV B AT THIAT § AL 36D Bravaas
% iU ed seran &, @, 2010 % o aw S & &9 & o 144
/A AR &7 @ § 100 erE/eEed A & T A
1336 smEm/eEEE & @ a9 as § eiRa @edl 5 gt
JSTHIST ol B (oImEs Haisetis <&l

1 §1 U8 % AN &9 % S18 & YAy § JSTHINT BT & A
HaH Tord T, H §1 UF % qrarERor § G @ @r] H & e I
3 “Tepe A fawiftes ATea@y &1 AUEL. 39 GIH2daX & &R
qmETd &=l ¥ o g, ST IEE, ofe gfad #e gl ¥ FRaY
YR TR, HEANE @ fadwey, &= ‘® ® HIANE B 34
ATFAIR I AT J&T fohaal <11 T &, STeT HETeN % 99 § S
3 @i el § g gigen Suwer wEl. §% % T & ug e
TR ST % iy Y Gl et o7 SueT §. S & A9 AEe
&1, A AR SETl ¥ Suwe B, ¥ @ sl ww foemed B,
d S AT § wfvrerr weime Terr & S “Terwen @i’
% T ¥ Up e e T ufsrer yeifi| #a B,

b ol TSTHINT o HIEATI % [T AT Afew Iegafa Aeean S
gfaw e fie wifew &1 R 14 fadsy, 2009 &0 s wish
TTHIST Q&R Y& f6am . & @ & ToTH e % g
§ B Tgyd G arw g3, ay 2008-09 F e afvar =
T ufsrbr @I Ardeive & % §% AR facim g @ wRdE
fo1d ¥ i & ufereer wfeifiar & aqed @ g gan.

12.15 aqekan

§% @1 Gachdl [IHNT FEFTAT TF Fabal Gaal & aaev Bl 8,
T, RIS, SFWas SR e, gl WYl U MRS
TAhdl TATE Bl BT B IR AfIH Teed foar Aar v, BEE
AT ST % HFTE faial & ey, fafe A/ famadar §
AT % BT Bl TG Td (Ui e o wemewes @ uh
afufa &1 T fban T, 5.1 W@ A1 S ot SEeEr % A
a1 o6 9T % a1e, Fiers dew &l gaga fed ST &, @i et
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% T [T % SR UR S %1 awn uiE aftfa Ry gedee
R T 2. %.100 @@ a1 e oifers Jeaqed % e aSt Arwt
% T % {0 8% W Hew wow fasw afufa & Tew fEan. §%
7 A1 yHR &I Migarsll 1 gaen, S9! i § 99 T 3@ g,
ST 9 |1ge R @A @1 g &, fafaaretl % ey § oifgw fok
@ % g 9%, gal 99 @Ee § @i Sl .

T ARTEET Tl % oA, 6.10 A § Sume % Aee Aed,
g e YOS Ug STl edl Rure soeeiem Bie ¥ Uhaisd-
SMETAE!, 73wl &l Tgd B ST §. 30 T8N & U §
T oTWdIe HThedUY W fha &, 39 §99 § §% WRa™ e §@%
% ANl il &1 Sue Y & 2.

12.16 it &% e

§b o wewr o W 4 el § gan e, wfvedr Werad, qdf
TMeradl, Td Seegd fa § ud @ o9 § e ud et
frat & ol gaf & fatar far @ 8. | 6 fae & ad
2010-11 % forg foem o1 e 31 @/ 2010 % 99 9”9 &0
i,

12.17 71 WA 99 affa (TauaeR)

ST U9l H ST §ob Y09 WY S Aifd & Haeih o,
facim a5 2009-10 % SR ST G297 BT AT TWLT SbY kT
9 31 Yoy @ S FiHia Bl 9o o 8. facE as 2009-10
% ARM IR W To0 WOE 62 AWl B Job SIS bl
T, SR Y39 % AN T WAl R S Wa9 % ged |raq
g fafr @ fourl % gum oiR §@ sifererieal 3 39 ol
H @l wa & W o

facim av 2009-10 % SR S G297 BT 0T WL SHhY qiHfd
3 21 Gurie qEld @ So@i B A fhar.  Fa dade @@
T TR Je qiufa & 30 gifa &0 2 Yo 3 & ol faemr
YS! @l Soch NS I T4l. 39eh e, fosier 21.10.2010
P T (I JhY o &1 A SN fpar .

U9 T U 8 %] GRS U 9T B g SENT FH Bl afnied
HA T a¥ 2009-10 F i fasw wifee Sl & N e
1. IUEA o Srear, AT ShEal Bl GRSt 9X Tl B ¥
a8 2009-10 % 2R T WG S gt (T8 T og
e d) @1 °u afifa @ d Se% ST @l .

12.18 srgwit wa & awior S

Yo W SN S WEAIEE qiadq for. (TSUHUaTy) & AW A Uh
MW & S ¥ % Yol @i § & oad 2009-10 % dRW
TdUhTETd | Rl YHR @1 AR Sl .

§ T YT ¥ UG g4t ug ufyasr Marasy e B Haw B
T R (T WRY) H YA Marasl i §% S A ud
TEMT Y § TS TG ToTa STl 6l Ha¥ 6 g Fugpedn T
g 8. 31.03.2010 % I SRIARSA! & Uiy =mrR ©.2483
e § iR Fa emar Yead 182 &

12.19 <@dm afuiaat & S/

b TEET afafd o Sl BT Aishd BT F STEIST HIT § AR Bx



Bank is conducting quarterly joint meetings with the
representatives of the SC & ST Employees’ Welfare
Association for discussion on the matters related to the
reservation policy and other constitutional safeguards.

12.12 Sports & Games

The Bank is encouraging sports in order to facilitate promotion
of sports and games to achieve excellence. The Bank has
recruited outstanding sports personnel in a few disciplines
like Cricket, Kabaddi and Chess. During the year 2009-10,
Bank has won several trophies and medals in the above fields
at State /National level.

12.13 Physically Challenged Persons

The Bank is prudently following the Govt of India guidelines
regarding recruitment of physically challenged persons. As
on 31.3.2010, the Bank had a total of 246 personnel under
the physically challenged category consisting of 76 officers,
138 clerks, 25 subordinate staff and 7 part time sweepers

12. 14 Official Language

Bank formulates Action Plan for implementation of Hindi every
year in accordance with the guidelines on Annual
Implementation Programme received from Government of
India and takes steps for its implementation. As at the end of
March 2010, bank had 144 branches/offices in Region A, 100
branches/offices in Region B and 1336 offices/branches in
Region ‘C’. The overall performance in all the three regions
in respect of O.L. implementation vis-a-vis targets is
satisfactory.

Steps are initiated to implement the Official Language in the
post-CBS environment. Bank has adopted “Script Magic”, A
bilingual software in CBS environment, for implementation
of Hindi. The software enables the branches to print pass-
books and deposit receipts, etc. in Hindi. Training is being
imparted on an on-going basis to the employees regarding
the use of software particularly in Region “A”. With regard to
data processing, the bank has provided Unicode facility in all
computers. ATM screens have interface in Hindi, in addition
to English. Website of the Bank is also available in Hindi,
Telugu and English. Staff College conducts training
programmes in Hindi, Telugu and English. Bank also
publishes a Quarterly Magazine in Hindi namely ‘ Rajbhasha
Sarita’.

Bank was awarded with Indira Gandhi Rajbhasha Puraskar
for implementation of Official Language by Her Excellency
Smt. Pratibha Devi Singh Patil, Hon’ble President of India on
14th September, 2009. Bank was also awarded 4th place in
Region ‘B’ forimplementation of Official Language. Rajbhasha
Sarita, the Hindi quarterly magazine of the bank has been
awarded Reserve Bank’s Rajbhasha Puraskar for the year
2008-09 in Hindi House Magazine Competitions of Public
Sector Banks and Financial Institutions.

12.15 Vigilance

Vigilance Department of the bank oversees three primary
aspects of vigilance namely-Preventive, Detective and
Punitive. Greater emphasis is being laid for implementation
of preventive vigilance measures at all levels. In tune with
CVC guidelines, a three member Committee of General
Managers has been constituted to scrutinize and determine
existence or otherwise of vigilance angle in various cases /
complaints. All fraud cases involving Rs.1 lac and above are
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being put up to the Board of Directors as and when cases
are registered. All fraud cases are being reviewed by the Audit
Committee of the Board on Quarterly basis. Bank has
constituted a Board level Special Committee to review large
value frauds involving Rs.100 lacs and above. Bank is having
a system of keeping information on all the tenders on its
website irrespective of the amount of the tender. The award
of the tenders is also being kept on the website immediately
after finalization. The vigilance dept has been conducting
inspections to find out whether the procurements of properties/
goods and services are done in accordance with CVC
guidelines.

Under the extant guidelines, cash transactions of value more
than Rs.10 lakh, suspicious transactions report and
Counterfeit Currency Reports are required to be submitted
in electronic format to FIU-IND, New Delhi. For this purpose
Bank has acquired “AMLOCK” Software. Bank is adhering to
the guidelines of RBI in this regard.

12.16 Lead Bank Scheme

The Bank is having Lead Bank responsibilities in 4 districts,
viz., Guntur, West Godavari, East Godavari and Srikakulam
districts in the State of Andhra Pradesh and Ganjam and
Gajapathi districts in the State of Odisha. In all the six districts,
‘District Credit Plans’ for the year 2010-11, were launched
before 31t March, 2010

12.17 SLBC

Andhra Bank is the Convenor of the State Level Bankers’
Committee in Andhra Pradesh. During financial year 2009-
’10, State Level Bankers Committee of Andhra Pradesh has
conducted 31 SLBC Meetings. During the financial year 2009-
’10, four Quarterly SLBC meetings were conducted. Hon’ble
Chief Minister of Andhra Pradesh and Chief Secretary of
Andhra Pradesh, Heads of various Govt. departments and
Bank officials participated actively in the meetings.

SLBC of AP has conducted 21 Steering Committee Meetings
during the financial of 2009 — ‘10. Two Meetings of Sub
Committee of SLBC on Export Promotion and two committee
of Lead Development Managers were held. Apart from these,
one Special Bankers’ Meeting was also held on 21.10.2009.

Special monthly meetings on MSME Sector were continued
during the year 2009-10 involving Industry Associations, to
discuss the problems relating to MSME Sector .In addition to
the above, three meetings of Sub Committee of State Level
Inter Institutional Committee (SLIIC) were held during the year
2009-10, to discuss the problems of various units.

12.18 Subsidiaries & Regional Rural Banks

The Bank has one subsidiary, namely, Andhra Bank Financial
Services Limited (ABFSL), which is wholly-owned by the
Bank. During the year 2009-10, ABFSL did not conduct any
business. Bank has two sponsored RRBs, namely, Chaitanya
Godavari Grameena Bank located in Guntur (Andhra
Pradesh), covering the districts of Guntur, East Godavari and
West Godavari and Rishikulya Gramya Bank in Ganjam
district and Gajapathi districts in the state of Odisha. The
combined business of the two RRBs as on 31.03.2010 stood
at Rs 2483 Crore with a total branch network of 182.

12.19. Visits of Parliamentary Committees
The Bank is actively involved in organizing Parliamentary
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www.andhrabank.in & §&% & d9d13e U@ &, 300 S G
& =1 & fafe= SRl ud darsll % R § forga SRl & S
Td RO IR W Y ST ® Ao # SRl AR T g§EN B aee
ud fRoes HeW % 9 H MBI, 9@l J2adh bl SN,
ffoem, oee g it e Farer e @ 9 3|3 ¥ @
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¥ e dfem gfaw iR age T Rl & omadw faumor
ghaen +ff Suwer & &, och dg Iy ¥ i 999Ee Iuwe 2.
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o A fopaml, SRSTIR Yashi, THUEST AfGdT 1S I STasahdr
Sentea wfdreur HEmA aam & seesd ¥ 10w fasm gwm
%. 31 9@ 2010 @ faft=r @dma s 82, 905 snafffai &t
givfera fear man 8iR 2,678 ufsiemr #rima smaifa fea .
e facie & § fafir=r gfaenet & Sudermn & ar & awdor
STl @l ST 34 &,
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b I AT BT HAAH WATHBAT TS Bl &, faeiE oy
2009-10 % 2R BT YR BT Ahal/dihT Ui M TRl g3 8.
1 STa SIRa| i AT Seb b GRET HHA T S HI A1 W &
QT SR e fosniar @ arfties e b man & @i T s um
% WIZde GRAT TGl % MEl GRT 24 €A @ G YA B TN
SR g JaN B S .

12.23 Q¥R Td @

TS fohen aMena Sus Wig+d HUsl SR STl S &l fasa &
garea 500 focia dar Susi § sen S &l Sntha fbar @
% @ w461 @ & v 2009 % fasg ggEm % sw 20
YR Sl § S Uh @ ©.

fafsm 22 - % 91 | i g 7 a5 2009 % fou §% @ sEn
% WA A U 9% & &9 § g E.

¥ 2007-08 % fow gew ug @y Sem fasm S armeN % fag
b B ST YR T WHR A faAis 02.11.2009 & gTEER
ga fear.

13. =€ g

13.1 @gR TR - Sfa= S

§% 7 §% o SSIaT UG g % & @RI U T9A Y9 9T TH 4T 36
T % % AT SfeaThte T3 $9%9 HUAT fMiHeS B A ¥ UH qIH
Straet S st 9y b iR @mEian smow u¥ fe|er, 2009 ®
gaeR ey . Seedr, 2010 ¥ S SUeT oTErsl 'R S
qiferdr g2 @, 31.03.2010 @ g% 5 19689 uifwfai =it SR
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Committee meetings, attending to visiting dignitaries from
Central and State Governments etc. The Drafting and
Evidence Sub Committee of Parliament on Official Language
visited the Bank on 21.10.2009.

12.20 Bank’s Web site

The Bank’s website is available at www.andhrabank.in. The
website contains comprehensive details on the various
products and services offered by the Bank. There is also
continuous updating of the rates of interest offered on deposit
and loan products. Information about the Board of Directors,
members of the Top Management, Branch Network, Tenders,
Customer related policies, Grievance redressal link are also
placed. Internet Banking facility and Inward Remittance facility
from USA are also available through the Bank’s website. The
website is available in English, Hindi and Telugu. The website
is serving as a storehouse of information and also as a tool
of transparency.

In view of 100% migration to Core Banking Solution
(CBS), to support CBS based products and services, the
bank opted revamp / redesigning of website with
improvement, new designs, templates, flashing images,
navigating user friendly way etc, depending upon the web
visitors’ needs. A reputed web developer is entrusted the
task of revamping bank’s website.

12.21 Andhra Bank Rural Development Trust

The Bank has 10 Rural Development institutes imparting need
based training programmes for the benefit of farmers,
unemployed youth, SHG women etc. So far,82,905
candidates have been imparted training under various
programmes upto 31t March’10 and 2,678 training
programmes were conducted. . The institutes also educate
the rural people about the various avenues available in the
financial sector.

12.22 Security Arrangements

The Bank accords necessary priority to security
arrangements. During the financial year 2009-10, there was
no loss to the cash/banking property. All high risk branches
have been guarded by bank’s own security personnel. Annual
Security Inspection of the branches and Currency Chests
were completed. All the ATMs are also guarded for 24 hours
by private security agencies and are well protected.

12.23 Awards and Rewards

Andhra Bank was listed among the Top 500 Global Financial
Services Brands by UK based Brand Finance co. with a
rank of 461 and the Bank is one of the Top 20 Indian Banks
in the global league for the year 2009.

‘Business Today—KPMG Study’ has adjudged the bank, in
the year 2009, with the best Asset Quality in the industry.

Andhra Pradesh State award was presented to the bank for
outstanding contribution to ‘Micro and Small Enterprises
Development 2007-08’ on 2.11.2009.

13.New Initiatives
13.1 Joint Venture- Life Insurance

The Bank along with Bank of Baroda and Legal & General
Group Plc of UK has formed a joint venture Life Insurance
Company, named IndiaFirst Life Insurance Company Ltd and
the MOU was signed in the month of December 2009. From
January 2010 onwards, bank has commenced sale of life
insurance policies across all the branches. As on 31.3.2010,

41

_
FF RUie ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010 %

the bank sold 19689 policies and collected a premium of Rs.
53.44 Crore while earning commission income of
approximately Rs.2 Crore. The venture is expected to give a
boost to the fee based income of the bank.

13. 2. Banking Subsidiary in Malaysia

The bank along with Bank of Baroda and Indian Overseas
Bank entered into a Joint Venture for setting up a banking
subsidiary in Malaysia. The RBI approval for the Joint venture
is expected by June 2010. The banking subsidiary is set to
start operations shortly thereafter. Since there are no other
Indian banks to cater to the expatriate Indian population in
Malaysia, this venture holds lot of potential. Andhra Bank
has a 25% stake in the venture.

13.3. NRl cell

The NRI cell was set up with a view to serve as an effective
channel of communication between the Bank and its NRI
clientele. The cell is also updating the Non Resident
customers as well as the two Representative Offices with
latest developments in the financial sphere through its Monthly
NRI News bulletin. The Bank’s NRI Cell is disseminating
information on developments in the economy and financial
sector to Non - Residents. Apart from this, the Cell also
undertakes liaison with the Representative Offices of Dubai
and New Jersey (USA) and keeps regular correspondence
with the NRI customers of the Bank.

The Bank has launched the product ‘AB Speedway’ in
association with Citi Bank for remittances from USA to India.
This is a web based inward remittance product, whereby the
remitters can send amounts to beneficiary’s accounts at any
of our branches through internet.

In order to extend services to NRI customers, all branches of
our bank are now enabled to open and maintain FCNR
accounts.

In addition to existing branches doing forex business directly,
two more branches of our bank viz, Pune and Kanpur are
now directly dealing in forex transactions so as to extend
prompt services to importer/exporter clients in those cities.
Utilsing the CBS platform, bank is now directly crediting the
remittances received from UAE Exchange Centre, Abu Dhabi
wherever the remitters are providing the 15 digit account
number of the beneficiary thereby reducing the time taken
for crediting the amounts to beneficiary’s account.

14. Corporate Social Responsibility

Delivery of banking services to the common man at an
affordable cost is a priority area. The bank is organizing
payment of social security pensions, NREGA payments,
opening of No frills accounts, debt swapping to bring the rural
poor out of the clutches of the money lenders etc. The bank
has opened 7.74 lakh ‘no frills’ accounts as a part of the
measure to cover the excluded sections of the society.
Bank has implemented Smart Card project for Electronic
Benefit Transfer of Government Schemes and enrolled 10.17
lakh members covering 2174 gram panchayats. The banking
transactions in this field are undertaken by Business
Correspondents/Customer Service providers deployed for this
purpose in a branchless mode. Bank also has 4 Financial
Literacy and Credit Counseling Centers (FLCCs) in the bank’s
four lead districts in Andhra Pradesh. Bank also prepared
roadmap for financial inclusion as per the direction of RBI to
provide banking outlets in villages having population above
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2,000 by the year 2011.The Plan is submitted to RBI. The
proposed banking outlets will be in the form of Information
and Communication Technology based ones with Business
Correspondent network. Bank has 10 Rural Self Employment
Training Institutes (RSETIs) and conducted 2678 training
programmes for 82905 candidates. Govt of India has
sanctioned Rs.1 Crore each to 8 Rural Institutes forimproving
the infrastructure.

The bank extended its helping hand to the flood victims of
Kurnool during October 2009, sharing its concern for the
people affected. The bank also reiterated its commitment to
the society by donating to various social organizations to the
tune of Rs.4.16 Crore, which include Rs.2.00 Crore to Chief
Minister’s Relief Fund for the flood victims of A.P.

15 Outlook for 2010-11

Robust growth is expected for the Indian economy for the
year 2010-11. While Indian economy grew by 6.7% for the
year 2008-09, all indications are that the growth for the current
financial year is set to surpass the 8% mark. Signals of this
are already visible in growth in Index of Industrial production
and exports, robustness in corporate profitability etc.
Recognizing that that the economy and its various segments
are well on the growth path, a calibrated exit from the stimulus
packages and expansionary monetary policies has already
begun. Towards this, the Union budget 2010-11 has initiated
rollback of several duties and concessions and restored them
to earlier levels. Monetary tightening phase has begun with
tightening of key policy rates starting from the last quarter of
FY 2009-10. Concerns of inflationary signals, especially on
food inflation front, still remain. Real interest rates are still
negative. In view of this, the central bank has retained the
option to continue the tight monetary stance, though in a
calibrated manner. Hardening of oil prices and commodity
prices may lead to a surge in inflation.

For the banking sector, the current financial year will be
characterized by transition to the base rate system with effect
from July 1, 2010. This is expected to ensure greater
transparency in lending rates. Outlook for bank credit and
deposits is positive, compared to 2009-10. RBI has projected
credit growth at 20% and deposit growth at 18% for FY 2010-
11. Transformation of the banking landscape is well on track
with permitting more players to enter the banking space, such
as NBFCs, relooking into the prospects of allowing foreign
banks to enter the Indian banking domain, urging banks to
set aside well defined targets for ‘financial inclusion’ and
include ‘implementation of financial inclusion’ for performance
assessment of staff etc.,

On the whole, 2010-11 holds promise for growth and recovery.
Our country is well on course to keep up the momentum as
the second largest economy after China. Banking sector is
poised to play a major and crucial role in this transformation.
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16. CHANGES IN THE BOARD DURING THE YEAR

The following changes took place in the composition of the
Board of the bank during the financial year 2009-10.

B SriA.A.Tajhas assumed charge as the Executive Director
of the bank on 07.12.2009.

Sri K. Ramakoteswara Rao, Officer employee Director
retired from the Board on 25.09.2009 upon completion of
his term of office as Director.

Sri Anup Prakash Garg, Director retired from the Board
on 12.10.2009 upon completion of his term of office as
Director.

Sri T. Ravindranath, Workmen employee Director retired
from the Board on 05.03.2010 upon completion of his
term of office as Director.

17. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The Board of Directors hereby states that

The applicable accounting standards have been followed
in the preparation of the annual accounts and proper
explanations have been furnished, relating to material
departures.

Accounting policies have been selected, and applied
consistently and reasonably, and prudent judgments and
estimates have been made so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Profit &
Loss of the Bank for the financial year ended 31 March
2010.

Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records, in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies
(Amendment) Act, 2000, for safeguarding the assets of
the Bank and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern
basis
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Disclosures under Pillar Ill of Basel Il (New Capital Adequacy Frame work) as on 31.03.2010
Table DF-1: Scope of Application

1.1 Qualitative Disclosures:

a. The name of the top bank in the group to which the Framework applies.

Disclosures in this report pertain to Andhra Bank (Solo). The Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) of the
Bank on stand alone basis only is shown.

b. An outline of differences in the basis of consolidation for accounting and regulatory purposes, with a brief
description of the entities within the group:

i. That are fully consolidated:

Andhra Bank has only one Subsidiary i.e., Andhra Bank Financial Services Ltd (ABFSL). Infact, ABFSL is not carrying on
any significant financial activity. The total Share Capital (100%) of Rs. 5.00 crore is contributed by Andhra Bank only.

ii. That are pro-rata consolidated: NIL
iii. That are given a deduction treatment:
Bank has the following associates wherein the bank has contributed 35% of the share capital.

S.No. Name of the entity Country of Incorporation Proportion of ownership
percentage

1 Chaitanya Godavari Grameena Bank India 35%

2 Rushikulya Grameena Bank India 35%

The above mentioned two associates are making profits and there is no capital deficiency.
iv. That are neither consolidated nor deducted (eg. where the investment is risk weighted)

S.No. Name of the entity Country of Incorporation Proportion of ownership
percentage

1 IndiaFirst Life Insurance Co.Ltd. India 30.00%

2 ASREC (India) Ltd India 26.02%

1.2 Quantitative Disclosures:

c. The aggregate amount of capital deficiencies in all subsidiaries not included in the consolidation i.e. that
are deducted and the name(s) of such subsidiaries: Nil

The sole subsidiary of the Bank, ABFSL has outstanding accumulated losses. The Bank has fully provided Rs.5.00 Crores

(Total Investment of Rs. 5.00 Cr) towards its investment in subsidiary.

d. The aggregate amounts (e.g. current book value) of the bank’s total interests in insurance entities, which are
risk-weighted as well as their name, their country of incorporation or residence, the proportion of ownership
interest and, if different, the proportion of voting power in these entities. In addition, indicate the quantitative
impact on regulatory capital of using this method versus using the deduction.

The Bank has launched a life insurance company, India First Life Insurance Company, a Joint Venture with Bank of Baroda
and Legal & General with a share of 30%.

SI. No. Name of the entity Country of Proportion of Amount invested
Incorporation ownership
percentage
1 IndiaFirst Life India 30% Rs. 60 crore
Insurance Co. Ltd.

The investment in the Joint Venture is categorised as ‘Held to Maturity’ and risk-weighted accordingly.
Table DF-2: Capital Structure
2.1 Qualitative Disclosures:

a. Summary information on the terms and conditions of the main features of all capital instruments, espe-
cially in the case of capital instruments eligible for inclusion in Tier | or in Upper Tier Il.

Bank has issued Innovative Perpetual Bonds (Tier | Capital), Subordinated Debt Bonds (Lower Tier Il) and Upper Tier II
Bonds for inclusion in Capital.
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Innovative Perpetual Debt Bonds:

Unsecured Non Cumulative Subordinated Perpetual Bonds (Innovative Perpetual Debt- Tier | Capital) in the nature of
Promissory Notes - | Issue

Date of Bond Coupon Tenor Call Put Rating
Allotment amount Rate# Option Option
(Rs. in Crore)
31.12.2008 200.00 9.50 Perpetual After 10 years None ‘BWR AA+’ by
(Subject to RBI M/s.BRICKWORK
Approval) RATINGS INDIA
PVT LTD & ‘AA/
Stable’ by M/s.
CRISIL

There was no issue of Innovative Perpetual Debts/Bonds during the financial year 2009-10 eligible for inclusion in Tier |
Capital.

With regard to issue of Debts/Bonds eligible for inclusion in Tier-1l Capital, the Bank has issued the following:
Outstanding Subordinated Debt Bonds:

Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Tier || Debt Bonds V issue (Series E)

Date of Bond amount Coupon Tenor Call Put Rating
Allotment (Rs. in Crore) Rate Option Option
05.01.2005 200.00 7.25 111 None None ‘AA+ (Ind)’ by
months Fitch Ratings
Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Tier Il Debt Bonds VI issue (Series F)
Date of Bond amount Coupon Tenor Call Put Rating
Allotment (Rs. in Crore) Rate Option Option
11.01.2008 700.00 9.15 124 None None ‘CARE AA+
months by M/s. CARE
& ‘AA + (Indy
by FITCH
Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Tier Il Debt Bonds VIl issue (Series G)
Date of Bond amount Coupon Tenor Call Put Rating
Allotment (Rs. in Crore) Rate Option Option
10.09.2008 600.00 11.00 120 None None ‘CARE AA+
months by M/s. CARE
& ‘AA + (Ind)
by FITCH
Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Tier Il Debt Bonds VIl issue (Series H)
Date of Bond amount Coupon Tenor Call Put Rating
Allotment (Rs. in Crore) Rate Option Option
24.12.2009 320.00 8.55 120 None None ‘CARE AAA by
months M/s. CARE &
‘BWR AAA by
M/s .BRICK
WORK RAT
INGS INDIA
PVT LTD

47



“, 4T 5 ANDHRA BANK

o R 11 ame ¢
sRfera gfcea sraRkaaia (TR Sr-11) swe 399 [ (Je ) ¢

o fore e M (BAE H) | g EEiE] BT ST T ameN | 3w
25.03.2009 200.00 9.30 I & 10 9 & & B & T feads e
amwm 10 | (wraw Red gfean . fofes g
AW F AE | S A & "ETgeR T AR
T e | ) ¥ HW T
S kiiicefudtcr ol
S B
g ot
7 15 g
oRfaa giee sraRade i (stoR SR-11) sms 397 11 (8 &)
o fare e M (BAE H) | g EEiE] BT ST T ameN | 3w
(08.06.2009 520.00 8.72 IR Fw 10 9 & & BB Tl T fyead e i o ffes aw
s 10 "SewgeR T+ R A T e
A & I Ryyicerl
T foba
S
S Bl
o o &
15 am
oRfaa wiaa suRad i (st SaR-ll) sms g9y 111 (FikeT &) ¢
e T e T (BAE H) | g aH e BT ST [ 9N | e
18.12.2009 | 280.00 8.70 7 F 10 @ % 9% FB T T HOR TR HUARE w+ $R
amem 10 | (e foe o fomads e e m. fafes am
AW & T | b AR e AR T
Tl B | % o)
A o @
o fofr &
15 am
# fe B ATQE &I TG & 96 Tl 908 TRI B B [0 § 10 a9 §1e SHawr Suan et e sar ar 0.5% ®2u9-arg

SIS @R SR

2.2 RIS THIHI

@) SR | g @i e

o @1 TER | 9o ¥ SfrEdr 9R, ofRfafaat ofiR Taraer S avs onfa §. 39 faerer e uEd §.

48



s
TMiw RdiE ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010 %

Upper Tier Il Bonds:

Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible (Upper Tier-Il) Bonds Issue | (A-Series):

Date of Bond Coupon Tenor Call Put Rating
Allotment amount Rate# Option Option
(Rs. in Crore)

25.03.2009 | 200.00 9.30 15 years from After 10 None ‘BWR AA+' by
the deemed years M/s.BRICKWORK
date of allotment, (Subject RATINGS INDIA
in case call option to RBI PVTLTD &
is not excerised Approval) ‘AA/Stable’ by
at the end of CRISIL
10 years

Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible (Upper Tier-I) Bonds Issue Il (B-Series):

Date of Bond Coupon Tenor Call Put Rating
Allotment amount Rate# Option Option
(Rs. in Crore)

08.06.2009 | 520.00 8.72 15 years from After 10 None ‘BWR AA+’ by
the deemed years M/s.BRICKWORK
date of (Subject RATINGS INDIA
allotment, in case to RBI PVT LTD &
call option Approval) ‘AA/Stable’ by
is not exercised CRISIL
at the end
of 10 years

Unsecured Redeemable Non- convertible (Upper Tier Il) Bonds Issue Il (C-Series):

Date of Bond Coupon Tenor Call Put Rating
Allotment amount Rate# Option Option
(Rs. in Crore)

18.12.2009 | 280.00 8.70 15 years from the After 10 None " CARE AA+ by
deemed date of years M/s.CARE
allotment, in case (Subject and ‘BWR AA+
call option is not to RBI by M/s.
exercised at the Approval) BRICKWORK
end of 10 years RATINGS

INDIA PVT LTD.

# Step up option of 0.5% at the end of the call option i.e., 10" year from the date of issue of the Bond, in case the call
option is not exercised.

2.2 Quantitative Disclosures:

b. The amount of Tier | Capital:

Bank’s Tier | Capital comprises of equity shares, Reserves and Innovative Perpetual Bonds. The details of the same are
as mentioned below.
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(Rs. in Cr)
Particulars Amount Amount
Paid up Equity Share Capital 485.00
Reserves:
Share Premium 680.00
Statutory Reserve 1373.08
Capital Reserve 339.16
Special Reserve under Sec 36 (1) (viii) of Income Tax Act 204.00
Retained Earnings (Balance in P&L A/c) 200.65
Revenue Reserve 1128.15 3925.04
Innovative Perpetual Debt Bonds 200.00
Total 4610.04
Less :
Intangible Assets 68.09
Deferred Tax Asset 113.31
Capital Charge for Securitization Transactions 0.61
Deduction for investment in Subsidiaries & associates 7.15 189.16
TOTAL TIER-I CAPITAL 4420.88

c. The total amount of Tier Il Capital (Net of deductions from Tier Il Capital):

Bank’s Tier |l Capital comprises of Subordinated Debt Bonds, Upper Tier-Il Debt Bonds and other general provisions and
loss reserves. The details of the same are as mentioned below:

(Rs. in Cr)
Particulars Amount Amount Amount
General Provisions and Loss Reserves 64.62
Contingent Provisions on Standard Assets 272.53 337.15
d. Subordinated Debts Bonds
Total amount outstanding as on
31.03.2009 1500.00
Amount raised during the year 320.00
Discounted during the year 40.00
Redeemed during the year (Rs. 140 cr)
Amount eligible for inclusion in Tier-II 1780.00 1780.00
Upper Tier-ll Debt Bonds
Total amount outstanding 1000.00
Out of which raised during the year 800.00
Amount eligible for inclusion in Tier-I| 1000.00 1000.00 2780.00
Total 3117.15
e. Subordinated debts eligible for Nil
inclusion in Lower Tier Il capital
f. Other deductions from Tier Il capital
Capital Charge for Securitization Transactions 0.61
Deduction for investment in Subsidiary 715 7.76
TOTAL TIER-II CAPITAL 3109.39
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g. Total eligible capital comprises of: (Rs. in Cr)
Tier | Capital 4420.88
Tier Il Capital 3109.39
Total eligible Capital 7530.27

Table DF-3: Capital Adequacy

3.1 Qualitative disclosures:

a) A summary discussion of the bank’s approach to assessing the adequacy of its capital to support

current and future activities:

Bank is geared up to adopt global best practices while implementing risk management stipulations that are in conformity with
the Basel Il framework. Comprehensive risk management architecture is in place to address various issues concerning
Basel Il. For periodic assessment of Capital needs of the Bank, an Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment (ICAAP) Committee
comprising of the top executives has been constituted, to monitor and assess the Capital requirement of the Bank over the
medium horizon of 4 years, keeping in view the anticipated growth in Risk Weighted Assets in Credit Risk, Market Risk and

Operational Risk.

The Committee meets regularly and decides on the capital related issues, with due focus on different options available for
capital augmentation and realignment of Capital structure duly undertaking the scenario analysis for capital optimization. The
Bank is raising Tier |l capital in the form of Subordinated Debt and Hybrid Instruments, as and when required.

3.2 Quantitative disclosures:

(Rs. in Cr)

Items Amount
(b) Capital requirements for credit risk

= Portfolios subject to standardized approach 4424.45

= Securitisation exposures NIL
(c) Capital requirements for market risk

- Standardized duration approach

= Interest rate risk 73.57

=  Foreign exchange risk (including gold) 1.04

= Equity position risk 60.84
(d) Capital requirements for operational risk

- Basic indicator approach 304.66
(e) Total and Tier | CRAR for the Bank

= Total CRAR (%) 13.93

= Tier | CRAR (%) 8.18
(f) Total and Tier | CRAR for the Consolidated Group

=  Total CRAR (%) 13.93

=  Tier | CRAR (%) 8.18
(g) Total and Tier | CRAR for the Significant Subsidiary which is not under consolidated group

= Total CRAR (%)

= Tier | CRAR (%) NA
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Table DF-4: Credit Risk: General Disclosures
4.1 Qualitative Disclosures:

a) General qualitative disclosures with respect to credit risk
4.1.1 Definition of Past due and impaired (for accounting purposes):

An asset, including a leased asset, becomes non-performing when it ceases to generate income for the bank. A “Non
Performing Asset” (NPA) is a loan or an advance where:

i) interest and/or instalment of principal remain overdue for a period of more than 90 days in respect of a
Term Loan,

ii)  the account remains ‘out of order’ for a period of more than 90 days as indicated hereunder, in respect of an
Overdraft/Cash Credit (OD/CC),

iii)  the bill remains overdue for a period of more than 90 days in the case of bills purchased and discounted,

iv) the instalment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for two crop seasons for short duration crops,
v) the instalment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for one crop season for long duration crops.
vi) any amount to be received remains overdue for a period of more than 90 days in respect of other accounts.

vii) In respect of derivative transactions, the overdue receivables representing positive mark-to market value of a
derivative contract, if these remain unpaid for a period of 90 days from the specified due date for payment.

4.1.2 ‘Out of Order’ status:

An account should be treated as ‘out of order’ if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of the sanctioned
limit/drawing power. In cases where the outstanding balance in the principal operating account is less than the sanctioned
limit/drawing power, but there are no credits continuously for 90 days as on the date of Balance Sheet or credits are not
enough to cover the interest debited during the same period, these accounts should be treated as ‘out of order’.

4.1.3 ‘Overdue’:
Any amount due to the bank under any credit facility is ‘overdue’ if it is not paid on the due date fixed by the bank.
4.1.4 Strategies and Processes:

Credit Risk is defined as “the possibility of losses associated with diminution in the credit quality of borrowers or
counter parties”. There is always a possibility for the borrower to default from his commitments for various reasons,
resulting in crystallization of Credit risk to the Bank. These losses could stem from outright default due to inability or unwill-
ingness of a customer or counter party to meet commitments in relation to lending, trading, settlement and other financial
transactions. Alternatively, losses result from reduction in portfolio value arising from actual or perceived deterioration in
credit quality. Credit risk is, therefore, a combined outcome of Default Risk & Exposure Risk and arises from the Bank’s
dealings with or lending to a corporate, individual, bank, financial institution or a sovereign.

Credit risk may take the following forms:
> in the case of direct lending: principal/and or interest amount may not be repaid;

> in the case of guarantees or letters of credit: funds may not be forthcoming from the constituents upon crystalliza-
tion of the liability;

» in the case of treasury operations: the payment or series of payments due from the counter parties under the
respective contracts may not be forthcoming or ceases;

> in the case of securities trading businesses: funds/ securities settlement may not be effected;

> in the case of cross-border exposure: the availability and free transfer of foreign currency funds may either cease
or restrictions may be imposed by the sovereign.

The effective management of credit risk is a critical component of comprehensive risk management and is essential for the
long - term success of any banking institution. Credit Risk Management encompasses identification, measurement through
credit rating/scoring, quantification through estimate of expected loan losses, pricing on a scientific basis and controlling
through effective Loan Review Mechanism & Portfolio Management.

The Bank has in place a Credit Risk Management Policy which is reviewed from time to time. Over the years, the policy and
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procedures in this regard have been refined as a result of evolving concepts and actual experience. The policy and proce-
dures have been aligned to the approach laid down in Basel-Il guidelines

The Credit Risk Management Policy is designed with the following Objectives.
1. Enhance the risk management capabilities to ensure orderly and healthy credit growth.
2. Maintain the Asset Quality.
3. Maintain credit risk exposure within acceptable parameters/prudential exposures.
4. Manage the asset portfolio in a manner that ensures, bank has adequate capital to hedge risks.
5

Build database necessary for migration to the Internal Ratings Based (IRB) approach, using the Credit Risk Rating
Model implemented in the Bank.

6. Mitigate and reduce the risk by streamlining the Systems and Controls.
4.1.5 The structure and organisation of the relevant risk management function:
Credit Risk Management structure of the Bank is as under-
= Board of Directors
= Risk Management Committee of the Board
=  Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC)
=  General Manager-Integrated Risk Management Department(Chief Risk Executive)-Head Office
=  Credit Risk Management Cell, Integrated Risk Management Dept HO
4.1.6 Scope and nature of risk reporting and measurement systems:

The measurement of Credit Risk includes setting up exposure limits to achieve a well diversified portfolio across dimensions
such as companies, group companies, industries, collateral type, and geography. For better risk management and avoid-
ance of concentration of Credit Risks, internal guidelines on prudential exposure norms in respect of individual companies,
group companies, Banks, individual borrowers, non-corporate entities, sensitive sectors such as capital market, real estate,
sensitive commodities, etc., are in place.

4.1.7. Policies for hedging and mitigating risk and strategies and processes for monitoring the continuing effective-
ness of hedges/ mitigants:

The bank also has a well defined Loan Policy in place. The bank has formulated policies & procedures on standards for
presentation of credit proposals, financial covenants, rating standards and benchmarks, delegation of credit approving pow-
ers, prudential limits on large credit exposures, asset concentrations, standards for loan collateral, portfolio management,
loan review mechanism, risk concentrations, risk monitoring and evaluation, pricing of loans, provisioning, regulatory/legal

compliance etc.
4.2 Quantitative Disclosures:

b) The total Gross Credit Risk Exposures are :

(Rs. in Cr)
Category Amount
Fund Based 56505.36
Non Fund Based 11983.13

c) Bank has no Overseas Branches. Hence, Geographical exposures are not given.
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d) Industry type distribution of exposures:
TOTAL ADVANCES AS ON 31.12.2009 ( PREVIOUS QUARTER ), RS.51,352.36 CRORE

(Rs. In Crores)

SI. No | Industry Ceilings Ceiling Actual Exposure
as % of amount on Fund as % of
Total Advances | Total Advances based Total Advances
of previous of previous exposure of previous
quarter quarter as on quarter
31.03.2010 i.e. 31.12.2009
1 Textiles 9.00 4621.71 2475.49 4.82
2 Petroleum Products 10.00 5135.24 1810.19 3.53
3 Power * 20.00 10270.47 7127.23 13.88
4 Engineering (Heavy & Light) 5.00 2567.62 1476.99 2.88
5 NBFC * 12.00 6162.28 2653.31 517
6 Diamonds, Gems & Jewellery 5.00 2567.62 849.24 1.65
7 Rice Mills 6.00 3081.14 1600.05 3.12
8 Sugar 5.00 2567.62 1283.30 2.50
9 Drugs & Pharmaceuticals 5.00 2567.62 1042.65 2.03
10 Tobacco 2.00 1027.05 554.18 1.08
11 Cement & Cement Products 2.00 1027.05 782.53 1.52
12 Distilleries 1.00 513.52 112.94 0.22
13 Iron & Steel * 8.50 4364.95 3917.73 7.63
14 Construction & Contractors * 8.00 4108.19 4040.75 7.87
15 Software 1.50 770.29 75.10 0.15
16 Hospitals 1.00 513.52 333.46 0.65
17 Hotels 1.00 513.52 604.06# 1.18
18 Educational Institutions 2.00 1027.05 937.68 1.83
19 Housing Loans (includes residential
mortgages & indirect finance to
Housing intermediaries) * 15.00 7702.85 3609.99 7.03
20 Commercial Real Estate 5.00 2567.61 2358.00 4.59

*Exposure is more than 5 per cent of the gross credit exposure of the previous quarter

# Ceiling exceeded with the approval of Competent Authority

59



q, 4T 5 ANDHRA BANK

31.03.2010 = weirmR st (iR i) %o sifew @ i wo st

31.12.2009 (frseh formd) #t Fo -fifes @ 5.13,683.67 #4re ¥ (T FE H)
. e e fmmdt | faee o 31.03.2010 s fommd
e & faferaR & ffErR H qRATE 31.12.2009
e ® % | et fftrer TR ffter
* %
1 TR 8.00 1094.69 235.01 1.72
2 Sl iz AR 1.00 136.84 31.96 0.23
3 Fet * 9.00 1231.53 1229.86 8.99
4 FAFART (AR iR @Y) 10.00 1368.37 1344.50 9.82
5 g R T 1.00 136.84 32.07 0.23
6 g o 2.00 273.67 16.23 0.12
7 Lkl 4.00 547.35 153.23 1.12
8 el C A S el 6.00 821.02 408.40 2.98
9 GELET 0.50 68.42 31.50 0.23
10 fie iR Rz s 0.50 68.42 40.08 0.29
11 = 0.50 68.42 0.00 0.00
12 @ SR FemE ¢ 12.00 1642.04 1394.74 10.19
13 i iR %R 50.00 6841.84 4749.27 34.70
14 HFEPR 1.00 136.84 10.09 0.07
15 ST 1.50 205.26 63.86 0.47
16 e 0.50 68.42 26.75 0.20
17 Jifers FEmg 2.00 273.67 50.87 0.37
18 T wer J9a (Raw 1ee) 2.00 273.67 75.53 0.55

* gFaTeR el el A iR S w1 S afaea @ otfees 2.

60



s
TMiw RdiE ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010 %

INDUSTRY WISE INTERNAL (NON-FUNDED) EXPOSURE CEILINGS AND EXPOSURE AS ON 31.03.2010.

TOTAL NON-FUNDED Limits AS ON 31-12-2009 ( PREVIOUS QUARTER ), RS.13,683.67 CRORE

(Rs. In Crores)

SI. No| Industry Ceilings Ceiling Actual Exposure
as % of amount Non Fund as % of Non

Non Fund on Non Fund based Fund Limits

Limits of Limits of exposure of previous

previous previous as on quarter

quarter quarter 31.03.2010 i.e. 31.12.2009

1 Textiles 8.00 1094.69 235.01 1.72
2 Petroleum Products 1.00 136.84 31.96 0.23
3 Power* 9.00 1231.53 1229.86 8.99
4 Engineering (Heavy & Light)* 10.00 1368.37 1344.50 9.82
5 Diamonds, Gems & Jewellery 1.00 136.84 32.07 0.23
6 Rice Mills 2.00 273.67 16.23 0.12
7 Sugar 4.00 547.35 153.23 1.12
8 Drugs & Pharmaceuticals 6.00 821.02 408.40 2.98
9 Tobacco 0.50 68.42 31.50 0.23
10 Cement & Cement Products 0.50 68.42 40.08 0.29
11 Distilleries 0.50 68.42 0.00 0.00
12 Iron & Steel* 12.00 1642.04 1394.74 10.19
13 Construction & Contractors* 50.00 6841.84 4749.27 34.70
14 Software 1.00 136.84 10.09 0.07
15 Hospitals 1.50 205.26 63.86 0.47
16 Hotels 0.50 68.42 26.75 0.20
17 Educational Institutions 2.00 273.67 50.87 0.37
18 Commercial Real Estate 2.00 273.67 75.53 0.55

* Exposure is more than 5 percent of the non fund limits of the previous quarter
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e) Residual contractual Maturity breakdown of assets:

(Rs. in Cr)

Maturity Pattern Advances (Net) Investments Foreign

Currency assets
0to 1 day 178.63 0.00 142.39
2 to 7 days 633.64 78.43 11.73
8 to 14 days 1569.22 31.49 25.34
15 to 28 days 1304.76 310.34 157.36
29 days to 3 months 6730.01 756.68 443.38
Over 3 months & upto 6 months 4419.15 375.22 506.22
Over 6 months & upto 1 year 5737.02 376.58 0.00
Over 1 year & upto 3 years 21863.04 466.07 0.00
Over 3 years & upto 5 years 6729.61 3566.15 0.00
Over 5 years 6948.42 14920.03 0.00
Total 56113.51 20880.99 1286.42

f) Amount of NPAs (Gross):

(Rs. in Cr)
CATEGORY AMOUNT
Sub-Std 330.75
Doubtful-1 89.12
Doubtful-2 60.70
Doubtful-3 7.30
Loss 0.00
Total 487.87
g) Net NPAs:
(Rs. in Cr)
Net NPAs 95.72
h) NPA Ratios:
(Rs. in Cr)
Gross NPA to Gross Advances (%) 0.86
Net NPA to Net Advances (%) 0.17
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i) Movement of NPAs (Gross):

(Rs. in Cr)
(a) Opening Balance 368.14
(b) Additions during the year 399.90
(c) Reductions during the year 280.17
(d) Closing Balance 487.87

j) Movement of Provision for NPAs:

(Rs. in Cr)
Movement of Specific Provisions for NPAs
(a) Opening Balance 238.49
(b) Provisions made during the year 305.21
(c) Write-off 189.90
(d) Write-back of excess provisions NIL
(d) Closing Balance 353.80
Movement of Floating Provisions for NPAs
(a) Opening Balance 49.85
(b) Additions during the year NIL
(c) Reductions during the year 11.79
(d) Closing Balance 38.06

k) Amount of Non-Performing Investments: Rs. 0.43 cr
I) Amount of provisions held for non-performing investments : Rs. 0.43 cr

m) Movement of provisions for depreciation on investments

(Rs. in Cr)
(a) Opening Balance 0.53
(b) Additions during the year NIL
(c) Reductions during the year 0.10
(d) Closing Balance 0.43
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Table DF-5: Credit Risk: Disclosures for Portfolios subject to the Standardised Approach
5.1 Qualitative Disclosures:
a) For portfolios under the standardized approach:
Name of the credit rating agencies used, plus reasons for any changes
® Credit Rating Information Services India Limited (CRISIL)
® Credit Analysis and Research Limited (CARE)
® FITCH India
® |ICRA Limited
There was no change in the credit rating agencies used during the year 2009-10.
Types of exposure for which each agency is used:

® For exposures with a contractual maturity of less than or equal to one year (except cash credit, overdraft) Short term
ratings given by approved Rating Agencies is used.

® For domestic cash credit, overdraft and for term loan exposures of over 1 year, Long Term Ratings is used.
® The Bank uses only publicly available solicited ratings that are valid and reviewed by the recognized ECAlIs.

® The Bank does not simultaneously use the rating of one ECAI for one exposure and that of another ECAI for another
exposure to the same borrower, unless the respective exposures are rated by only one of the chosen ECAls. Further, the
bank does not use rating assigned to a particular entity within a corporate group to risk weight other entities within the
same group.

® \Where exposures/ borrowers have multiple ratings from the chosen ECAIs, the bank has adopted the following procedure
for risk weight calculations:

i. If there are two ratings accorded by chosen ECAls, which map into different risk weights, the higher risk weight is
applied.

ii. If there are three or more ratings accorded by the chosen ECAIs which map into different risk weights, the ratings
corresponding to the lowest 2 ratings are referred to and higher of those two risk weights is applied.

® A description of the process used to transfer public issue ratings onto comparable assets in the banking books:
No such process is applied
5.2 Quantitative Disclosures:

b) For exposure amounts after risk mitigation subject to the standardised approach, amount of bank’s outstandings (rated &
unrated) in the following major risk buckets as well as those that are deducted:

(Rs. in Cr)

Fund Based Non Fund based

Below 100% risk weight 23,435.25 3,692.46
100% risk weight 24,638.94 6,611.73
More than 100% risk weight 4,420.26 705.94
Deducted 4,010.91 973.00
Total 56,505.36 11,983.13
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Table DF-6: Credit Risk Mitigation: Disclosures for Standardised Approach
6.1 Qualitative Disclosures:
a) The general qualitative disclosure requirement with respect to credit risk mitigation including:

6.1.1 Policies and processes for, and an indication of the extent to which the bank makes use of, on- and off-balance
sheet netting

The Bank makes use of on-balance sheet and off balance sheet netting only in cases where deposits/cash is held against the
particular loan asset.

6.1.2 Policies and processes for collateral valuation and management:
A Board approved Policy on valuation of properties obtained by the Bank, is in place.

As per RBI guidelines, the Bank adopts the comprehensive approach, which allows full offset of collateral (after appropriate
haircuts) against exposures, by effectively reducing the exposure amount by the value ascribed to the collateral.

6.1.3 Description of the main types of collateral taken by the Bank:

The main types of collateral commonly used by the Bank as risk mitigants comprises of
Cash/ Bank’s deposits

Gold

Securities issued by Central and State Government

NSCs and KVPs

LIC policies with a declared surrender value

Debt securities (as defined in the New Capital Adequacy Framework)

Units of Mutual Funds.

© N o o kDN =

Plant & Machinery, Land & Building (In case of NPAs only)
The Credit Risk Mitigants are applied in accordance with the RBI guidelines.
6.1.4 Main types of Guarantor counterparty and their creditworthiness:

Wherever required, the Bank obtains Personal or Corporate guarantee, as an additional comfort for mitigation of credit risk,
which can be translated into a direct claim on the guarantor, and is unconditional and irrevocable. The Creditworthiness of the
guarantor is normally not linked to or affected by the borrower’s financial position. The Bank also accepts guarantee given by
State / Central Government as a security comfort. Such Guarantees remain continually effective until the facility covered is
fully repaid or settled.

6.1.5 Information about risk concentration (market or credit) within the mitigation taken:

Bank has a well dispersed portfolio of assets which are secured by various types of securities, such as:
® Eligible financial collaterals listed above

® Guarantees by sovereigns and well-rated corporates

® Fixed assets and current assets of the counterparty

6.2 Quantitative Disclosures:

(Rs. in Cr)
Particulars Amount
a) Total exposure covered by eligible financial collateral after application of haircuts. 4983.91
b)  Total exposure covered by guarantees 3339.48
Total exposure covered by credit derivatives Nil
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Table DF-7: Securitisation Exposures: Disclosure for Standardised Approach
7.1 Qualitative disclosures:
a) The general qualitative disclosure requirement with respect to securitisation including a discussion of:

7.1.1 the bank’s objectives in relation to securitisation activity, including the extent to which these activities transfer
credit risk of the underlying securitised exposures away from the bank to other entities.

Objectives of the Bank for undertaking the securitization activity —

- Reduction of asset liability mismatches;
- Increase in fee based income; and
- Redeployment of funds.

- Credit Risk of the underlying securitised exposures (i.e. Housing Loans) is transferred to the investors of Pass Through
Certificates (PTCs).

7.1.2 the nature of other risks (e.g. liquidity risk) inherent in securitised assets;
While Liquidity risk has been taken care by providing cash collaterals Credit risk is taken care by making adequate provisions.

7.1.3 the various roles played by the bank in the securitisation process and an indication of the extent of the bank’s
involvement in each of them;

Andhra Bank is the originator and service provider. The Bank is also the provider of credit enhancement in the following form:

® Subscription to subordinate tranche (PTC-B) to the extent of 14.7% of the pool principal aggregating to Rs.7.41 crore.
® Subordination of excess interest spread in the pool.
® (Cash collateral equivalent to Rs.68 lacs.

7.1.4 a description of the processes in place to monitor changes in the credit and market risk of securitisation
exposures.

The Bank has in place processes to access information on the performance of underlying pool of securitised exposure on an
on-going basis and in a timely manner. Such information includes — percentage of loans which are 30, 60 and 90 days past
due, default rates, prepayment rates and loans in foreclosure.

7.1.5 a description of the bank’s policy governing the use of credit risk mitigation to mitigate the risks retained
through securitisation exposures;

The Bank has provided credit enhancement by way of subscribing to the subordinate PTCs, by providing Cash collateral and
also making suitable provisions.

b) Summary of the bank’s accounting policies for securitisation activities, including:

7.1.6 whether the transactions are treated as sales or financings;

The transaction is treated as a sale.

7.1.7 methods and key assumptions (including inputs) applied in valuing positions retained or purchased

The Bank has only one securitization exposure. The outstanding in the loan accounts as on the date of securitization was
considered to be the value of PTCs.

7.1.8 changes in methods and key assumptions from the previous period and impact of the changes;
Nil
7.1.9 policies for recognising liabilities on the balance sheet for arrangements that could require the bank to provide
financial support for securitised assets.
Nil
c) In the banking book, the names of ECAIls used for securitisations and the types of securitisation exposure for
which each agency is used.

CRISIL, the Rating Agency has rated the pool as AAA(so0).
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7.2 Quantitative disclosures:
Banking Book
d) The total amount of exposures securitised by the bank: Rs.50.36 crore

e) Forexposures securitised losses recognised by the bank during the current period broken by the exposure type
(e.g. Credit cards, housing loans, auto loans etc. detailed by underlying security): NIL

f) Amount of assets intended to be securitised within a year: NIL, at this stage
g) Of (f), amount of assets originated within a year before securitisation. : NIL

h) The total amount of exposures securitised (by exposure type) and unrecognised gain or losses on sale by
exposure type.

Bank has securitized Housing Loans to the tune of Rs. 50.36 crore during 2004.
No losses were recognised by the Bank
i) Aggregate amount of:
® on-balance sheet securitisation exposures retained or purchased broken down by exposure type and
o off-balance sheet securitisation exposures broken down by exposure type
Same as above

j) Aggregate amount of securitisation exposures retained or purchased and the associated capital charges, broken
down between exposures and further broken down into different risk weight bands for each regulatory capital
approach

Rs.7.41 crore of Securitised Housing Loans subscribed by the Bank as PTC-B, subordinate to PTC-A.

k) Exposures that have been deducted entirely from Tier 1 capital, credit enhancing I/Os deducted from total capital,
and other exposures deducted from total capital (by exposure type).

Capital charge on Securitisation transaction is Rs.121.20 lacs, of which 50% is deducted from Tier | and 50% from Tier |l
Capital.

7.3 Quantitative Disclosures:

Trading book

The Bank does not have any securitization exposure in its trading book.
Table DF-8: Market Risk in Trading Book

8.1 Qualitative Disclosures:

8.1.1 Strategies and processes:

The Bank has in place a well-defined and Board approved ‘Market Risk Management Policy’ and organizational structure for
Market risk management functions. The objectives of the policy are

e to capture all the market related risks inherent in on and off-balance sheet items, monitor and manage them in the best
interests of the bank.

® to ensure that the bank’s NIl is protected from the volatilities in the market related factors
® to improve the sophistication levels of the risk management systems pertaining to Market Risk; and

® to prepare the bank for adoption of the advanced methods of capital computation to ensure optimum utilization of the
capital sources.

8.1.2 The structure and organisation of the relevant risk management function:
Market Risk Management structure of the Bank is as under-
= Board of Directors

= Risk Management Committee of the Board
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= Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
= General Manager-Integrated Risk Management Department (Chief Risk Executive)-Head Office
= Market Risk Management Cell, Integrated Risk Management Dept HO-
- Integrated Mid Office
- Asset Liability Management Section
8.1.3 Scope and nature of risk reporting and measurement systems:

® Bank has put in place various exposure limits for market risk management such as Overnight limit, Intraday limit,
Aggregate Gap limit, Stop Loss limit, VaR limit, Broker Turnover limit, Capital Market Exposure limit, Product-wise Exposure
limit, Issuer-wise Exposure limit etc.

® Arisk reporting system is in place for monitoring the risk limits across different levels of the bank from trading desk to the

Board level.
® The rates used for marking to market for risk management or accounting purposes are independently verified.
® The reports are used to monitor performance and risk, manage business activities in accordance with bank’s strategy.
® The reporting system ensures timelines, reasonable accuracy with automation. The reports are flexible and enhance
decision-making process.
® The Dealing room activities are centralized
® The reporting formats & the frequency is periodically reviewed so as to ensure that they suffice the risk monitoring,

measuring and mitigation requirements of the Bank.

8.1.4 Policies for hedging and mitigating risk and strategies and processes for monitoring the continuing effectiveness
of hedges/ mitigants:

Various Board approved policies viz., Market Risk Management Policy, Country Risk Management Policy, Counterparty
Bank Risk Management Policy, Investment Policy, Forex Policy, and ALM policy are put in place for market risk management.
Market risk management policy provides the framework for risk assessment, identification and measurement and mitigation,
risk limits & triggers, risk monitoring and reporting.

Bank has in place a scoring model for categorization of International banks under Counterparty Bank Risk Management
Policy. The various exposure limits are set based on the points secured by the counterparties as per the scoring matrix.

Liquidity risk management policy lays down various guidelines to ensure that the liquidity position is comfortable at times of
stress by formulating contingency funding plan. Tolerance levels are incorporated under each time frame and any breach of
the same would signal a forthcoming liquidity constraint.

8.2 Quantitative Disclosures:

(Rs.in Cr)
Capital requirements for market risk
- Standardized duration approach
= |nterest rate risk 73.57
= Foreign exchange risk (including gold) 1.04
= Equity position risk 60.84

Table DF-9: Operational Risk:
9.1 Qualitative Disclosures:
9.1.1 Strategies and processes:

The Operational Risk Management process of the Bank is driven by a strong organizational culture and sound operating
procedures, involving corporate values, attitudes, competencies, internal control culture, effective internal reporting and
contingency planning. Policies are put in place for effective management of Operational Risk in the Bank.

9.1.2 The structure and organisation of the relevant risk management function:
The Operational Risk Management Structure in the Bank is as under:
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= Board of Directors

= Risk Management Committee of the Board

= Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC)

= General Manager - Integrated Risk Management Department, HO (Chief Risk Executive)
= Operational Risk Management Cell (IRMD),HO

9.1.3 Scope and nature of risk reporting and measurement systems:

The Risk reporting consists of operational risk loss incidents / events occurred in branches / offices relating to people,
process, technology and external events. The data collected from different sources are used for preparation of MIS on loss
event types.

9.1.4 Policies for hedging and mitigating risk and strategies and processes for monitoring the continuing effectiveness
of hedges/ mitigants:

Bank has put in place the following polices pertaining to Operational Risk Management:

e Operational Risk Management Policy: The policy covers the terms of operational risk, risk management structure,
identification, assessment, measurement and monitoring of operational risk.

e Compliance Policy: The Bank has in place a Comprehensive Compliance Policy. As per the Policy adopted by the Bank,
suitable organizational structure has been laid down defining the roles and responsibilities for Compliance Officers of
various Departments, Zonal Offices, other operating departments at HO and branches, so as to address group wide and
multi jurisdictional compliance risk. Suitable reporting system is also put in place to ensure effective implementation of
Compliance Policy Bank wide.

® Business Line Mapping Policy: The Bank has in place ‘Business Line Mapping Policy’ to map all activities of the Bank
into Eight business lines as stipulated by Reserve Bank of India and arrive at the Gross Income business-line wise.

Operational risk capital assessment:

® The Bank has adopted Basic Indicator Approach for calculating capital charge for Operational Risk, as stipulated by the
Reserve Bank of India.

Table DF-10: Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book
10.1 Qualitative Disclosures:

With the deregulation of interest rates, liberalization of exchange rate system, development of secondary markets for bonds
and deepening and widening of financial system, Banks are exposed to interest rates risk, liquidity risk, exchange rate risk
etc., Asset Liability Management outlays a comprehensive and dynamic framework for measuring monitoring and managing
various risks. Primary objective of ALM is to maximize the Net Interest Income within the overall risk bearing capacity of the
Bank.

Various stress tests are conducted by varying the liquidity and interest rate structure to estimate the resilience and/or the
impact. It evaluates the Earnings at Risk by means of parallel shift in the interest rates across assets and liabilities as also
basis risk.

The stress tests are carried out by assuming stress conditions wherein embedded options are exercised like prepayment of
loans and premature closure of deposits much above the revelations of the behavioral studies to test the stress levels.

Traditional Gap Analysis method suggested by RBI is followed for calculation of IRR from — Earnings perspective

Modified Duration Gap method is followed, as suggested by RBI in its draft guidelines, to assess the effect of interest rate
changes on the Market Value of Equity in percentage terms

The ALCO decides on the fixation of interest rates on both assets and liabilities after considering the macro economic outlook
— both global and domestic, as also the micro aspects like cost-benefit, spin offs, financial inclusion and a host of other
factors.

10.1.1 Strategies and process: The strategy adopted for mitigating the risk is conducting stress tests before hand by
simulating various scenarios so as to be in preparedness for the plausible event and if possible in mitigating it. The process
for mitigating the risk is initiated by altering the mix of asset and liability composition, bringing the duration gap closer to unity,
change in interest rates etc

10.1.2 The structure and organization of the relevant risk management functions: The ALM cell reports to the General
Manager IRMD and the ALM reports on various subjects/ topics along with the structural liquidity, the interest rate sensitivity
and short term dynamic liquidity statements are presented to the ALCO on fortnightly basis, and to the Risk Management
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Committee of the Board on monthly basis. The ALCO is chaired by the Chairman & Managing Director of the Bank and has
the Executive Directors and GMs of functional Departments as its members.

10.1.3 The scope and nature of risk reporting and measurement systems: The liquidity and interest rate sensitivity
statements reveal the liquidity position and the Interest rate risk of the Bank. With the approval by the Board, tolerance level
is stipulated, within which the Bank is to operate. Any breach in the limits is reported to the ALCO which in turn directs
remedial measures to be initiated.

10.1.4 Policies for hedging and mitigating risk and strategies and processes for monitoring the continuing
effectiveness of hedges/ mitigants: Mitigating measures are initiated in the ALCO on how to contain the liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The fortnightly statements presented to the ALCO reveal the liquidity and interest rate structure based on
residual maturity. The gap position under various time buckets denotes the liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The ALCO on
studying the gap position in detail evolves the strategies to reduce the mismatches in order to minimise the liquidity and
interest rate risks.

10.2 Quantitative Disclosures:
EARNINGS AT RISK
(Rs. in crore)

Change in interest rate Repricing upto 1 year
0.25% 20.07
0.50% 40.15
0.75% 60.22
1.00% 80.29

ECONOMIC VALUE OF EQUITY

For a 200 bps rate shock the drop in equity value (including reserves) | Rs.742.29 crores
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - PHILOSOPHY

The Philosophy of Andhra Bank is to continue to remain dynamic to the ever changing needs of the customers. The
Bank believes that proper Corporate Governance facilitates effective management and control of business. This, in
turn, enables the Bank to maintain a level of business ethics and to optimize the value for all its stakeholders. The
principles of Corporate Governance require the commitment of the Bank to attain high standard of transparency,
accountability, responsibility and financial stability with the ultimate objective of building up values to the stakeholders.
The objectives can be summed up as under:

B Upholding the shareholders value within the principles of ethics and legal framework of the country;

B to protect interests of shareholders and other stakeholders including customers, employees and society at large;
B to ensure transparency and integration in communication and to make available full, accurate and clear information

to all concerned.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

21 Andhra Bank has been constituted as corresponding new Bank under the Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer
of Undertakings) Act, 1980.

2.2 The Board is constituted in accordance with the Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1980 and Nationalised Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1980.

2.3 TheBoardis headed by the Chairman & Managing Director who is appointed by the Central Government in consultation
with the Reserve Bank of India. The Chairman & Managing Director is appointed in exercise of the powers conferred
by Clause (a) of sub section (3) of Section 9 of the Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1970/1980 read with sub-clause (1) of clause 3, clause 5, clause 6, clause 7 and sub-clause (1) of clause 8 of
Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1970/1980.

2.4 In addition to the Chairman and Managing Director, two Whole-time Directors (Executive Directors) of the Bank are
appointed by the Central Government in consultation with Reserve Bank of India, who are also Members of the Board.
The Executive Directors of the Bank are appointed in exercise of the powers conferred by Clause (a) of sub-section
(3) of Section 9 of the Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 read with sub-
clause (1) of clause 3 and sub-clause (1) of clause 8 of the Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Scheme, 1970/1980.

2.5 Ason 31%tMarch, 2010, there are 7 other Directors (Non-Executive), out of which 6 are Independent Directors as the
members of the Board represented by persons with diversified professional experience.

26 The Board has constituted various committees as under, which provides specific and focused governance in the
important functional areas and control the affairs of the Bank:
® Management Committee
® Audit Committee
® Shareholders’ and Investors’ Grievances Committee
® Special Committee for monitoring large value of frauds
® Departmental Promotion Committee
® Risk Management Committee
® Customer Service Committee
® Share Transfer Committee
® Remuneration Committee
® Nomination Committee of Board

2.7  The details of the committees of the Board are provided in the following pages.

2.8 The Board and its Committees meet at frequent intervals and guide the Bank to achieve its objectives in a prudent and
efficient manner to ensure high standards of customer service, ethical practices and professional Management of the
Bank.

29 Theresponsibilities such as policy formulations, performance review and analysis are discharged by the Board. The
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Board has delegated various powers to the Executives and Committees of Executives of the Bank, in tune with the
policies laid down by the Bank. The delegated powers are periodically reviewed by the Board and necessary revision
is made for effective functioning of the Bank.

2.10 The policies of the Bank are reviewed on an annual basis and necessary modifications are effected in tune with the

changing scenario and the market demands.

2.11  The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director and therefore at least 1/2 of the Board shall consist of Independent
Directors. Accordingly the composition of the Board as on 31 March, 2010 is as under:

Type of Directors No. of Directors
Executive 3
Non-executive 7

(out of which 6 are Independent Directors)

Total

10

2.12 During the year 2009-2010, the Board of Directors met on 12 occasions on the following dates:
08.05.2009 31.08.2009 17.12.2009
29.05.2009 03.10.2009 25.01.2010
25.06.2009 28.10.2009 20.02.2010
25.07.2009 16.11.2009 19.03.2010

The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings along with the number of meetings held during

the period are as under:

Name of the Period No. of Board Board Attendance Area of Experience
Director meetings Meetings at the Ninth
held during attended AGM held
the period on 25.06.2009
Sri R S Reddy 01.04.2009 12 12 Attended M.Sc., (Agriculture) 34 years of experience
Chairman & to as a Banker in Multifarious assignments.
Managing Director 31.03.2010 He worked for 3 ¥z years in New York as the
Chief Executive of Bank of India's American
Operations. Prior to joining our Bank, he
was Executive Director of Union Bank of India.
Sri Anil Girotra 01.04.2009 12 12 Attended M.Sc., LLB, CAIIB, Diploma In
Executive Director to Personnel Management, Dip. In Corporate
31.03.2010 Laws. He has 33 years of varied experience
in Banking Operations and Administration.
Prior to joining our Bank, he was General
Manager of Canara Bank.
Sri. AATaj 07.12.2009 04 04 Not Applicable | Chartered Accountant with 33 years of
Executive Director to experience as a Banker in Multifarious
31.03.2010 assignments. Prior to Joining our Bank, he was
General Manager in Union Bank of India.
Smt Madhulika P Sukul 01.04.2009 12 09 Leave of Absence | Joint Secretary (Personnel), Department of
Govt. of India Nominee to Expenditure, Ministry of Finance since 2008.
Director 31.03.2010
Sri B.Maheshwaran 01.04.2009 12 12 Attended Central Banking
RBI Nominee Director to
31.03.2010
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Sri V.H. Ramakrishnan | 01.04.2009 12 10 Attended Chartered & Cost Accountant and an
Director elected from to experienced banker

amongst shareholders | 31.03.2010
other than Central

Government
Sri Prem Prakash Pareek| 01.04.2009 12 12 Attended Practicing Chartered Accountant
Director to

elected from amongst 31.03.2010
shareholders other
than Central

Government

Sri K.Ramakoteswara Rao | 01.04.2009 5 5 Attended Banking

Representing Non to

Workmen Employee 25.09.2009

Director

Sri Anup Prakash Garg | 01.04.2009 6 6 Attended Practicing Chartered Accountant
Part time Non Official to

Director (Nominated by | 12.10.2009
Govt of India under

Chartered Accountant

Category)

Sri T Ravindranath 01.04.2009 1" " Leave of Absence | Banking

Representing to

Workmen Employee 05.03.2010

Director

Sri Shaibal Gupta 01.04.2009 12 08 Leave of Absence | Post Graduate in Economics and
Part-time to Doctorate in Philosophy.

Non-Official Director 31.03.2010

(Nominated by

Govt. of India)

Sri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo | 01.04.2009 12 1" Leave of Absence | Graduate in Commerce and practicing
Part-time to Chartered Accountant

Non-Official Director 31.03.2010

(Nominated by

Govt. of India)

Sri K Raghuraman 01.04.2009 12 1" Attended Chartered Accountant with 35 years of
Director elected from to Banking experience in various facets of
amongst shareholders Banking

other than Central 31.03.2010

Government

Names of persons who ceased to be Directors during 2009-2010

Name of the Director Period

Sri. K. RamaKoteswara Rao 01.04.2009 to 25.09.2009
Non-workmen Director

Sri Anup Prakash Garg 01.04.2009 to 12.10.2009

Part-time Non- Official Director
(Nominated by Govt of India under Chartered Accountant Category)

Sri. T. Ravindranath 01.04.2008 to 05.03.2010
Workmen Director
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Name of the Director

Period

Sri A.A. Taj

Executive Director

07.12.2009 to 31.03.2010

2.13 Particulars of Directors

Name of Directors

Directorship/Membership
of Committees
in other Companies

Membership of the
Committees

Chairman /
Chairperson of the
Committees

Period of
Directorship
from-to

SriR S Reddy
Chairman &
Managing Director

None

1. Management Committee

of the Board

2. Departmental Promotion
Committee

3. Shareholders’ and Investors’
Grievances Committee

4. Customer Service Committee
5. Special Committee for
monitoring large value of frauds
6. Share Transfer Committee

7. Risk Management Committee

1. Management Committee

of the Board

2. Departmental Promotion
Committee

3. Share Transfer Committee

4. Special Committee for
monitoring large value of frauds
5.Customer Service Committee
6.Risk Management Committee

01.04.2009 to
31.03.2010

Sri Anil Girotra
Executive Director

1. Andhra Bank Financial
Services Ltd-Chairman of
the Board

2. M/s. IndiaFirst Life

Insurance Company Limited-

Director

1.Management Committee

of the Board

2.Departmental Promotion
Committee

3.Audit Committee of the Board
4.Shareholders’ and Investors'
Grievances Committee

5.Risk Management Committee

Nil

01.04.2009 o
31.03.2010

SriAA. Taj
Executive Director

Nil

1.Management Committee

of the Board

2.Departmental Promotion
Committee

3.Audit Committee of the Board
4.Shareholders’ and Investors'
Grievances Committee

5.Risk Management Committee

Nil

07.12.2009 to
31.03.2010

Smt Madhulika P Sukul
Govt. of India
Nominee Director

Nil

1. Audit Committee of the Board

2. Departmental Promotion
Committee

3.Risk Management Committee

4 Remuneration Committee of Board
5. Special Committee for

monitoring large value of frauds

1. Remuneration Committee
of Board

01.04.2009 to
31.03.2010

Sri B Maheshwaran
RBI Nominee Director

Nil

1. Management Committee of the Board
2. Audit Committe of the Board

3. Departmental Promotion Committee
4. Remuneration Committee of Board

5. Nomination Committee of Board

6. Customer Service Committee
7.Special Committee for

monitoring large value of frauds

Nil

01.04.2009 to
31.03.2010

Sri V.H. Ramakrishnan
Director elected from
amongst shareholders
other than Central
Government

1. Canara Robeco
Asset Management
Company Ltd,

2. The KCP Ltd,
Chennai

1. Management Committee of the Board
2. Remuneration Committee of Board

3. Risk Management Committee

4. Customer Service Committee

5. Share Transfer Committee

Nil

01.04.2009 to
31.03.2010

Sri Prem Prakash Pareek
Director elected from
amongst shareholders
other than Central
Government

1. PNB Gilts Ltd

1. Management Committee

2. Special Committee for monitoring
large value of frauds

3. Remuneration Committee of

the Board

4. Shareholders’ and Investors’
Grievances Committee

Nil

01.04.2009 to
31.03.2010
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02.08.2008 & s1rer % & oTemel Ud goe R §. 9 P § FaeiaR §. 1974 H T % Sii6 3fear ¥ qare sty
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Sri Shaibal Gupta Nil 1. Shareholders' and Investors’ 1. Nomination Committee of 01.04.2009 to
Part-time Non- Grievances Committee Board 31.03.2010
Official Director 2. Customer Service Committee
(Nominated by Govt. of India) 3. Nomination Committee
of Board
Sri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo Nil 1. Management Committee 1. Audit Committee of Board 01.04.2009 to
Part-time Non- 2. Risk Management Committee (W.e.f. 23.03.2010) 31.03.2010
Official Director 3. Nomination Committee
(Nominated by Govt. of India) of Board
4. Audit Committee of Board
5. Customer Service Committee
Sri K. Raghuraman 1. IFCI Limited 1. Shareholders’ and Investors' 1. Shareholders' and Investors' 01.04.2009 to
Director elected from 2. Oriental Carbon Grievances Committee Grigvances Committee 31.03.2010
amongst shareholders & Chemicals Limited 2. Risk Management Committee
other than Central 3. Birla Ericson 3. Special Committee for monitoring
Government Opticals Ltd. large value of frauds
4. Nagarjuna 4. Share Transfer Committee
Agrichem Ltd.
5. India Foils Ltd.
(Special Director
oppointed by BIFR)
6. Rama Phosphates
Ltd. (Special Director
oppointed by BIFR)
7. Suvidha Lift
Parks Limited

2.14 Profile of Directors on the Board as on 31.03.2010
1.Sri R. S. Reddy

Is the Chairman and Managing Director of Andhra Bank since 02.08.2008. He is a Post Graduate in Agriculture. He joined
Bank of India as Probationary Officer in 1974. He has 34 years of experience as a Banker in multifarious assignments. He
was the Chief Executive of Bank of India’s American Operations based in New York. Prior to joining our Bank, he was
Executive Director of Union Bank of India.

2. Sri Anil Girotra

Is the Executive Director of Andhra Bank since 17.05.2008. He is a Post Graduate in Science and holds a Degree in Law.
Prior to joining Andhra Bank, he was heading the UK Operations of Canara Bank in London as Chief Executive. He joined
Canara Bank as Officer Trainee in September 1975. He held important positions in Canara Bank. He has 33 years of varied
experience in Banking Operations and Administration.

3.Sri A.A.Taj

Is the executive Director of Andhra Bank since 07.12.2009. He is a Chartered Accountant with 33 years of banking experience.
He handled multifarious assignments in Union Bank of India at Branch level, Zonal level and also at Corporate level. In Union
Bank of India, he was a member of Investments Committee, Credit Grid and Audit Committee of Executives. He was a
General Manager in Union Bank of India prior to joining our bank.

4. Smt. Madhulika P Sukul

Is the Government of India Nominee Director on the Board since 13.01.2009. She is a Joint Secretary (Personnel), Department
of Expenditure, Ministry of Finance since 2008. She also worked as Joint Secretary, Sixth Central Pay Commission, as
Integrated Financial Adviser in Air Head quarters, Director, Twelfth Finance Commission and Director (Pay), Department of
Expenditure, Ministry of Finance.

5.Sri B. Maheshwaran

Is a Reserve Bank of India Nominee Director on the Board since 27.02.2007. He is a Post Graduate in Science. He is also an
Associate member of Indian Institute of Bankers. He served in Exchange Control Department of Reserve Bank of India for
nearly a decade in stints. As a Reserve Bank of India Nominee Director, he served earlier on the Boards of State Bank of
Indore, State Bank of Hyderabad and Corporation Bank for six years. He led the banking expert team of our country to
Russia and Uzbekisthan.
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6. Sri Shaibal Gupta

Is a Part-time Non-Official Director, nominated by Government of India, on the Board since 04.04.2008. He is a Post Graduate
in Economics and Doctorate in Philosophy. He is a Founder Member Secretary, Asian Development Research Institute,
Patna. His areas of research interest have been guided more by the development problems of Bihar.

7. Sri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo

Is a Part-time Non-Official Director, nominated by Government of India, on the Board since 14.07.2008. He is a Graduate in
Commerce and a Practicing Chartered Accountant. Apart from being a Practicing Chartered Accountant, he has been a
Visiting Faculty to various Govt. and Management Institutes including Xavier Institute of Management (XIM), Bhubaneswar,
etc. He carried out Central Statutory audit of Nationalized Banks, audit of Public Sector Undertakings like Nalco etc.

8. Shri. Prem Prakash Pareek

Is a Director on the Board since 14.03.2006 and has been reelected as Director during March 2009. He is a Chartered
Accountant with a Degree in Law. Earlier he was on the Board of Bank of Baroda. He has vast experience in the field of
Auditing and handled professional assignments of large limited companies, financial institutions, Banks and Public Sector
Undertakings. Presently, he is a Director elected from amongst the shareholders of Andhra Bank, other than Central
Government.

9. Shri. V.H. Ramakrishnan

Is a Director on the Board since 14.03.2006 and has been reelected as Director during March 2009. He is a Chartered and
Cost Accountant, having extensive experience of more than 35 years in both Domestic and International Banking with Bank
of India. He retired as a General Manager from Bank of India. He is also on the Board of Canara Rebeco Mutual Fund and
The KCP Ltd, Chennai. Presently he is a Director elected from amongst the shareholders of Andhra Bank, other than Central
Government.

10. Shri. K Raghuraman

Is a Director on the Board since 14.03.2009. He is a Chartered Accountant and retired as Executive Director in Punjab
National Bank. Earlier he worked as General Manager for 7 years in various departments of Central Bank of India. He held
the position of Chairman of ‘India Cooperation committee of Master Card International’ as well as the Member of various
industry level Committees of IBA. Presently he is a Director elected from amongst the shareholders of Andhra Bank, other
than Central Government. He is also a Director on the Boards of Industrial Finance Corporation of India, M/s.Oriental Carbon
& Chemicals Limited, M/s.Birla Ericsson & Opticals Limited, M/s. Nagarjuna Agrichem Limited and Suvidha Lift Parks Limited.

3. COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS / EXECUTIVES

Various committees of Directors have been constituted in terms of Reserve Bank of India, Government of India guidelines /
directives in order to expedite the decision making and proper monitoring and follow up of the various activities falling within
their terms of reference.

The important committees of the Board are as under:-
3.1 Management Committee of the Board

Pursuant to the directive of the Government of India, Ministry of Finance, the Management Committee of the Board is
constituted by the Board of Directors for considering various business matters, namely, sanctioning of credit proposals, loan
compromise / write off proposals, approval of capital and revenue expenditure, acquisition and hiring of premises, investments,
donations etc.
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The committee consists of Chairman & Managing Director, Executive Directors, Nominee Director of Reserve Bank of India
and three independent Non Official Directors. In all 23 Meetings of the Committee were held during the year, on the following

dates:

11.04.2009 31.08.2009 05.01.2010
09.05.2009 16.09.2009 25.01.2010
29.05.2009 03.10.2009 06.02.2010
11.06.2009 15.10.2009 20.02.2010
26.06.2009 29.10.2009 05.03.2010
15.07.2009 15.11.2009 19.03.2010
25.07.2009 02.12.2009 26.03.2010
13.08.2009 17.12.2009

The attendance of the Members at the Management Committee meetings along with the number of meetings held during the

period is given below:

Director elected from amongst
shareholders other than
Central Government

Name of the Director Period No. of M.C. No. of M.C.
meetings held Meetings

during the period attended

Sri R S Reddy 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010 23 23

Chairman & Managing Director

Sri Anil Girotra 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010 23 21

Executive Director

Sri. A. A. Taj 07.12.2009 to 31.03.2010 8 8

Executive Director

Sri B Maheshwaran 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010 23 22

RBI Nominee Director

Sri V.H. Ramakrishnan 01.04.2009 to 24.04.2009 3 1

Director elected from amongst shareholders 06.03.2010 to 31.03.2010

other than Central Government

Sri K Ramakoteswara Rao 28.06.2009 to 25.09.2009 5 5

Representing Non Workmen

Employee Director

Sri Anup Prakash Garg 01.04.2009 to 12.10.2009 11 11

Part time Non Official Director

(Nominated by Govt of India under

Chartered Accountant Category)

Sri T Ravindranath 01.04.2009 to 27.06.2009 16 16

Representing Workmen 26.09.2009 to 05.03.2010

Employee Director

Sri Shaibal Gupta 30.07.2009 to 29.01.2010 11 08

Part-time Non-Official Director

(Nominated by Govt. of India)

Sri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo 01.04.2009 to 29.07.2009 12 11

Part-time Non-Official Director 30.01.2010 to 31.03.2010

(Nominated by Govt. of India)

Sri Prem Prakash Pareek 25.10.2009 to 31.03.2010 11 10

Director elected from amongst

shareholders other than

Central Government (Re-elected)

Sri. K.Raghuraman 25.04.2009 to 24.10.2009 11 9
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3.2 Audit Committee of the Board

Pursuant to the directives of Reserve Bank of India, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors was constituted with five
directors viz. Executive Director, Nominee Directors of Government of India and Reserve Bank of India and Two Independent
Non-Official Directors. One of the Independent Non-Official Directors chairs the meeting of the Audit Committee.

The Committee met 10 times during the year under review, on the following dates:

22.04.2009 07.10.2009

08.05.2009 28.10.2009

26.06.2009 18.12.2009

24.07.2009 25.01.2010

25.07.2009 19.02.2010

The Audit Committee of the Board provides directions and also oversees the operations of the total Audit Functions of the
Bank which include organization, operationalization and quality control of the internal audit and inspection system and follow
up of the Statutory / External Audit of the Bank and Annual Financial Inspection by Reserve Bank of India.

The Committee reviews internal inspection / audit functions, follow up on all issues raised in the Long Form Audit Report
(LFAR) and interacts with the external auditors in respect of LFAR. The committee also reviews the compliance of the
Accounting Standards in terms of reporting process, disclosure of financial information and compliance in terms of other
statutory requirements.

It reviews inspection reports of the specialized and extra large branches and all branches with unsatisfactory ratings. It also
reviews inter branch adjustment accounts, unreconciled long outstanding entries in inter bank accounts besides reviewing
the position of house keeping.

The attendance of members at the Audit Committee meetings along with the number of meetings held during the period is
given below:

Name of the Director Type of Director Number of Audit Committee Number of

meetings held during the meetings
period of their tenure attended

Sri V.H. Ramakrishnan Chairman / Non Executive 10 10

Director elected from amongst Independent Director

shareholders other than (01.04.2009 to 22.03.2010)

Central Government

Sri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo Chairman / Non Executive - -

Part-time Non Official Director Independent Director

(Nominated by Govt. of India) (23.03.2010 to 31.03.2010)

Sri Anil Girotra Member 10 10

Executive Director

Sri A.A. Taj Member 03 03

Executive Director

Smt Madhulika P Sukul Member 10 5

Govt. of India Nominee Director

Sri B. Maheshwaran Member/ Non Executive/ 10 10

RBI Nominee Director Independent Director

*Sri Anup Prakash Garg Member/ Non Executive/ 06 05

Part - time Non Official Director Independent Director

(Nominated by Govt. of India

under Chartered Accountant

Category)

* Sri Anup Prakash Garg ceased to be Director of the Bank w.e.f. 12.10.2009
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3.3 Risk Management Committee (RMC)

Bank has constituted a Risk Management Committee of the Board on 28.06.2001 with an objective to empower one group
with full responsibility of evaluating overall risks faced by the Bank and determining the level of risks, which will be in the best
interest of the Bank. The Committee is constituted with the Chairman & Managing Director, Executive Directors, Govt. of
India Nominee Director and three other Directors. The Committee met six times during the year and discussed various
matters relating to operational, market and credit risks of the Bank.

The Risk Management Committee met during the year on the following dates:

07.05.2009 03.10.2009
25.06.2009 16.11.2009
31.08.2009 20.02.2010

The attendance of the members at the Risk Management Committee meetings along with the number of meetings held
during the period of their tenure is given below:

Name of the Director Type of Director Number of Risk Number of
Management Committee meetings
meetings held during the attended

period of their tenure

Sri R. S. Reddy Chairman 06 06
Chairman & Managing Director From 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010

Sri Anil Girotra Member 06 06
Executive Director From 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010

Sri A.A. Taj Member 01 01
Executive Director From 07.12.2009 to 31.03.2010

Smt Madhulika P Sukul Member 06 05

Govt. of India Nominee Director From 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010

Sri V H Ramakrishnan Member 06 06
Director elected from amongst From 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010
shareholders other than
Central Government

Sri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo Member 06 05
Part-time Non-Official Director From 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010
(Nominated by Govt. of India)

Sri K. Raghuraman Member 06 05
Director elected from amongst From 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010
shareholders other than
Central Government

3.4 Shareholders’ and Investors’ Grievances Committee

3.4.1 The Bank has constituted a Committee of the Board - “Shareholders’ and Investors’ Grievances Committee” — to
specifically look into the redressal of the shareholders grievances. Presently the Committee consists of 6 Directors i.e.,

1. Sri K. Raghuraman, Chairman of the Committee, (Director elected from amongst shareholders other than Central
Government) since14.03.2009.

2. Sri R. S. Reddy, Chairman and Managing Director

3. Sri Anil Girotra, Executive Director
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4. Sri A.A. Taj, Executive Director

5. Sri Prem Prakash Pareek, Director elected from amongst Shareholders other than Central Government (Member of
the Committee w.e.f 06.03.2010)

6. Sri Shaibal Gupta, Part-time Non-Official Director (nominated by Govt. of India).

The Shareholders’ and Investors’ Grievances Committee met 4 times during the current year (i.e. on 29.05.2009, 13.08.2009,
15.10.2009 and 20.02.2010) and reviewed the position of the complaints.

Type of Director No. of meetings of shareholders’ and
Investors’ Grievances’ Committee

Held during the tenure Attended

Sri K. Raghuraman

Chairman / Director elected from amongst shareholders other than

Central Government 4 4

Sri R.S. Reddy

Member / Chairman & Managing Director 4 4

Sri Anil Girotra

Member / Executive Director 4 4

Sri AA. Taj

Member / Executive Director 1 1

Sri K. Ramakoteswara Rao
Member / Representing Non Workmen Employee Director 2 2
(01.04.2009 to 25.09.2009)

Sri T. Ravindranath
Member / Representing Non Workmen Employee Director 2 2
(26.09.2009 to 05.03.2010)

Sri Prem Prakash Pareek
Member / Director elected from amongst shareholders other than
Central Government (W.e.f. 06.03.2010) - -

Sri Shaibal Gupta
Member / Part-time Non-Official Director 4 4
(Nominated by Govt. of India)

3.4.2 In terms of Clause 47 of the Listing Agreement entered into with Stock Exchanges, Mr. T.R. Ramabhadran, Assistant
General Manager & Company Secretary is designated as the Compliance Officer for the purpose of complying with the
various terms of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges and Directives issued by SEBI.

3.4.3 The total number of requests / complaints received by the Bank and the Share Transfer Agents, M/s. MCS Limited,
Mumbai during the year under review was 8068 / 25 respectively as on 31.03.2010.

Number of requests / complaints not resolved to the satisfaction of the Shareholders is ‘NIL
Number of pending complaints ‘NIL’.
3.5 Share Transfer Committee:

Share Transfer committee is being constituted from time to time and the last reconstitution was on 06.03.2010 with the
following members:

Sri R. S. Reddy, Chairman and Managing Director
Sri V. H. Ramakrishnan, Director

Sri K.Raghuraman, Director
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The committee approved 4870 share transfers aggregating 14,74,739 shares during the year 2009-10. The committee
confirms the transfer of shares. Eleven Meetings of the Share Transfer Committee were held during the year. The details of
the transfers are being placed to the Board annually. The Bank ensures that all the transfers are duly affected within a period
of 1 month from the date of their lodgment. The Bank further ensures that complaints are disposed off in a time bound
manner and the complaints which needs enquiry for final disposal are attended with immediate interim reply / information to
the shareholders.

There was no share transfer request which has been pending for more than a fortnight and no shares are pending for transfer
as on 31.03.2010.

3.6 Customer Service Committee:

The Bank had constituted a Committee of the Board — “Customer Service Committee” to monitor the quality of customer
service, improvement thereof, etc. The Committee met four times on 07.05.2009, 13.08.2009,28.10.2009 and 20.02.2010.
The Committee consists of 5 Directors, viz., (as on 31.03.2010):

1. Chairman & Managing Director
2. Sri B. Maheshwaran, RBI Nominee Director
3. Sri V. H. Ramakrishnan, Director elected from amongst shareholders other than Central Government
4. Sri Shaibal Gupta, Part-time Non-Official Director (Nominated by Govt. of India)
5. Sri.Rajib Sekhar Sahoo, Part-time Non-Official Director(Nominated by Govt. of India)
3.7 Remuneration Committee:

The Bank has in terms of Ministry of Finance (MOF) letter no. F20/1/2005-BOI dated 09.03.2007, constituted a Remuneration
Committee of the Board on 24.03.2007. In terms of MOF letter, the Whole Time Directors of Public Sector Banks would be
entitled to performance linked incentives subject to achievement of broad quantitative parameters fixed for performance
evaluation matrix based on the “Statement of Intent of Goals” and qualitative parameters and bench marks based on various
compliance reports during the last financial year. The basis of evaluation of the quantitative and qualitative parameters would
be the Bank’s audited financial data as on March 31 of the relevant year.

The Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the performance of the Bank / full time Directors for deciding the performance
linked incentives to be paid to the whole time Directors i.e., Chairman & Managing Director and Executive Directors of the
Bank.

The Committee is constituted with the following members (as on 31.03.2010):
1. Smt Madhulika P Sukul, GOl Nominee Director (Chairperson of the Committee)
2. Sri B. Maheshwaran, RBI Nominee Director
3. Sri V. H. Ramakrishnan, Director
4. Sri Prem Prakash Pareek, Director

The committee met on 08.05.2009 and Smt Madhulika P.Sukul, GOl Nominee Director along with other members mentioned
at serial numbers 2,3,4 attended the meeting.

3.8 Nomination Committee of the Board:

A Nomination Committee of the Board constituted on 30.11.2007 and reconstituted last on 13.10.2009 with the following
Directors:

1. Sri Shaibal Gupta, (Chairman of the Committee) Part-time Non-Official Director (Nominated by Govt. of India)
2. Sri B Maheshwaran, RBI Nominee Director
3. Sri Rajib Sekhar Sahoo, Part-time Non-Official Director (Nominated by Govt. of India)

3.9 Other Committees:

There are various other functional committees, consisting of Chairman & Managing Director, Executive Director, General
Managers and Departmental Executives, which have been constituted for day to day functioning, review and monitoring of
various aspects of business. Some of the important functional committees are as under:
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1. Asset Liability Committee (ALCO)

2. Operational Risk Management Committee(ORMC)

3. Investment Committee(IC)

4. Risk Based Supervision Committee(RBSC)

5. Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC)
The details of these Committees and their functions in brief, are furnished hereunder:
3.9.1 Asset Liability Committee (ALCO)

ALCO is a decision making body responsible for Balance Sheet Planning from Risk Returns perspective. ALCO is a primary
authority for monitoring liquidity and interest rate risks in the Balance Sheet of the Bank. It reviews the structural Liquidity,
dynamic liquidity and interest rate sensitivity position of the Bank on fortnightly intervals and monitors the same to be within
the Prudential Risk limits / parameters set by the Board. ALCO also articulates the current interest rate view of the Bank and
base its decisions such as funding pattern and product pricing (fixing of interest rates on deposits and advances) for future
business strategy.

The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) is headed by Chairman & Managing Director / Executive Director with the following
members:

General Manager (Integrated Risk Management Department)

General Manager (Priority Sector Policy Dept.)

General Manager (Credit)

General Manager (Central Accounts Department)

General Manager (Corporate Planning)

General Manager (Treasury) Mumbai

General Manager (DIT)

General Manager (CMRD)

General Manager (MSME)

Dy. General Manager/Asst. General Manager / Chief Manager (Convenor —Integrated Risk Management Department)

The committee met 35 times during the period under review and took important decisions as regards Strategic Planning,
Product Pricing and Risk Management.

11.04.2009, 15.04.2009, 22.04.2009, 29.04.2009, 27.05.2009, 02.06.2009, 22.06.2009, 08.07.2009, 03.08.2009, 14.08.2009,
27.08.2009, 24.09.2009, 22.10.2009, 02.11.2009, 25.11.2009, 30.11.2009, 21.12.2009, 29.12.2009, 08.01.2010, 16.01.2010,
18.01.2010, 19.01.2010, 21.01.2010, 27.01.2010, 03.02.2010, 04.02.2010, 10.02.2010, 18.02.2010, 03.03.2010, 15.03.2010,
19.03.2010, 22.03.2010, 23.03.2010, 27.03.2010 & 30.03.2010.

3.9.2 Operational Risk Management Committee:

Operational Risk Management Committee shall be responsible for implementation of the Operational Risk policies and limits
approved by the Board / Risk Management Committee. It shall have as its principal objective, the mitigation of operational
risk within the institution by the creation and maintenance of an explicit operational risk management process.

The Committee shall be headed by the Chairman & Managing Director / Executive Director and shall consists of the following
members:

All General Managers at Head Office, General Manager (Treasury, Mumbai), General Manager (Department of Information
Technology), General Manager (Inspection) and DGM/AGM/CM(IRMD) — Convenor.

The committee met ten times during the year under review on 20.05.2009, 19.06.2009, 03.08.2009, 25.08.2009, 24.09.2009,
22.10.2009, 30.11.2009, 29.12.2009, 10.02.2010 and 30.03.2010

3.9.3 Investment Committee:

Investment Committee (IC) was constituted to approve investments, review investment transactions, fix prudential exposure
limits to various money market players, investments in Non SLR investments etc.
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The committee shall be headed by Chairman & Managing Director and consists of the following members.

Executive Directors (Chairman of the committee in the absence of CMD)
General Manager (Treasury)

General Manager (Credit) HO,Hyderabad

General Manager (IRMD) HO,Hyderabad

General Manager (Corporate Planning) HO,Hyderabad

General Manger (RMD) HO, Hyderabad

General Manager (SME) HO, Hyderabad

Assistant General Manager (IRMD) - Convenor

The quorum of the IC will be 4 members which shall include CMD/ED,GM(Treasury) and at least two other General Managers
as above. In the absence of CMD/ED, the senior most GM will preside over the meeting

The committee meets on a daily basis.
3.9.4 Risk Based Supervision Committee:

The Risk Based Supervision Committee was constituted for the supervision of the measures on the implementation of the
Risk Based Supervision and risk based internal audit of the bank and review of the risk profile of the bank on a quarterly
basis.

The Committee is headed by the Chairman & Managing Director / Executive Director and shall consists of the following
members:

All General Managers at Head Office, General Manager (Treasury, Mumbai), General Manager (Department of Information
Technology), General Manager (Inspection) and DGM/AGM/CM(IRMD) — Convenor

The committee met Four times during the year under review on 15.06.2009, 24.09.2009, 11.11.2009, 10.02.2010
3.9.5. Credit Risk Management Committee:

Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC) is responsible for implementation of the Credit risk policy / strategies approved
by the Board / RMC. The Committee shall prepare the Credit Risk Policy of the bank, policies / standards for presentation of
credit proposals, financial covenants, rating standards and benchmarks and recommend to Board / RMC for approval. The
Committee shall also decide on the delegation of Credit approving powers, prudential limits on credit exposures, standards
for loan collaterals, portfolio management, loan review mechanism, risk concentrations, risk monitoring and evaluation,
pricing of loans, provisioning, regulatory / legal compliance etc.

Composition: The Committee shall be headed by the Chairman & Managing Director / Executive Director and shall consists
of the following members —

= General Manager (IRMD)

= General Manager (Priority Sector Policy)
= General Manager (Credit)

= General Manager (MSME)

= General Manager (CMRD)

= General Manager (RMD &CAD)

= General Manager ( Corporate Planning)
= General Manager (Treasury, Mumbai)

= Dy.GM/AGM/CM (IRMD) - Convenor

In the absence of both Chairman & Managing Director and Executive Director, the senior most General Manager shall
preside over the Committee meetings.

The committee met 15 times during the year under review on the following dates:

21.04.2009, 22.05.2009, 19.06.2009, 22.06.2009, 13.07.2009, 03.08.2009, 24.08.2009, 24.09.2009, 22.10.2009, 30.11.2009,
29.12.2009, 05.01.2010, 18.01.2010, 10.02.2010, 18.02.2010
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The details of previous three Annual General Meetings (AGM) of shareholders are as follows:

General Body Meeting Date Time Venue

Seventh AGM 28.06.2007 10.30 AM Shilpa Kala Vedika, Shilparamam, Crafts Village, Near
HiTech City, Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500 081

Eighth AGM 23.06.2008 10.00 AM Shilpa Kala Vedika, Shilparamam, Crafts Village, Near
HiTech City, Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500 081

Ninth AGM 25.06.2009 10.00 AM Shilpa Kala Vedika, Shilparamam, Crafts Village, Near

HiTech City, Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500 081

No Special Resolution was passed in the previous three Annual General Meetings stated above.

No Special Resolution was passed through postal ballot during the previous year ending 31.03.2010.

4.2 Extraordinary General Meeting:

The details of Extraordinary General Meeting of the shareholders held during the last 3 years are as follows:

Date Time Venue Purpose

06.03.2009 10.00 AM Shilpa Kala Vedika, Shilparamam, Election of shareholder Directors other than
Crafts Village, Near HiTech City Central Government
Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500 081

5.1. Material Disclosures:

The Bank had complied with all the requirements regarding Capital Market related matters and has not been imposed any
penalty or strictures by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other Statutory Authority for non compliance of any Law,
guidelines and directives during the last three years. The related party transactions of the Bank are disclosed in the notes of
Accounts, Schedule of the Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2010 as per Accounting Standards-18 issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, New Delhi. The Directors and Senior Management personnel affirm by the Model Code of
Conduct framed by the Bank and the same is posted on the website.

The number of shares held by Non-Executive Directors is furnished below:

1. Sri Prem Prakash Pareek

2. Sri V H Ramakrishnan
3. Sri K Raghuraman

430 shares
100 shares
225 shares

All other Non Executive Directors do not hold equity shares of our Bank.
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5.2 Details of remuneration* paid to Directors for the Financial year 2009-10:
(Amount in Rupees)

Director Salary Banks' Perquisites Sitting Fees Performance based
contribution Incentive
to PF Period FY Amount
@ Sri R.S. Reddy
Chairman & Managing Director 1507323 128547 177455 — 2008-09 530411
@ Sri Anil Girotra
Executive Director 1289096 113225 33531 — 2008-09 568082
@ SriAA. Taj
Executive Director 388448 24742 53614 — — —

#Sri K. Ramakoteswara Rao
Non-Workmen Employee

Director 475026 27922 11346 47500 — —
+Sri T. Ravindranath
Workmen Employee Director 343872 20736 7510 137500 — —

* The remuneration includes Salary, benefits, perquisites etc.

@ Service contract as per Government Regulations
# As per Andhra Bank Officers Service Regulations
+ As per Bipartite Settlement Stock Option Details — Not Applicable

Note: The remuneration paid to Chairman & Managing Director and Executive Director is as per Government of India guidelines.
The remuneration paid to Workmen / Non-workmen Director is governed by the Bipartite Settlement with workmen / Andhra
Bank Officer Service Regulations respectively. The remuneration to Non-Executive Director is being paid by way of sitting
fees only.

6. Means of Communication

Quarterly financial results are submitted to the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Bank are listed within the stipulated
time frame.

The Bank strongly believes that all stakeholders should have access to complete information on different activities, performance
and product initiatives. Annual, half yearly and quarterly results of the Bank for the year 2009-10 were published in leading
newspapers. The results were also made available on the Bank’s website www.andhrabank.in. The Annual Report is sent to
all the shareholders of the Bank. Every year, after the annual, half yearly and quarterly results are declared, a Press Meet is
held on the same day in which the Chairman & Managing Director answers to the queries of the Media. The Chairman &
Managing Director, Executive Director and other top functionaries, in the course of their visits to other centers in India as well
as abroad, undertake one to one meeting with the Fund Managers as well as Press personally and appraise them about the
performance of the Bank. The following news papers mainly cover the Financial Results, Corporate Advertisements and
Notices:

English: Telugu: Hindi:
Business Line Eenadu Hindi Milap
Deccan Chronicle Andhra Prabha Dainik Bhaskar
The Hindu Saakshi

The Financial Express
Economic Times
7. Shareholders Information

The Bank is a Scheduled Commercial Bank with the Head Office situated at Hyderabad. The Bank has its presence in 1557
branches and has 22 Zonal Offices as on 31.03.2010.

The Bank’s shares are listed on the following Stock Exchanges

a. Bombay Stock Exchange Limited Symbol: 532418
25" Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Stock Code/System: ANDBKDM
Dalal Street, Mumbai — 400 001.

109



q, 4T 5 ANDHRA BANK

@. & e Ve TEEEsT ot 3edl [WiHes, wih He [ sTenes
TEE WA
TET Pl BT,
Tt 9d, 7w - 400 051.
Tt fRe g @1 e 31.03.2010 @ < fean o &.
8.1 giayfcat #1 SHARawEA™
bl % IR A P SAaET S Al P ST & TT b PRI b SRRIRIAESIH % [ Uh FE B % w9 ° §% 9 A9
R feuhedl fWirs (Tieasiun) wa dga feuied afdaa (Eea) fmies (ddivaua) & arg MeurmR Jemei & a5 &
TG H SHEN R §. SERERS SO SRR I THUHSITA AT HISUAUN H SHAI RIS e Thd &. MEqUR qarsil 4 S &l 7=
THUESiOd - e 434A01013
HreTanw - s 434A01013
g 31, 2010 &1 §% % 203971 SERarRe ¥ ¥ 41,635 IRRERE [Hitwd 5is % Sidid & Td 162336 3RRURE % 90T S
B A E §% % 48.50 #RA F FA@ A T F 25 FIS AR GHR & I § wd 9w 23.50 HAs T @i i w5y ™ E
31 =5rg 2010 &1 P ATETID JEEMRET (TR F AIBRT BT Bl Herb?) B 95.96% zaeei-s v 7 ua 4.04% iTea
T A E.
8.2 T WS e (SH):
FAGZIh THINNEN JaT U YUl & 79 @THIT TS, STel Wil i ST&RERT & XUl st I 19T AT &, Iq%h @i § dren
ST fopan ST &, §% T T H Ry SERUR®S & @ ¥ Y4 9eN @ g

3 Tt qerm TR R EETE
BELC STYAEY el AL STEIEYY
B SR KIEICY gt el
AR iz e g

STEHETER TR Siremam forstaRTaest

qd AR TR wge

R ICREED At e

BRI Er Ryl iR wE

TR TREYT ST BRI

Eil FART TR BB

[RRERREN TEAR fererafa/ gz Prege

PIEBTAT g fersTeramst TG

JAgER B SR aifezer TN/

e EEC faramaTee™ et

e A HHATST LIRS

8.3 R ARt YTt U AR HI farRTadl 1 o

& Te gHivaa &ear 8 6 ot sieror Svs 1T o6 o1 ot fofer ¥ uop wé &1 orafy % ofey TWrell 8. Hew o SiaRull & STgHET
% fou wa sicqror afufa awrh @ S Fafm sl W) §ob el §.

QIR SR, TTHIST BT YA Td MAhT F HETed Tl HREGAMT U BRAE IR T R ST SAfHswdl, Hed THETd s,
e % HEET § BT Tl . IORERE a0l e Ud 3 $i5 a&ile, Pbrd Td BiRaE I5HER Ud 987 SRl siidwd) &
= 99 WA wed §.

110



_
TMiw RdiE ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010 %

b. The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., Stock Code/ Symbol: ANDHRABANK
Exchange Plaza,
Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra East, Mumbai — 400 051.

The annual listing fee has been paid till 31.03.2010.

8.1 Dematerialisation of Securities :

The shares of the bank are under compulsory demat list of SEBI and the Bank has joined as a member of the Depository
Services with National Security Depository Ltd (NSDL) and Central Depository Services ( India ) Ltd (CDSL) as an issuer
company for dematerialisation of Bank shares. Shareholders can get their shares dematerialized with either NSDL or CDSL.
The Depository services have allotted the following ISIN numbers to the bank.

NSDL — INE434A01013
CDSL — INE434A01013

As on March 31, 2010, out of 203971 shareholders of the Bank, 41635 shareholders hold the shares of the Bank under
physical mode and 162336 hold the shares in demat form. Out of the total number of shares of 48.50 crores of the Bank, 25
crore are held by the Government of India and the remaining 23.50 crore are issued to the public. As on 315 March, 2010, the
public shareholding (incl. Govt. of India) in Electronic Form is 95.96% and 4.04% is in physical form.

8.2 Electronic Clearing Services (ECS):

Electronic Clearing Services is a method by which payment of dividend etc. where the amount due to the investor can directly
be credited to his/her account. The bank has offered the services to the shareholders having account at the following Centres:

RBI Centres Non-RBI Centres
New Delhi Ludhiana Panaji Mysore Dhanbad
Chandigarh Amritsar Pune Mangalore Jamshedpur
Kanpur Jallandhar Solapur Hubli Ranchi
Jaipur Jammu Nasik Pondicherry
Ahmedabad Allahabad Aurangabad Tiruchirapalli
Mumbai Varanasi Indore Madurai
Nagpur Lucknow Bhopal Salem
Hyderabad Dehradun Gwalior Erode
Bangalore Gorakhpur Jabalpur Coimbatore
Chennai Agra Raipur Kozhikode
Tiruvananthapuram Udaipur Tirupati/Chittoor Trissur
Kolkata Jodhpur Vijayawada Ernakulam
Bhubaneswar Rajkot Nellore Dargamitta Burdwan/Durgapur
Guwahati Baroda Visakhapatnam Haldia
Patna Surat Kakinada Siligiri

8.3 Share Transfer System and Redressal of Investor’s Grievances:

The Bank ensures that all transfers are duly effected within the period of one month from the date of their lodgment. The
Board has constituted a Share Transfer Committee for approval of the Transfers, which meets at regular intervals.

Share Transfers, Dividend Payments and all other investor related activities are attended to and processed at the Office of
the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, M/S.MCS Limited, Mumbai. The Shareholders may lodge the transfer deeds and
any other documents, grievances and complaints at the following address of the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents:
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M/s. MCS LIMITED

KASHIRAM JAMNADAS BLDG,,
OFFICE NO.21/22 GROUND FLOOR

5, P.D’MELLO ROAD, (GHADIYAL GODI)
MUMBAI - 400 009.

The Bank also undertakes the investor services in Merchant Banking Division at Head Office of the Bank. Any communication
/ correspondence /grievances/ complaints can be sent to the following address for redressal:

The Company Secretary
Investor Services Section
Andhra Bank
Dr.Pattabhi Bhavan, Head Office
5-9-11, Saifabad, Hyderabad — 500 004.
Tel / Fax. 040-23230883; Tel:040-23252371/2388
E-mail id: mbd@andhrabank.co.in
8.4 Opening of an ESCROW Account :

The Bank has opened an ESCROW Account with Andhra Bank Centralised DP Branch, Somajiguda, Hyderabad and transferred
the unclaimed shares of the shareholders who have participated in our Follow-on Public Offer on 28.03.2010.

The number of unclaimed shares transferred is 27,279 shares pertaining to 183 shareholders.

No shareholder has approached the Bank for transfer of shares from the Suspense Account during the year since opening of
the Escrow Account.

The voting rights on these unclaimed shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims the shares.
9. Financial Calendar:

9.1 Annual General Meeting of the shareholders:

Particulars of the Tenth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Bank:

Date, Time & Venue of the AGM | June 16, 2010 at 10.00 A.M.
Shilpa Kala Vedika, Shilparamam,Crafts Village, Near Hi-Tech City, Madhapur,
Hyderabad-500 081.

9.2 Financial Calendar (Tentative):

Approval of quarterly results for the period ending:

June 30, 2010 — End of July, 2010

September 30, 2010 — End of October, 2010

December 31, 2010 — End of January, 2011

March 31, 2011 — Audited Annual Accounts — April, 2011

9.3 Date of Book Closure (Dividend):

| 05.06.2010 to 15.06.2010 (both days inclusive) |
9.4 Dividend payment date:

| Dividend payment date for 2009-10:]28.06.2010 |

(Note: The Board of Directors of the Bank declared the Dividend on 29.04.2010 @ Rs.5.00ps per share (@50%) for the
financial year 2009-10 and the same will be paid on 28.06.2010).
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5000 % 176081 86.33 30871478 6.37
5001 & 10000 18534 9.09 15516450 3.20
10001 & 20000 6389 3.13 8657161 1.79
20001 & 30000 1399 0.69 3403281 0.70
30001 & 40000 316 0.15 1119830 0.23
40001 & 50000 334 0.16 1571618 0.32
50001 & 100000 396 0.19 2909115 0.60
100001 & 99999999 521 0.26 170951067 35.24
100000000 ue ifere 1 0.00 250000000 51.55
P 203971 100.00 485000000 100.00
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10.1 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31.03.2010:

S.No. Category No. of Holders No. of Shares % to Shares
01 Government of India 1 250000000 51.55
02 General Public 200766 65799392 13.57
03 NRIs / OCBs 1180 919438 0.19
04 Private Corporate Bodies 1804 14541897 3.00
05 Mutual Funds & UTI 48 13015295 2.68
06 Banks / Financial Institutions / Insurance Cos. 40 77680152 16.02
07 Foreign Institutional Investors 100 62486245 12.88
08 Others 32 557581 0.11
TOTAL 203971 485000000 100.00

The total foreign shareholding as on 31t March, 2010 was 12.88% (14.62% as on 31st March, 2009) as under which is within
the stipulated level of 20% of the paid up capital of the bank:

Sl. No Category As on 31.03.2009 As on 31.03.2010
No. of shareholders No. of shares No. of shareholders No. of shares
1. Foreign Institutional Investors 67 7,09,19,817 100 6,24,86,245
2. NRIs / OCBs 709 5,26,252 1180 9,19,438
Total 776 7,14,46,069 1280 6,34,05,683

10.2 Bank has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments.

10.3 Top 5 shareholders of the Bank as on 31.03.2010 :

SI.No. Name of the Investor Percentage of Total number of
total holding shares
01 Government of India 51.55 250000000
02 Life Insurance Corporation of India 12.05 58422764
03 Genesis Indian Investment Co. Ltd 5.42 26262908
04 Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Ltd 2.84 13755155
05 Reliance Capital Trustee Co. Ltd A/c Reliance Banking 1.39 6745840
Fund & Reliance Longterm

11. DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS CATEGORY-WISE AS ON 31.03.2010
Nominal Value of Equity shares No. of Shareholders % No. of Shares %
Upto 5000 176081 86.33 30871478 6.37
5001 to 10000 18534 9.09 156516450 3.20
10001 to 20000 6389 3.13 8657161 1.79
20001 to 30000 1399 0.69 3403281 0.70
30001 to 40000 316 0.15 1119830 0.23
40001 to 50000 334 0.16 1571618 0.32
50001 to 100000 396 0.19 2909115 0.60
100001 to 99999999 521 0.26 170951067 35.24
100000000 and above 1 0.00 250000000 51.55
TOTAL 203971 100.00 485000000 100.00
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12. I+9aR SEREET e

I RN B T FA ERIT PIREIH
ARA &% Al 1 250000000 51.546
ST W39 89530 35217508 7.261
STHUTEA 9T 5 714 0.000
THA 453 109728 0.023
fer wa FREvs 1712 426726 0.088
=T 501 199408 0.041
Gl 8343 5227847 1.078
oI 10899 2382491 0.491
gRamm 2010 526664 0.109
femmere wRer 117 19131 0.004
T HHR 197 58166 0.012
Eoced 12568 3518279 0.725
A 3411 892828 0.184
e Y39T 2899 1007042 0.208
HEIRTSE 24629 168685782 34.781
AU 3 1035 0.001
HeTerT 28 6119 0.001
[EEING] 1 128 0.000
BINIGE 5 729 0.00
e 5286 1575950 0.325
T 1146 457867 0.094
T 3229 680500 0.140
TS 15941 4946316 1.020
B 33 7558 0.002
EREECER)] 5387 1326356 0.273
ofyam s 7180 3855091 0.795
T 195514 481129963 99.202
= 8457 3870037 0.798
T 203971 485000000 100.00

* UHATETS | TANRGTS SPRERE ARAd &, a8 (FERTS) § Wt s
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STATE NO OF HOLDERS TOTAL HOLDING %
PRESIDENT OF INDIA 1 250000000 51.546
ANDHRA PRADESH 89530 35217508 7.261
ARUNACHAL PRADESH 5 714 0.000
ASSAM 453 109728 0.023
BIHAR & JHARKAND 1712 426726 0.088
CHANDIGARH 501 199408 0.041
DELHI 8343 5227847 1.078
GUJARAT 10899 2382491 0.491
HARYANA 2010 526664 0.109
HIMACHAL PRADESH 117 19131 0.004
JAMMU & KASHMIR 197 58166 0.012
KARNATAKA 12568 3518279 0.725
KERALA 3411 892828 0.184
MADHYA PRADESH 2899 1007042 0.208
MAHARASHTRA* 24629 168685782 34.781
MANIPUR 3 1035 0.001
MEGHALAYA 28 6119 0.001
MIZORAM 1 128 0.000
NAGALAND 5 729 0.000
ORISSA 5286 1575950 0.325
PUNJAB 1146 457867 0.094
RAJASTHAN 3229 680500 0.140
TAMIL NADU 15941 4946316 1.020
TRIPURA 33 7558 0.002
UTTAR PRADESH 5387 1326356 0.273
WEST BENGAL 7180 3855091 0.795
TOTAL: 195514 481129963 99.202
OTHERS: 8457 3870037 0.798
GRAND TOTAL.: 203971 485000000 100.000

* Includes Fll / NRI shareholders, having correspondent offices in Mumbai (Maharashtra).
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13. IERT &1 g, Wb TFEAST § AWR 60 T §ER HAET s

arater Jome Wi TR wie T, TEE

A I G| AT I & A

s 2009 60.00 45.10 13307781 59.70 45.15 2071363
7g 2009 95.25 54.05 23611333 95.35 56.00 6129393
s 2009 98.00 79.40 18351256 98.00 79.50 3168481
Sers 2009 95.00 74.00 17119884 94.70 74.30 3993495
gt 2009 93.00 82.50 6833603 92.85 80.30 1433217
ez 2009 109.70 87.50 22329764 106.40 85.30 5372560
FrrgEy 2009 125.05 98.18 25722667 124.70 98.25 5370550
Tk 2009 124.00 108.15 18236600 123.50 108.00 3566908
TE=r 2009 121.85 101.55 29895993 121.95 101.65 5546677
sat 2010 117.80 99.50 21331355 116.00 97.05 3692414
wadt 2010 107.50 94.20 17341885 107.25 94.65 1808768
A 2010 110.05 97.15 28101476 109.50 97.05 3667224

Tq e O dieuad e SR - et @ ga § §6 % 9% qed &1 teae A e o e §

14. 7 2009-10 % <R TA Uz 4t HioAran e aa S & gaE H o | % & 99R Wbd 1 FRWEEA e eR
2
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SHARE PRICE, VOLUME OF SHARES TRADED IN STOCK EXCHANGE

Period National Stock Exchange Stock Exchange, Mumbai

Date High Low Volume High Low Volume
April 2009 60.00 45.10 13307781 59.70 45.15 2071363
May 2009 95.25 54.05 23611333 95.35 56.00 6129393
June 2009 98.00 79.40 18351256 98.00 79.50 3168481
July 2009 95.00 74.00 17119884 94.70 74.30 3993495
August 2009 93.00 82.50 6833603 92.85 80.30 1433217
September 2009 109.70 87.50 22329764 106.40 85.30 5372560
October 2009 125.05 98.18 25722667 124.70 98.25 5370550
November 2009 124.00 108.15 18236600 123.50 108.00 3566908
December 2009 121.85 101.55 29895993 121.95 101.65 5546677
January 2010 117.80 99.50 21331355 116.00 97.05 3692414
February 2010 107.50 94.20 17341885 107.25 94.65 1808768
March 2010 110.05 97.15 28101476 109.50 97.05 3667224

Performance of Bank’s share price in comparison with the movement of S&P CNX Nifty and Bankex during the year 2009-10

is shown here below:
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31 5t 2010 @1 HIWW Wi THaSS, J=E § 9% H 9% dEa & 108.20 ¥ g g3 wiw vwEas . 7 5.108.10 T w

T2 g
14. 3fq SER =@

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10
sifed qe () 10/- 10/- 10/-
31 919 # SR WE - TR (3.) 73.60 45.20 108.20
T (3.) 11.87 13.46 21.56
TTHILT (%) 40% 45% 50%
T T3 (3.) 67 75.20 90.93
e =z (e @ @ %) 33.4% 33.42% 23.19%
15. ==iaie:
SATRE & % SR dUEs % faferse JU Ud TAUEE & MOl I 399 H A (60 A &. ST Sl STesl 7 SIEReRd &l Tas1/
el &% T qEEY YEH & |-

16. % H1 FERE TEET AT

T [feE 3 8% § HURE Tag Yo & Wy Aoy 2 @ 3T &1 8. 39 AT % 98 qee & 6 §% 5 BHRe Tena sl qure!
% T oTasds Y, TTFRT, B Ud [l qureiRa $l STl T SeaEs Ye &l &.

17. IR ¥E™ SmasaehRang:

b ¥ THR TR Fgad BRIICE STedel §. ofd: TR BEUS STE0e & HET Bl Sa9THhal T8l 8. JORURE M9l &l B
STETT 1 BISHT A1 STbT HUl (SUBHT BT ST T Sarvr ) sl 1980 ue oieenn % (IR wd o) fafem= 2003 &
JELMl & TR T Bl STl §, T FasThl bl HRTE TR SR O 6 Sl 2.

HEUE Mo & Ty wiefes et areel el & oar aa e siar 8. 09.03.2007 % avaert MRl & oTaR Uh
qiReathes afufa fea @ =i B

& 7 TERUR® B fawia e & srefantye e T8 6e .

IRURE R T IERUR® gRT AMHA/IT ST § B BiE, Taa FMeee TeR sRT Fgad 60 o §. wram Red §% &
fesi 01.11.2007 we 22.01.2008 &RT RT FR9l % SIHER Uh AHid- araid &1 e f6ar T &.

% 7 feeam AR Wil & U9 @ Megs JE % e 59 A R
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The Bank’s share price as on 31 March, 2010 closed at Rs.108.20p. on the National Stock Exchange, Mumbai and at
Rs.108.10 p, on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited.

14. Per Share Data:

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10
Face Value (Rs.) 10/- 10/- 10/-
Market Quotation as on
31st March — NSE (Rs.) 73.60 45.20 108.20
Earnings (Rs.) 11.87 13.46 21.56
Dividend (%) 40% 45% 50%
Book Value (Rs.) 67 75.20 90.93
Dividend payout (% of Net Profit) 33.4% 33.42% 23.19%

15. Liquidity:

Andhra Bank Shares are included in the specified group in BSE and CNX Nifty of NSE. The fair volume of trading provides
enough entry/exit opportunities to the shareholders.

16. Corporate Governance Rating of the Bank:

ICRA Limited has assigned “CGR 2” Rating to the Corporate Governance practices of the Bank. This rating implies that the
rated bank has adopted and follows such practices, convention and codes as would provide its financial stake holders a high
level of assurance on the quality of corporate governance.

17. Non Mandatory Requirements:

The Bank has an Executive Chairman appointed by the Government. Hence, maintaining of an Office of a Non Executive
Chairman does not arise. The tenure of the Independent Directors is determined by the Government, excepting the tenure of
the shareholder Directors which is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Banking Companies (Acquisition &
Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980 read with the Andhra Bank (Shares & Meetings) General Regulations, 2003.

The remuneration of the Executive Directors is determined in terms of the Government guidelines. There is a Remuneration
Committee constituted in terms of Government directive dated 09.03.2007.

The Bank has not sent half yearly declaration of financial performance to the shareholders.

The Independent Directors are appointed by the Government excepting the Shareholder Directors, who are elected from
amongst the shareholders. There is a Nomination Committee constituted in terms of directives issued by Reserve Bank of
India dated 01.11.2007 and 22.01.2008.

The Bank has in place a Whistle Blower Policy and the independent Directors are sent for training.
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ERINEES
ST ¥ % T
= 31 At 2010 w T A 3G WiE TR A TEE U A9 ©ih TR & A ST S G wR & g 49 |
faffde & sgar, @ a% TEEEa JE R AW 2, FURE T F Il & STIAEH H A B L.

FHAIRE T A 9T F AT Ht TR Jdem 3 2. g i S R FWRE TEE W 9Tt F AU F g A F
T, ST IEFAT Td FEEA O S 8. 98 9% & I [GERei W) FE J@n - 99En a1 4 H T @ 2.

TR T Td I AFER T 26 {38 T3 W F STgar:

TH T et & TR I ¥ SudE gt R RfideEgaR, JE o aeiada S W AR 2, SRe TaE F 9 H ST
foram 2.

T Sl FX & T IRERE Ud Fag v afbi R @ T 3R F AgER, 3% & FEs Mavs # us wn | e @
wiamE afEa @ 2.

2 M g i IoE w2 R 30 IR w1 AP 9% & vfasr @) aeran F fu At sneawm ® ek 9 €\ @
AHTEATEHRA Ed e A dF F FEwaEt 1 Fage fFa 2

Fd FEE G U STEITAACA. Fd a9t UF FEA wd &
AT TETHR AT TETHR
o =y TH & i
9rER (T 7 059828) HrER (T 7 52579)
FAAHFF AT T & Fd A9 F TH IFEHEW UE .
AT B T TETHR
F & g TH MEARE
qriER (T« 12250) 9rER (T 5 80976)
Fd ATH T AATAAH Fd A9 T TS I9E
AT B T TETBR
St argeEA Tq. T
HrER (T . 20739) HrER (T 7 22738)

M : §eEE
festi : 29.04.2010
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CERTIFICATE

The Members of Andhra Bank

We have examined the compliace of conditions of Corporate Governance by Andhra Bank, for the year ended 31 March,
2010, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Bank with Stock Exchanges i.e., Mumbai and National
Stock Exchange as far as applicable to Nationalised Banks.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Bank for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance. lt is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Bank.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, subject to what is stated
above:

We certify that the Bank has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned
Listing Agreement, to the extent applicable to the Nationalised Banks.

We state that no investor grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month, against the Bank as per the record,
maintained by the Bank

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Bank nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Bank.

For M/S. Nundi & Associates For M/S B N Kedia & Co
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Soumen Nandi) (S.K. Kedia)
Partner (M.No.059828) Partner (M.No.52579)
For M/s K K Ghei & Co For M/s K S Ramakrishna & Co
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(K.K. Ghei) (S. Adinarayana)
Partner (M.No.12250) Partner (M.No.80976)
For M/s Raman Associate For M/s. Raju & Prasad
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(G. Vasudevan) (S. Ranganathan)
Partner (M.No.20739) Partner (M.No. 22738)

PLACE: HYDERABAD
DATE: 29.04.2010
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31.03.2010 @t stwenm §% gew v BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31.03.2010
(8. 000 # Rs in ‘000s)

feraur  Particulars ST . 31.03.2010 =t 31.03.2009 =t
Schedule No. As on 31.03.2010 As on 31.03.2009
faferi @ @@ SOURCE OF FUNDS
g CAPITAL 1 4,850,000 4,850,000
yRfafEt o) sfem RESERVES & SURPLUS 2 39,250,435 31,619,934
smritsEt DEPOSITS 3 776,882,076 593,900,196
3R BORROWINGS 4 58,524,426 33,512,347
o e @ geaw OTHER LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS 5 23,917,086 20,809,599
za TOTAL 903,424,023 684,692,076
fafermt @ fafiem APPLICATION OF FUNDS
it ASSETS
e T9 Raw o 9% & 9w CASH AND BALANCES WITH RBI 6 66,986,980 48,533,389
¥ 7 9 SR T @ o g ® u & BALANCES WITH
BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE 7 44,689,587 4,341,626
frer INVESTMENTS 8 208,809,986 169,111,120
aim ADVANCES 9 561,135,072 441,392,597
o enfiar FIXED ASSETS 10 3,556,567 3,352,951
o et OTHER ASSETS 11 18,245,831 17,960,393
za TOTAL 903,424,023 684,692,076
o sgad CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 12 395,452,322 312,613,365
et % foe fa@ BILLS FOR COLLECTION 44,792,185 45,865,416
Teeaqut wan it SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 17
@ w femfimt NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 18

oI G STggaal WEl o SN o ¥, |9 faeie @ surd A % eER

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of Balance Sheet. As per our report of even date.

AR TE LN s e Tq =
e 9 g8y R PRUTH EH BRSS9
REEIED fu ifvama
mefereeT 9. gpa & Hgga<T 41 Tg THHUH el J§9%h
B eIeT T BEIGR| I R qR a9 Ta dEgEr ST arged gid
% TGIEA 9 HEl 99UH HEUD Tl ISEh
Fa SEl TEIAUER F N U9 FfeAn uue FHu Fd & F °Z QU HU
TG WD TG AETHIR TG WD
TH 3 T - 309090 3 T % R o - 001652 ws % R o° - 00134 ww
(A =) (Ta & iz (®® =)
qEER (T 9.059828) IEER (T 9.52579) IEER (¥ 9.12250)
Fd & TH IEFHVT TUS Hu1 g YA TEIaued Fd I TUE JATE
G DR ST TR TG DR
TE AR TH - 02888 wa T % AR uq - 02910 ws % AR TF - 003475 wa
(Ta e AR (& amgEa) (Ta <)
IEER (7 §.80976) FEER (T 9.20739) FEER (T 9.22738)
N : ¥EIEE

fotie ¢ 29.04.2010
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31.03.2010 @ g a¥ & fow @ g & @ar PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2010
(=. 000 & Rs in ‘000s)

S | 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
faawor Particulars Schedule No B FAE Y B FUw as
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
s INCOME
#ffeiq =1 INTEREST EARNED 13 63,728,657 53,746,168
&= a9 OTHER INCOME 14 9,646,200 7,653,824
Fa TOTAL 73,374,857 61,399,992
=im EXPENDITURE
=g fean T &= INTEREST EXPENDED 15 41,781,287 37,477,120
yfvamm @@ OPERATING EXPENSES 16 13,495,350 11,042,578
WO 3Y STehEd o
PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES 7,639,738 6,349,782
Fa TOTAL 62,916,375 54,869,480
@ @11 NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10,458,482 6,530,512
Fa TOTAL 73,374,857 61,399,992
Frt @mn @ @ PROFIT BROUGHT FORWARD 1,529,440 768,344
Zd
TOTAL 11,987,922 7,298,856
fafaem APPROPRIATIONS
Tifafers TRt & siw Transfer to Statutory Reserve 2,620,000 1,634,000
ot gwfafedt @ siww Transfer to Capital Reserve 933,600 1,082,000
IO 9 9 Rt @ siaew Transfer to Revenue & Other Reserves 3,000,000 0
fasty grferht A siewor Transfer to Special Reserve 600,000 500,000
et @mar Proposed Dividend 2,425,000 2,182,500
it W @2 Tax on Dividend 402,762 370,916
q@ U @& o s T 9w Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 2,006,560 1,529,440
Fa TOTAL 11,987,922 7,298,856
gfq SR 3 Earning per share (Basic and diluted) Rs. 21.56 13.46
T el Sgradl oEl % S O &, a9 foFih Bl gARl RUIE % SAR
R.S. Reddy Anil Girotra A.A. Taj
Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director Executive Director
Directors P. Srinivas
Madhulika P. Sukul  B.Maheshwaran  V.H. Ramakrishnan General Manager
Prem Prakash Pareek Shaibal Gupta Rajib Sekhar Sahoo T.V.S. Chandrasekhar G. Vasudeva Murty
K. Raghuraman Deputy General Manager Asst. General Manager
For NUNDI & ASSOCIATES For B.N. KEDIA & CO. For K.K.GHEI & CO
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN-309090E FRN-001652N FRN-001342N
(Soumen Nandi) (S.K. Kedia) (K K Ghei)
Partner (M.No.059828) Partner (M. No. 52579) Partner (M.No. 12250)
For K.S.RAMAKRISHNA & CO For RAMAN ASSOCIATE For RAJU & PRASAD
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN-02888S FRN-02910S FRN-003475S
(S Adinarayana) (G. Vasudevan) (S.Ranganathan)
Partner (M No. 80976) Partner (M. No.20739) Partner (M. No.22738)

Place : Hyderabad
Date :29.04.2010
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31 = 2010 @t gasw= SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2010

(& 000 # Rs in ‘000s)

ferazor  Particulars

31.03.2010 =
Year Ended 31.03.2010

31.03.2009 =
Year Ended 31.03.2009

srggdt SCHEDULE-1:: g CAPITAL
[ e 9ot AUTHORISED CAPITAL
300,00,00,000 . 10 & Y 3faet SaR
300,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
(150,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10- each in the previous year)
I1. fifir, offrec, gems T iR waw gt
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED CALLED UP AND PAID UP
% WaER § w@iba 3 5. 10 % 25,00,00,000 fFer 5. 48,50,00,000
%, 10 &y e Y T
48,50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each
(Including 25,00,00,000 Equity Shares held by Central Government).
FA Hgﬁ'rﬁ TOTAL SCHEDULE - 1
arggdt SCHEDULE- 2 : gwfdft siw sifas RESERVES AND SURPLUS
[. mifafere arfafeat STATUTORY RESERVE
i@ 9% OPENING BALANCE
ay & & aikge ADDITION DURING THE YEAR
F7 TOTAL - |
I1. ¥t yrfifrat CAPITAL RESERVE
iY@ 9% OPENING BALANCE
ay & & ueas | @ ADDITION DURING THE YEAR
Fa TOTAL - II
II1. =R Sifrm SHARE PREMIUM
g TOTAL - III
IV. 7w/ wrfafeai REVENUE RESERVE
i 9w OPENING BALANCE
T % x urkas ADDITION DURING THE YEAR
TeTEd : FEEN Less: Adjustments
3w TOTAL - IV
V. fagw smferdt SPECIAL RESERVE UJS 36(1)(viii) OF IT ACT
gt 9w OPENING BALANCE
ay & & ukas ADDITION DURING THE YEAR
T : Heraat Less: Deductions
F7 TOTAL - V
VI. w19 @ &7 @ & 9w BALANCE IN PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
FA Hgﬁ'rﬁ TOTAL SCHEDULE - 2

30,000,000 15,000,000
4,850,000 4,850,000
4,850,000 4,850,000
11,110,778 9,476,778
2,620,000 1,634,000

13,730,778 11,110,778
2457971 1,375,971

933,600 1,082,000
3,391,571 2457971
6,300,000 6,300,000
6,300,000 6,300,000
8,281,745 8,281,796
3,000,000 0

219 51

11,281,526 8,281,745
1,440,000 940,000

600,000 500,000

0 0
2,040,000 1,440,000
2,006,560 1,529,440
39,250,435 31,619,934
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31.03.2010 @t a=em 8% gaw v SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31.03.2010
(=. 000 & Rs in ‘000s)
faa=or  Particulars 31.03.2010 = 31.03.2009 =
Year Ended 31.03.2010  Year Ended 31.03.2009

srggdt SCHEDULE- 3 :: sm¢ DEPOSITS
[-A =fr s@ DEMAND DEPOSITS

i) ¥ & FROM BANKS 1,030,693 997,981
ii) s/ & FROM OTHERS 66,431,836 51,158,559
Fa TOTAL 67,462,529 52,156,540
I-B @ &% 5w wivE SAVING BANK DEPOSITS

i) i # FROM BANKS 0 0
ii) a=i & FROM OTHERS 161,180,814 134,371,763
Fa TOTAL 161,180,814 134,377,763
[-C wmafy s vt TERM DEPOSITS

i) i # FROM BANKS 2,293,610 887,053
ii) 3= & FROM OTHERS 545,945,123 406,478,840
Fa TOTAL 548,238,733 407,365,893
Fa TOTAL 776,882,076 593,900,196
[I-A wra @ smenst & smmd DEPOSITS OF BRANCHES IN INDIA 776,382,076 593,900,196
[I-B wra % i smanati & sme DEPOSITS OF BRANCHES OUTSIDE INDIA 0 0
Fa sggat TOTAL SCHEDULE - 3 776,882,076 593,900,196

gt SCHEDULE - 4 :: sar BORROWINGS
[. w=@ & sk BORROWINGS IN INDIA

i) Wi fd §  FROM RESERVE BANK OF INDIA 0 0
ii) 3= §& FROM OTHER BANKS 57 872
ifi) o #&n &R wit  OTHER INSTITUTIONS AND AGENCIES 17,528,056 8,950,703
iv) o #=m  SUBORDINATED DEBTS

a) 9.70% 87 wimt & awe  9.70% 87 Months Bonds 0 0
b) 7.75% 87 wéwt % awe  7.75% 87 Months Bonds 0 1,400,000
¢) 7.25% 111 w@=t & awe  7.25% 111 Months Bonds 2,000,000 2,000,000
d) 9.15% 124 =it % awe  9.15% 124 Months Bonds 7,000,000 7,000,000
e) 11.003% 120 w2t % awz 11.00% 120 Months Bonds 6,000,000 6,000,000
f) 8.55% 120 wéi & awe  8.55% 120 Months Bonds 3,200,000 0
g) TEE e F7w awe [nnovative Perpetual Debt Bonds 2,000,000 2,000,000
h) st 11 &R awe Upper Tier 11 Bonds 10,000,000 2,000,000
31 wie SUB-TOTAL(, i, i, iv) 47,728,113 29,351,575
II. wRa % aex 39k BORROWINGS OUTSIDE INDIA 10,796,313 4,160,772
g« gt TOTAL SCHEDULE - 4 58,524,426 33,512,347
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31.03.2010 % s §% gew ™ SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31.03.2010

(=. 000 & Rs in ‘000s)

faazor  Particulars 31.03.2010 =t
Year Ended 31.03.2010

31.03.2009 @
Year Ended 31.03.2009

st SCHEDULE - 5 :: 1 e e wmaem
OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

I. 27 fs@ BILLS PAYABLE 9,086,660 8,475,752
1. 3 @ gaane (Few) INTER OFFICE ADJUSTMENTS (NET) 0 0
I1I. sufuq = INTEREST ACCRUED 1,821,233 1,956,576
IV. a& oferi % i sl Jraem

CONTINGENT PROVISIONS AGAINST STANDARD ASSETS 2,725,341 1,933,406
V. &= OTHERS (waum % @ Including Provisions) 10,283,852 8,443,865
%@ TOTAL SCHEDULE - 5 23,917,086 20809599
st SCHEDULE - 6 :: 7 e ferd & # 9

CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

[. 7z CASH IN HAND (fadsht &%t e afeq Including Foreign Currency Notes) 4,299,906 4,359,194
1. e o §% & @i 9w BALANCE WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

i) o @l § IN CURRENT ACCOUNTS 62,687,074 44,174,195
ii) 3= @ % IN OTHER ACCOUNTS 0 0
Fa sgga TOTAL SCHEDULE - 6 66,986,980 48,533,389
arggdt SCHEDULE - 7 :: &t # §iw Si¥ A qen % qE W 90 o7

BALANCES WITH BANKS & MONEY AT CALL & SHORT NOTICE

[. 7=a & IN INDIA

i) §& & 9w BALANCES WITH BANKS

T a) arg @l § IN CURRENT ACCOUNTS 1,261,585 1,871,001
41 b) = @t & IN OTHER ACCOUNTS 2,076,064 76,130
@ TOTAL 3,337,649 1,947,131
ii) 5T 3R o e W @ e MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE

T a) ¥ % 1 WITH BANKS 39,975,864 0
& b) o genst % 7@ WITH OTHER INSTITUTIONS 0 0
Fa TOTAL 39,975,864 0
Fa TOTAL - 43,313,513 1,947,131
II. wa % sz OUTSIDE INDIA

i) arg @it & IN CURRENT ACCOUNTS 797,117 1,219,030
ii) &= s/ @i § IN OTHER DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS 578,957 1,175,465
iii) w1 #i] o gem  y@ & MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE 0 0
F TOTAL - II 1,376,074 2,394,495
Fa sggat TOTAL SCHEDULE - 7 44,689,587 4,341,626
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31 == 2010 = gemaa SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2010
(& 000 # Rs in ‘000s)

faa=or  Particulars 31.03.2010 =t 31.03.2009 @
Year Ended 31.03.2010  Year Ended 31.03.2009

gt SCHEDULE - 8 :: fast INVESTMENTS
[ 7@ & frar INVESTMENTS IN INDIA

i) T wiagfedt GOVERNMENT SECURITIES 197,435,330 152,150,333
ii) & erHifea grogfoat OTHER APPROVED SECURITIES 374,641 964,036
iii) sx SHARES 1,064,565 1,655,070
iv) fe8@X @R duma DEBENTURES AND BONDS 5,816,122 9,893,979
V) ST SR (3 qgE e

SUBSIDIARIES AND/OR JOINT VENTURES 977,082 93,082
Vi) o (RO e, SROTEEITE, HHIEW T0X d 3eM o)

OTHERS (IDBI Deposits, I[VPs, Units Mutual Funds etc.) 3,142,246 4,354,620
ga TOTAL - [ 208,809,986 169,111,120
Il #a & frasr INVESTMENTS OUTSIDE INDIA 0 0
7w TOTAL - II 0 0
Fa st GRAND TOTAL (I and IT) 208,809,986 169,111,120
weba A GROSS INVESTMENTS 209,061,023 171,027,724
et LESS: #wg DEPRECIATION 251,037 1,916,604
g st TOTAL SCHEDULE - 8 208,809,986 169,111,120
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31 =/ 2010 @1 gasw= SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2010

(& 000 # Rs in ‘000s)

faa=or  Particulars 31.03.2010 = 31.03.2009 =
Year Ended 31.03.2010  Year Ended 31.03.2009
gt SCHEDULE - 9 :: sim ADVANCES
[-A. %7 f63 79 &R T T few BILLS PURCHASED AND DISCOUNTED 14,764,440 12,084,009
[-B e TuR, SeaRg:e X H W gidey w0
CASH CREDITS, OVERDRAFTS AND LOANS REPAYBLE ON DEMAND 295,833,298 249,761,607
[-C. =mafer 7 TERM LOANS 250,537,334 179,546,981
a TOTAL - [ 561,135,072 441,392,597
I-A. e et 1 S ( o @i o oo % 9id %0 i)
SECURED BY TANGIBLE ASSETS (Includes Advances against Book Debts) 453,128,112 317,641,439
[I-B. ¥ | a¥ar yemfoat gwn &t COVERED BY BANK/GOVERNMENT GUARANTEES 26,880,834 32,576,562
[I-C. awfrgw UNSECURED ADVANCES 81,126,126 91,174,596
Za TOTAL - IT 561,135,072 441,392,597
III-A. 91a # &fim ADVANCES IN INDIA
i) e &= PRIORITY SECTOR 199,301,140 159,938,147
ii) &= &3 PUBLIC SECTOR 48,088,177 41,417,983
iii) §& BANKS 2,441 2,835,269
iv) & OTHERS 313,743,314 237,201,198
a TOTAL 561,135,072 441,392,597
[1I-B. 9w % e s ADVANCES OUTSIDE INDIA 0 0
Fa TOTAL - III 561,135,072 441,392,597
Fa siggal TOTAL SCHEDULE - 9 561,135,072 441,392,597
srggt SCHEDULE - 10 :: 3w snftat FIXED ASSETS
A. TR it TANGIBLE ASSETS
[. aftar PREMISES
A W gRi 9w OPENING BALANCE AT COST 478,664 696,207
79 & W =g ADDITION DURING THE YEAR 82,463 9,226
T4 % 9 #9 DEDUCTION DURING THE YEAR 0 0
3w 7 deagd DEPRECIATION TO DATE 21,302 226,769
Tuiq @ s & &t WDV AT THE END OF THE YEAR 539,825 478,664
1. = ammm enfar OTHER FIXED ASSETS
e gty 9w OPENING BALANCE AT COST 2,034,860 5,311,119
T4 & W s ADDTION DURING THE YEAR 946,824 1,143,151
Td % ¥/ F# DEDUTION DURING THE YEAR 44,351 88,839
& @& qeagr@ DEPRECIATION TO DATE 781,939 4,330,571
Tuid @ 39 & &t WDV AT THE END OF THE YEAR 2,155,394 2,034,860
1. 9 #w & swia CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
W aRi 9 OPENING BALANCE AT COST 127,064 182,958
79 & M sig ADDITION DURING THE YEAR 198,816 122,712
79 & TvW & DEDUCTION DURING THE YEAR 145,424 178,605
Tuiq 7& 9@ VALUE AT THE END OF THE YEAR 180,456 127,065
B. amier anfwai INTANGIBLE ASSETS
I. #gx giweaaa COMPUTER SOFTWARE
A gty 9w OPENING BALANCE AT COST 712,362 0
79 & RW g ADDITION DURING THE YEAR 179,811 890,453
T4 % 9 w9 DEDUCTION DURING THE YEAR 0 0
ae & 7@ g [ e DEPRECIATION /| AMORTIZATION TO DATE 211,281 178,091
Tuia @ s & &t WDV AT THE END OF THE YEAR 680,892 712,362
Fa sigga TOTAL SCHEDULE - 10 3,556,567 3,352,951
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31 |t 2010 @1 gemaesr SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2010
(=. 000 & Rs in ‘000s)
faa=or  Particulars 31.03.2010 = 31.03.2009 =
Year Ended 31.03.2010  Year Ended 31.03.2009

argget SCHEDULE - 11 st st OTHER ASSETS

[. &R FEfw gaEew (Few ) INTER OFFICE ADJUSTMENTS (NET) 1,773,278 2,454,589
II. Sufe = INTEREST ACCRUED 4,692,446 4,613,367
II1. ofim &9 & yam &<

ADVANCE TAX PAID/TAX DEDUCTED AT SOURCE (Net of Provision) 6,593,884 5,796,842
IV. ves g @ik = STATIONERY AND STAMPS 64,905 59,025
V. o @2 e DEFERRED TAX ASSET- NET 11,33,100 1,193,100
VI. s=1 OTHERS 3,988,218 3,843,470
Fa sggat TOTAL SCHEDULE - 11 18,245,831 17,960,393

Gla'g%ﬁ SCHEDULE - 12 :: smerie daad CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
[. & % foog ad R 70 & &9 § ®ieR Tl e @

CLAIMS AGAINST BANK NOT ACKNOWLEDGED AS DEBTS 1,463,784 1,470,860
I1. arifyrs &9 & yaer Faar &g S
LIABILITY FOR PARTLY PAID SHARES/INVESTMENTS 0 0
[II. gt giargar CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 62,672 84,796
IV. OPTIONS & DERIVATIVES 5,387,291 5,863,490
V. OUTSTANDING FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS 285,420,123 246,270,767
VL. et @1 R & MRfet
GUARANTEES GIVEN ON BEHALF OF CONSTITUENTS
% a) wra § IN INDIA 71,357,269 38,642,381
@ b) wra & aex OUTSIDE INDIA 1,550,842 1,875,925
VII. =g, geiet T3 o arem
ACCEPTANCES, ENDORSEMENTS AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS 21,729,380 7,161,851
VIII. %%éwar LETTER OF COMFORT 3,838,328 4,873,368
IX. =7 &2 @9 INTEREST RATE SWAP 0 1,500,000
X. femnfem @& g@ad DISPUTED TAX LIABILITY 4,512,000 4,612,300
XI. o 7, T g 3 omenters &9 & 3 &

OTHER ITEMS FOR WHICH BANK IS CONTINGENTLY LIABLE 130,633 257,627
Fa sggat TOTAL SCHEDULE - 12 395,452,322 312,613,365
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31 s 2010 = @i &t % @9 @ OF g o

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010

(=. 000 & Rs in ‘000s)

faa=or Particulars 31.03.2010 =
Year Ended 31.03.2010

31.03.2009%
Year Ended 31.03.2009

srgget SCHEDULE - 13 :: stfi == INTEREST EARNED

[. o [ fewit ™ = | Rawsr INTEREST/DISCOUNT ON ADVANCES/BILLS 51,612,765 42,150,592
II. frastt w am INCOME ON INVESTMENTS 11,883,189 10,989,848
[1I. wRdi a9 & 99 o) o ofaRas Femn W &
INTEREST ON BALANCES WITH RBI
AND OTHER INTER BANK FUNDS 158,293 376,730
IV. s/ s OTHER INCOME 74,410 228,998
g sigget TOTAL SCHEDULE - 13 63,728,657 53,746,168
gt SCHEDULE - 14 :: s sma OTHER INCOME
[. 9N, e @R gamer COMMISSION, EXCHANGE AND BROKERAGE 2,254,084 1,951,104
II. et & fawa w @ PROFIT ON SALE OF INVESTMENTS 3,245,015 2,376,077
III. fast % gfem w® @1 PROFIT ON REDEMPTION OF INVESTMENTS 2,277 (168,564)
IV. g, Wit iR o= ot & fepar W @ faf oFes W @

PROFIT ON SALE OF LAND, BUILDINGS AND OTHER ASSETS 5,471 3,346
V. fafma wes w @ PROFIT ON EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 579,576 525,087
VI. 9Ra ¥ oty [ duEl a/an S ST g o & w9 ¥ s o

INCOME BY WAY OF DIVIDEND ETC. FROM

SUBSIDIARIES /| COMPANIES / JOINT VENTURES IN INDIA 21,389 33,145
VIL. fafaer s/ MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 3,538,388 2,933,629
ETl 3]3‘@ TOTAL SCHEDULE - 14 9,646,200 7,653,824
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31 s 2010 = @i & % @9 @ OF g o
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010

(=. 000 & Rs in ‘000s)

faazor  Particulars 31.03.2010 =t 31.03.2009 =
Year Ended 31.03.2010  Year Ended 31.03.2009

arggat SCHEDULE - 15 :: @ f&an wan @ INTEREST EXPENDED

[. smrifiet w @t INTEREST ON DEPOSITS 38,014,093 34,871,282
Il e Red & | o 9% 38R R @

INTEREST ON RBI/INTER-BANK BORROWINGS 1,340,469 1,210,164
IIl. =@ OTHERS 2,426,725 1,395,674
Fa gt TOTAL SCHEDULE - 15 41,781,287 37,477,120

arggat SCHEDULE - 16 :: witeme @a OPERATING EXPENSES
[. el & e iR I oy e

PAYMENTS TO AND PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES 8,240,821 6,240,607
II. fmn, &R &R Ase RENT, TAXES AND LIGHTING 1,010,255 885,209
[1I 7w i @@ awft PRINTING AND STATIONARY 154,853 149,375
VI. fazmm 3R yar ADVERTISEMENT AND PUBLICITY 67,393 104,987
V. &% & i W geg™ DEPRECIATION ON BANK'S PROPERTY 1,019,965 817,590
VI. frismt @t B, W iR @@

DIRECTORS’ FEES, ALLOWANCES AND EXPENSES 7,801 9,541
VIL. trer st @i e o o (sran e wiee )

AUDITORS’ FEES AND EXPENSES (Including Branch Auditors) 147911 131,516
VIII fafer w9k LAW CHARGES 89,379 45,605
IX. =% 7@, R &R e o

POSTAGE, TELEGRAMS, TELEPHONES ETC. 252,311 231,996
X. WA &R aRew REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 569,997 554,261
XI. gmr INSURANCE 649,537 545,836
XIIL s/ =@ OTHER EXPENDITURE 1,285,127 1,326,055
Fa srggar TOTAL SCHEDULE - 16 13,495,350 11,042,578
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gEE - 17 weeagul o it
1. A= ¢

facia faero, sroen shwfaa 7 eF R, fagomm gftes
IO §T YRUNR® @RI Ud Hfad oMaR W U4 |ifafes
TG ATTEST e iR ART § Sf6T ST § yafea g
% ATER R & ™ R

2. A W BE

%. ARaE Ro7d §% ERT 9 T AFESl & SAR Seih
M Ta FE W = % MR e S .

T, ARy el U =, B9, [&FET, sidhsT Td il 0T
e Tl W s R S ©.

. 9 AW @l & HET J, @ T | e § e
quia f6ar W}, SH @1E, 9% qEad @l & 9y H
faferes =0 #t age % a9 aga # = 0T, o F '
afefea &.

3. ferReft 7=t @

%. ST T R Bl T Ve &I dig U Tt [a=Ea a2l 9
&7 T AT B,

. Aifgwd J& B ATdifed AEd W W IBE {HA AT &
AT B il BN T &0 9% U Hifges wai b1 R
fopan st &, a¥ % ot N yafwa UE difse Ay @ Rafé
W AT [T SR B ST A1 4, T4 " &, AT
IRY H A1 IHE 6T T E H oI Hifsd 7E & MU W
feiRa fegam mar &

. e [T BRR IRY § g % T yatad At
W T B T § ofR gemua iy & o Hifee gl )
A &1 STl §. 39 9BR % IRET B 9RGE et fafma
R F9 (WeTE) b TIIRIB aX % OER WX J&® He &
oid ¥ fR & geaifed 6 a0 §. e fafima avR &
TEBROT WX T fET W AT B BT SR A1 S, S| W
AT &, % B9 W A & ST 8.

T, ToRel arg v qen TR 9E B, VE geEdr B aRE W
JEeid &30 &b AR Kere fbar s §. {6 of, g o= &
TR R G & % STAR Sl Tal BT gaRT Jui fohar
ST R,

T. 9% T I% omuR W o T eRAfea-dfear, dfaar @i fafyr @
yatad a3 W 5 A § wd
AT B AR BN, FANT 32 W) RA 6 o §. 2w
I &b HEY § o B iR dfaar H amra w) e
AT & A1 GigaT % g9e-ud g R qEgdiias SEre %
fu. % T 9% oMuR W dfaaT % FEY | |iaar & oAty
ud qEIfa WX o, @i Y W) i feam o g

. I T F [0 ST @ T O X BER g R
AfewEs B.

4. fas :

%. S & a9 e e ger di Afvr ¥ aifiga fepam e
g

i) aRueerm q@ W@ ™ (TEdTm)

ii) fowht % foq Suersy  (TUwTE)

iil) =Rt @ W (TEewe)

g % 3@ T FA F st aRkueadr 9% 3@ &
IRT F U H W gfoEt o B, @R % e @
T % SR AR % 35399 § I Wrrsfoait ol €. fegar
% T Suwey gioyfaat 3 § <1 Suded a9 o § g

. g9 § Ybe BT b [T MOy Ferad ®: 9rn "
T B ™ E.

i) TR gfagfaat

il) o ergHIea wfrfst

iii) SR

iv) fesR wd sfs

V) SIS O HgE I

Vi) =1

. Y :

ARAE od §% % Arlasl fael ¥ ogER 9@ o @

gfayfaat & qeo T oeR WY R S §.

1) uiRuSEan AT a6 @ T

%. 34 A A @ T g, aRelies @ o ard B B B
fod o 8. afe cifed oo ¥ ot @rIa cifere & @ AW,
TG STate § URented e S §.

. STEIT YTl & AN &b STerer SR Ud Jgad I &
faer g # gu gm @ fuiRka e s & iR vosw
9T &% [T ot F WU f6am ST B,

ii) Tkt & foo Suere ¢

F. TM O &b Sd @ T e SR ¥ fERr siawe A
TR TR W A A § S SR R, TEeied @
T, ARG RoTd S &1 9o T, Tosl Sy STaiaues
i Efean (WEiTsTE) aRT aifvd 9w iR aas 3T A+
Ahe oiR SREfea sERmeN offe e (T smETaTHEn)
¥ Ggad B9 ¥, gEEUT B O R ST IR & W
g &% % artastt eial & oER e S &.

T. B Rl ¥ ¥ (SHE W W) IS F A JE TEEH B
TN JEe {6 A & s SudE HEl W EE %
ST SIE T NG i SU&T B A §. STAT STAT Firgieran
FH T T HAINGT 2 AIhe HIA & a8 [Bal |l THR B
IRET &l B g

iii) =R W@ ™

®. 39 T P MAT BT qoOT JAD FEM H ST § THOETASIT
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SCHEDULE 17 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR 2009-10

1. GENERAL:

The financial statements are prepared on historical cost
convention and accrual basis, unless otherwise stated,
by following going concern concept and conform to the
statutory provisions, accounting standards/guidance notes
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
practices prevailing in the banking industry in India.

REVENUE RECOGNITION:

a. Interest on non-performing advances and investments is
recognised as per the norms laid down by Reserve Bank
of India.

b. Interest on overdue bills, commission, exchange,
brokerage and rent on lockers are accounted on
realization.

c. In case of suit filed accounts legal and other expenses
incurred are charged to Profit and Loss account and at
the time of recovery of such expenses the same is
accounted as income.

3. FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS:

a. Income and Expenditure items are recorded at the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

b. Monetary items are reported at weekly average rate. Such
monetary items are reported at closing rates as at balance
sheet date. Exchange differences arising on the reporting
of such monetary items at rates prevailing at the year
end or on the settlement of monetary items at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded,
are recognized as income or expense, as the case may
be.

c. Forward exchange contracts are initially recorded at
exchange rate prevailing at the time of booking of the
contract and reported on the Balance Sheet date also at
original booked rate only. Such forward contracts are
revalued on the basis of FEDAI revaluation rate at the
end of each month and profit or loss on such revaluation
is recognized as income or expenses as the case may
be. Any profit and loss arising on cancellation of a forward
exchange contract is recognized as income or expenditure
as the case may be.

d. Foreign Letters of Credit and Letters of Guarantee are
recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of entering
into such commitment. Outstanding items are restated at
the rate prevailing at the Balance Sheet date.

e. Derivative contracts undertaken on back-to-back basis
or for hedging our own foreign currency exposure are
recorded at the rate prevailing on the date of the contract
and are reported at the closing rates at the Balance Sheet
date. The revenue in respect of these transactions is
recognized for the proportionate period till expiry of the
contract. In respect of contracts done on back to back
basis, the revenue on early termination of the contract is
recognized on termination.
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f. The exchange rates used for this purpose are those
notified by FEDAI.

4. INVESTMENTS:

a) The Investment portfolio of the Bank is classified into the
following three categories:

i) Held to Maturity (HTM)
i) Available for Sale (AFS)
iii) Held for Trading (HFT)

“Held to Maturity” category comprises of securities acquired
with the intention to hold them up to maturity. “Held for Trading”
category comprises securities acquired with the intention of
trading. “Available for Sale” securities are those which are
not classified in either of the above two categories.

b) Investments are classified and shown in Balance Sheet
under the following six heads:

i) Government Securities

if) Other Approved Securities

iii) Shares

iv) Debentures and Bonds

v) Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures
vi) Others.

c). Valuation:

The securities in each classification are valued in accordance
with Reserve Bank of India guidelines on the following basis:-

i) Held to Maturity:

a. Investments classified under this category are stated at
acquisition cost net of amortisation. The excess of
acquisition cost over the face value, if any, is amortised
over the remaining period of maturity.

b. Any diminution, other than temporary in nature, in the
value of investments is determined and provided for, each
investment individually.

ii) Available for Sale:

a. Investments classified under this category are marked to
market on quarterly basis and valued as per Reserve Bank
of India guidelines at the market rates available on the
Balance Sheet date from trades/quotes on the Stock
Exchanges, prices/yields declared by the Fixed Income
Money Market and Derivatives Association of India
(FIMMDA). Unquoted securities are also valued as per
the Reserve Bank of India guidelines.

b. The net depreciation under each of the six heads (Para
4b above) is fully provided for, whereas the net
appreciation, if any, under any of the aforesaid heads is
ignored. The book value of the individual securities does
not undergo any change after marking to market.

iii) Held for Trading:
a) Investments classified under this category are valued at
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market price based on market quotations, prices/yields
declared by FIMMDA at the end of every month.

b) Depreciation is recognized classification wise (see para
4b above) and appreciation, if any is ignored.

c) The book value of the individual securities does not
undergo any change after marking to market.

d) Prudential Norms:

The identification of non performing investments and provision
made thereon is as per Reserve Bank of India guidelines.
Provision requirement in respect of non-performing
investments is not set off against the appreciation of other
performing investments.

e) Profit/ Loss on sale of Investments:

i) Profit or Loss on sale of investments is recognised on the
value dates on the basis of weighted average cost.
Premium on redemption of Debentures/ Bonds is
recognised on the date of redemption.

i) Profit on sale of investments held in “Available for Sale”
and “Held for Trading” categories is recognised in the Profit
and Loss Account.

i) Profit on sale of investments in “Held to Maturity” category
is first taken to the Profit and Loss Account and an
equivalent amount of profit is appropriated to the Capital
Reserve(net of taxes).

iv) Loss on sale of investments in any of the three categories
is recognized in Profit and Loss Account.

f) General

i) Transfer of securities from one category to anotheris done
at lower of acquisition cost/book value/market value on
the date of transfer. Depreciation, if any, on such transfer
is provided for and the book value of the security is
changed accordingly.

i) Upfront fee / Incentives on subscription of securities in
HTM /AFS / HFT categories are reduced from the cost of
securities. The incentives received after sale of securities
is credited to Profit and Loss account.

iii) Brokerage, Commission and Stamp Duty paid in
connection with the acquisition of securities are treated
as revenue expenditure.

5. a). INTEREST RATE SWAPS: (Hedging)

i) Income on continuing swap transactions is recognised
on accrual basis except the swap designated with an asset
or liability that is carried at market value or lower of cost
or market value in the financial statements. In that case,
the swap is marked to market with the resulting gain or
loss recorded as an adjustment to the market value or
designated asset or liability.

ii) Gains/ losses on terminated swap transactions are
recognised when the offsetting gain or loss is recognised
on the designated asset or liability. Thus, the gain or loss
on the terminated swap is deferred and recognised over
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the shorter of the remaining contractual life of the swap or
the remaining life of the asset/liability.

b). INTEREST RATE SWAPS (Trading)

i) Trading swaps are marked to market with changes
recorded in the Profit and Loss account;

ii) Income and expenses relating to these swaps are
recognized on the settlement date;

ii) Fee is recognized as income or expense as the case may
be;

iv) Gains or losses on the termination of the swaps are
recorded immediately as income or expenses on such
termination.

6. ADVANCES

a) Advances are stated in accordance with the Prudential
Norms issued by Reserve Bank of India:

i. Advances are classified into standard, sub-standard,
doubtful and loss assets borrower-wise.

ii. Provisions are made for non performing assets and
iii. General provision is made for standard assets.

b) Advances stated in the Balance Sheet are net of provisions
made for:

(i) Non performing assets
(ii) Additional Provision made for Non-performing Assets

c) Partial recoveries in Non Performing Assets are
apportioned first towards charges and interest, thereafter
towards principal.

7. FIXED ASSETS

a) Premises and other Fixed Assets are stated at historical
cost net of depreciation.

b) DEPRECIATION

(i) Depreciation on Premises and on other Fixed Assets
except Computers and ATM’s is provided on written down
value method at the rates specified in Schedule XIV of
the Companies Act 1956.

(i) The depreciation on Computers and other Peripherals is
provided @ of 33.33 % on straight line method.

(iii) Depreciation on ATM s is provided on straight line method
based on the estimated useful life of seven years.

c) AMORTIZATION

i) Premium paid for acquisition of leasehold land for a period
less than 60 years and cost of the buildings constructed
thereon is amortized over the period of lease.

ii) The cost of Software is treated as intangible asset and
the same is amortized over its estimated useful life.
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8. EMPLOYEES BENEFITS
(a) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits such as short-term
compensated absences are recognized as an expense on
an undiscounted basis in the Profit &Loss Account of the year
in which the related service is rendered.

(b) Post Employment Benefits
i) Defined Contribution Plans:

Defined Contribution Plans such as Provident Fund are
recognized as an expense and charged to the Profit &Loss
Account

i) Defined Benefit Plans
(a) Gratuity:

The employees Gratuity Fund Scheme is funded by the
Bank and managed by LIC through a separate trust. The
present value of the Bank’s obligations under Gratuity is
recognized on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at
the year end and the fair value of the Plan assets is
reduced from the gross obligations to recognize the
obligation on a net basis.

(b) Pension:

The employees Pension Fund is funded by the Bank and
is managed by a separate trust. The present value of the
Bank’s obligations under Pension is recognized on the
basis of an actuarial valuation as at the year end and the
fair value of the Plan assets is reduced from the gross
obligations to recognize the obligation in this case on a
net basis.

(c) Other Long Term Benefits:

Other Long Term Benefits such as Leave Encashment,
Sick Leave, LFC/LTC availment/encashment, Employee
Incentive Scheme, Ex-gratia to retirees and Relocation
of expenses on exit are recognized on the basis of
actuarial valuation made as at the end of the year.
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PROVISION FOR TAXATION:

Provision for taxes is made on the basis of estimated tax
liability.

In compliance with AS-22 Accounting for Taxes on Income,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
accounting for deferred income tax is made after
considering tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted as of balance sheet date.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date
whether there is any indication that an asset is impaired.
If any such indication exists an estimate of the recoverable
amount is made and impairment loss, if any is provided.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Past events leading to, possible or present obligation is
treated as contingent liabilities. Provision is recognised
in the case of present obligation where the reliable
estimate can be made and where there are probable out
flow of resources embodying forgoing of economic
benefits to settle the obligation.

NET PROFIT

The Net Profit disclosed in the Profit and Loss Account is
after:-

(a) Provision for depreciation on Investments.
(b) Provision for Taxation.
(c) Provision on loan losses as per prudential guidelines.

(d) Provision for non-performing investments as per
Reserve Bank of India guidelines.

(e) Other usual and necessary provisions.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 29.04.2010
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Schedule 18 - Notes on Accounts

1. The financial results have been prepared following the
prevailing accounting policies and practices in the annual
financial statements for the year ended 31t March 2010.

2. Legal formalities with regard to the registration of property
in favour of Bank which are yet to be completed in respect
of one property valued at Rs. 0.06 crores.

3. (a) (i) In terms of Agriculture Debt Waiver & Debt Relief
Scheme 2008, hereinafter referred as the ‘Scheme’,
framed by the Government of India, with regard to the
amount eligible for waiver in respect of small and marginal
farmers, the Bank has identified and transferred a sum of
Rs.746.19 Crores, as certified by Central Statutory
Auditors, under the head advances as “Amount receivable
from Government of India under Agriculture Debt Waiver
and Relief Scheme 2008” out of which Rs. 484.08 Crores
has been received.

(i) In terms of the above scheme with regard to the amount
of relief to other farmers an amount of Rs. 157.68 Crores
is identified as claim receivable, subject to certification
by the Central Statutory Auditors.

(b) Provision held in respect of NPA accounts for which the
waiver/ relief has been granted amounting to Rs. 3.18
Crores have been retained as NPA provision.

(c) Out of the floating provision of Rs.49.85 Crores
outstanding as on 31-03-2009 the bank, in accordance
with the RBI circular No DBOD.NO.BP.BC.48/21.04.048
/2008/09 dated 22™ September, 2008 has utilized a sum
of Rs 11.79 crores during the quarter ended 30.06.2009
towards interest from 01.04.09 to 30.06.09. Interest has
been charged on eligible amount for the period from
01.07.2009 to 31.03.2010 and recognized as income in
terms of RBI Circular No. DBOD No: BP:BC 35/21.04.048/
2009-10 dated 31.08.2009.

(d) Pursuant to the RBI circular No DBOD.NO.BP.BC.26/
21.04.048 /2008/09 dated 30" July 2008, the bank has
offered further concessions and made adequate provision
of Rs.20.00 Crores inclusive of loss in present value (PV)
terms for staggered repayment by “other farmer” under
the scheme. The scheme has been extended up to
30.06.2010.

(e) In terms of RBI circular no. DBOD no. BP.BC 78/
21.04.048 /2008-09 dated 11" November 2008, interest
amounting to Rs.13.48 crores for the period from
01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010 is recognized in respect of
claims receivable from Government of India under the
scheme.

(f) Consequent to the implementation of Agricultural Debt
Reschedulement Scheme 2004, the un-recovered interest
on Non Performing Assets (NPA) amounting to Rs. 3.64
Crores was kept under the head Interest Suspense
Account to be adjusted from the recoveries from the
borrowers.

4. a) Provision for Income Tax has been made on the basis
of the applicable laws and various judicial
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pronouncements in this regard. In view of judicial

b)

pronouncements, no provision is considered necessary
towards disputed tax demand of Rs. 451.20 crores (Rs.
461.23 crores) in similar cases.

Deferred Income Tax: Pursuant to Accounting Standard—
22 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India in respect of “Accounting for taxes on Income”,
necessary deferred tax liability and deferred tax assets
have been recognized. The major components as on
31.03.2010 are as follows:-

(Amount in crores)

Timing Difference 31.03.2010 31.03.2009

DTA DTL DTA DTL

(1) Provision created 7012 — 47.72 —

in books but not
claimed in Income Tax

(2)Excess/Less — 19.07 — | 11.07
Depreciation claimed

as per |.T.Act

(3)DTL on Special — 69.34 — | 48.94

Reserve created u/s
36(1) (viii) of .T.Act

(4) DTA on transitional

provision as per AS-15(R) | 131.60 131.60 —
Total 201.72 88.41 | 179.32 | 60.01

5. Investments include Rs. 8.26 crores (Rs.8.26crores)

invested in Regional Rural Banks as Share Capital
Deposit pursuant to a letter by Government of India.

A) Floating Provision of Rs. 38.06 crores (Rs.49.85
crores), is held as at 31.03.2010 in respect of gross non
performing advances over and above the minimum
prescribed as per RBI guidelines with a view to strengthen
the financial position of the Bank.

B) Consequent to RBI Circular No. 2008-09/418 dt. March
25, 2009, the bank has modified the policy of prudential
treatment of different types of provisions in respect of loan
portfolio. Additional provisions are made wherever, in the
opinion of the Bank, the value of security has deteriorated
or likely to deteriorate. Such additional provision
aggregating to Rs.238.88 crores (Rs.61.07 crores) has
been made during the year 2009-10.

C) The above floating and additional provision is netted
off from advances.

In respect of 1437 individual housing loan accounts
securitized during the year 2003-04 amounting to
Rs.50.36 crores and transferred to a Special Purpose
Vehicle (SPV) Trust pursuant to the Deed of Assignment
executed with National Housing Bank (NHB).The NHB
has issued Pass Through Certificates (PTCs) of said
amount, out of which part was subscribed by various
Banks/Financial Institutions as PTC Class-A investments
and the balance was subscribed by the bank as PTC Class
B. Such PTC class B investment with a book value of
Rs.3.20 crores (Rs.3.95 crores) has been shown as a
part of investments by the bank at the year end.
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31.03.2009 @t qa@ %7 a9 s 99 5. 11.08 #3is & 10.1. g=h
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(iii) W & FaAw w1 A g 20,881.00 16911.11
ARA & R *0.00 0.00
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The present outstanding balance of the pool as on  10.1. Capital
31.03.2010 is Rs.11.08 crores (Rs.15.03 crores). The

It 2009-10 2008-09
bank is acting as service provider to the SPV Trust. An il
. A. BASEL-| | BASEL-Il | BASEL - | BASEL-I
amount of Rs.0.68 (0.68) crore has been provided by ) CRAR (%) 13.30 13.93 1237 1320
the bank as cash collateral in addition to Investment in i CRAR-?I'ierI : - : :
PTC- B as Credit enhancement. o
capital (%) 7.81 8.18 8.11 8.67
8. The Bank has received Rs.12.55 cores as fee from i) CRAR - Tier |
Bancassurance — Life and Rs.12.42 crores as fee from  Capital (%) 5.49 5.75 4.26 4.55
Bancassurance — Non Life. iv) Percentage of the
9. Bank has completed the process of implementation of séhoei/r:rhnc:]d;rr:? ;)ffltnh; a 51.55 51.55
Core Banking Solution during the year 2008-09. The v) Amount raised b : :
related cost of software aggregating to Rs. 89.04 crores issue of IPDI (Rs inycrore) i 200
is being amortized over the estimated useful life of 5 years i) Amount raised b
out of which an amount of Rs.53.43 crores is outstanding . ¢ oy
as on 31.03.2010 issue of Upper Tier Il
o : Instruments /
Subordinated
Debt (Rs in crore) 1120 600
10.2 Investments
(Rupees in crores)
ltems 2009-10 2008-09
(1) Value of Investments
(i) Gross Value of Investments
In India 20,906.10 17,102.77
Outside India *0.00 *0.00
(ii) Provisions for Depreciation
In India 25.10 191.66
Outside India 0.00 0.00
(iii) Net Value of Investments
In India 20,881.00 16,911.11
Outside India *0.00 *0.00
(2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments.
i) Opening balance 191.66 89.72
ii) Add: Provisions made during the year - 101.94
iii) Less: Write-off/(write-back) of excess provisions during the year 166.56 0.00
iv) Closing balance 25.10 191.66
(3) Movement in provision for Non-performing Assets-Investments
i) Opening balance 0.53 0.48
i) Add: Provisions made during the year - 0.05
ii) Less: Write-off/(write-back) of excess provisions during the year 0.06 -
iv) Less: Recovery 0.04 -
v) Closing balance 0.43 0.53

* Includes the following

a) investments in 21,141(21141) shares (Class C Series — |) of Visa Inc valued at Re.1(Re.1)

b) Investments in 162 (162) shares (class B) of Master card Inc valued at Re. 1(Re.1)

c) Investments in 8 (8) shares of SWIFT valued at Re 1 (1)

Shares of Visa Inc and Master Card Inc are allotted in kind, free of cost, as an incentive in view of the past business relation
with these entities.

Share of SWIFT includes shares allotted in initial membership and shares accrued on re-allocation. The reallocation of share
is based on bank’s utilization of SWIFT’s network based financial services.
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10.2.1. Rt @ (T9a FE )
ferawo T4 F IR ad F R ad F IR 31 =t 2009
AT THET SATIFaw T st T H
At & ofia e Mg SR 150.00 2400.00 328.14 0.00
(262.50) (525) (6.47) (0.00)
fead et % it it wi wimfwEt 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(120.00) (1995.00) (136.60) (0.00)

10.2.2. iR TauasR R qewifaat
i) IR TaUEsR TR 1 39T FHAGH
(erfiepRor, qeae W St g1 aer |faur & aftaes & e awey aRus-feaeyet ames % 1.2.10 % 3 % oER)

(¥7a #= H)
wiw | Fri (39eR) R TEAE waHE R Soft & Fm T EE I
F A fogfort &t AEn | sfagfo A | i # A
1 s &d & Iud 40.44 15.52 — — —
2 faia g 182.97 152.58 24.05 24.05 24.05
3 EEa 255.46 255.46 — — —
4 TIZIe HIARE 524.16 478.29 e — —
5 SE/Egd 3EH 102.71 102.71 — — —
6 = - - - - -
7 FHaA 1105.74 1004.56 24.05 24.05 24.05
8 | #9 #: WM % Ui wawE|  5.73
9 Q" 1,100.01 1004.56 24.05 24.05 24.05
B 3 % Siaid P agd gerds B ogadl 8 Ay % freftaa Soft anfe €
(&.®2E H)
fera=on e 7
2009-10 2008-09

TR 106.46 165.51

fsder wa a1 581.61 989.40

ST G T 97.71 9.31

3= 314.23 435.46

Casl 1100.01 1599.68
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(Rupees in crores)

Particulars Minimum Maximum Daily Average Balance
outstanding outstanding outstanding As on 31st March
during the year during the year during the year 2010
Securities sold under Repos 150.00 2400.00 328.14 0.00
(262.50) (525) 6.47) (0.00)
Securities purchased under 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Reverse Repos (120.00) (1995.00) (136.60) (0.00)

10.2.2. Non S.L.R. Investment Portfolio
i) Issuer composition of Non SLR Investments

(Vide para of 1.2.10 Master Circular-Prudential norms for classification, valuation and operation of investment portfolio by
Banks)

(Rupees in crores)

Sr. Issuer Amount Extent of Extent of ‘below Extent of Extent of

No. Private Investment Grade ‘unrated’ ‘unlisted’
Placement Securities’ securities securities

(1) 2 (3) (4) () (6) (7)

1 PSUs 40.44 15.52 —_ —_ —_

2 Fls 182.97 152.58 24.05 24.05 24.05

3 Banks 255.46 255.46 — —_— —_

4 Private Corporates 524.16 478.29 — — —

5 Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures| 102.71 102.71 —_ —_ —_

6 Others - - — —_ —_

7 Total 1105.74 1004.56 24.05 24.05 24.05

8 Less: Provision held

towards depreciation 5.73
9 Balance 1,100.01 1004.56 24.05 24.05 24.05

Total under column 3 include the following categories of investments specified in Schedule 8 to the Balance Sheet:

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars Net Value

2009-10 2008-09
Shares 106.46 165.51
Debentures & Bonds 581.61 989.40
Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures 97.71 9.31
Others 314.23 435.46
Total 1100.01 1599.68
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ii) i IR TATASR R (¥ +2i 9)
Taa=ur 2009-10 2008-09
TRTWE o 0.53 0.48
¥ F IR A 0.00 0.05
sraty % SR HH 0.10 —
sifad 9w 0.43 0.53
TN TR FA AT 0.43 0.53

10.2.3. ) ad & <rR™, 9% 3 1251.48 (1116.12) w3 =+t sfasfat #t i & fog suwe (tuow) Soft & aiwaa & fag
(Taréiom) Soft & sifwEY AR/aE q@/aWR 0@ W e fF R v . 77.54 (8.58) e w aRumh qwEm w1 qEa
feram 2.

w) T Avit & sioeta gfaafa w e & wRw g el g (s9) R

10.2.4 s R ¥=% Artesft fagia % sigar . 93.35 3z & * (3. 108.20) # #7 &2 5. 141.42 (163.89) #i= =t @
T Gt aRfewht @ i stafa fan w2

10.3.0 3fatea

10.3.1 amET R} R/ Fa9 TEwifEE H1 A= R @ (=7a w0t H)
g 2009-10 2008-09
@ el w1 e e - 150.00
afY HIR F STIAR HISST Y IO ATEAaT B IR B [O%a & &, ol Sa! A &1 arf - 0.58
WY % T H W % gRT ST Bleiezd - 0.00
WY { BN el T SAREH B BAIBT - 0.27
@Y TG B B T - (0.86)
10.3.2 fFrsh 92 =R = ) R (7@ ®=t H)
g 2009-10 |2008-09
(1) a¥ % IRM (remar) fReft g =R e ) Rafea @ Fwate g il =
(i1) 31.03.2010 @ (femar) fagsht ga1 =R == ) SRAfT &1 Fieds g T ] I

(111) fRefr go1 =R = R SRAfa  (Freqar) & s@en @eate ga e, S osfies gae T8 E Sl =

(iv) frel g1 =R = ) RAfeT  (Fraqar) 1 s R 96 &1 981 § sifea afi,
T GAteE T TRl § T T

146



s
TMiw RdiE ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010 %

ii) Non Performing Non SLR Investments (Rupees in crores)
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Opening Balance 0.53 0.48
Additions during the year - 0.05
Reduction during the period 0.10 —
Closing Balance 0.43 0.53
Total provisions held 0.43 0.53

10.2.3. a) During the year, the Bank has shifted securities aggregating to Rs. 1251.48 (1116.12) crores from “Available for
Sale” (AFS) category and RS.136.85(0) crores to “Held to Maturity “ (HTM) category at lower of acquisition cost/book value
/market value and the resultant depreciation of Rs. 77.54 (8.58) crores has been provided.

b) Loss incurred during the year on account of sale of security under HTM category is Nil (Nil).

10.2.4 Gross amount of Rs.141.42 (163.89) crores, being profit on sale of securities in HTM category is appropriated, net of
tax Rs.93.35 crores (Rs.108.20 crores), to capital reserve account as per RBI guidelines.

10.3.0 Derivatives

10.3.1 Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swaps of Investment portfolio
(Rupees in crores)

Items 2009-10 2008-09
The notional principal of swap agreements - 150.00
Losses which would be incurred if counter parties failed to fulfill

their obligations under the agreements - 0.58
Collateral required by the bank upon entering into swaps - 0.00
Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps - 0.27
The fair value of the swap book - (0.86)

10.3.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives:
(Rupees in crores)

S.No. Particulars Amount
2009-10 2008-09
(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
undertaken during the year (instrument-wise) NIL NIL

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
outstanding as on 31st March 2010 (instrument-wise) NIL NIL

(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
outstanding and not “highly effective” (instrument-wise) NIL NIL

(iv) | Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
outstanding and not “highly effective” (instrument-wise) NIL NIL
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10.3.3. AT # ANfEw THRad=R H1 JhEI0T

F) TONTH ThReIHIT:

. RAfEa 3w & Fifew F ydem & fU G3a ud |

i) =9 ) @Y (FEARTE) W ARG {5 &6 & AnmEal
gl td BRaE 32 oniiNe (THETRY) % STaRe § HRAR
RoTel ¥ T =T &X @ % fog S Td gfhar, wsel 9
TFIUSR T, STU®RT & TEe, T i, JelieT &
fu Afy, TEUEST SorEd, ®e @E, RO e @
srgArEe fear & wd 5. 1500 #E &1 Hu Faifa fear @
GRn 78 ¥ fw 5. 500 wO= @ S ). ¥F ¥ 3
ARTEST RISl & T80 HHad & S SRafed S B
AT TR R

ii) % ¥ fav= yeR % HE @Y § wRe RAfeT W F
TG BT STHEA T T faf= YR % &7 a8 @ 5
e Ol TEhl 3T Y FON IR Wesd » a9 9% T %
SR TR Hae B b [T WIRSH TR G99 &9 7 gidater
TEl & 5% B AT 9% 2 T AR TR 97 GRAS TFRuT
i/ % fie ¥@ wEwt Bt W At JIET =
S9N BT T2 B & [T b Bl WA Bl 8.

iii) A SR @R A% 2 Ahe oo W) Al Bl WY S
£ ol O TR AT W US YHR WEwN A S
&

iv) ¥% 2 ¥% oTUR W o1 AR o fagel gar ToeueR &
ghom & foe o T SRafea st @ dfaar &1 arE B
faemm @ R Y T T & ofR gemue A @i aforT
& R RO fmar W B, 39 ool ¥ Gt Ier &
Freri=ur |faar @ g o stwiae sty % fag fear
% 3% 7 3% IRm R 5 T Sfaerstt & g9y § e &
FetRoT Afaer ved qH 6 ST 9R T IR o T &,

@, sifew W # G T wE, e Rete 6 e
R e
¥ SRafcT o ¥ TEU § TH WM B Jeeh B
Y IST W 8. ISR B I S& =9 F [

SR e b1 961 § Siftha B B RATd Gean & & & Td 8%

148

THHT STETD STAE IR FHIEAT B & & T qHE W,
T T I FTerse i IR @, @ % SR g6 B 96
¥ siftrd B, U2 FHE/wd (AfE His &) Fcane o guen
o 1 iy afafa va 91 R i siavTel 9R @ ST E.
SMESRTE ¥ {6 T @rew & faavor @1 Rurd o uifers
YR W Wik BT A o & &.

o e/ o fafenEn ¥ fou i vd /Mt % gve
FI AR @A F W0 e &g T ud ghea
IR STTER % SR TR T GHTET &b TR F & &
% OO BT SO § IEHT TF U B {HAT ST 8. T B
gTat & SaR, o fafr /fafr & gafa @t @ Faes e
?, IR H UREdA & THE Bl ST & [T &% STER IR
W9 gH BT AFIET B AR 8. T THRAS IR qaw7e
THEA &, BT WG & U @Y P Terie ban o 2.
He TG AHET, TerTe STfempR, Ul TReRT 3o Meiid
£
3 T A A ¥ F & forw aven i, o, St o
ferde A tgam, IF@ GlEE F qAEA, TEaHEI,
HUTY T 01 A e ¢

faega S ifd vd g i O T AT TR S
T e 1 O L s o e e £ M 103 E e E g 2| S
foren =T &, 3% Rram et At /Amiieese s/t
H IR % fou w feor m R iR aeR 9@ W (A
AT § BH T AR ) 5% % afedi § T 6 T &.
T A H THIGESE SR A1 33aT % SR Jed & G
% B9 H URUTH T 0 S & a1 9 B SR T 16T
ST . T BT THIT U2 @TH AT JIT M &l ol § o7
TAIEESE T T 39T X SAHATST @19 T g1 frefea o
SR 8.

T P GHIT G W AT B I SRR {62 T ofiY
T Pl TlGET B QW STAfe] 1 SR /a1 & W Siie
qe eiia fear s &.

2T W9 & o TIeRYT THR & IB6E HA g IR
F AT T [haT AT 8. &MU Bl JHNT T A&, =3,
§Ic%, TTH IT M &I debled T A1 = % &9 § IBS
fean =T &



10.3.3 Disclosures on risk exposure in derivatives
A) Qualitative Disclosures:

a) Structure and Organization for Management of risk
in derivatives trading:

i) Interms of Reserve Bank of India guidelines on Interest
Rate Swaps (IRS) and Forward Rate Agreements (FRA)
the Bank has approved policies and procedures, counter
party exposure limits, delegation of powers, accounting
policy, policy for valuation, ISDA documentation, cut loss,
reporting etc., for Interest Rate Swaps and fixed a cap of
Rs.1500 crores for interest rate swaps (sub-limit of Rs.
500 crores for Trading Book). Bank has conducted the
derivative operations within the overall framework of these
guidelines.

ii) The Bank has approved policies and procedures, counter
party exposures limits delegation of powers, accounting
policy, ISDA documentation, reporting etc., for undertaking
forex derivatives in various forms of currency swaps &
various types of interest rates swaps not specifically
prohibited by RBI with the corporate borrower customers,
other banks and non-borrower customers to be covered
on back to back basis. Bank’s policy also permits entering
into Plain Vanilla European Style Option to Bank’s
customers for hedging / pricing their forward exposures
on back to back basis, or for hedging foreign currency
exposures.

iii) Mark to Market valuation is sent to customers on monthly
basis and capital charge is provided as per current
exposure method.

iv) Derivative contracts undertaken on back-to-back basis
or for hedging own foreign currency exposure are
recorded at the rate prevailing on the date of the contract
and are reported at the closing rates at the Balance Sheet
date. The revenue in respect of these transactions is
recognized for the proportionate period till the expiry of
the contract. In respect of contracts done on back to back
basis, the revenue on early termination of the contract is
recognized on termination.

b) Scope and nature of risk measurement, risk reporting
and risk monitoring systems:

Bank is availing the services of a consultant in respect of
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the derivative transactions undertaken. The consultant firm

d)

is providing daily mark to market position of all the
outstanding swaps and the Bank is reviewing the same
at periodical intervals. The position of all outstanding
swaps, new swaps entered, swaps exited, Mark to Market
value of swaps etc., is being reviewed by the Bank’s
Investment Committee and the Board at monthly intervals.
Details of transactions undertaken in IRS are also reported
to RBI on a fortnightly basis.

Policies for hedging and / or mitigating and strategies
and processes for monitoring the continuing
effectiveness of hedges / mitigants:

Depending on the market opportunities and as per the
advice of the Consultant, a view on interest rate movement
is taken and acted upon. Though the settlement of swaps
takes place on due date/dates as per the terms of the
swaps, the value monitoring is carried out daily to know
the impact of market changes on Swap Book. When
unfavorable market movements are unidirectional, swaps
are exited cutting loss. Cut loss limits, exit powers,
reviewing authority etc., are prescribed.

Accounting policy for recording the hedge and non-
hedge transactions, recognition of income, premiums
and discounts, valuation of outstanding contracts,
provisioning, collateral and credit risk mitigation:

Detailed accounting policy and valuation policy are
approved by Board. Transactions for hedging purposes
are accounted for on accrual basis except the swap
designated with an asset / liability that is carried at lower
of cost or market value. In that case, the swap is marked
to market, with the resultant gain or loss recorded as an
adjustment to the market value of designated asset or
liability. On termination of swap, gain or loss is recognized
when the offsetting gain or loss is recognized on the
designated asset or liability. Any gain or loss on the
terminated swap was deferred and recognized over the
shorter of the remaining contractual life of the swap or
the remaining life of the asset / liability.

Trading transactions have to be marked to market with
charges recorded in the  income statement. Income,
expenditure, fee, gains or losses on termination of swaps
are all recorded as immediate income or expenses.
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) RS THSHI (BT BT H)
%H ° fereror I SRAfe = W ERaAte
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
1 e (e gw ) 538.74 586.34
%) BT & g 538.74 586.34
@) 2fET % fog 0 0
2 gigiE @ 3w e g Rl (1)
. BT 56.43 82.60
%) iR (+) 71.06 90.12
) e (-) -14.63 -7.52
T. 2T 0 0
%) SR (+) 0 0
@) T (-) 0 0
3 = oiam (2) 109.32 132.76
4 = &¥ H U 9l &1 gunea gae (100*49iE01) 0 0
%) fmT SREfea 0 0
@) T sRafesm 0 0
5 ¥ % IRE 100*4H01 R @ ™ sferbad 9 ~FaH 0 0
%) B W® 0 0
) 2T W 0 0

Rafea S % w0 ¥ B 5. 14.63 s & AE 2 A B AT (PSR WS ¥ F Ay Afed) & i eRafea S ¥ 2
% FR [ ™ §. 7 T S W Haw@ A% Z Awe @9 9 & TEl 8.

ﬁ%&%ﬁmmﬁmﬁ%ﬁwaﬂ%%m%aﬁa 56.43 %= H W% < "He B Rl §. 34 wWeA % fou Faw@ A7 2 Aibe
I &

¥ 2009-10 % faw w34 SRAfea § anfew &

1. wauedr % f@ % @ o & omatue ot @ i w3 Siders/srEeTeR S| B gl war @

2. SESEeTE §% @ % 1Y 9% < 9% HaR BId g THSH SNl fW. & A J u¥ St 16.78 fafva gum SR @ war s
10.4.0 s IoTeR :

10.4.1.1 st o (5. B H)
= 2009-10 2008-09
(i) Teaw sfim @1 fFaw oo 0.17% 0.18%
(i) TAY T AR Fere (Febe)
(@) g 9w 368.14 372.43
(@) =¥ % IrE s 399.90 201.32
(M) T % IRW FH 280.17 205.61
(@) sifcm 9 487.87 368.14
(iii) TTHY F IR Fer
(@) g 9w 79.22 53.70
(@) = % IRE A 16.50 25.52
(M) T ¥ IRW & 0.00 0.00
(@) sifcm 9 95.72 79.22
(iv) TAYU % STaee % [T 9TEe™ B SaR a6
(@) g 9w 288.34 318.03*
(@) = % dRE s 305.21 171.17
(M) T % IRW FH 201.69 200.86
(a) siftm 9w 391.86 288.34*

* TEHI/STRAT B ATl B Seel R AU % HRO 9T a9 B 8BS s a¥ & e JIedaned 6 T §
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B) Quantitative Disclosure (Rupees in Crores)
Sr No. Particulars Currency Derivatives
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
i Derivatives (Notional principal Amount) 538.74 586.34
a) For Hedging 538.74 586.34
b) For Trading 0 0
ii Marked to Market Positions (1)
A. Hedging 56.43 82.60
a) Asset (+) 71.06 90.12
b) Liability(-) -14.63 -7.52
B. Trading 0 0
a) Asset(+) 0 0
b) Liability(-) 0 0
iii Credit Exposure (2) 109.32 132.76
iv Likely Impact of one percentage change in Interest rate (100*PV01) 0 0
a) On hedging derivatives 0 0
b) On trading derivatives 0 0
v Maximum and Minimum of 100*PV01 observed during the year 0 0
a) On hedging 0 0
b) On trading 0 0

Bank is having Mark to Market position of Rs.14.63 crores (Negative with counter party banks) on account of derivative deals
which are covered back to back. Hence there is no net Mark to Market Profit or Loss for the bank on outstanding deal.

Bank is having Mark to market position of Rs. 56.43 crores for a derivative deal entered for hedging its foreign currency
exposures. Net mark to market effect for this transaction is NIL for the Bank.

Currency Derivatives for the year 2009-10 include:
1. Full currency swap of JPY / INR deal involving periodical exchange of interest with HSBC Bank Ltd.
2. Currency option of USD 16.78 Mio with Amtek Auto Ltd., covered back to back with IDBI Bank Ltd.

10.4.0 Asset Quality

10.4.1.1 Non-Performing Asset
(Rupees in crores)

Items 2009-10 2008-09
(i) Net NPA to Net Advances (%) 0.17% 0.18%
(i) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) Opening Balance 368.14 372.43
(b) Additions during the year 399.90 201.32
(c) Reductions during the year 280.17 205.61
(d) Closing Balance 487.87 368.14
(iii) | Movement of Net NPAs
(a) Opening Balance 79.22 53.70
(b) Additions during the year 16.50 25.52
(c) Reductions during the year 0.00 0.00
(d) Closing Balance 95.72 79.22
(iv) | Movement of provisions for NPA’s (excluding provisions on standard assets)
(a) Opening Balance 288.34 318.03*
(b) Additions during the year 305.21 17117
(c) Reductions during the year 201.69 200.86
(d) Closing Balance 391.86 288.34*

* Previous year figures rearranged by excluding Special Provision on account of surplus on sale of assets to SC/RC.
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10.4.1.2 gm@a™ waRst stgura (FrRfte): (B &=t H)
1 2 3 4 5
THW TTIT W | T &% B9 § S qied @t & srad | (3) % (4) @ e
Tl faesqu) | 97 % e % foe graes ud qae
T2 ° T ™ wffqayt w9 ¥ 922 @ § oW ™
1.| creme SR 330.75 213.32 64.50%
2. | dferer A (T+ei-+) 157.12 140.48 89.41%
T(layd R 89.12 74.11 83.16%
& | 1-3 a9 60.70 59.06 97.30%
ar| 3 av q sAfus 7.30 7.30 100%
3.| &if o &% = & guliga a1t (0.00) +
T w9 ¥ geegd (645.80) 645.80 645.80 100%
4.|gm 1133.67 999.60 88.17%
5.| sttt % fog et gae (SR 1 9o % &9
H e 9arT T2 oo m ®) 38.06
6. | I SIATEESIE/ZESET & Td FHEs
T @Ed W@ ™ 0.29
7.| 9T st YA U S9d W ¥ 3 T
7 fepdl o = W - - -
8.| P 1133.67 1037.95 91.56%
9. | yrae HeRS U 91.56%
10.4.1.3
T) TAUU HT FHEI0T (T FIE i ()
Y IR THAUT @l 61 P TFTaeR | 80.82
HTIR T
¥ | & S &3 § T AW & TAWU 1 A
1 FW TH S 0.28%
2 TEN (ATEER UE B}, AEH U g8 1.84%
3 RKEll 2.46%
4 Jafs = 3.89%
M) T W T SAR-EE
R T & FIE |
T4 a9 F UEell A F Thd TANU (YRR 9W) 368.14
i F IRE E ([A AR) 399.90
Su =iE (1) 768.04
T FI-
(i) sTERIA 13.69
(ii) =t (STEIRE Tl @ T R BIE) 74.16
(iii) srEeT @ 192.32
St () 280.17
el 99 % 31 W B A%a i (siftm siw) (u-) 487.87
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10.4.1.2 Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR): Rs. in Crores
1 2 3 4 5
Gross NPA@plus Specific Provisions held including Ratio of (4) to (3)
technical / prudential provisions for
write-off* diminution in fair value of the

restructured accounts classified
as NPAs plus technical /
prudential write-off*

1. | Sub-Standard Advances 330.75 213.32 64.50%
2. | Doubtful Advances (a+b+c) 157.12 140.48 89.41%
A [<1year 89.12 7411 83.16%
B [1-3 Years 60.70 59.06 97.30%
C [>3 years 7.30 7.30 100%
3. [ Advances classified as Loss Assets (0.00) +

Technically Written—off (645.80) 645.80 645.80 100%
4. | Total 1133.67 999.60 88.17%
5 | Floating Provisions for Advances

(only to the extent they are not used as Tier Il Capital) 38.06
6 [DICGC / ECGC claims received and held

pending adjustment 0.29

7 | Part payment received and kept in Suspense Account
or any other similar account - - i

8 | Total 1133.67 1037.95 91.56%

9 [Provision Coverage Ratio 91.56%
10.4.1.3

A) Concentration of NPAs (Amount in Rupees Crores)
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 80.82

B) Sector-wise NPAs

SI. No. | Sector Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that sector
1 Agriculture & allied activities 0.28%

2 Industry (Micro & small, Medium and Large) 1.84%

3 Services 2.46%

4 Personal Loans 3.89%

C) Movement of NPAs

Particulars Amount in Rs. Crores
Gross NPAs* as on 1%t April of particular year (Opening Balance) 368.14
Additions (Fresh NPAs) during the year 399.90
Sub-total (A) 768.04
Less:-

(i) Upgradations 13.69
(ii) Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from upgraded accounts) 74.16
(iii) Write-offs 192.32
Sub-total (B) 280.17
Gross NPAs as on 31 March of following year (closing balance) (A-B) 487.87

153



“, 4T 5 ANDHRA BANK

10.4.2 ywited @ & faeror (5. @r@r J) (5. AT H)
LR AR~ THUATTS /U1 JRleA 3=
LRRICT] FUET B T 4 134 1939
A% SRM | S en 81.02 321.85 1002.98
T (3% Sfad T § §M) 4.57 4.41 20.21
STEHIND BT M - - -
SilEkl T (S SR I ° B) - ) .
afrer Fepran far - - -
Cip T (3% Sfad I § g§M) - - -
U B TqE 4 134 1939
A BT (T 81.02 321.85 1002.98
T (3% Sfad ge | g/) 4.57 441 20.21
10.4.3(=) snfea gwten & fom sforsfosoygaimin dot #t =@ ™ e st & o (BT AT H)
Hg 2009-10 | 2008-09
clik kel bl 1
THA/SREN B I T @l BT Ghd qed (JEHE B Haw) Sl 0.06
REZIRRT] = 1.35
g a9 H SaRd @l $ 999 ¥ g sifaid giaswee b ™
@ o€ =1 R T @ C) 1.29
(@) 3= dept /A /TR T Tk b sTRadi & fHERon
i) o ST B T T TR O SR & faaor
(5. BA=T H)
%9 g | feraror 2009-10 | 2008-09
T T W BN G = =
P THRT T T
3 I Tebel  Fiivhe T T
i) o §& ¥ TS T ooTe (i STl & fereor (5. F=T )
%9 g | fraror 2009-10 | 2008-09
1 FH)TY F IR TS T @I B FE = =
W) SHEET FHA bl bl
2 %) Ed ¥ @l & Fe av % RE ResTe Ul Ul
W) THET HA xTI Rl
3 I Bl Aiihed T T

154



s
TMiw RdiE ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010 %

10.4.2 Particulars of Accounts Restructured
(Rs. in crores)
CDR MSME Debt Others
Mechanism Restructuring

Standard No. of Borrowers 4 134 1939
advances Amount outstanding 81.02 321.85 1002.98
restructured Sacrifice (diminution in the fair value) 4.57 4.41 20.21
Sub standard No. of Borrowers — — —
advances Amount outstanding — — —
restructured Sacrifice (diminution in the fair value) — — —
Doubtful No. of Borrowers — — —
advances Amount outstanding — — —
restructured Sacrifice (diminution in the fair value) — — —
TOTAL No. of Borrowers 4 134 1939
Amount outstanding 81.02 321.85 1002.98
Sacrifice (diminution in the fair value) 457 4.41 20.21

10.4.3 (a) Details of financial assets sold to Securitization / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

(Rupees in crores)

Item 2009-10 2008-09
(i) No. of accounts NIL 1
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/ RC NIL 0.06
(iii) Aggregate consideration NIL 1.35
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years NIL NIL
(v) Aggregate gain over net book value. NIL 1.29
(b) Details of non performing financial assets sold / purchased:
i) Details of non performing financial assets sold to other Banks
(Rupees in crores)
Sl. No. | Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
1 No. of accounts sold NIL NIL
2 Aggregate outstanding NIL NIL
3 Aggregate consideration received NIL NIL
ii) Details of Non performing financial assets purchased from other Banks
Sl. No. | Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
1 a) No. of accounts purchased during the year NIL NIL
b) Aggregate outstanding NIL NIL
2 a) of the no. of accounts ,rescheduled during the year NIL NIL
b) Aggregate outstanding NIL NIL
3 Aggregate Consideration received NIL NIL
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10.4.4 Provisions on Standard Asset (Rupees in crores)
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Provisions towards Standard Assets *272.53 193.34

* including provision on restructured standard assets amounting to Rs.59.53 crores (Rs.30.34 crore for 2008-09)
10.5.1 Business Ratio

Particulars 2009-10 2008-09

(i) Interest income as percentage to working funds 8.49% 8.97%

(i) Non-interest income as percentage to working funds 1.29% 1.28%

(iii) Operating profit as percentage to working funds 2.41% 2.15%

(iv) Return on assets 1.39% 1.09%

(v) Business (deposits plus advances) per employee (Rs. in lacs) 938.94 728.29
(vi) Profit per employee (Rs. in lacs) (14292 employees) 7.32 4.58
10.5.2 Concentration of Deposits: (Amount in Rupees Crores)
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 6548.68
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits of the bank 8.43%
10.5.3 Concentration of Advances* (Amount in Rupees Crores)
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 11744.03
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the bank 20.78%
10.5.4 Concentration of Exposures** (Amount in Rupees Crores)
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 11771.96
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers to

Total Exposure of the bank on borrowers/customers 13.93%

10.5.5 Asset Liability Management

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities (Rupees in Crores)
Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets & Liabilities as on 31.03.2010
Day 1 2-7 8-14 15t028 | 29days | Over3 Over 6 Over 1 Over 3 Over5 | Total
days days days to3 months months year & years & years
months | & upto 6 & upto upto 3 upto 5
months 1 year years years
Deposits  (272.47 |1420.56 | 885.98 1896.65 | 10041.60 | 16997.14 | 17264.47 27282.00 | 865.54 761.81 [77688.22
Loans/
Advances [178.63 | 633.64 | 1569.22 | 1304.76 | 6730.01 | 4419.15 5737.02 21863.04 | 6729.61 | 6948.42(56113.51
Investments| — 78.43 31.49 310.34 | 756.68 375.22 376.58 466.07 3566.15 | 14920.0320880.99
Borrowings | 0.01 — 67.35 22.45 336.82 459.59 22469 1572.16 319.14 | 2850.23| 5852.44
Foreign
Currency
Assets 14239 | 11.73 25.34 157.36 | 443.38 506.22 — — — — | 1286.42
Foreign
Currency
Liabilities | 87.87 4.44 68.13 26.24 354.61 297 .46 117.29 420.01 27.54 — | 1403.59
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10.6.0 Lending to Sensitive Sector:
10.6.1. Exposure to Real Estate Sector Category (Rupees in Crores)
Category 2009-10 2008-09
a) Direct exposure

i) Residential Mortgages —

Lendings fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied
by the borrower or that is rented,;

(individual housing loans eligible for inclusion in priority sector advances may be
shown separately)

- Upto 20 Lakhs 2721.18 1904.70
- Above 20 Lakhs 760.85 327.71

(ii) Commercial Real Estate —
Lendings secured by mortgages on commercial real estates viz (office buildings, retail
space, multi-purpose commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings,
multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land
acquisition, development and construction, hospital, rural godown and educational

institutions, etc.). Exposure would also include non- fund based (NFB) limits. 1635.88 1829.27
(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures —

a. Residential,

b. Commercial Real Estate. 3.27 4.14

b) Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and

Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) 166.29 1607.35

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 5287.47 5673.17
10.6.2 Exposure to Capital Market ( Rs. in crores)
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09

(i) Direct investments in equity shares convertible debentures / bonds and units of equity—
oriented mutual funds, the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt. | 140.87 299.25

(i) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to
individuals for investment in equity shares (including IPOs/ESOPS),convertible bonds,

convertible debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds 0.10 0.54
(iii)  Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security. 0.56 0.25

(iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of
shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual
funds, i.e., where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible

debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances 30.00 101.73
(v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf
of stockbrokers and market makers. 3.35 2.33

(vi) Loans sanctioned to corporate against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or
other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoters’ contribution to the equity of

new companies in anticipation of raising resources. 0.00 0.00
(vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows /issues 0.00 0.00
(viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect of primary issue of shares

or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds 0.00 0.00
(ix) Financing to stock brokers for margin trading 0.00 0.00
(x)  All exposures to venture capital funds (both registered and unregistered) 112.52 89.40

Total Exposure to Capital Market 287.40 493.50
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10.6.3 Risk Category wise Country Exposure (Rupees in crores)
Risk Category As at March 31, 2010 As at March 31, 2009
Exposure (net) Provision held Exposure (net) Provision held

Insignificant (A1) 517.70 NIL 501.46 NIL

Low (A2) 479.11 NIL 475.97 NIL
Moderate Low (B1) 43.84 NIL 29.20 NIL
Moderate (B2) 1.35 NIL 3.85 NIL
Moderately High (C1) 3.98 NIL 0.27 NIL

High (C2) 0.05 NIL 0.00 NIL

Very High (D) 5.73 NIL 0.00 NIL

10.6.4. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL), Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the bank.

(Rupees in crores)

Name of the borrower Exposure Limit Period during Maximum
ceiling sanctioned which limit Amount
exceeded outstanding

during the period
NIL — — — —
The bank has not exceeded the ceiling for Single Borrower or Group Borrower wise exposures in any of the Group accounts.
10.6.5 Disclosure of Letters of Comfort (LoC) issued by banks:

During the year ended 31.03.2010, 235 Letters of Comfort have been issued by the bank amounting to Rs.1,114.90 crores.
The Letters of Comfort outstanding as on 31.03.2010 are 173 amounting to Rs.383.83 crores.

10.7. Amount of Provisions for Income-tax for the year (Rupees in crores)
2009-10 2008-09
Provision for Income Tax 383.85 220.00
Deferred Tax 6.00 18.48
Fringe Benefit Tax - 6.37
Wealth Tax 0.15 0.15

10.8. Penalties imposed by RBI
During the year ended March 2010, no penalty has been levied by RBI.
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11. SEGMENT REPORTING (AS 17)
Part A: Business segments (Rupees in crores)

Segmentwise Results

Part A Business Segments For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
1 Segment Revenue
(a) Treasury 1603.45 1295.37
(b) Corporate/Wholesale Banking 2478.47 1962.61
(c) Retail Banking 2827.05 2468.60
(d) Other Banking Operations 428.52 413.42
Total 7337.49 6140.00
Less: Inter Segment Revenue
Income from Operations 7337.49 6140.00
2 Segment Results After Provisions & Before Tax
(a) Treasury 437.74 102.58
(b) Corporate/Wholesale Banking 597.20 48411
(c) Retail Banking 669.34 600.97
(d) Other Banking Operations 105.54 100.37
Total 1809.82 1288.03
Less : (i) Other Un-allocable Expenditure 373.97 389.98
Total Profit Before Tax 1435.85 898.05
Income Tax and other taxes paid 390.00 245.00
Net Profit 1045.85 653.05
3 Segment Assets
(a) Treasury 20881.00 16911.11
(b) Corporate/Wholesale Banking 30063.81 24103.33
(c) Retail Banking 24956.04 19203.14
(d) Other Banking Business 1093.66 832.80
(e) Unallocated Assets 13347.89 7418.83
Total Assets 90342.40 68469.21
4 Segment Liabilities
(a) Treasury 1079.63 5014.05
(b) Corporate/Wholesale Banking 21349.12 11901.41
(c) Retail Banking 49290.79 47020.39
(d) Other Banking Operations 7048.30 470.30
(e) Unallocable Liabilities 7164.52 416.07
Total 85932.36 64822.22
Capital & Reserves 4410.04 3646.99
Total Liabilities 90342.40 68469.21

(Compiled by Management and relied upon by the Auditors)
Part B: Geographic segments.

There is only one segment i.e. Domestic Segment
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12. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (AS 18)

In compliance of Reserve Bank of India guidelines issued vide their circular No.DBOD.No.BP.BC.72/21.04.018/2002-03
dt.25.02.2003 in respect of Accounting Standard — 18 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India the details
pertaining to Related Parties are as under :-

(Amount in Rs.)

SI. No Name Relationship Nature of 2009-10 2008-09
transaction

1 Sri. R.S.Reddy Chairman & Managing Director

(From 02.08.2008) Remuneration 1684778 569769
2. Sri. Anil Girotra Executive Director(From 17.05.2008) | Remuneration 1322627 589170
3. SriAATaj Executive Director (From 07.12.2009) | Remuneration 442062 —
4. Dr.K.Ramakrishnan Ex-Chairman & Managing Director

(up to 31.07.2008) Remuneration — 964466
5. Sri Kalyan Mukherjee | Ex-Executive Director

(up to 30.04.2008) Remuneration — 621295

The details of related party disclosures of the bank with its subsidiary — Andhra Bank Financial Services Limited and the
sponsored Regional Rural Banks viz., Chaitanya Godavari Grameena Bank, and Rushikulya Gramya Bank are not furnished
in view of the exemption given by the Reserve Bank of India.

13. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES (Rupees in crores)
Breakup of “ Provisions and Contingencies” shown under the 2009-10 2008-09

head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

(i) Depreciation in value of Investments -41.34 181.96

(ii) Non Performing Assets 305.21 170.13

(iii) Standard Assets 50.00 13.00

(iv) Taxes 384.00 226.52

(v) Deferred Tax 6.00 18.48

(vi) Provision for Assets sold to Asset Restructuring Companies - 1.04

(vi) Other provisions and contingencies:

a) Restructured advances 29.19 21.37
b) Other provisions 30.91 2.48
TOTAL 763.97 634.98
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(ECEI 2009-10 2008-09
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16. wH R T4
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@Y Td g wen ud gaas § & T A EeR g
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() (Ffem) ()
¥ P YRH H eIl B I T 768.56 318.04 173.14
=S @ 63.79 25.44 13.85
AN AT AT 52.69 13.17 29.76
eSS -46.64 -11.66 -10.99
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qrearel R SHifhs g (ATH) 0.46 - -
IY % 3d H T SR & Sfad I 906.82 363.22 204.70
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14. FLOATING PROVISIONS

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Opening balance 49.85 167.47
Additions during the year — —
Reduction during the year ( Purpose and amount drawdown made) *11.79 *117.62
Closing balance 38.06 49.85
*utilized as per RBI guidelines on Agriculture Debt waiver and Debt Relief Scheme - 2008

15. EARNING PER SHARE (Face Value Rs.10/- each)

Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Basic EPS (Rs) 21.56 13.46
Diluted EPS (Rs) 21.56 13.46
Calculation of Basic EP S

Net Profit (Rs. in crores) (excluding extra ordinary items, net of taxes) 1045.85 653.05
Weighted Average No. of Shares (in crores) 48.50 48.50
Basic Earning per Share (Rs.) 21.56 13.46

16. EMPLOYEE’S BENEFITS

i) The summarized position of Post-employment benefits and long term employee benefits recognized in the Profit & Loss
Account and Balance Sheet as required in accordance with Accounting Standard — 15 (Revised) issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India are as under:

ii) Changes in the present value of the obligations:

(Rs. in crores)

PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
(Funded) (Funded) ENCASHMENT
(Funded)
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the year 768.56 318.04 173.14
Interest Cost 63.79 25.44 13.85
Current Service Cost 52.69 13.17 29.76
Benefits Paid -46.64 -11.66 -10.99
Actuarial loss/(gain) on Obligations 68.42 15.37 -5.45
Present Value of Obligation at year end 906.82 360.36 200.31
(b) Change in Fair Value of Plan Asset: (Rs. in crores)
PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
(Funded) (Funded) ENCASHMENT
(Funded)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 768.56 329.29 174.69
Expected return on Plan Assets 64.28 31.36 17.00
Employer’s contribution 120.16 14.23 24.00
Benefit Paid -46.64 -11.66 -10.99
Actuarial loss/(gain) on Obligations 0.46 -- --
Fair Value of Plan Asset at the end of the year 906.82 363.22 204.70
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(1) gem= | wran € TR af (B &=t H)
LR gt GIE THAHIOT
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(Rs. in crores)

PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
(Funded) (Funded) ENCASHMENT
(Funded)
Estimated Present value of obligations as at the end of the year 906.82 360.36 200.31
Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year 906.82 363.22 204.70
Net Liability recognized in Balance Sheet — — —
(d) Expenses Recognized in Profil & Loss: (Rs. in crores)
PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
(Funded) (Funded) ENCASHMENT
(Funded)
Current Service Cost 52.69 13.17 29.76
Interest Cost 62.94 25.44 13.85
Expected return on Plan Asset -64.63 -31.37 -17.00
Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in the year 67.96 15.37 -5.45
Total expenses recognized in Profit & Loss Account 118.96 22.61 21.16
(e) Investment details of Pension Fund Trust:
(Rs. In Crores)
Central Government Securities 208.06
State Government Securities 112.90
Investment in PSU 478.91
Other Investments 37.50
Bank Balance 69.45
Total 906.82
(f) Principal actuarial assumption at the Balance Sheet Date (expressed as weighted average):
PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
(Funded) (Funded) ENCASHMENT
(Funded)
Discount Rate 8.30 8.00 8.00
Expected rate of return on Plant Assets 8.50 9.55 9.55
Expected Rate of Salary Increase 5.00 5.00 6.00
Method used Projected Projected Projected
unit credit unit credit unit credit

The estimate of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in employee market.

(9) The financial assumptions considered for the calculations are as under:-
Discount Rate:- The discount rate has been chosen by reference to market yield on government bonds as on the date of

valuation.

Expected Rate of Return: In case of Pension, the expected rate of return is taken on the basis of yield on government
bonds. In case of gratuity and leave encashment the actual return has been taken.

Salary Increase: On the basis of past data.
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LTC/LFC Silver Jubilee | Sick Leaves Ex-Gratia Relocation
Encashment Award Expenses
Liability as on 01.04.2009 13.09 0.90 16.70 0.85 0.91
Liability as on 31.03.2010 12.84 0.77 18.71 0.71 0.71
Transitional Liability 0 0 0 0 0
Amount debited to
Profit & Loss Account -0.25 -0.13 2.01 -0.14 -0.20

(i) Short term employee’s benefits:
Short-term Compensated Absences:
Liability as on 31.03.2010

() Contribution to Provident Fund

Rs. 1.04 crores
Rs. 14.63 crores

17. Pending finalization of wage revision, in addition to Rs. 60.00 crores provision made during the Year 2008-09, an adhoc
provision of Rs.101.25 crore has been made during the current year.

18. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (AS 28)

The indications listed in paragraph 8 to 10 of Accounting Standard 28—'Impairment of Assets’ (issued by the ICAI ) have
been examined and on such examination, it has been found that none of the indications are present in the case of the
bank. A formal estimate of the recoverable amount has not been made, as there is no indication of a potential impairment
loss.

19. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS (AS 29)

As per the guidelines of AS-29 issued by ICAI, details of movement in significant provisions have been disclosed at the
appropriate places in the notes forming part of accounts.

20. There is no material prior period item included in Profit and Loss account which is required to be
5 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India read with RBI guidelines.

disclosed as per AS-

21. Pursuant to RBI guidelines, the bank has made a provision of Rs.31.47 crores in respect of interest on matured

deposit on estimated basis.

22.Pursuant to RBI guidelines on Reconciliation of Nostro account and treatment of outstanding entries vide
DBOD.BP.BC.N0.133/21.04.018/2008-09 dated 11" May 2009, the Bank has initially credited an amount of Rs.81.19 lacs
to the Profit and Loss Account and subsequently appropriated the same to the credit of General Reserve.

23. The Bank has raised Tier-ll Bonds of Rs.1120 cores during the year comprising Upper Tier-1l Bonds of Rs.800 crores and
Subordinated Debt Bonds of Rs.320 crores. The Bank has also redeemed Rs.140 Crores Tier-1l Subordinated Debt
Bonds during the year ended 315t March 2010.

24. Hitherto the Bank is classifying the following regulatory capital instruments under
Schedule 5- Other Liabilities:
1. Innovative Perpetual Debt Instruments (IPDI)
2. Subordinated Debt.

However, pursuant to RBI guidelines vide RBI/2009-10/368 DBOD.BP.BC.No0.81/21.01.002/2009-10 dated 30.03.2010,
now the same are being classified under Schedule 4 — Borrowings.

25. Reconciliation of Inter Branch and Inter Bank transactions have been done up to 31t March 2010.

26. Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms):

Name of the SPV sponsored

Domestic

Overseas

Nil

Nil
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27. Disclosure of complaints and unimplemented awards of Banking Ombudsman

a) Customer complaints (in numbers) b) Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman (in numbers)
a) Pending at the beginning of the year: 43 a) Unimplemented at the beginning of the year: NIL
b) Received during the year: 54559 b) Passed by the Banking Ombudsman during the year:| NIL
c) Redressed during the year: 54365 c) Implemented during the year: NIL
d) Pending at the end of the year: 237 d) Unimplemented at the end of the year: NIL

Complaints received during the year include 52642 ATM related Complaints, 98 Credit Card related complaints and 1819

complaints of General nature

28. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified /rearranged wherever necessary to confirm to current year’s
figures. Figures in the brackets indicate figures of previous year.

R.S. Reddy
Chairman & Managing Director

Anil Girotra
Executive Director

A.A. Taj
Executive Director

Directors
B. Maheshwaran
Shaibal Gupta
K. Raghuraman

Madhulika P. Sukul
Prem Prakash Pareek

V.H. Ramakrishnan
Rajib Sekhar Sahoo

T.V.S. Chandrasekhar
Deputy General Manager

P. Srinivas
General Manager

G. Vasudeva Murty
Asst. General Manager

For NUNDI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN-309090E
(Soumen Nandi)
Partner (M.No.059828)

For K.S.RAMAKRISHNA & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN-02888S
(S Adinarayana)
Partner (M No. 80976)

Place : Hyderabad
Date :29.04.2010

For B.N. KEDIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN-001652N
(S.K. Kedia)
Partner (M. No. 52579)

For RAMAN ASSOCIATE
Chartered Accountants
FRN-02910S
(G. Vasudevan)
Partner (M. No.20739)
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Chartered Accountants
FRN-001342N
(K K Ghei)
Partner (M.No. 12250)

For RAJU & PRASAD
Chartered Accountants
FRN-003475S
(S.Ranganathan)
Partner (M. No.22738)
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The President of India,

1.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of
ANDHRA BANK as on 31t March 2010, the Profit and
Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement annexed thereto
for the year ended on that date in which are the
incorporated the Returns of 20 branches audited by us,
1261 branches audited by other auditors. The branches
audited by us and those audited by other auditors have
been selected by the Bank in accordance with the
guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India. Also
incorporated in the Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss
Account are the returns from 276 branches and 18
Service Centres which have not been subjected to audit.
These un-audited branches account for 1.16 percent of
advances, 4.37 percent of deposits, 0.52 percent of
interest income and 3.40 percent of interest expenses.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Andhra Bank’s Management. Our responsibility is to
express our opinion on the financial statements based
on our audit.

_
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Third Schedule of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

4.

Subject to the limitation of audit indicated in para 1 and
2 above and as required by the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1980 and
subject also to the limitations of disclosure required
therein, we report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and
explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and
have found them to be satisfactory.

b) The transactions of the Bank, which have come to
our notice, are within the powers of the Bank.

c) The returns received from the offices and branches
of the bank have generally been found adequate for
the purpose of our Audit.

In our opinion the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account
and Cash Flow Statement comply with the applicable
Accounting Standards.

In our Opinion, as shown by the books of the Bank, and
to the best of our information and according to the
explanation given to us:

2.  We conducted our audit in acc_ordan_ce with the auditing i) The Balance Sheet read with significant accounting
standards generally accepted in India. Those standards policies and notes on accounts thereon is a true and
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain fair Balance Sheet containing all the necessary
reasonable assurance abo_ut V\_/hether the flnanmgl particulars, and is properly drawn up so as to exhibit
§tatements are f_ree of material mls-stgtement. An agdlt a true and fair view of the affairs of the Bank as on
includes examlnlng,.on atest basis, ewde_nce supporting 31 March, 2010, in conformity with the accounting
the amo.unts anq disclosures the ﬁnancnal statemepts. principles generally accepted in India.

An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by the ii) The Profit and Loss Account read with Significant

management, as well as evaluating the overall financial accounting policies and Notes on accounts thereon

statements presentation. We believe that our audit shows a true balance of profit, in conformity with the

provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. accounting principles generally accepted in India for
) the year ended 31t March, 2010 and

3. The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account have

been drawn up in Form “A” and “B” respectively of the iii) The Cash Flow Statement gives a true and fair view
of cash flows for the period covered by the statement.
For NUNDI & ASSOCIATES For B.N. KEDIA & CO. For K.K.GHEI & CO
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN-309090E FRN-001652N FRN-001342N
(Soumen Nandi) (S.K. Kedia) (K K Ghei)
Partner (M.N0.059828) Partner (M. No. 52579) Partner (M.No. 12250)
For K.S.RAMAKRISHNA & CO. For RAMAN ASSOCIATE For RAJU & PRASAD
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN-02888S FRN-02910S FRN-003475S

(S Adinarayana)
Partner (M No. 80976)

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 29.04.2010
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31 5w, 2010 = |ETA q9 & AR gaE Fawoi

(3. 000. )
faaon 31/03/2010 31/03/2009
TBeT SR el qed BT o1 9N 52875014 56943157
FHal 3R AR I B 3 AW 111676566 52875014
Aty & TR TR AR TG g | Taw gfs [ = 58801552 -4068143
TR FEl | el g4
FR gd e @ 14358483 8980512
R 7pel | TR aREe g w6l B S/ gee | qEEinTg B
EIE & @ Fufed W TEE 1019965 817590
SIS T T WR AT 2426725 1395674
e SRR BT faeht TR e -5471 -3346
TR SRl T 3ansti § qiead & 9d aRard are 17799702 11190430
R R T AT § aRkedE &g aArEe
s § glg/ (@) 182981880 99534720
ST ¥ e/ () 15212079 7207252
et 7 (gfg) &+ -39698866 -20128744
hm ® (gfe) A -120123108 -99008745
o ol H (3fE) B 451603 -593086
3T IS wd e § (ghg) w0 3213775 917612
TR | TS Fehel 59837065 -880561
HRTE: Yac &Y -4637042 -4397429
IR FET A TH 9aE (T) 55200023 5277990
st wm@t @ 7 g e
ST TR BT T/ fawhT -1218110 -1972561
FRsh F&t @ T TaE () -1218110 -1972561
faira nifafafeat @ Tt aE
T 0T WX YE AT 2426725 -1395674
TN Yat (ATHIST TR B fHereh) -2553416 -1134852
Tior T B AR 9iver () 9800000 9250000
FHEAR! @9 & [T Jreaem (Tua-15 goirefia) Fefom/ea fear 0 -3537014
ot FEt | w1 yarg () 4819639 3182408
a4 F TH TR FAE | e ge/w (o) 58801552 -4068143
(sR.TaEd)
eI T 9§ M9
Fd Sdl U THiaeH Fa I, T, HTA W & Fd F.F. 93 U &
TG WD TG WD TG WD
TEARTEA - 3090905 THARET - 00165207 TmHARET - 00134207
(A= =) (Ta. . Hizan) (.. =)
e (Ta 5 059828) riieR (T 5 52579) rier (Ta.A. 12250)
T . THIEFWN TE % Fd TR THITGAE Fd Y UE 56
TG AETHIR TG AETHIR ST WD
THARET - 02888wa ThrAREs 02910TH THAREA-00347 51"
(T, sufeAR™Eo) (Sf1. argeam) (Ta. )
ArieR (Ta 5 80976) AriER (Ta 5 20739) e (T 5 22738)
T BEETE
femian: 29.04.2010
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010

(Rs. in ‘000s)
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31-03-2010 31-03-2009

Current Year

Previous Year

Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 52875014 56943157
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 111676566 52875014
Net Increase(+) / Decrease (-) of Cash and Cash Equivalent
during the period 58801552 -4068143
Cash flow from Operating Activities
Net profit before tax 14358483 8980512
Add: Depreciation on Assets 1019965 817590
Add: Interest on Subordinated Debt 2426725 1395674
Less: Profit on Sale of Assets -5471 -3346
Operating Profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities 17799702 11190430
Adjustment for Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities
Increase / Decrease in Deposits 182981880 99534720
Increase / Decrease in Borrowings 15212079 7207252
Increase / Decrease in Investments -39698866 -20128744
Increase / Decrease in Advances -120123108 -99008745
Increase / Decrease in Other Assets 451603 -593086
Increase / Decrease in Other Liabilities and Provisions 3213775 917612
Cash Generated from Operations 59837065 -880561
Less: Taxes Paid -4637042 -4397429
Cash Flow From Operating Activites (A) 55200023 -5277990
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase / Sale of fixed assets -1218110 -1972561
Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) -1218110 -1972561
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Interest paid on subordinated debts -2426725 -1395674
Dividend paid (including tax on dividend) -2553416 -1134852
Issue / Redemption of Subordinated Debts (net) 9800000 9250000
Provision for Employee Benefits (AS-15 Revised) Invested / Spent 0 -3537014
Cash Flow From Financing Activities (C) 4819639 3182408
Net Increase (+) / Decrease (-) in cash flow during the period (A)+(B)+ (C) 58801552 -4068143

R.S. Reddy
Chairman & Managing Director

For NUNDI & ASSOCIATES For B.N. KEDIA & CO. For K.K.GHEI & CO

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN-309090E FRN-001652N FRN-001342N
(Soumen Nandi) (S.K. Kedia) (K K Ghei)

Partner (M.No.059828) Partner (M. No. 52579) Partner (M.No. 12250)

For K.S.RAMAKRISHNA & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN-02888S
(S Adinarayana)
Partner (M No. 80976)

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 29.04.2010

For RAMAN ASSOCIATE
Chartered Accountants
FRN-02910S
(G. Vasudevan)
Partner (M. No.20739)

For RAJU & PRASAD
Chartered Accountants
FRN-003475S
(S.Ranganathan)
Partner (M. No.22738)
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R faem™ &1 fagmadre (®. H. H)
EL 1969* 1980* A=-07 A-08 A1<-09 Ar=-10
QIRETST T T 155 627 1289 1366 1432 1557
oo el I=@ @1 den 155 754 1930 2128 2248 2502
FHHER B T 2163 7585 12981 13387 14255 14292
e @ 0.06 1 538 576 653 1046
P ST I 52 666 41454 49437 59390 77688
aw ehm # 35 356 27889 34238 44139 56114
asr $ 16 170 14406 14988 17103 20906
Ll 0.5 1 485 485 485 485
R Ta sty 0.4 4.9 2671 2764 3162 3925
FEHRT i 58 708 47541 56592 68469 90342
T T & ST 128 11427 13298 14955 19012

# g & e
T T B
* bl P IEBIT B aY

* T S Wl USRI a8
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OUR PROGRESS AT A GLANCE
(Amount Rs. in crore)

Year / Parameters 1969* 1980** Mar-07 Mar-08 Mar-09 Mar-10
No. of Branches 155 627 1289 1366 1432 1557
No. of Business Delivery Channels 155 754 1930 2128 2248 2502
Staff Strength 2163 7585 12981 13387 14255 14292
Net Profit 0.06 1 538 576 653 1046
Total Deposits 52 666 41454 49437 59390 77688
Net Advances # 35 356 27889 34238 44139 56114
Investments $ 16 170 14406 14988 17103 20906
Capital 0.5 1 485 485 485 485
Reserves & Surplus 04 4.9 2671 2764 3162 3925
Working Funds 58 708 47541 56592 68469 90342
Priority Sector Advances _ 128 11427 13298 14955 19012

# Net of Provisions
$ Pre-Depreciation
* Year of nationalisation of Banks

**Year of nationalisation of Andhra Bank
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ge1 o sy
7 2010 7 2009
(srfcrera ) (sfasTa )
Tl Tt
1. Siifgw o T ® GE1 (FeTRTSTR) 13.93 13.22
aiikd® FRT Fuia AmeE 9%)
2. HAT I 478 5.21
3. frow quf ¥ e wadig 2.17 2.17
SIRA T o
1. & Fas § sarr gfawfaat 94.55 89.97
2. fa@ st @1 aw TEdn 0.17 0.18
3. F@ onidl o gATud B IR T 43.75 45.66
4. P AREN § AFG SRAEt 99.14 99.17
5. p@ onfen § e T 0.11 0.12
JeeE Y IOTE
1. 9% S FT - P& T ST 73.05 75.04
2. po oniEl ¥ gis 32.00 20.99
3. TaTEEar (5. @mE ) 769.32 625.78
4. 9fq HHERy @9 (5. @ J) 7.32 458
CEE]
1. 3@ o § R < o 13.15 12.47
2. onfal W afawd 1.39 1.09
3. faw = wie 3.21 3.03
4. o F @RI &1 ST 42.72 46.16
5. A AN S § W% AN & ST + S 3 26.08 26.09
6. ANEl W i gawd 10.92 11.41
7. TEst W oiEa gfawa 7.97 8.84
8. olma Hrsie ffern & ufkarws @ 2.41 2.15
AT
1. o onfal # wXry giafaat 21.84 2222
2. P& omiEEr H s 0.48 0.64
3. oo RN ¥ Fa a9 23.10 24.70
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KEY PERFORMANCE RATIOS

March, 2010 March 2009
(In percentage) (in percentage)
Capital Adequacy
1. Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR) 13.93 13.22
(RBI Norm : 9.00%)
2. Coverage Ratio 478 5.21
3. Net NPAs to Net Worth 2.17 2.17
Asset Quality
1. Govt.Securities to Total Investments 94.55 89.97
2. Net NPAs to Net Advances 0.17 0.18
3. Off Balance Sheet items to Total Assets 43.75 45.66
4.  Standard Advances to Total Advances 99.14 99.17
5. Net NPAs to Total Assets 0.1 0.12
Management Quality
1. Gross Bank Credit to Aggregate Deposit 73.05 75.04
2.  Growth in Total Assets 32.00 20.99
3. Productivity (Rs in Lakhs) 769.32 625.78
4.  Profit per employee (Rupees in Lakhs) 7.32 4.58
Earnings
1. Non interest Income to Total Income 13.15 12.47
2. Return on Assets 1.39 1.09
3. Net interest Margin 3.21 3.03
4. Ratio of Cost to Income 42.72 46.16
5.  Staff cost to Net Interest income + other income 26.08 26.09
6. Average Yield on Advances 10.92 11.41
7. Average yield on Investments 7.97 8.84
8. Operating Profit to Average Working Funds 2.41 215
Liquidity
1. Govt.Securities to Total Assets 21.84 22.22
Cash to Total Assets 0.48 0.64
Total investments to Total Assets 23.10 24.70
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AT q w1 i faawor - fagsh gar |
31 = 2010 &1 o=

(Amount in Indian Rupee converted into US dollar at RBI Reference rate for two currencies applicable as on the date of
balance sheet i.e. US$ 1= Indian Rs.45.14)

ECUERREIY (VA B9d, w4 H) (Fua $ Fafaa )
Ll 485.00 107.44
gRakEt Ta st 3925.04 869.53
STRISTET 77688.21 17210.50
TR 5852.44 1296.51
3T 3TCId T ATE 2391.71 529.84
F 90342.40 20013.82
StTiRaEt

WIRE® § THs Td 9N 6698.70 1483.99
bl T IV T AT I ST AT G AT 4468.96 990.02
Fraar 20881.00 4625.83
afim 56113.51 12430.99
ST STt 355.65 78.79
o STt 1824.58 404.20
Fd 90342.40 20013.82
iRt 3FaTd 39545.23 8760.57
Tgat % e faa 4479.22 992.30
31 =t 2010 =t T a9 % U AT TE i wEn

1o

aifsa =T 6372.87 1411.80
ST T 964.62 213.70
Fd 7337.49 1625.50
Tqg

= fepam T =S 4178.13 925.59
IRETATTA S 1349.54 298.97
YL 9 JERwan 763.97 169.24
Fd 6291.64 1393.81
Fd 93.36 20.68
fafeee 300.00 66.46
Fitarers YRTATET Bl ST 262.00 58.04
ol yRfafeat @r siazer 93.36 20.68
T yRtEEr B siaRur 300.00 66.46
fasre uRfafcar @ siazor 60.00 13.29
TEITIT AT % T oaRuT grerem 2425 53.72
FATHIST T B 40.28 8.92
O U BN W ST TN 200.65 44 45
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ABRIDGED FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF ANDHRA BANK IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2010

(Amount in Indian Rupee converted into US dollar at RBI Reference rate for two currencies applicable as on the date of
balance sheet i.e. US$ 1= Indian Rs.45.14)

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES (Indian Rupees in crore) (US $ in million)
Capital 485.00 107.44
Reserves & Surplus 3925.04 869.53
Deposits 77688.21 17210.50
Borowings 5852.44 1296.51
Other liabilities & provisions 2391.71 529.84
Total 90342.40 20013.82
Assets

Cash & Balances with RBI 6698.70 1483.99
Balances with banks and monery at call and short notice 4468.96 990.02
Investments 20881.00 4625.83
Advances 56113.51 12430.99
Fixed Assets 355.65 78.79
Other Assets 1824.58 404.20
Total 90342.40 20013.82
Contingent Liabilities 39545.23 8760.57
Bills for collection 4479.22 992.30
Profit and Loss account for the year ended 31.03.2010

Income

Interest earned 6372.87 1411.80
Other Income 964.62 213.70
Total 7337.49 1625.50
Expenditure

Interest Expended 4178.13 925.59
Operating Expenses 1349.54 298.97
Provisions & Contingencies 763.97 169.24
Total 6291.64 1393.81
Appropriations

Tr to Statutory reserve 262.00 58.04
Tr to Capital reserve 93.36 20.68
Tr to Revenue reserve 300.00 66.46
Tf to Special reserve 60.00 13.29
Tr to proposed dividend 2425 53.72
Tax on dividend 40.28 8.92
Balance carried to balance sheet 200.65 44 .45
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Hiterma waar STATISTICAL PROFILE
st 1 it - Faen @ggar CLASSIFICATION OF BRANCHES - POPULATION GROUP WISE

%ﬂ/ﬂm/ﬁ.sﬂ. w2009 2009-2010 F RE Bl IR sl TR T 2010 @
Region/State/U.T. 3 T e Tl T I Rural Semi Urban Urban Metro T B I

Branches as at the  Branches Opened Branches as at the

end of March 2009 during 2009-2010 end of March 2010
S &3 Northern Region 53(1) 29 6  31(1) 45 82(1)
gRamn Haryana 11 8 3 16 19
7@ Punjab 5 5 2 5 10
T Rajasthan 5(1) 3 6(1) 8(1)
ggre (§.91.) Chandigargh (UT) 4 1 3 4
7% fgwi New Delhi 27 13 40 40
77 U FR Jammu & Kashmir 1 1 1
v W@ &= North Eastern Region 1 4 1 4 5
&|q Assam 1 3 1 3 4
Meghalaya 1 1 1
vt &7 Eastern Region 140(6) 10 39(2) 43 502) 13(2) 150(6)
fegr Bihar 3(1) 1 8(1) 9(1)
#R@e Jharkhand 6 3 4 5 9
@ Odisha 106(3) 38(2) 41 27(1) 106(3)
fafereem Sikkim 1 1 1
ufyam s West Bengal 24(2) 1 1 1 10 13(2) 25(2)
7= & Central Region 35 22 4 41 12 57
i Chattisgarh 3 4 1 7
72 e Madhya Pradesh 9 5 8 6 14
7w waar Uttar Pradesh 21 9 24 6 30
sREe Uttarakhand 2 4 3 3 6
vivam & Western Region 62(2) 22 2 7 34(1) 41(1) 84(2)
Tar Goa 4 4 4
TR Gujarat 13 4 1 9 7 17
#ermz Maharashtra 45(2) 17 1 2 25(1) 34(1) 62(2)
TR TR g Dadra Nagar Haveli (UT) 1 1 1
e &= Southern Region 1141(43) 38 381(5) 364(7) 289(21) 145(6) 1179(39)
o w391 Andhra Pradesh 1004(34) 21 375(5) 328(7)) 241(16) 81(4) 1025(32)
Ptz Karnataka 47(4) 12 1 6 16(3) 36(1) 59(4)
%@ Kerala 23(1) 13 10(1) 23(1)
dtemrg Tamilnadu 64(4) 5 5 15 21(1) 28(1) 69(2)
vifeeardt (d.9m.)Puducherry (UT) 3 2 1 3
Za Total 1432(52) 125 422(7) 430(7)  449(25) 256(9) 1557(48)
feuroit: (1) wremi § oiide fomR HEeX ghaa s . aw 2009-2010 % SRW 16 faeR w8ex o 9mar % &9 § afRafdd
o .

Note: (1) Figures in brackets indicate Extension Counters. 4 Extension Counters converted as full fledged branches during 2009-10
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ST T eIt fereror

STW & FF AW AR s Td Wl SR S aEmdiEn & e €
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUBSIDIARY *

* The Annexed Accounts of subsidiary are subject to Audit by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India

AT g BRAEA aaaq s

Andhra Bank Financial Services Ltd.
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LT g BREANEE gy fames / Andhra Bank Financial Services Ltd.

ofl gUTg gEsi, AN foa 59, ARG TReR b SURAT B S 3% JE6T SR | o1US
TR & TEANT H 3[SUHE AFH 39938 HUAT B SgHRA
Inauguration of IndiaFirst Life Insurance Company in association with Bank of Baroda and Legal & General in the presence of
Sri Pranab Mukherjee, Hon’ble Union Minister for Finance

Outreach Activity - Financig @

| g
)4 ?

8,0

-

| e —— - - . = ) - e A —

- = -~ e

i oo & % 73 ooeti e % G0 &% ¥ s e A & T 3 T G S & R

Release of “Kisan Vignana Vedika”, a bi-monthly magazine during 7th outreach programme of Reserve Bank of India
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AT b wrEAEe araad fates / Andhra Bank Financial Services Ltd.
31.03.2010 # gew = BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2010

Particulars ST 8. 31.03.2010 @ 31.03.2009 @
Schedule No. As on 31.03.2010 As on 31.03.2009
Rs. Rs.
fifer @1 @ Sources of Funds :
R 57 Share Capital 1 50,000,000 50,000,000
Rt R sfudw Reserves & Surplus 2 - -
gfoga 7 Secured Loans > -
50,000,000 50,000,000
ffer a1 fafeem Application of funds:
raw onfiar Fixed Assets 3
@ i Gross Block 3,181,953 3,181,953
et « Hae g Less: Accumulated Depreciation 3,179,735 3,179,017
faw e Net Block 2,218 2,936
g enfeat Current Assets
R ¥ i Stock in Trade 4 382,720 216,736
faferer TR Sundry Debtors 5 - -
7% U &% 9w Cash & Bank balances 6 120,800,397 111,573,662
&= arq ot Other Current Assets 7 1,008,327 1,008,327
0 3R ™ Loans & Advances 8 113,914,429 117,479,152
gw g snfeewt Total Current Assets (A) 236,105,873 230,277,877
T S T S
Current Liabilities & Provisions
arq 2@ Current Liabilities 9 924,532 955,003
g Provisions 10 368,310,677 370,185,105
3w arg sgae Total Current Liabilities (B) 369,235,209 371,140,108
faw anomtear Net Current Assets (A - B) -133,129,336 -140,862,231
- -133,129,336 -140,862,231
W Td @i wan Profit & Loss Account - Loss 183,127,118 190,859,295
50,000,000 50,000,000
weio fewmfirai Notes to Accounts 15
@ Hift: Accounting policies 16

TR HarH oAt o & et o & Schedule referred above form integral part of Accounts

P [l US dehe TAITAILH A&l WETH
FOR KISHORE & VENKAT ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

K.S.R. ANJANEYULU ANIL GIROTRA S.SURYANARAYANA RAKESH SETHI P.SRINIVAS
PARTNER CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
M.NO.216283
Place : Hyderabad V.S.N.SARMA T.UMAMAHEWARA RAO A.SUBRAHMANYAM
Date: 17-04-2010 DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY
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AT b wrEATEe araad fates / Andhra Bank Financial Services Ltd.
31 5wt 2010 Fi w9Ta a9 &1 W U g0 oen Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March 2010

feaur Particulars SCH 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
Rs. Rs.
s INCOME:
fa9r @R Investment Business 11 165,984 (126,190)
afe g s R @ [nterest on Deposits 12 10,329,026 9,692,624
3= ama Other Incomes 13 2,90,397 —
10,785,407 9,566,434
=m EXPENSES:
ke T gemEe @@Operating & Administrative Expenses 14 1,560,948 1,476,898
Teag@ Depreciation 718 1,217
1,561,666 1,478,115
% ¥ Tedl fraw @ (gif) Profit/ (loss) Before Taxation 9,223,741 8,088,319
Less: Provision for Taxation - current year 1,425,059 833,097
ST @ #R % fau greeProvision for fringe benefit tax - 8,791
Profit after tax 7,798,682 7,246,431
S JIE %X b JGHH % 00 ST Tl & ReT 3 5 T & 60 200,362
Add: Provision for taxation no longer required written back.
wE: 79 aRw ¥ % omaR Less: [ncome Tax for earlier Asst. Yrs 66,565 85,942
% % a1 @ (&) Profit / (loss) after Taxation 7,732,177 7,360,851
fire a & wman T gif:Loss bjf from previous year (190,859,295) (198,220,146)
Loss carreid to Balance Sheet (183,127,118) (190,859,295)

Earning per equity share of Rs.10 each
basic / diluted (in Rupees) 1.55 1.47

THT HT orgioEt @@ % oifu= o ¥ Schedules referred above form integral part of Accounts

Fa R Uve dewe wEiftiUTE
Tl BT
F.00. AR, g EIECBTNE| TE FEARE TR TSN . it
KIEET SreTe e % FrRy®
g. 9. 216283

CIRGRE R & I MR I U gIAvaq

Fets gae FRets HO Ao

WHE : FEE

fai® @ 17.04.2010
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faur Particulars 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
Rs. Rs.
agget SCHEDULE 1 : sist @it SHARE CAPITAL :
%. miarga 9ot Authorized Capital
(®. 10/- &% & 1,00,00,000 == 1,00,00,000 shares of Rs.10/- each) 100,000,000 100,000,000
ST, eifWee Ud gaw 9ot 5. 10/~ % 9o waw 50,00,000 et R
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Capital 50,00,000 equity shares of
Rs.10/- each fully paid up. 50,000,000 50,000,000
et SCHEDULE 2 : gwfafei ofiR sifasm RESERVES & SURPLUS ¢
@ 3R g r@rProfit & Loss Account
ST & Sr T 9. Balance b/f (190,859,295) (198,220,146)
S/ (aerd) @/ (=1+1) Add/(Less):Profit/(Loss) 7,732,177 7,360,851
(183,127,118) (190,859,295)
st SCHEDULE 3 : sm enfai FIXED ASSETS ¢
Sttt enferar Owned Assets :
e suwen Office Equipment 7,270 7,270
wrireR g fefém Furniture & Fittings 35,791 35,791
wrgex Computers 12,500 12,500
we2 ur & i ekt Assets given on lease :
o g "W Plant & Machinery 3,126,392 3,126,392
wha srd Gross Block 3,181,953 3,181,953
Herd: dfaq gerg™ Less : Accumulated Depreciation 3,179,735 3,179,017
Fraa sdts: Net Block 2,218 2,936
DEPRECIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010
As per Schedule XIV of The Companies Act, 1956 (SLM) .
(Amt. in Rs.)
Assets Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
Balance as  Additi  Deleti Total Total For the Total As on As on
on 1.4.09 ons ons as on upto year upto 31.03.10  31.3.09
during 31.03.2010 31.3.2009 31.3.2010
the
year
A. Owned Assets
Office Equipments 7,270 - - 7,270 5,797 345 6,142 1,128 1,473
Furniture & Fittings 35,791 - - 35,791 34,330 373 34,703 1,088 1,461
Computers 12,500 12,500 12,499 0 12,499 1 1
Total owned Assets 55,561 - - 55,561 52,626 718 53,344 2,217 2,935
B. Assets given on
lease
Plant & Machinery 3,126,392 - 3,126,392 3,126,391 0 3,126,391 1 1
Total A+ B 3,181,953 3,181,953 3,179,017 718 3,179,735 2,218 2,936
Previous Year 3,181,953 3,181,953 3,177,800 1,217 3,179,017 2,936 4,153
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LT g BREANEE gy fames / Andhra Bank Financial Services Ltd.

faaur Particulars 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
Rs. Rs.

et SCHEDULE 4 : =mr & ®@% STOCK-IN-TRADE :

9 e gfaufaet @ ®iF Stock of Shares & Securities:
- %ul g1 UeW ¥ wniva Already held by the company 382,720 216,736
TR A1 TR G W A W FA e (S 15 & e 4 39)

(At cost or market value whichever is less) Refer Note 4 Schedule 15 382,720 216,736

argget SCHEDULE 5 : fafwr #e” SUNDRY DEBTORS :

afa @ o/® o= T Unsecured Considered Good
® 7gM & ™ W&t Not over six months old

=R 39eR Trade Debtors = =
® °1g ¥ aifus grMOver Six months old - -

3= %0 Other Debts

arafe, dfeer amr @ Unsecured, Considered Doubtful
®: 7| & g7W Over Six months old

vee 39arR Lease Debtors (Incab Industries Ltd) 1,435,014 1,435,014

Less Provision made 1,435,014 1,435,014

agget SCHEDULE 6 : =@z iR §&% 9w CASH AND BANK BALANCES :

arq @i 9 In Current Accounts with scheduled banks 2,300,397 2,573,662
Hrndt sEmstt WX In Fixed Deposits Accounts with scheduled banks 118,500,000 109,000,000
120,800,397 111,573,662

agget SCHEDULE 7 : = =g enfeat OTHER CURRENT ASSETS :
Interest accrued on deposits with scheduled banks = =

grgterga srest =T @ Unsecured, Considered Good
Teha ° HIW % &9 H SAE TEH Te 9 B 8
Advances in cash or in kind for value to be received. 1,008,327 1,008,327

1,008,327 1,008,327

et SCHEDULE 8 : =i &k siim LOANS AND ADVANCES :
st ower 7T T Unsecured Considered Good

Yeo e ey Advance Income Tax Paid 107,260,783 110,849,673
S #- oWl ¥ Advance Tax- Fringe benefit 15,591 25,031
yfefaar W E€ima TDS on Securities 183,280 183,280
g% s WX SEima TDS on Bank Deposits 6,057,225 6,023,618
wmigr wR igeg TDS on Dividends 397,550 397,550

113,914,429 117,479,152

argget SCHEDULE 9 : =g ¥@ad CURRENT LIABILITIES :

fafeer weR @ dgAdica Sundry Creditors A/c TNPL 880,412 880,412
fafeer wveR @ dgAdica Sundry Creditors - TDS Payable 4,412 5,625
=09 % fag e Provision for expenses (Statutory & Tax Audit Fee for 2009-10) 39,708 44,010
Provision for Gratuity - 24,956

924,532 955,003
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faarur Particulars 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
Rs. Rs.
argget SCHEDULE 10 : smsmPROVISIONS :
gl % faq graers Provision for Claims 360,736,930 360,736,930
IR % fag grae Provision for Income Tax F.Y 2001-02 — 3,289,987
AT & T grae Provision for Income Tax F.Y 2007-08 5,300,000 5,300,000
AR % T grere Provision for Income Tax F.Y 2008-09 833,097 833,097
Y % fog grae Provision for Income Tax F.Y 2009-10 1,425,059 -
el % faw graem Provision for F.B.T. F.Y.2006-07 — 9,500
el % faw graem Provision for F.B.T. F.Y.2007-08 6,800 6,800
el % fau graem Provision for F.B.T. F.Y.2008-09 8,791 8,791
368310,677 370,185,105
argget SCHEDULE 11 : g =mrINVESTMENT BUSINESS :
yRfya ®fe Opening Stock 216,736 342,926
Hert: sifam w=i% Less Closing Stock 382,720 216,736
165,984 (126,190)
9ERT @i fagi: Sale of Shares - -
&1te/ =R A @ Faw Earnings/Net of Inv. business 165,984 (126,190)
ergget SCHEDULE 12 : sm1 w® ==t INTEREST ON DEPOSITS :
% w1 WX &= Interest on Bank Deposits (Gross) 10,329,026 9,692,624
(Tax deducted at source Rs.1,032,903/-
Previous year Rs.1,996,682/-) 10,329,026 9,692,624
st SCHEDULE 13 : s= sa OTHER INCOMES :
@i o Dividend Income — —
Interest on Income Tax Refund 290,397 —
290,397 —
agget SCHEDULE 14 : uitEmem iR gemafes =@
OPERATING & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
a7 iR 9w Salaries, Allowances 479,779 470,727
wwer/geel Fadmen LTC | Encashment of Leave — -
Y9 ffer @1 sislee Contribution to Provident / Pension Fund 29,868 31,547
Gratuity 24,956 24,956
T HedT @F AR fafeear @emar  Staff Welfare Expenses and Medical aid 16,964 3,900
fesran 9@ Rent- Premises 24,000 24,000
febran uiEw Rent- MD Quarters 67,452 49,501
TThEd, <A Td o Postage, Telephone & Telegrams 6,237 9,101
arEm ud ared Traveling & Conveyance 147,670 139,381
wEIEs ® TikgfEe Auditor’'s Remuneration Statutory Audit 27,575/-
Tax Audit 16,545/- 44,120 49,635
faferes we =amamfa® g Legal and Professional fees 614,959 487,951
faftrs Ta U9eR g -FeaR @d Legal & Professional - Out of pocket expenses 1,462 43,390
Hgwr ug waw geni Printing & Stationery 13,361 13,510
iR sieRwr =@ Share Transfer Expenses 693 662
fafeer =@ Miscellaneous Expenses 89,427 128,637
1,560,948 1,476,898
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g 15 @Ei W ewfmEi
1. iR HERe MEal ) & - $RYE SMERA &R &, s

ST BT TIIGROT oM &. Ifh YR U T Bl TIICROT
gom 8, 14 R 15 femar, 2009 &1 = siR el &

- & 2003-2004 % IR HUT TH WY R SAEA AR
%. fafes (Femgeidnw) & o9 faar & Fuemr .
TJent, T TS b YA % S8, AE O To & A o
Ty % AT AT i STEHIST B uRudEdr A &
AN & TG q% ST & [0 FAIIe ek U &Tan
FA B SUBER T §.

2. %) ovrd 1999 ¥ qfiaerg ~geiue Us Yoy fafes (Sremdias)

BRI &OT % [I5E TEOT AMEH aET HI T hal o
HETq Se A & [SdleT 89 % GHeT ST ST .
FUN N AL TF A » &9 N dfaar B A d%
it w1 $.6.21 ®AS. SR [BAL B A AR
HEE S =Eed | ©.10.50 B, B A1 9 B GET
& T ST FER B T Td AT FRT aRER FEh
TiferehT SER &I TR U ST F So TEed &R e
HFT TR R,

FHUT BT AR oU ) 13.7.2004 &7 55w 3T R
% fdom 99 ¥ g g2 U9 Sl B SuAdiea o Huem
% T U T &b S1EY STUT S WA B bl STeaT
fean. Srodia 3 gfaa e & o7 Free d=a@ 3 &
BRI & T S &l WeR el 6am §. A BT g1 &
@ 29.06.2005 7@ @& W R B wEwr 2006 ¥ 9%
ug faae R & ™ §. =t 20.04.2006 @ gAwEn T
g T T fehl g e, U @ige & Ud Wias %
& % w9 H 129% BT oAt & 8. 51 % ogaR, Sedea
B ATHT 5. 467 W@ AT BT B

TYTE AR gared ey B IR St ey &
% SIESIE AT STadd g 3 THUAd Wb e §
3R STaeT® Ta B Gl # §. 9% ¥ ug Raw o &
®Y F UREkid {6 T § SR A ol a% el &3 &

@) STTHTE ERT AR GhaH % HAE 8§ HEE o e SR

%.1.88 s a1 =T & T WG TSl & faxrer § s
S e G e O s < 1 o e - e | 2 2
ERT WieR 6 T oIk da  8.1.42 #Rie ud e
T % e R % &9 ¥ %.80,351 @ fa.

FHET B SR T 9X 13.07.2004 1 75| Se <
% fEdivT 39 & 98 gAais & [ o Ud Huem % o
BT Bl Th qCE & S8 STIT T T B & [T
SRy T iR ol ¥ wega fopan. Siudiee § e &
% 3% FRe® Ws@ 7 BT (VHUHTEaTe) ERT G W
HATBY B WibR &l f6an 8. 9" iR wiqaE R ge SR
fefae S9 7 smyr &1 Jw & B T ek I @ F
A T ST BT TS [6AT T §. 366 1% TR U Th

)

g 5. A 21 sy, 2010 &1 AEm Soa R &
HgY 99 % 99 oM. faem = utdie 5 & uw 9t uw
BRI ERR &1 tF € 309/01 @ @iest fman sfik g9l st
BRI &Y 31 @ U 328/01 @i stifyrs &9 ¥ =i fhar.
oTHE % AR B B 02.04.2001 & & 9% 3w
U oa @l 9.8,80,412/- 12% @i =@iities 8¢ U &1 BT
g, 05.04.2010 & Ag/ ITa ORI § 39 ST &
T T W19 SRR 6T o6 STReT % SR B9 gIRT STaT
I ST Tl (ST o FHES % 918, ST e § 571 &l
TR T (5.1.42 HIs.) BN AF] AT Aied 999 f6am S

sTaqER 1992 & @t forrr & SRl % ' A 6.45.29 @
@ el & U ol oo e ¥ AEd 3ed 3SR
fafes % fodigr & eER geedr godiT faamas (arbitrator)
%1 igfea & e diad &, 39 9, 69 g5ET fmines o
1S W Fsfigam Us wEAtEe Regaer (SemEusa) &
T J&E 9o &, &t ° s (BIFR) % d9et ot ey
B TEY HUT Bl 3N ISE WS % IE R s
AR TR HE B B AT & B ABT BEFMR T
HIRT BT W % 0T 39 qo WX Ry & @ § % pu
TEWH U TAhS ISEN [HeS B THGAET B P T
I B L §. o1 AW B PB 9T H 0T STRATTT @
T .

Ty feem mn § &R @ 04.04.2007 @ 5. 20.00
W R ged e e & 9fe meimd @ IR ar
(31.03.2009 =1 &. 1/-) g f62 T ARG & B FA T,
a9l R afowRe® B el .

HOAT o B ey ang Frm fWies () srr 1992 |
1 fRd T P ofaR HiRe M 5.4.00 FRIS B g
1997 ¥ dferen @ aR@ q& <A1 G @I, e 5 1997
H gt ud oifqd Mued % &9 § uredr & 8. qany, e
9% | GieRT B R & 9% O S % 60 & [ 8.
HUT TRT TTeal T &7 ST 5 {ohd e W) e 5 faame
Tt (e ¥ e Sae T & faaees % e
T (Frowm) & frem % e et e oy S feemrde

g.) T 1994 § e 7 916 28.9.1994 % s SHE & Aqrd
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SCHEDULE 15 : NOTES TO ACCOUNTS:

1. Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits A/c M/s. Kudremukh
Iron Ore Co Ltd. The dispute between the company and
M/s. Kudremukh Iron Ore Co Ltd [KIOCL] was settled
during the year 2003-04. However, KIOCL has reserved
right to claim on pro-rata basis along with other PSU’s in
case of surplus arising after meeting all liabilities, for the
interest from the date of maturity of Inter Corporate
Deposits up to the date of payment.

2. a) Awinding up petition against the company was filed
by Tamilnadu Newsprint and Papers Limited [TNPL]
in August 1999. The company filed an appeal before
the Division Bench of Madras High Court. The
company repaid TNPL Rs.6.21 crore being principal
and interest upto the contracted date. The company
also deposited Rs.10.50 crore with the Hon’ble Madras
High Court. The appeal filed was admitted and the
winding up petition filed by TNPL was dismissed and
treated as withdrawn by AP, High Court.

The appeal filed by the company came up for hearing
on 13.07.2004 before the Division Bench of Madras
High Court and passed the orders to permit the
company to submit its offer for settlement to TNPL
within a week and the company submitted its offer.
TNPL has informed that their Board of Directors have
not accepted the offer given by the company (ABFSL).
The case was posted for hearing on 29.06.2005 and
again in February 2006. The arguments and counter
arguments are completed. The judgment was
announced on 20.04.2006. The court has allowed 12%
as pre decree interest, pendent lite interest as well as
future interest. As per the decree TNPL has to refund
around Rs. 467 lacs.

TNPL has filed an appeal against the decision of the
Hon’ble High Court of Madras in the Hon’ble Supreme
Court. Despite opposition by the company’s counsel,
Hon’ble Supreme Court has admitted the SLP and
granted the requisite leave. Later converted into civil
appeal, which is not yet come for hearing.

b) Against the decree passed by the Madras High Court
in the case filed by TNPL, for Rs.1.88 crore plus
interest, the company filed an appeal, which is
admitted by the Division Bench Madras High Court
and Company deposited Rs.1.42 crore and Rs.80,351
being one third of the decretal amount.

The appeal filed by the company came up for hearing
on 13.07.2004 before the Division Bench of Madras
High Court and passed the orders to permit the
company to submit its offer for settlement to TNPL
within a week and the company submitted its offer.
TNPL has informed that their Board of Directors have
not accepted the offer given by the company (ABFSL).
The arguments and the counter arguments were
completed and the Division Bench reserved the
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©)

d)

e)

orders. Soon after orders were reserved, the bench
was reconstituted. Later on, one of the judges was
transferred on elevation. Since the judge was
transferred on elevation, cases were re-listed and
heard arguments and counter arguments on 14" &
15" December 2009. The matter has come up for
judgment before Madurai Bench of Madras High Court
on 21 January 2010. The Learned Judges were
pleased to dismiss the OSA 309/01 preferred by TNPL
and were pleased to partly allow OSA 328/01 filed by
our Company. As per the Judgment, Company is liable
to pay Rs.8,80,412/- @ 12% p.a. from 02.04.2001 to
TNPL till realization. On 05.04.2010, Company filed
a petition in Madras High Court with a request to refund
the money deposited earlier in the High Court (Rs.1.42
cr) along with applicable interest, after adjustment of
money to be paid by the Company as per order.

The suit filed against M/s. Incab Industries Ltd in Delhi
High Court, for realization of lease rentals amounting
to Rs.45.29 lacs since October 1992, is pending for
appointment of the third arbitrator. In the mean time
M/s Incab Industries Ltd., submitted a proposal before
the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction
[BIFR]. The company filed a petition before the Board
[BIFR] who has permitted the company to take
possession of the leased machinery with Incab
Industries Ltd. But the workers union is protesting to
take the machinery with a plea that some interested
parties are negotiating for takeover of Incab Industries
Ltd. As such, the matter is deferred for some more
time.

However, the estimated market value of the asset is
got assessed by approved valuers and is valued as
Rs.20.00 lacs as on 04.04.2007. As the carrying cost
of the machinery (Rs.1/- on 31.03.2009) is much below
the valued cost, there is no impairment loss on the
machinery.

The company repaid the total Inter Corporate Deposits
of Rs.4.00 crore placed in 1992 by M/s Mishra Dhatu
Nigam Ltd (MIDHANI) in 1997 with interest up to the
contracted date. MIDHANI acknowledged the receipt
as full and final settlement in 1997. However,
MIDHANI, subsequently, has made a claim for interest
after the contracted date. On refusal by the company
to acknowledge or pay the interest, MIDHANI has
approached the Committee On Disputes (COD) who
directed MIDHANI to Permanent Machinery of
Arbitration (PMA) with whom the matter is pending.
The company has legal opinion saying that the claim
of MIDHANI is not sustainable and hence no provision
has been made.

During the year 1994 the company has paid the
amounts of ICD 153 & 155 to Delhi Financial
Corporation to the extent of principal sum of Rs.100
lacs each, with an agreement dt.28/9/1994 that the
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YT TSN &b WA & 91, TS $B Tad1 § of o dgag i) Freier a0 2001-02 % faw # FeiRer &1 @ oA
% A AT WIEHIYEE AR B STEHs! Bl qderer fore a9 &, Saa &Y e aut 9 gefua i .4,85,766/
ARG A PN TR b S1oT % [T FHIUIE STTER R - IO 9T &, O 98 @l B gt e T R

T A AR E. iii) Frafor = : 1999-2000 : oy W9 Te EET TR
) [ <, T % UEEvE B StadH SR & HE® H SN §eM & [T BU-T SR f6d T ST B
ot a1 I TER &% aRuTEEE Rt & 9ar @ fqare afafd oRdieR ®7 &% 9@ HUN T ATE ST
¥ FaE wEAEe A s aRT arR fafe afue foge, deveme # R 18.02.2009 @t us fafeer wfee
¥ 36 % oER, & W REl il YBR & 3T & e ‘o it |, 1961 % Rt 14 ©, fem 8 €1 % &,
T 9RT 14 T % Siarta srEiga i &1 5.1,10,680/- &
%.2,77,80,538)- a% wer gu & Reiw 27.02.2007 %
i) FaRe as : 2002-03 wa 2007-08 % fow & ez @ AT ST ST § Sfd HeNe % U SR #RY gT
A ¢ = o o H, SR Y FeiRer aut & gt R A SN TR J et B ot B = Foredivr o
5.15,37,375/- amwa s @, @ 9@ @ § gt F =GR . HUA AR THRT A G AT @ S &7
fepam T R @'

B) STEH T HHE ¢
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contracted interest shall be paid after paying the
Principal and Interest amount of ICD to all other PSU's.
There was a claim for interest of Rs.7,08,000/- for the
contracted period and the company has paid the same
on 9/08/2004. However Delhi Financial Corporation
has reserved the right to claim on prorata basis along
with other PSUs in case of surplus arising after
meeting all liabilities, for the interest from the date of
maturity of ICD’s to date of payment.

Consequent to the Hon’ble Supreme Court’s judgment
upholding the judgment of Special Court, Mumbai the
Miscellaneous Petition No.36 filed by Canbank
Financial Services Ltd., for tracing of Securities, there
will be no liability on the Company.

Income Tax Matters:

i) Completion of Assessment for AY: 2002-03 & 2007-
08: During the current financial year, Company
received a refund amount of Rs.15,37,375/- relating
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to above assessment years, which was reversed in
the books of accounts.

ii) Completion of Assessment for A Y: 2001-2002.
During the current financial year, Company received
a refund amount of Rs.4,85,766/- for Assessment year
2001-2002 which was reversed in the books of
accounts.

iii) Assessment Year 1999-2000 : Consequent to
rejection of COD permission requested by the
Company, to pursue the matter in the High Court of
AP, Company filed a Miscellaneous Petition on
18.02.2009 in the ITAT, Hyderabad “Praying for a
suitable amendment of its appellate order dated
27.02.2007 as per Sec 14A Rule 8D of IT act 1961”
i.e raising the amount of disallowance u/s 14A from
Rs.1,10,680/- to Rs.2,77,80,538/-. Appellate authority
allowed company appeal during the current Financial
Year. Company is waiting for the refund from IT
Department.
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3. AEAEE 89 F diE 5 Qih i
T
T FdA Sratate
R 5. qR¥0T 5. 5.
F) WA 2,16,742 3,82,720 2,16,742 3,82,720 -
(st ot % stiws) (2,16,742)  (2,16,736) (2,16,742)  (2,16,736) -

4. MR H WH & T H W T S IR TF YU & =6 B AN AT AR Jed U AN W FHA 8, T 6 T8
ok oTeies TR @ ufyfodl & 5. 1 R ged e ™ E

TRATER 01.04.09 01.04.2009| wa/sie | wxie/Rer/fowa | fa6r 31.03.2010 31.03.2010
i afemT I 5. qiHATT wIE 5.

EUIEES 2,16,742 2,16,736 - - - 2,16,742 3,82,720

sl SR

EERRCE] (2,16,742) (3,42,926) | - - - (2,16,742) (2,16,736)

% AHS)

31.03.2010 = {63 T =UR % SUES/TATEE Al b SR W FIes AR SHaaes IR Bl YU fhaT TR §. 39% Sidied
TS ORI % T W ER Haw a9 fear o § 99 & 31.3.2010 F e O 98 % SR UH 9RRT &1 2 T8t
fepa T B.

5. yeu fRw & gt ogger 14 § afuta §.
gaer R TR % ¥ Uiagied WX § SR I aiksie Sad 8% % 4T OEH 6 STER 899 g9 U @1 OTHER &.

fererRoT 2010 2009
I Tt | ST SuE |
A AR A 479,779 470,727
yiasy e /A @i sisEr 29,868 31,547
STTATH 1,16,864 1,04,015
TASHI/GZE THHT _ —
Iz (IUEH) 24,956 24,956
Pl 6,51,467 6,31,245

6. 9fd TR T (I & sifed g7 5. 10)-)
fererRoT 2009-10 2008-09
e A () 1.55 1.47
sERpE S (5.) 1.55 1.47

T 9T BT URBAT

em @ (5. @ H) 77.32 73.61
IR & Wi of|a & (5. @r@n ®) 50.00 50.00
qa oo 9fd SR (%) 1.55 1.47
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3. Stock of Public Sector Bonds NIL

Others: Total Current Long term
Qty (Rs) Qty (Rs) (Rs)

[a] Shares 2,16,742 3,82,720 2,16,742 3,82,720 —

(Previous Year figures) (2,16,742) (2,16,736) (2,16,742) (2,16,736) —

4.  The stock of Quoted Shares & Securities held as Stock in Trade are valued at Cost or Market Value whichever is lower
and Unquoted Shares & Securities are valued at Rupee one.

Quantity wise Opening Opening Purchases Purchases/ Sales Closing Closing

Stock Stock Additions Returns/ Stock Stock
01.04.09 | 01.04.2009 Deletions 31.03.2010 | 31.03.2010

Qty. Rs. Qty. Rs.

Equity Shares 2,16,742 2,16,736 - - - 2,16,742 3,82,720

fully paid up

(Previous (2,16,742) | (3,42,926) - - - (2,16,742) | (2,16,736)

years figures)

Segregation between quoted and unquoted shares is made based on BSE/NSE bulletin for the business transacted on
31.03.2010. Further the shares are classified as unquoted, if such shares are not traded during three months period before
31.03.2010.

5.  Managing Director Remuneration included in Schedule 14.

The Managing Director is on deputation from Andhra Bank and his remuneration is in accordance with the service regulations
of the said Bank as applicable from time to time.

Particular 2010 2009

Amt in Rs. Amt in Rs.
Salaries and Allowances 479,779 4,70,727
Contribution to PF/Pension 29,868 31,547
Perquisites 1,16,864 1,04,015
LTC / Encashment of Leave 0 _—
Gratuity 24,956 24,956
Total 6,51,467 6,31,245

6. Earning per share ( face value of Rs. 10/- each )

Particular 2009-10 2008-09
Basic EPS (Rs.) 1.55 1.47
Diluted EPS (Rs.) 1.55 1.47

Calculation of Basic EPS:

Net Profit (Rs. inlacs) 77.32 73.61
Weighted Average no of shares (in lacs) 50.00 50.00
Basic Earning per share (Rs. ) 1.55 1.47
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7.

8.

0.

9 et 1997 &1 IR ST Bl & USTiRT 3 WA o1d % g1 S Rl % oTER, Wika® & U §El Siaad
(T=) daes gemn 2238/waasd  0472/2004-05 femie 28 sedt 2005 % ST9aR THEIUHETs H NR 7 &34 % g
a9 9 doweq Wi B F T B SMUR IR USTIH0T & QBT BT STEEAo= AR 6o T &, 39% sifafed wikas
I g gHivad & BT Bl 6 S 9 &l TR B [ A 9 as @l orafer % Wi bl @ fawia st & Maes @Y
ST & T U1 Bl IR ST IR foriier 98 & &9 § %rae [T ST & a1 UREHS {6 Siar 2. JagaR Huel = yae e s
BRT Sfad ke % e &E e 3.2.2005 &1 1 deobeq uikd fhar. &t 7 fBiiea w6 9ERT @ s fawim sniaar
@1 e 2. daer ¥ 09.01.2008 @1 dust 5 Hiikdw @i faciia sniaat & e & gae & § iR dus @ R e )R
facia gea % w9 ¥ i & & oY fben &, WrRa Rotd 8% 3 i 05.12.2008 @ stare ez & 6 e o= A afvta

faw axg ® RerE 9 e feon .

ol et 1956 i orgger VI & a1 % @s 3,4(%) 4 (1) 4 (3) H ot qeel ¥ e gEen o an ar o g o

HIAA B AR T, TEI (A T R

g ¥ % FEIAH B gfe F o, frew o F otiwsl B, Rl - Bl AasaH qEHA T, GG/ G/ q: safed

feen T &

10.9y=fRTER Faad e 2@/ = w1 % w9 ® 9@ A e .
F) Wt AeE qF ¢
Hee s dF A FEA W I ARG AR W E O R A e R

%A & BT [aaRuT 2010 2009
(5. BT ) (5. BT H)
1. fafr= Sl @1 SR & 5 91.85 &3rs (Tumet aw 5. 91.85 &rs)
3 M 9T T BN B IR N FET T . 01.85 01.85
2. 6 g1 %. 55 3= (Tred a¥ 5. 55 #3Ag) TaEEr FR girfe
@ TEE B WA fer TN &, §% @ @e & fb de 3 eTeean
@ g & B, 7 5 gevia. o gfrafeat sa% wm saia
&l B I TET & 55.00 55.00
F 146.85 146.85
g) 99 I[
FHH TE % feERun 2010 2009
5. AL H . FaE |
i omER = (o ®) s 10 () @1 F=9 . 10.73 11.09
ii g EteE s U9 faties Fuen |e sen 2 (@) & §eY d. 2.46 2.46
iii. omeY /i - FuRer aw 2002-03 :
(B ¥ 3 TRYT BT IWIT H AT §T STARL ST [SgAd, §a@E &
fem 20.06.2008 % S SRSt &% & =i 09.09.2008 T uReE s
e e &, femr ey 220 (2) % s B, 2,38,665/- % 9T 3T & 0 0.17
%. 21,44,100/- % w9 ¥ oifers UReiad a1 § ofeg &u ¥ 5. 17,15,199/-
BN YA B T B TN . BT T TRBEE B Tl Bl T B §T
23.09.2008 @1 v T e & iR AR SR % T oy fear §
3R THHT yiew B,
iv. o wi - e a§ 2008-09 : 0.05 0
(orgEEt 15, . 8.10 F W1 2 & 1HER)
EX 13.24 13.72
F TR I (T+h) 160.69 160.57

FUR Al e ¥ 9@ STHAR BT GRT T gl R faag &, TR oY, 3 o Jeieei o e § e g0 MRt 7 39 el
% fu & 36.07 HIe &1 JEEH HIAT [Tyl qH.
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7. As per the directions issued by Reserve Bank of India for registration of Non Banking Financial Companies on 9™
January 1997, the Company’s application for registration was rejected by RBI vide their letter No. DNBS (H)CMS No.2238/
HYQ 0472/2004-05 dt.28" January 2005 requiring the company to pass a specific Board Resolution not to carry on the
business of an Non—Banking Financial Institution. RBI further informed the company to ensure that within a period of 3
years from the date of issue of their said letter, the financial assets of the company are disposed of and the company is
converted into a Non-Banking Non-Financial Institution or is wound up. Accordingly the company passed Board Reso-
lution on 3.02.2005 to explore the course of suitable action by the Managing Director at the earliest. The company has
disposed the financial assets except the shares in Physical Form. The company has informed RBI on 09.01.2008 about
disposal of the Financial Assets and requested to treat the company as Non-Banking Non-Financial Institution. RBI

replied on 05.12.2008 that it has taken the contents mentioned there in on record.

8. Information with regard to the matters in clause 3, 4 (A), 4 (C) and 4 (D) of Part-Il of Schedule VI to the Companies
Act,1956 to the extent they are either NIL or not applicable to the Company has not been given.

9. The figures of the previous year have been regrouped/reclassified/rearranged wherever necessary to confirm the Current

Year’s presentation.
10. Contingent liabilities and Claims not acknowledged as debts.
a) Standard Chartered Bank ( SCB ):

The SCB filed various petitions on the company which the company disputed. Rs.in Crore
S Particulars of claims 2010 2009
No Rs.in Crore Rs.in Crore
1 Bankers Cheques for Rs.91.85 crore (Previous Year Rs.91.85 crore) issued
to company on account of various brokers against which the SCB alleges of
not receiving due consideration 91.85 91.85
2 Rs.55.00 crore (Previous Year Rs.55.00 crore) paid towards purchase of
securities by the SCB. SCB alleges that the company has given a copy of letter
of allotment and not the original and hence the securities could not be 55.00 55.00
transferred in its name.
Total 146.85 146.85
b) Other claims
S Particulars of claims 2010 2009
No Rs.in Crore Rs.in Crore
i. Income Tax demand (in appeal) Refer note 10 (c) 10.73 11.09
ii. Tamilnadu Newsprints & Papers Ltd refer note No.2 (b) 2.46 2.46
i Income Tax demand - Assessment Year 2002-03:
(Company received a consequential order dated 09.09.2008 consequent to the 0 0.17
Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench order dated 20.06.2008 giving
effect to this order. The department over calculated the interest payable under
section 220(2) as Rs.21,44,100/- instead of Rs.2,38,665/- thus demanding a
payment of Rs.17,15,199/- from the company. The company has submitted a
letter on 23.09.2008 explaining the mistake in the calculation and requested for
rectification order and the same is awaited).
iv. Income Tax demand - Assessment Year 2008-09:
(Details as per Schedule 15, Point No.10 C. Paragraph 2) 0.05 0
Total 13.24 13.72
Total Contingent Liabilities (a+b) 160.09 160.57

All the claims have been disputed by the company as explained in the notes above. However the Directors considering the

complexity of the claims, felt it prudent to provide for these liabilities for Rs.36.07 crore.
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M F (EH) (THER)

FemRor a9 o o ST FHA H
1995-96 1994-95 2,83,11,822
1996-97 1995-96 4,35,81,300
1997-98 1996-97 3,02,57,801
2000-01 1999-00 7,08,750
2008-09 2007-08 39,00,000
2010-11 2009-10 5,01,110

P 10,72,60,783
SRM R (TgEh W #) (THER)

Ferizor faciar o fer oAt |
2008-09 2007-08 6,800
2010-11 2009-10 8,791

o 15,591
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Advance Tax (Income Tax) (Year-wise)

AY Financial Year Amount in Rs.
1995-96 1994-95 28,311,822
1996-97 1995-96 43,581,300
1997-98 1996-97 30,257,801
2000-01 1999-00 708,750
2008-09 2007-08 3,900,000
2010-11 2009-10 501,110

Total 107,260,783
Advance Tax (F B T) (Year-wise)

AY Financial Year Amount in Rs.
2008-09 2007-08 6,800
2009-10 2008-09 8,791

Total 15,591
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Value of Shares and Securities as on 31.03.2010

Quantitative Analysis of Stock of Shares and Securities per scrip

A: Shares, which are in physical form but not dematerialised and unquoted as on 31.03.2010 (wifer wudi & Amt in Rs.)

&9 " fmm [t SR @ T I UG AT T AR & AR T @G A AR qed "Em Qty. AT A AR T

S1 No Name of the Srip / Equity Shares Quantity Cost Cost Mkt. Rate  Mkt. Value St T B & 31.03.2009 ST & &Y

31.03.2010 Value 31.03.2010  31.03.2010 Cost or Mkt. Cost or Mkt.

Value whichever Value whichever
is less 31.03.2010 is less 31.03.2009

1 onyfe feafeaw fa. Adhunik Synthetics Ltd 3,000 50.00 150,000.00 1.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000 3,000.00

2 offew #feem f@. Akhil Ceramics Ltd. 5,000 28.75  143,750.00 1.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000 5,000.00

3 omwe fa. Arlabs Ltd. 5,000 150.00  750,000.00 1.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000 5,000.00

4 A wETHe fa. Aryan Finefab Ltd. 11,400 56.25 641,250.00 1.00 11,400.00 11,400.00 11,400 11,400.00

5 e faed f@. Bhishma Realty Ltd. 3 - - - - = 3 -

6 e fawr fi. Capricon Realty Ltd. 3 - - - - - 3 -

7  @mem smiteE fq. Cepham Organics Ltd. 6,600 40.00  264,000.00 1.00 6,600.00 6,600.00 6,600 6,600.00

8 g dme fa. Dhar Cement Ltd. 20,300 100.00 2,030,000.00 1.00 20,300.00 20,300.00 20,300 20,300.00

9 sz (Efem) fa. Electra (India) Ltd. 3,300 37.50 123,750.00 1.00 3,300.00 3,300.00 3,300 3,300.00

10 o e Heaw fo. Gujarat Telephone Cables Ltd.* 46,350 28.75 1,352,688.00 1.00 46,850.00 46,850.00 46,850 46,350.00

11 wauastt g5 @ HMG Industries Ltd. 4,600 87.50  402,500.00 1.00 4,600.00 4,600.00 4,600 4,600.00

12 =1 Tew uewitren fo. g2 Tw

Indo Gulf Explosives Ltd./ (Indo Gulf Corp Ltd) 4,850 130.00  630,500.00 1.00 4,850.00 4,850.00 4,850 4,850.00

13 g $Sifwafér & . Kunal Engineering Co. Ltd. 450 170.00  76,500.00 1.00 450.00 450.00 450 450.00
14 = drme 2eersa e fa. Niranjan Piramal Textile Mills Ltd. 8,333 1.00 8,333.00 1.00 8,333.00 8,333.00 8,333 8,333.00
15 <rar gt smfeam fa Nova Electro Magnetics Ltd. 55,400 51.25 2,839,250.00 1.00 55,400.00 55,400.00 55,400 55,400.00
16 == gza fa. Prestige Foods Ltd. 2,700 145.00  391,500.00 1.00 2,700.00 2,700.00 2,700 2,700.00
17 9= wamw ured de faPrestige HM-Poly containers Ltd. 5,000 4250 212,500.00 1.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000 5,000.00
18  wmem e@ere fa. Pyarelal Text tile Ltd. 8,333 1.00 8,333.00 1.00 8,333.00 8,333.00 8,333 8,333.00
19 Y wféeee™ fa. Rampur Fertilizers Ltd. 240 80.00  19,200.00 1.00 240.00 240.00 240 240.00
20 =it 39 s =i fa. Shri Ishar Alloy  Steels Ltd. 2,000 67.50  135.000.00 1.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000 2,000.00
21 fauri st f@ Sipani Auto Mobiles Ltd. 2,100 50.00  105,000.00 1.00 2,100.00 2,100.00 2,100 2,100.00
195,462 10,284,054.00 = 195,456.00 195,456.00 195,462 195,456.00

B: Shares, which are in demateralized form as on 31.03.2010

22 oY dwmera faww fa. Ashnoor Textile Mills Ltd. 21,280 89.29 1,900,000.00 8.80  187,264.00 187,264.00 21,280 21,280.00

Total of A and B 216,742 12,184,054.00 382,720.00 382,720.00 216,742 216,736.00

* Sent to SHCIL for dematerialisation
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A 16 : HEeel wen At
%, v fae
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il T, % @ B2 a¥ F Ber g 8, T W P ST
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g. 9. 216283
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M : EE
fes ¢ 17.04.2010

204



LT g BREANEE g fames / Andhra Bank Financial Services Ltd.

SCHEDULE 16 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. LEASE FINANCE :

The company recognizes lease rentals in the year in
which it fallen due. The lease processing charges, man-
agement fee and other service charges considered as
income on execution of agreements.

B. HIRE PURCHASE :

The income on hire purchase transactions by way of fi-
nance charges is arrived at on the basis of straight line
method.

C. INVESTMENT BUSINESS :
Purchase and Sale of securities are accounted on execu

tion of contracts.

D. INTEREST:

[1] Interestand other dues are not recognised until received
on the grounds of prudence in respect of debts and
claims.

1. Where suits have been filed.
2. Where accounts are considered doubtful.

3. Where parties are facing prolonged financial
difficulties.

[2] Interest on Investments

Interest on securities and dividend on share are not
recognised until the claims and counter claims if any,
pending on such securities are cleared.

Dividend Income on Shares is recognised when the own-
ers right to receive payment is established.

Revenue is not recognised on the grounds of prudence,
until resolved in respect of consolidation damages, pen-
alties, delayed payment charges as recovery of the
amounts is not certain.

E. FIXED ASSETS :

All fixed assets including assets given on lease are valued at
cost.

H. DEPRECIATION
1. Assets for own use.

Depreciation is provided on straight-line method on pro rata
basis in accordance with rates prescribed under Schedule
XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

2. Assets leased out.

Depreciation is provided on straight line method on pro rata
basis in accordance with rates prescribed under Schedule
X1V of the Companies Act, 1956 or writing off at 95% of the
cost of the asset over the primary lease period in proportion
of lease rentals earned during the year to total rentals for the
entire primary lease period, whichever is higher.

The machinery under lease to M/s. Incab Industries Ltd is
not put to use during this year also. However the company
has provided depreciation during this year as per the new
Accounting Standards of ICAI.

I. Miscellaneous Expenditure.

All expenditure the benefit of which is spread over a number
of years is grouped under this account and is amortized over
number of years on the basis of estimated benefit derived in
each such year.

As per our report of even date

Hd {halR UT dehe TAIMICH T9El AR
FOR KISHORE & VENKAT ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

K.S.R.ANJANEYULU ANIL GIROTRA S.SURYANARAYANA RAKESH SETHI P.SRINIVAS
PARTNER CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
M.NO.216283
Place : Hyderabad V.S.N.SARMA T.UMAMAHEWARA RAO A.SUBRAHMANYAM
Date: 17-04-2010 DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY
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Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile

l. Registration Details
Registration No. 12376
State Code 01
Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2010

Il Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Public Issue —
Rights Issue -
Bonus Issue -
Private Placement —

Il Position of Mobilization and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs.Thousands)
Total Liabilities 50,000
Total Assets 50,000

Sources of Funds
Paid-up Capital 50,000

Reserves & Surplus —
Secured Loans —
Unsecured Loans —

Application of Funds

Net Fixed Assets 2
Investments —
Net Current Assets (133,129)
Misc. Expenditure —
Accumulated Losses 183,127
V. Performance of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Turnover 10,786
Total Expenditure 1,561
(+)/ (-) Profit/Loss before tax 9,225
(+)/(-) Profit/Loss after tax 7,732
Earnings per share Rs. 1.55

V. Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of Company
(as per monetary terms)
Item Code No. —
Product Description Hire purchase and Leasing

P (MY US dehe TAIAILH T9al WE@THR
FOR KISHORE & VENKAT ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

K.S.R.ANJANEYULU ANIL GIROTRA S.SURYANARAYANA RAKESH SETHI P.SRINIVAS
PARTNER CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
M.NO.216283
Place : Hyderabad V.S.N.SARMA T.UMAMAHEWARA RAO A.SUBRAHMANYAM
Date: 17-04-2010 DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY

207



q’ 4T 5 ANDHRA BANK

LT g BREANEE gy fames / Andhra Bank Financial Services Ltd.

fRemrt @ e 2009-10

TEE @,
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(e 5. @@ )
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o AR JeEE A 15.61 14.77
T g & 99 @rd 92.25 80.89
T T 0.01 0.01
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Directors’ Report 2009-10

To the Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 19" Annual Report
of the Company together with the Audited Statement of
Accounts for the year ended 315t March, 2010.

The Financial Highlights of the Company for the year ended
315t March, 2010 is summarized below:

(Amount in lacs )

2009-10 2008-09
Total Income 107.86 95.66
Operating and Administrative 15.61 14.77
Expenses
Profit before depreciation 92.25 80.89
Less : Depreciation 0.01 0.01
Profit before tax 92.24 80.88
Less : Provision for Current Taxation 14.25 8.33
Less : Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax 0 0.09
Profit after tax 77.99 72.46
Add :Balance in the Profit & (1908.60) (1982.20)
Loss Alc
Add :Excess provision for tax 0 2.00
for earlier years
Less : Income tax for earlier 0.67 0.86

Asst. Years

Balance in P & L A/c to be carried (1831.28) (1908.60)
to Balance Sheet

1. Review of Operations:

The income mainly consists of interest on Bank Deposits.
The company earned a profit of Rs.77.99 lacs during the year
2009-10 ( Rs.72.46 lacs Profit in 2008-09 ) after providing
for depreciation and Income Tax and Fringe Benefit Tax.The
company still carries an accumulated loss of Rs.1831.28 lacs
as on 31t March, 2010 ( Rs.1908.60 lacs loss in 2008-09 ).

2. Public Deposits:

At present Company is not holding any Public Deposits.
During the year 2009-10, the company has not accepted any
deposits from the public within the meaning of provisions of
Non-Banking Financial Companies ( Reserve Bank)
Directions, 1998. The Board of Directors of the company also
resolved not to accept any Public Deposits during the year
2010-11.

3. Board of Directors:

Shri AL Nageswara Rao, Director, who has been on the Board
since 19.07.2001, resigned from the Board on account of his
superannuation from Andhra Bank as General Manager and
the same was accepted w e f 23.10.2009.

Shri K Ranganath, Director who has been on the Board since
30.08.2008, resigned from the Board on account of his pre-
occupation and the same was accepted w e f 23.10.2009.
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Shri P Sriniavas, General Manager, and Shri V S N Sarma,
Deputy General Manager of Andhra Bank have been
appointed as Additional Directors of the Company on
23.10.2009. As per the provisions of section 260 of the
Companies Act 1956, these Directors hold the office upto the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Shri T.Uma Maheswara Rao, was reappointed as Managing
Director of the Company (who is on deputation from Andhra
Bank) from 12.07.2009 to 06.07.2010.

As per the Articles of Association of the company, Shri
S.Suryanarayana, Director, retires by rotation in the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and he being eligible
offers him self for reappointment.

4. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption,
Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo:

The particulars relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo, as
required to be disclosed under Section 217 (1) (e) of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies ( Disclosure
of particulars in the Report of Board of Directors ) Rules,
1988 are either NIL or are not applicable.

5. Particulars of Employees:

As required under Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act,
1956 read with the Companies ( Particulars of Employees)
Rules, 1975 as amended may be treated as ‘NIL" as no
Employee of the Company is drawing a remuneration of
Rs.24,00,000/- p.a. or Rs.2,00,000/- p.m.

6. Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217 (2AA) of the
Companies Act, 1956 with respect to Directors’ Responsibility
Statement, the Directors hereby confirm that :

(i) in the preparation of the Accounts for the Financial Year
ended 31st March 2010, the applicable Accounting
Standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(iiy they have selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at the
end of the financial year and of the profit / loss of the
company for the Financial Year;

(iii) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) the directors have prepared the Annual Accounts for the
financial year ended 31st March 2010 on a ‘going concern’
basis.

7. Audit Committee:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 292 A of the
Companies, Act 1956, the Company has constituted/re-
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constituted an Audit Committee comprising of the following
Directors at present:

1. Shri S Suryanarayana : Director
2. Shri Rakesh Sethi : Director
3. Shri P.Srinivas : Director
4.ShriV S N Sarma : Director

8. Auditors

M/s.Kishore & Venkat Associates, Chartered Accountants,
Hyderabad have been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India for
the financial year 2009-10. The provisions of Section 619 (B)
of the Companies Act, 1956 are applicable to the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

KISHORE & VENKAT ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

To

The Members

Andhra Bank Financial Services Ltd
Hyderabad

We have audited the Balance Sheet of Andhra Bank Finan-
cial Services Ltd as on 315 March, 2010 and the Profit and
Loss account for the year ended on that date and annexed
thereof. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing
standards generally accepted in India. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining
on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
sures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

1 The Company has repaid Inter-Corporate Deposit with
interest to the date of maturity. Few depositors claimed
for interest after the contracted date and upto the date of
repayment. Such claims have not been acknowledged
by the company nor recognized as contingent liabilities.
In our opinion these claims are to be considered as con-
tingent liabilities, however we are unable to quantify the
interest in the absence of information

2 As required by the Non Banking Financial Companies
Auditors’ [Reserve Bank] Directions, 1998 we further state
that we have submitted a report to the Board of Directors
of the Company containing a statement on the matters of
the supervisory concern to the Reserve Bank of India as
specified in the said directions:

3 The company, incorporated prior to January 9, 1997 has
applied for registration as provided in section 56 IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 [2 of 1934] and has
received a communication dt.28.1.2005 from the Reserve
Bank of India rejecting the application for certificate of
registration as an NBFI.

Attention is invited to note No 7 of schedule15. As per the
directions of RBI vide their Lr dt.28.01.2005, the company
had disposed off all its financial assets except certain shares
which are in physical form. Further, the company has ap-
proached RBI vide Lr dt. 09.01.2008 with a request to treat it
as Non Banking Non Financial Institution. RBI replied on
05.12.2008 that it has taken the contents mentioned there in
on record.
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B The board of directors of the company has passed a reso-
lution for non-acceptance of any public deposits.

B The company has not accepted any public deposits dur-
ing the year under reference.

B The company has complied with prudential norms relat-
ing to the Income recognition, accounting standards, as-
set classification and provision of bad and doubtful debts
as applicable to it.

B As required by the Companies [Auditors’ Report] Order,
2003 [CARO 2003], issued by the Company Law Board
in terms of Section 227 [4A] of the Companies Act, 1956,
we give in the annexure, a statement on the matters speci-
fied in the said order.

B Subject to our comments in the paras referred to above,
we report that:

® \We have obtained all the information and explana-
tions, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

® |n our opinion, proper books of account have been
kept by the company as required by law so far, as
appears from our examination of these books.

® The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account
dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account.

® |n our opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and
Loss Account comply with the Accounting Standards
referred in sub-section [3C] of Section 211, of the Com-
panies Act, 1956.

® As per the representation made by the Company and
all its directors, no director is disqualified from being
appointed as director of the company under clause
[g] of sub-section [1] of Section 274 of the Companies
Act, 1956.

® Explanations given to us, the said accounts read to-
gether with the notes annexed thereto, give informa-
tion required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the man-
ner so required subject to our comments referred to
above and give a true and fair view.

— In the case of Balance Sheet of the State of Affairs of the
company as at 31st March 2010 and

— In the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the
Company for the year ended on that date.
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report dated 17.04.2010.

a) The company is maintaining proper records showing
full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets including that of leased assets.

b) These fixed assets have been physically verified by
the management at reasonable intervals, other than
those assets that have been leased out by the
company. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

c) No part of fixed assets has been disposed off during
the year.

a) Physical verification of inventory shares, scrip, bonds,
has been conducted at reasonable intervals by man-

agement.

b) In our opinion the procedures for physical verifiction
of inventory followed by the management is
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the
company and the nature of its business.

c) The Company is maintaining proper records of
inventory-Shares and Scrips. No material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification of
the Share and Bonds.

The company has not taken / granted any loans, secured
or unsecured to or from companies, firms, or ther parties
covered with the register maintained under section 301
of the Companies Act 1956.

There is an adequate internal control procedure
commensurate with the size of the company and the na-
ture of business, for the purchase of inventory and fixed
assets and for the sale of Scrips, shares, and bonds.

There are no transactions that need to be entered into a
register in pursuance of section 301 of The Companies
Act, 1956;

The company has not accepted deposits from the public.

The company has no internal audit system. However,the
internal control procedures in place are commensurate
with its size and nature of business.
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viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 17.04.2010

The company is not required to maintain cost records
under section 209[1][d] of The Companies Act, 1956.

a) As per the information and explanation furnished to
us, in our opinion the Provident Fund and Employees
State Insurance Act, are not applicable to the com-
pany.

b) The company has gone in appeal against the income
tax Assessment orders for the Assessment Years
1993-94 to 2000-01 and 2008-09

The company is incorporated in the year 1991 and the
accumulated losses at the end of the financial year end-
ing 31st March 2010 are more than 50% of its net worth
but have earned profit for the current financial year.

Year wise accumulated losses are as follows.

Assessment Year Cash losses after
adjustments
2003-04 Rs. 10,47,45,338.00
2004-05 Rs. 37,33,598.00
2007-08 Rs. 23,54,633.00

No Loans have been granted on the basis of Security of
Shares, debentures and other securities.

The company has dealt in shares, securities and proper
records have been maintained of the transactions and
contracts and timely entries have been made therein;
also the shares, securities, and other securities have
been held by the company, in its own name.

The company has not given any guarantee for loans by
others from bank or financial institutions;

No funds have been raised on the short-term basis and
have been used for long-term investment and vice-
versa;

No preferential shares are available for allotment.

No fraud on or by the company has been noticed or
reported during the year;

The paragraphs No 11,13,16,19 & 20 of Companies
(auditor’s report ) order, 2003 are not applicable to this
company.

For KISHORE & VENKAT ASSOCAITES
Chartered Accountants
K. S. R. ANJANEYULU
Partner

Membership No.216283
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Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended 31st March 2010

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received
Interest paid
Dividends paid
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from returns on investments and servicing of finance
Taxation
Corporation tax paid
Tax paid (17,32,744 — 10,32,903 - 5,01,110)
Investing activities
Payments to acquire intangible fixed assets
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets
Receipts from sales of tangible fixed assets
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from investing activities
Net cash inflow before financing
Financing
Issue of ordinary capital
Repurchase of debenture loan
Expenses paid in connection with share issues
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from financing
Increase/ (Beereasey in cash and cash equivalents
NOTES ON THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
1. Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

Operating profit

Depreciation charges

Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets

Increase/deerease) in stocks

Increase/(decrease) in debtors

inerease/(decrease) in creditors

Net cash inflow from operating activities

2. Analysis of changes in cash and cash equivalents during the year

Balance at 15t April 2009

Net cash inflow

Balance at 31% March 2010

3. Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents as shown in the balance sheet

31.03.2010

Rs.

Cash at bank and in hand 12,08,00,397
Short term investments 0
Bank overdrafts 0
12,08,00,397

4. Analysis of changes in finance during the year Share capital
Rs.

Balance at 1%t April 2009 5,00,00,000
Cash inflow/(outflow) from financing 0
Profit on repurchase of debenture loan for less than its book value 0
Balance at 31t March 2010 5,00,00,000

Rs

o

1,98,731

Rs.

Rs.

31.03.2009
Rs.
11,15,73,662
0

0
11,15,73,662
Debenture loan
Rs.

0

0

0

0

Rs
90,28,004

1,98,731

0
92,26,735

0
92,26,735

Rs.
92,23,741
718

0
-1,65,984
0

-30,471
90,28,004

Rs.
11,15,73,662
92,26,735
12,08,00,397

Change in year
Rs.

92,26,735

0

0

92,26,735

Note: Any transactions which do not result in a cash flow should not be reported in the statement. Movements within cash or cash equiva-

lents should not be reported.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
ANDHRA BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
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31 urt 2010 F T <k TH 3HH AJEATAT BT FEERA eI
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET OF ANDHRA BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARY AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2010
(%. 000 & Rs in 000s)

faa=or Particulars ST . 31.03.2010 =t 31.03.2009 @
Schedule No. As on 31.03.2010 As on 31.03.2009
fifr @1 @@ SOURCE OF FUNDS
T CAPITAL 1 4,850,000 4,850,000
IRttt @k aaew RESERVES & SURPLUS 2 39,417,942 31,749,244
Rttt DEPOSITS 3 776,761,276 593,788,622
3arR BORROWINGS 4 58,524,426 33,512,348
& e &R sea OTHER LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS 5 24,278,747 21,171,291
Fa TOTAL 903,832,391 685,071,505
fiferar @t faf=ie APPLICATION OF FUNDS
e T9 WRa e 9% % 99 CASH AND BALANCES WITH
RESERVE BANK OF INDIA 6 66,986,980 48,533,389
T 7 99 SR AT @ o gom )y e BALANCES WITH
BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE 7 44,689,587 4,341,625
fraer INVESTMENTS 8 209,111,003 169,381,508
s ADVANCES 9 561,135,072 441,392,597
e entear FIXED ASSETS 10 3,556,569 3,352,954
o et OTHER ASSETS 11 18,353,180 18,069,432
Fw TOTAL 903,832,391 685,071,505
amepts gt CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 12 397,053,222 314,232,764
e & foe fa@ BILLS FOR COLLECTION 44,792,185 45,865,416
Hecaqut wan it Significant Accounting Policies 17
wEl ¥ feueft Notes on Accounts 18
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of Balance Sheet. As per our report of even date attached to the Balance Sheet.
AR TH I st fEn TU a™
e 9 989 R BRI MSIh PRI ST
(REEIED g fiframa
mefereeT 9. gpa & Hgga<d 41 Tg THHUH el J§€h
B 9h1sT I JaT T AT SR TR & tg dgEgEr ST arged g
% TGIEA 9 HEl 99UH TEUS Tl ISEDh
P T AT A & TF Hisar UwS G I % % °Z TS HUA
TG AETHR TG WD TG DR
T% &R TF - 309090 3 T % AR A - 001652 ©wq % AR ud - 00134 ©q
(G =) (Tq % fean) &% ©g)
TEErR (@ §.059828) qEER (F §.52579) TEeErR (7 9.12250)
A % TH HHWT TIS BT T U Fd 9 WS JHE
TEEl D el AT FEEl D
TH R TF - 02888 wa T % AR uq - 02910 ©wq % AR TF - 003475 wa
(Ta  enfg FRmEwN) (S argeaT) (Tqg T
FEER (T §.80976) FEER (¥ 9.20739) FEER (T §.22738)
M : LEEE

fotie : 29.04.2010
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT OF ANDHRA BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED

31ST MARCH, 2010

(. 000 & Rs in ‘000s)

ferazor  Particulars ST . 31.03.2010 =t 31.03.2009 =t
Schedule No. ~ Year Ended 31.03.2010  Year Ended 31.03.2009
s INCOME
atfta =1 INTEREST EARNED 13 63,728,948 53,746,168
&= s OTHER INCOME 14 9,646,366 7,653,698
g TOTAL 73,375,314 61,399,866
=@ EXPENDITURE
=g fean @ s INTEREST EXPENDED 15 41,770,958 37,467,427
Raes =@ OPERATING EXPENSES 16 13,496,912 11,044,056
e AR SRS =
PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES 7,641,229 6,350,510
Fa TOTAL 62,909,099 54,861,993
SHARE OF EARNINGS IN ASSOCIATES 30,464 22,658
CONSOLIDATED NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10,496,679 6,560,531
BROUGHT FORWARD CONSOLIDATED PROFIT 1,396,007 625,893
g TOTAL ATTRIBUTABLE PROFIT 11,892,686 7,186,424
faf=sm APPROPRIATIONS
Hifateres yRiEfaEn 1 siazer Transfer to Statutory Reserve 2,637,576 1,638,200
qeil URfAfaar @1 siawur Transfer to Capital Reserve 933,600 1,082,000
I T S URTAREN BT SiaRuT
Transfer to Revenue & Other Reserves 3,018,900 516,801
Transfer to Special under IT Act 600,000 0
yEataa @Hier Proposed Dividend 2,425,000 2,182,500
AT WX %X Tax on Dividend 402,762 370,916
@ 9= &I @ S @ S Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 1,874,848 1,396,007
g TOTAL 11,892,686 7,186,424
HAeaqut @@ Aifaat Significant Accounting Policies 17
vl W feweit Notes on Accounts 18
Earning per share (Basic and Diluted) Rs. 21.64 13.57
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of Balance Sheet. As per our report of even date
R.S. Reddy Anil Girotra A.A. Taj
Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director Executive Director
Directors P. Srinivas
Madhulika P. Sukul B. Maheshwaran V.H. Ramakrishnan General Manager
Prem Prakash Pareek  Shaibal Gupta Rajib Sekhar Sahoo T.V.S. Chandrasekhar G. Vasudeva Murty

K. Raghuraman

Deputy General Manager

Asst. General Manager

For NUNDI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN-309090E
(Soumen Nandi)
Partner (M.No.059828)

For K.S.RAMAKRISHNA & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN-02888S
(S Adinarayana)
Partner (M No. 80976)

Place : Hyderabad
Date :29.04.2010

For B.N. KEDIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN-001652N
(S.K. Kedia)
Partner (M. No. 52579)
For RAMAN ASSOCIATE
Chartered Accountants
FRN-02910S
(G. Vasudevan)
Partner (M. No.20739)
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For KK.GHEI & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN-001342N
(K K Ghei)
Partner (M.No. 12250)
For RAJU & PRASAD
Chartered Accountants
FRN-003475S
(S.Ranganathan)
Partner (M. No.22738)
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31 s 2010 * FAfRT AT FT TF W T4 AT A
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2010
(8. 000 & Rs in ‘000s)

faa=or Particulars 31.03.2010 = 31.03.2009 =
As on 31.03.2010 As on 31.03.2009

gt SCHEDULE-1: iVﬁ CAPITAL

yiterga 3t AUTHORISED CAPITAL

300,00,00,000 . 10 & 5 afeaer AR

300,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 30,000,000 15,000,000

(150,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each in previous year)

fifira, sfiem, qamg T oiR waw g

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED, CALLED UP AND PAID UP

% TR % wime & 10 % 25,00,00,000 e . 48,50,00,000

%, 10 %1 5o e Ja3 aa

48,50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each (Including

25,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/ each held by Central Government). 4,850,000 4,850,000
ga TOTAL 4,850,000 4,850,000

aggeh SCHEDULE- 2 :: arfafeat siw afasw RESERVES AND SURPLUS

. wifafess arfafeat STATUTORY RESERVE

fagw Opening Balance 11,152,165 9,513,965
gftags ADDITION DURING THE YEAR 2,637,576 1,638,200
Za Total-I 13,789,741 11,152,165
1L ‘ivﬁ yriafeat CAPITAL RESERVES

fagm Opening Balance 2,516,371 1,434,371
g@s ADDITION DURING THE YEAR 933,600 1,082,000
Za Total-II 3,449,971 2,516,371
III. s dfmw SHARE PREMIUM 6,800,000 6,800,000
= Total-I1T 6,800,000 6,800,000
IV 7w grfafaai REVENUE RESERVE

fagiw Opening Balance 8,444,701 8,427,953
g@sw ADDITION DURING THE YEAR 3,018,900 16,800
T : FEMfeat Less : Deductions 219 52
@ Total-IV 11,463,382 8,444,701
V. sy wwfafi SPECIAL RESERVE Ufs 36 (1) (vii) of IT ACT

fagm Opening Balance 1,440,000 940,000
gftagw ADDITION DURING THE YEAR 600,000 500,000
weT ; FAfaat Less : Deductions 0 0
Za Total-V 2,040,000 1,440,000
VI wmw wd g1 @@ & stw BALANCE IN PROFIT & LOSS A/C 1,874,848 1,396,007
g gt TOTAL SCHEDULE-2 39,417,942 31,749,244
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31 =t 2010 =t st S Ud THAN AR 1 qARA A

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2010

(8. 000 % Rs in ‘000s)

feazor  Particulars

31.03.2010 =
As on 31.03.2010

31.03.2009 =
As on 31.03.2009

swgrh SCHEDULE- 3 :: st DEPOSITS
1 I-A. i s DEMAND DEPOSITS
i) ¥ & FROM BANKS
ii) =i % FROM OTHERS
7w TOTAL(-A)
& 1-B. @ &% wni SAVINGS BANK DEPOSITS
i) ¥ # FROM BANKS
ii) =i % FROM OTHERS
w TOTAL(-B)
I-C. et sy TERM DEPOSITS
i) ¥ % FROM BANKS
ii) =i % FROM OTHERS
w TOTAL (I-C.)
7w TOTAL-L
1A, i) w"a @ smawei § st DEPOSITS OF BRANCHES IN INDIA
1B i) %7 % a@d smaei # s DEPOSITS OF BRANCHES OUTSIDE INDIA
7w TOTALI
@ s TOTAL SCHEDULE-3
s SCHEDULE - 4 : 3a% BORROWINGS
. wra & 9a® BORROWINGS IN INDIA

i) wdn frd §% FROM RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

ii) 37 §& FROM OTHER BANKS

iii) o7 &en #R weEt OTHER INSTITUTIONS AND AGENCIES
(Including Subordinated/IPDB/Upper Tier-II Debts/Bonds)

Il  wra % et 9ar BORROWINGS OUTSIDE INDIA
@ s TOTAL SCHEDULE-4

At SCHEDULE - 5 :: o1 3 sit? e
OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

L. g few@ BILLS PAYABLE

[I. o Frwy sy (Feaw) INTER OFFICE ADJUSTMENTS (NET)
[I. @ufug &= INTEREST ACCRUED

IV.  CONTIGENT PROVISIONS AGAINST STANDARD ASSETS
V. &= (wmsw waa) OTHERS (Including Provisions)

g« arggdt TOTAL SCHEDULE-S
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1,030,693 997,981
66,429,536 51,155,986
67,460,229 52,153,967

0 0
161,180,814 134,377,763
161,180,814 134,377,763

2,293,610 887,052

545,826,623 406,369,840
548,120,233 407,256,892
776,761,276 593,788,622
776,761,276 593,788,622

0 0
776,761,276 593,788,622
776,761,276 593,788,622

0 0

57 872
41,728,056 29,350,703
10,796,313 4,160,773
58,524,426 33,512,348

9,086,660 8,475,751

0 0

1,821,233 1,956,576

2,725 341 1,933,406
10,645,513 8,805,558
24,278,747 21,171,291
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31 wrt 2010 ' FARFT AT FT TEF AR I A STgArra
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2010
(8. 000 & Rs in ‘000s)
faeor Particulars 31.03.2010 = 31.03.2009 @
As on 31.03.2010 As on 31.03.2009

gt SCHEDULE - 6
T T WRAE o 9% & /e 9
CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

I. @5 CASH IN HAND (fRsft #%&r e afea Including Foreign Currency Notes) 4,299,906 4,359,194
[I. s ford & % @ ;9 BALANCE WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA
i) g @ & IN CURRENT ACCOUNTS 62,687,074 44,174,195
ii) o= @ & IN OTHER ACCOUNTS 0 0
Fa sggat TOTAL SCHEDULE - 6 66,986,980 48,533,389

argget SCHEDULE - 7 :: < & 1w ofiR #f a1 o7 e W qt o
T & 9w TE A AR A I R A
BALANCES WITH BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE
. wwa % IN INDIA
i) &t & sm BALANCES WITH BANKS

7 ) @ @i & IN CURRENT ACCOUNTS 1,261,585 1,871,001

4 b) o @i # IN OTHER ACCOUNTS 42,051,928 76,130

a TOTAL B313513 1,947,131

i) w7 oie o geen W o @ MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE

v ) ¥a % ww WITH BANKS 0 0

4 b) o= emet % @ WITH OTHER INSTITUTIONS 0 0

a TOTAL 0 0
g TOTAL B313513 1,947,131

II. w=a % aex OUTSIDE INDIA

i) g @ & IN CURRENT ACCOUNTS 797,117 1,219,030
ii) o= w1 @mt & IN OTHER DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS 578,957 1,175,464
iii) w7 &R o gam W 9 & MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE 0 0
Fw TOTAL-II 1,376,074 2,394,494
Fa sigga TOTAL SCHEDULE-7 44,689,587 4,341,625
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31 @t 2010 e d TE THET AFEATET F1 FHIRT JATIT
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2010

(8. 000 % Rs in ‘000s)

faa=or Particulars 31.03.2010 = 31.03.2009 =
As on 31.03.2010 As on 31.03.2009

gt SCHEDULE - 8 :: fraet INVESTMENTS

[ wra & fast INVESTMENTS IN INDIA

i) ! s GOVERNMENT SECURITIES 197,435,330 152,150,333

ii) o o shfel OTHER APPROVED SECURITIES 374,641 964,036
iii) §m% SHARES 1,064,948 1,655,287
iv) fe¥e div dmr DEBENTURES AND BONDS 5,816,121 9,839,979

v) s v wga d=x SUSIDERIES AND/OR JOINT VENTURES 1,277,717 363,253
vi) s OTHERS (IDBI DEPOSITS, LV.Ps, UNITS OF MUTUAL FUNDS etc.) 3,142,246 4,354,620
7w TOTAL 209,111,003 169,381,508
11 & fet INVESTMENTS OUTSIDE INDIA 0 0
gw TOTAL 0 0
% e GRAND TOTAL (I and II ) 209,111,003 169,381,508
7@ f3 GROSS INVESTMENTS 209,362,040 171,298,112
wert LESS: 9wg@ DEPRECIATION 251,037 1,916,604
a srgdt TOTAL SCHEDULE- 209,111,003 169,381,508
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31 s 2010 * FAfRT AT FT TF W T4 AT A
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2010
(8. 000 & Rs in ‘000s)

faazor  Particulars 31.03.2010 = 31.03.2009 =t
As on 31.03.2010 As on 31.03.2009
gt SCHEDULE - 9 :: sftm ADVANCES
T 1-A %3 {5 W &R @ & faw BILLS PURCHASED AND DISCOUNTED 14,764,440 12,084,009
1-B 7% R, savgree oY " R yfied 7
CASH CREDITS, OVERDRAFTS AND LOANS 295,833,298 249,761,607
1-C @mafer 71 TERM LOANS 250,537,334 179,546,981
a TOTAL 561,135,072 441,392,597
a1 [IFA. R enfeedl & ofod (981 @l & S % g %0 afed)
SECURED BY TANGIBLE ASSETS (Includes Advances against Book Debs) 453,128,112 317,641,439
[I-B. ¥ | a¥ar yemfoa gmn &t COVERED BY BANK/GOVERNMENT GUARANTEES 26,880,834 32,576,562
[I-C. awfrqga UNSECURED ADVANCES 81,126,126 91,174,596
a TOTAL 561,135,072 441,392,597
i [1I-A.wa & sfim ADVANCES IN INDIA
i ) it & PRIORITY SECTOR 199,301,140 159,938,147
ii ) =dwt@ & PUBLIC SECTOR 48,088,177 41,417,983
iii ) ¥ BANKS 2441 2,835,269
iv ) e/ OTHERS 313,743,314 237,201,198
Fa TOTAL 561,135,072 441,392,597
[II-B. wra % sz s ADVANCES OUTSIDE INDIA 0 0
a TOTAL 561,135,072 441,392,597
g orggar TOTAL SCHEDULE-9 561,135,072 441,392,597
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31 =t 2010 =t st S Ud THAN SAJERET 1 qARA oI
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2010

(8. 000 % Rs in ‘000s)

faa=or Particulars 31.03.2010 =t 31.03.2009 @
As on 31.03.2010 As on 31.03.2009

aﬂ'giﬁ SCHEDULE - 10 :: 3w it FIXED ASSETS
A. T¥ et TANGIBLE ASSETS
I. ufmr PREMISES

w7 ¥ 31 7 3 A W

T W 7w 99 OPENING BALANCE AT COST 705,433 696,207
¥ % = ste ADDITIONS DURING THE YEAR 82,462 9,226
¥ % 3= &% DEDUCTIONS DURING THE YEAR 0 0
%a @ gwgd DEPRECIATION TO DATE 248,070 226,769
sty @ =ag & & WDV AT THE END OF THE YEAR 539,825 478,664
L. % s anfeai OTHER FIXED ASSETS
o 7t % 31 e 3
T W gref & OPENING BALANCE AT COST 6,368,613 5,314,301
i % 3= @i ADDITIONS DURING THE YEAR 946,824 1,143,151
a¥ % 3= @i DEDUCTIONS DURING THE YEAR 151,621 92,018
#a 7% e DEPRECIATION TO DATE 5,008,419 4,330,571
s @ =eg & & WDV AT THE END OF THE YEAR 2,155397 2,034,863
111, =g & # CAPITAL WORKS IN PROGRESS
o 7t % 31 e 3 A
W W e % OPENING BALANCE AT COST 127,064 182,958
i % = e ADDITIONS DURING THE YEAR 198,815 122,712
a % 4= @# DEDUCTIONS DURING THE YEAR 145,424 178,605
i % o § 7 VALUE AT THE END OF THE YEAR 180,455 127,065

B. &R anféri INTANGIBLE ASSETS
L. ez Ameam (iR sfwaat) Computer Software (Intangible Assets)

¥ ¥ 31 7 7 A
@ W g 9w OPENING BALANCE AT COST 890,453 0
Ty & 2 siie ADDITIONS DURING THE YEAR 190,073 890,453
a9 % 2rW &4t DEDUCTIONS DURING THE YEAR 0 0
¥ 7@ qeag@ DEPRECIATION/AMORTIZATION TO DATE 399,634 178,091
T % o § seggdl WDV AT THE END OF THE YEAR 680,892 712,362
Fa st TOTAL SCHEDULE - 10 3,556,569 3,352,954
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31 s 2010 * FAfRT AT FT TF W T4 AT A
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2010
(8. 000 % Rs in ‘000s)

faa=or Particulars 31.03.2010 =t 31.03.2009 =
As on 31.03.2010 As on 31.03.2009

srggat SCHEDULE - 11 = s enfwat OTHER ASSETS

[ iR wmwa wwEe (Faw ) INTER OFFICE ADJUSTMENTS (NET) 1,773,278 2,454,589
II. =ufem &= INTEREST ACCRUED 4,692,446 4,613,367
[II. o &9 & Yo &
TAX PAID IN ADVANCE/TAX DEDUCTED AT SOURCE 6,700,225 5,904,873
(Net of Provision)
IV. e @l oir @ STATIONERY AND STAMPS 64,905 59,025
V. o @ o - faw DEFERRED TAX ASSET- NET 1,133,100 1,193,100
VI. &= OTHERS 3,989,226 3,844,478
gw TOTAL SCHEDULE-11 18,353,180 18,069,432

arjg'zﬁ SCHEDULE - 12 :: sf@® daaid CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
[ % % faog o = 701 & &0 § @eR & & ™

CLAIMS AGAINST THE BANK NOT ACKNOWLEDGED AS DEBTS 3,064,684 3,076,560
I. 9= wfqegar CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 62,672 84,796
[1I. fow wd g OPTIONS & DERIVATIVES 5,387,291 5,863,490

IV. samn edvw fafmm i & o o

LIABILITY ON ACCOUNT OF OUTSTANDING

FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS 285,420,123 246,270,766
V. Tew & R & T RS ()

GUARANTEE GIVEN ON BEHALF OF CONSTITUENTS (BGs)

% a) wRa ¥ IN INDIA 71,357,269 38,642,381
@ b) wra & aex OUTSIDE INDIA 1,550,842 1,875,925
V1. =i, Jseie Td 6 e

ACCEPTANCES, ENDORSEMENTS AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS 21,729,380 7,161,851
VII. awéwafaamesr LETTER OF COMFORT /| UNDERTAKING /| GUARANTEE 3,838,328 4,873,368
VIII. @ &2 ®a INTEREST RATE SWAPS 0 1,500,000
IX. feaweme d@amd DISPUTED TAX LIABILITY 4,512,000 4,612,300
X. o e, e foe 3% ot w0 & 39 7

OTHER ITEMS FOR WHICH THE BANK IS CONTINGENTLY LIABLE 130,633 271,327
g« TOTAL SCHEDULE-12 397,053,222 314,232,764
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31 =re 2010 &7 oT=en S TF I STINRRN &1 @ T & o

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT OF ANDHRA BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010

(% 000 & Rs in ‘000s)

faa=or Particulars 31.03.2010 @
Year Ended 31.03.2010

31.03.2009 &
Year Ended 31.03.2009

szt SCHEDULE - 13 :: i = INTEREST EARNED

[ o/ S ® = e

INTEREST/DISCOUNT ON ADVANCES | BILLS 51,612,765 42,150,592
. fEst w s INCOME ON INVESTMENTS 11,883,189 10,989,847
Il e fod § 7 9 R o sfaeds ffel w =

INTEREST ON BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK

OF INDIA AND OTHER INTER BANK FUNDS 158,294 376,731
IV. &= sma OTHER INCOME 74,700 228,998
% gt TOTAL SCHEDULE - 13 63,728,948 53,746,168
argget SCHEDULE - 14 :: s sma OTHER INCOME
[ odom, fafmm ek zmmenr COMMISSION, EXCHANGE AND BROKERAGE 2,254,084 1,951,104
. & % faga ® @ PROFIT ON SALE OF INVESTMENTS 3,245,181 2,375,951
1. f@9 & s w @w PROFIT ON REDEMPTION OF INVESTMENTS 2,277 (168,564)
IV. 9, werii oiR o onfiq & fogedr W @ ot oG W

PROFIT ON SALE OF LAND, BUILDINGS AND OTHER ASSETS 5471 3,346

V. fafma @9 w @ PROFIT ON EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 579,576 525,087
V1. oSt | wutai | S SEE SR @I oS & &9 § o
INCOME BY WAY OF DIVIDEND ETC. FROM
SUBSIDIARIES /| COMPANIES / JOINT VENTURES IN INDIA 21,389 33,145
VII. fafaer sma MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 3,538,388 2,933,629
7@ gt TOTAL SCHEDULE - 14 9,646,366 7,653,698
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31 = 2010 *t HAfHRA JA9= F1 Tk WRT T ATell AT
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT OF ANDHRA BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARY AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2010
(8. 000 & Rs in ‘000s)

faa=or Particulars 31.03.2010 = 31.03.2009 =
Year Ended 31.03.2010  Year Ended 31.03.2009

syt SCHEDULE - 15 :: = fean wan @ INTEREST EXPENDED

[. smrifiet w @ INTEREST ON DEPOSITS 38,003,764 34,861,589
Il e Red & | o 9% 38R R @

INTEREST ON RESERVE BANK OF INDIA/INTER-BANK BORROWINGS 1,340,469 1,210,164
[II. s=r OTHERS 2,426,725 1,395,674
Fa siggat TOTAL SCHEDULE - 15 41,770,958 37,467,421

argget SCHEDULE - 16 :: witeme = OPERATING EXPENSES

[. el & g iR I oy e

PAYMENT TO AND PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES 8,241,440 6,241,188
II. o, &% iR A9t RENT, TAXES AND LIGHTING 1,010,279 885,233
M. &R e &t PRINTING AND STATIONERY 154,867 149,388
IV. faem &k yar ADVERTISEMENT AND PUBLICITY 67,393 104,987
V. &% @ quicd R TEEH

DEPRECIATION ON BANK'S PROPERTY 1,019,966 817,591
VL. FRae @ BE, ¥ 6 2@

DIRECTORS’ FEES, ALLOWANCES AND EXPENSES 7,801 9,541
VIL. e Wi & W o o (s e vl k)

AUDITORS’ FEES AND EXPENSES (Including Branch Auditors) 147,955 131,565
VIII fafer wv= LAW CHARGES 89,995 46,136
IX. =% 2@, ar ok M o

POSTAGE, TELEGRAMS, TELEPHONES ETC. 252,318 232,006
X. @R orgream REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 569,997 554,261
XI. dmr INSURANCE 649,537 545,836
XII. &= =/ OTHER EXPENDITURE 1,285,364 1,326,324
g s TOTAL SCHEDULE - 16 13,496,912 11,044,056
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A - 17 wgagot a@n it

1. arFm= :
facia faero, sroen shwfaa 7 eF R, fagomm gftes
STUFI §U URUN® W Ud Higd oMeR W Ud Fitares
T /ARTE Fie ok 9Ra § 6T Sa ¥ gafad gen
% ATER R & ™ R

2. I B A

%. ARaE Ro7d §% ERT 9 T AFESl & SAR STeih
SRl T Fae W =T #r My fEear S g

. ey @l W T, HHIIH, O, SiedsT Td fim 1)
TR SE W TrEmeE fean S ®.

. 9 AW @l & HEW J, @ T | e § e
TRa fFaT W}, SE g, 95 aad Tl & a9
faferer =0 %t a9 % a9 aga # = 0, o F '
afefea &.

. Terdeft Ha1 9 ¢

. ST Ud R &l AE e $I aRid U Jaield &g &0 0
& B AR .

T. difg® W&l B ATied SEd a8 U B [HAT ol §.
AT B il BN T &0 92 U Hifges wai b1 R
fopa ST &, v % ot § yafed UET Hige "ar @i Raie
X AET T SR I T AT S, Tl HiHe 8, A
IRY | 1 YBE f6d T E A of Hifge 7at % Fuem W
freffia fren smar &

1. arET fafma wR IRY ¥ gfeT % yafaa ot ®
R T B0 I ¥ iR gemes Ffr @ o difve gt =
RO &1 T &, 39 YR % 9EeT R WRAE gl fafm
R T (6315) &b YAHENHT aX & SUR W TIH TEH B
o ¥ TR & gwdited 0 o0 €. amar faffma sr %
TEEHIO TR T oA AT A wIiN B oM o =, Sar o
HEWT &1, & &9 § {1 S 2.

g, TRl arg v qen MRS w B, TH giiesdr B R W
gt &30 & AR R o sar &, {6 o, gaw o= &
ARG R TN & &6 STAR ST Hal BT gaRT aui foear
ST R

T. 9% Z 9% oMuR R [ ™ eRaAfea-ataar, dfaar @t fafr &
gated & W B I ¥ ud
TATH B AL BT, FALT 3¢ R R 6 7 §. 39
Ve % T | AT B EROT FieraT & i X o
AT & AT HGaT & FHE-IE I 9 FHAIGE AAr &
Q. 3% 7 9% MUR W AT & qE9Y § Fiaar B oar
g T W o, g @y W iR feor s &

. I T F [0 ST @ T O X BEE R
AeHEs B

(9)

4. fas

®. ¥ % AT dfaweT 9 geR I AT § aiigd T
g

i) uRueear 9% 3@ ™ (TILETH)

i) fosht & fow Suwes  (TuwwH)

iil) =R @ W (TEewe)
aRueedr 9 W T A9 F oiqia aRudear d% T@N &
IR F U H W gfoEt o B, @R % e @
T % ST SAUR % 3539 T giafaat o €. farshy
% T Suwey wfayfaat 9 & o Sudea a9 o § aigd

. AT § Jhe FA & {0 A Feafateaa 8: 9rT § aiigd
R m g

i) "X gferfaat

il) o oTgAIRa wfofaat

iii) SR

iv) fedeR wd dfs

V) SIS O HgE wEEE

vi) =1

. TR

TR od % % aniasl el $ oogER u@w ot @

gfrgfeat &1 geom e oem WY e S §.

1) uiRueEa o a% @t W=

%. 34 A A @ T Fag, aRkelies @ o ard B B B
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SCHEDULE - 17 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

GENERAL.:

The financial statements are prepared on historical cost
convention and accrual basis, unless otherwise stated,
by following going concern concept and conform to the
statutory provisions, accounting standards/guidance notes
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
practices prevailing in the banking industry in India.

2. REVENUE RECOGNITION:
a. Interest on non-performing advances and investments is

recognised as per the norms laid down by Reserve Bank
of India.

Interest on overdue bills, commission, exchange,
brokerage and rent on lockers are accounted on
realization.

In case of suit filed accounts legal and other expenses
incurred are charged to Profit and Loss account and at
the time of recovery of such expenses the same is
accounted as income.

3. FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS:
a. Income and Expenditure items are recorded at the

exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

Monetary items are reported at weekly average rate. Such
monetary items are reported at closing rates as at balance
sheet date. Exchange differences arising on the reporting
of such monetary items at rates prevailing at the year
end or on the settlement of monetary items at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded,
are recognized as income or expense, as the case may
be.

Forward exchange contracts are initially recorded at
exchange rate prevailing at the time of booking of the
contract and reported on the Balance Sheet date also at
original booked rate only. Such forward contracts are
revalued on the basis of FEDAI revaluation rate at the
end of each month and profit or loss on such revaluation
is recognized as income or expenses as the case may
be. Any profit and loss arising on cancellation of a forward
exchange contract is recognized as income or expenditure
as the case may be .

Foreign Letters of Credit and Letters of Guarantee are
recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of entering
into such commitment. Outstanding items are restated at
the rate prevailing at the Balance Sheet date.

Derivative contracts undertaken on back-to-back basis
or for hedging our own foreign currency exposure are
recorded at the rate prevailing on the date of the contract
and are reported at the closing rates at the Balance Sheet
date. The revenue in respect of these transactions is
recognized for the proportionate period till expiry of the
contract. In respect of contracts done on back to back
basis, the revenue on early termination of the contract is
recognized on termination.

The exchange rates used for this purpose are those
notified by FEDAI.
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4. INVESTMENTS:

a) The Investment portfolio of the Bank is classified into the
following three categories:

i) Held to Maturity (HTM)
ii) Available for Sale (AFS)
iii) Held for Trading (HFT)

“Held to Maturity” category comprises of securities acquired
with the intention to hold them up to maturity. “Held for Trading”
category comprises securities acquired with the intention of
trading. “Available for Sale” securities are those which are
not classified in either of the above two categories.

b) Investments are grouped and shown in Balance Sheet
under the following six heads:

i) Government Securities

ii) Other Approved Securities

iii) Shares

iv) Debentures and Bonds

v) Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures
vi) Others.

c). Valuation:

The securities in each classification are valued in
accordance with Reserve Bank of India guidelines on the
following basis:-

i) Held to Maturity:

a. Investments classified under this category are stated at
acquisition cost net of amortisation. The excess of
acquisition cost over the face value, if any, is amortised
over the remaining period of maturity.

b. Any diminution, other than temporary in nature, in the
value of investments is determined and provided for, each
investment individually.

ii) Available for Sale:

a. Investments classified under this category are marked to
market on quarterly basis and valued as per Reserve Bank
of India guidelines at the market rates available on the
Balance Sheet date from trades/quotes on the Stock
Exchanges, prices/yields declared by the Fixed Income
Money Market and Derivatives Association of India
(FIMMDA). Unquoted securities are also valued as per
the Reserve Bank of India guidelines.

b. The net depreciation under each of the six heads (Para b
above) is fully provided for, whereas the net appreciation,
if any, under any of the aforesaid heads is ignored. The
book value of the individual securities does not undergo
any change after marking to market.

iii) Held for Trading:
a) Investments classified under this category are valued at

market price based on market quotations, prices/yields
declared by FIMMDA at the end of every month.

b) Depreciation is recognised scrip wise and appreciation,
if any is ignored.
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©)

d)

i)

The book value of the individual securities does not
undergo any change after marking to market.

Prudential Norms:

The identification of non performing investments and
provision made thereon is as per Reserve Bank of India
guidelines. Provision requirement in respect of non-
performing investments is not set off against the
appreciation of other performing investments.

Profit / Loss on sale of Investments:

Profit or Loss on sale of investments is recognised on the
value dates on the basis of weighted average cost.
Premium on redemption of Debentures/ Bonds is
recognised on the date of redemption.

Profit on sale of investments held in “Available for Sale”
and “Held for Trading” categories is recognised in the Profit
and Loss Account.

Profit on sale of investments in “Held to Maturity” category
is first taken to the Profit and Loss Account and an
equivalent amount of profit is appropriated to the Capital
Reserve(net of taxes).

iv) Loss on sale of investments in any of the three categories

is recognized in Profit and Loss Account.

f) General

i)

i)

i)

Transfer of securities from one category to another is done
at lower of acquisition cost/book value/market value on
the date of transfer. Depreciation, if any, on such transfer
is provided for and the book value of the security is
changed accordingly.

Upfront fee / Incentives on subscription of securities are
reduced from the cost of securities. The incentives
received after sale of securities is credited to Profit and
Loss account.

Brokerage, Commission and Stamp Duty paid in
connection with the acquisition of securities are treated
as revenue expenditure.

5. a). INTEREST RATE SWAPS: (Hedging)

i)

i)

b).

i)

Income on continuing swap transactions is recognised
on accrual basis except the swap designated with an asset
or liability that is carried at market value or lower of cost
or market value in the financial statements. In that case,
the swap is marked to market with the resulting gain or
loss recorded as an adjustment to the market value or
designated asset or liability.

Gains/ losses on terminated swap transactions are
recognised when the offsetting gain or loss is recognised
on the designated asset or liability. Thus, the gain or loss
on the terminated swap is deferred and recognised over
the shorter of the remaining contractual life of the swap
or the remaining life of the asset/liability.

INTEREST RATE SWAPS (Trading)

Trading swaps are marked to market with changes
recorded in the Profit and Loss account;

Income and expenses relating to these swaps are
recognized on the settlement date;
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iii) Feeis recognized as income or expense as the case may
be;

iv) Gains or losses on the termination of the swaps are
recorded immediately as income or expenses on such
termination.

6. ADVANCES

a) Advances are stated in accordance with the Prudential
Norms issued by Reserve Bank of India:

i. Advances are classified into standard, sub-standard,
doubtful and loss assets borrower-wise.

ii. Provisions are made for non performing assets and
iii. General provision is made for standard assets.

b) Advances stated in the Balance Sheet are net of
provisions made for :

(i) Non performing assets

(i) Additional Provision made for Non-performing Assets

c) Partial recoveries in Non Performing Assets are
apportioned first towards charges and interest, thereafter
towards principal.

7. FIXED ASSETS

a) Premises and other Fixed Assets are stated at historical
cost net of depreciation.

b) DEPRECIATION

(i) Depreciation on Premises and on other Fixed assets
except Computers and ATM’s is provided on written down

value method at the rates specified in Schedule XIV of
the Companies Act 1956.

(i) The depreciation on Computers and other Peripherals is
provided @ of 33.33 % on straight line method.

(iii) Depreciation on ATM s is provided on straight line method
based on the estimated useful life of seven years.

c) AMORTIZATION

i) Premium paid for acquisition of leasehold land for a period
less than 60 years and cost of the buildings constructed
thereon is amortised over the period of lease.

ii) The cost of Software is treated as intangible asset and
the same is amortised over its estimated useful life.

8. EMPLOYEES BENEFITS
(a) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits such as short-term
compensated absences are recognized as an expense
on an undiscounted basis in the Profit &Loss Account of
the year in which the related service is rendered.

(b) Post Employment Benefits
i) Defined Contribution Plans:

Defined Contribution Plans such as Provident Fund are
recognized as an expense and charged to the Profit &Loss
Account

ii) Defined Benefit Plans
(a) Gratuity:
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The employees Gratuity Fund Scheme is funded by the
Bank and managed by LIC through a separate trust. The
present value of the Bank’s obligations under Gratuity is
recognized on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at
the year end and the fair value of the Plan assets is
reduced from the gross obligations to recognize the
obligation on a net basis.

(b) Pension:

The employees Pension Fund is funded by the Bank and
is managed by a separate trust. The present value of the
Bank’s obligations under Pension is recognized on the
basis of an actuarial valuation as at the year end and the
fair value of the Plan assets is reduced from the gross
obligations to recognize the obligation in this case on a
net basis.

(c) Other Long Term Benéefits:

Other Long Term Benefits such as Leave Encashment,
Sick Leave, LFC/LTC availment/encashment, Employee
Incentive Scheme, Ex-gratia to retirees and Relocation
of expenses on exit are recognized on the basis of
actuarial valuation made as at the end of the year.

9. PROVISION FOR TAXATION

a) Provision for taxes is made on the basis of estimated tax
liability.

b) In compliance with AS-22 Accounting for Taxes on Income,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
accounting for deferred income tax is made after
considering tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted as of balance sheet date.

_
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10. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
An assessment is made at each balance sheet date
whether there is any indication that an asset is impaired.
If any such indication exists an estimate of the recoverable
amount is made and impairment loss, if any is provided.
11. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Past events leading to, possible or present obligation is
treated as contingent liabilities. Provision is recognised
in the case of present obligation where the reliable
estimate can be made and where there are probable out
flow of resources embodying forgoing of economic
benefits to settle the obligation.

12. NET PROFIT

The Net Profit disclosed in the Profit and Loss Account is
after:-

(a) Provision for depreciation on Investments.
(b) Provision for Taxation.
(c) Provision on loan losses as per prudential guidelines.

(d) Provision for non-performing investments as per Reserve
Bank of India guidelines.

(e) Other usual and necessary provisions.
13. SUBSIDIARY — ABFSL

For Accounting policies of subsidiary, reference may be made
to schedule 16 of Andhra Bank Financial Services Limited.
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Schedule — 18

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS -2009-2010

A. Andhra Bank has the following subsidiary company:

M/s. Andhra Bank Financial Services Ltd.

Country of Incorporation : India
Share holding pattern
Andhra Bank : 100%

Nature of Activity : Financial Services

B.Basis of preparation of Consolidated Financial
statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) of the Parent
Bank and its subsidiary are prepared to comply in all material
respects with applicable statutory / regulatory provisions,
Accounting Standards, generally accepted accounting
principles and practices prevailing in India, unless otherwise
stated.

C.Consolidation Procedure:

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS-21)
“Consolidated Financial Statements” issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and the guidelines
issued by the Reserve Bank of India on preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements. The financial statements
of the Bank and its subsidiary are combined on a line by line
basis by adding together like sum of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses, after eliminating intra group balances /
transactions and resulting unrealized profit / loss.

D. The financial statements of subsidiary, are adjusted,
wherever necessary, to conform to the accounting
policies of the Bank.

E. The Book value of the investment of Andhra Bank in Andhra
Bank Financial Services Ltd., has been reduced to ‘Nil' due
to depreciation on investments. Therefore, the share capital
of ABFSL held by Andhra Bank, amounting to Rs.5 crores
has been included in capital reserve in the consolidated
financial statements.
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F. Accounting for investments in RRBs:

In conformity with the Accounting Standard (AS-23) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India the
investment in Regional Rural Banks (RRBs) namely
Rushikulya Gramya Bank and Chaitanya Godavari Grameena
Bank to the extent of 35% each of their respective share
capital are valued “at equity method” in line with methods
followed in previous year. The values of investment in
associates have been adjusted due to increase in shares in
net assets of the company by Rs.3.05 crores.

The RRBs are duly audited by other auditors for the year
ending on 31 March 2010.

G. Additional disclosures for consolidated financial
statements are as under:

A. Capital to Risk Adequacy Ratio 2009-10( 2008-09
(i) Capital adequacy ratio

Tier | + Tier Il capital 13.31%| 12.41%
(i) Capital adequacy ratio Tier | capital 7.82%| 8.17%
(iii) Capital adequacy ratio Tier Il capital | 5.49%| 4.24%
(iv) Percentage of the shareholding of

the Government of India in

Andhra bank 51.55| 51.55
(V) Amount of subordinated debt raised

by Andhra Bank as Tier-Il capital

(Rs. Crores) 1120 800
B. Earnings per share (face value of

Rs. 10/- each)

Basic EPS (Rs) 21.64| 13.53
Diluted EPS (Rs) 21.64] 13.53
Calculation of Basic EP S
Net Profit (Rs. In crores) 1049.67| 656.05
Weighted Average No of Shares

(in crores) 48.50| 48.50
Basic Earning per Share (Rs) 21.64| 13.53
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W) QAR AR FHe - " 2010

e arR R (FAfE) (7T HI=T H)
A T MR e 31.03.2010 & 31.03.2009 %
% Tuid % fag aquid & faw
1 THE I
(@) TTH 1603.45 1295.37
(@) @t/ diem ST 2478.47 1962.61
() feem e 2827.05 2468.60
(e ¥ afame 431.61 415.67
e 7340.58 6142.25
F; FeX ATHE I 0 0
afares ¥ o 7340.58 6142.25
2 I & 9% U4 H< T4 Qe g
() T 437.74 102.58
(@) @Mt/ g ST 597.20 484.11
() e ST 669.34 600.97
(e ¥fbT afames 109.51 103.44
T 1813.79 1291.10
ST ST & 374.12 389.98
FA HIA A 1439.67 901.12
AR T 3T Tad &Y 390.00 245.07
faa @ 1049.67 656.05
3 e TiRaEt
(%) TTH 20881.04 16938.15
(@) @M/ b ST 30063.81 24103.33
() fRew SfE 24956.04 19203.14
() s T TR 1093.66 832.80
3.) oTSfed STt 13388.69 7429.73
T Al 90383.24 68507.15
4 e IFand
() TTHS 1079.63 5014.05
(=) Hraiee/ i SfdT 21349.12 11901.41
() feem St 49290.79 47020.39
(@)err Sfe ufeamas 7048.30 470.30
3.) emEted omiaar 7188.61 441.08
CEl 85956.45 64847.23
oofl e grfEfEt 4426.79 3659.92
Fl JTATT 90383.24 68507.15

(YU EIRT Gl Ud araTddiEdl gkl favae § faen Ty
am R AR TS
s & i e E.
dfth R o1 S % U9 §aW el | adLanE. 81/21.04.018/2006-07 fiwic 18.04.2007 % TR, WA HW&l WalbR
TN g1 ST g7 Sviie R &% @ ufed ofgaR STel Heba™ @l & od W RSwgel fhal ST 8, SaagaR fhd T Uebes Suael
JHE[FTHN &b SER W 2.
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H. CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS SEGMENT — March 2010

Segment wise Results (Consolidated)

(Rs. in Crores)

PartA  Business Segments For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
1 Segment Revenue
(a) Treasury 1603.45 1295.37
(b) Corporate/Wholesale Banking 2478.47 1962.61
(c) Retail Banking 2827.05 2468.60
(d) Other Banking Operations 431.61 415.67
Total 7340.58 6142.25
Less: Inter Segment Revenue 0 0
Income from Operations 7340.58 6142.25
2 Segment Results After Provisions & Before Tax
(a) Treasury 437.74 102.58
(b) Corporate/Wholesale Banking 597.20 484 11
(c) Retail Banking 669.34 600.97
(d) Other Banking Operations 109.51 103.44
Total 1813.79 1291.10
Less:
(i) Other Un-allocable Expenditure 37412 389.98
Total Profit Before Tax 1439.67 901.12
Income Tax and Other Taxes paid 390.00 245.07
Net Profit 1049.67 656.05
3 Segment Assets
(a) Treasury 20881.04 16938.15
(b) Corporate/Wholesale Banking 30063.81 24103.33
(c) Retail Banking 24956.04 19203.14
(d) Other Banking Business 1093.66 832.80
(e)Unallocated Assets 13388.69 7429.73
Total Assets 90383.24 68507.15
4 Segment Liabilities
(a) Treasury 1079.63 5014.05
(b) Corporate/Wholesale Banking 21349.12 11901.41
(c) Retail Banking 49290.79 47020.39
(d) Other Banking Business 7048.30 470.30
(e) Unallocated Assets 7188.61 441.08
Total 85956.45 64847.23
Capital & Reserves 4426.79 3659.92
Total Liabilities 90383.24 68507.15

(Compiled by the Management and relied upon by the Auditors)
Part B Geographic Segments
There is only one segment - Domestic Segment

As the system of data compilation is yet to be stabilized in accordance with the revised norms prescribed by Reserve Bank
of India, vide Circular Ref. DBOD NO. BP.BC. 81 / 21.04.018 / 2006-07 dated 18™ April 2007, read with AS-17, Segment
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India the disclosure made above are based on the records /
information available.
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AT U. "R i faerbmt & fao a@t w ffwfot - 2009 -10
“atren S ¥ wafw Rt & fag sgEgd-18” @ e |
WA Y. g R Faa fewft (U i tw uw uw)

1.

Q)

)

g.)

SR RS HEdl W @ - PEgE AE OR @, e - a6 2003-2004 % SR Guel Td G9E PEgE A AR . WS
(troTEsiriiue) % s faare @1 fuemr . qanfy, it STarstl % WM & 91, IS Y T § Of oY UiTag % |1y dhonsareiua H
SEAIET l URUFIT TRE d YA B e q% @1eT $ [\ GHIGUIS SR 9% aTdT B hl SIEdR Wl .

%) o 1999 ¥ qffawig eI Ue Uud e (Sromdine) aRr sueit & oo SHiee et qER @ T, bul § TEe ST e
% Ao §9 % qHE TU TER Bl B 7 G T S & &4 7 AT H R 9 eI B 6.6.21 Fe. @ . we
3 g TEE Sod e § 6.10.50 #30s. B 0T STH B EER B T ST SieR B T T AU gR1 aER  HhE it
TEIE B T TG LY b ST UEWT FRT M 9 T R

B ERT AR o1 R 13.7.2004 &1 A5/ ST <Ay & fSdioe 9 8 gAdrs 85 Ud bl ®1 AduAuied § fuem % o us awe
% SIEY U JEIE TG B BN AR oo, o ¥ groaq fwar 6 e Maed Jed | SEl B8R G T SATHY B TR el
o &, wmw 1 gAaE % e 29.06.2005 @@ & Wi ofR Y wxat 2006 § 9% vd faqe ) & ™ ¥ e 20.04.2006 @
A TR, e | el g s, U2 Wige ot ud wiasy % @nst b w9 12% @ oAt & & G % eigEr, Sumdia @
T 5. 467 AR 999 B &

uAdiUd ¥ A gdted AEad § 5 9od g & Ui % fobs o qER @ R, HUl % derd & [aue & SaeE qee
ITAAH T W THUAYT WeR 6T § SR Sasdd Wid B 5yl 6l 8. 916 § 8 ffaw ot % &9 H uikafdd fear e ¥ &R ghae
I TH Tl g &

Audiue gRT SRR Gebed % WA § HET Jed ey g1 . 1.88 ®s qut s % fere wiia feshl % fakier § ot 3 v ordi ar)
% B fediem §u wEW St UEWd ER1 WieR B T SR Gul |7 %.1.42 wie ud fem afer @ e foen % w9 § 5.80,351
ST feha.

HOET ERT TER S WX 13.07.2004 @ 99 ST Eed $ [Sdi a9 % GHe gAais b 9 ol Ud (ue % WY dus @l uh
e o 37EY STUNT U&Td T&I e % [T STeeT fan &R ®vosi 3 v fopan. Siuwdiva 3 STeery & o 3 Meere gs@ S des
(vdiuwuaTw) BT G T SiEY B WeR TE 6 . 9 o) gfiae ¥ gu o fawm §u W omyr @ I @ . =w ol 3w
T@T % A SIS §9 B YIS AT TAT B, 3HH 18 YA U U ST9 B WIHIGRIT G §. dfth YA IR STo1 b1 TIFIGRUT g3 &,
14 &R 15 fEsy, 2009 & arg iR giqami o gars g8, amar 21 sHast, 2010 # 75/ Soa AEy & g8 S§9 b g6l o fagm
= FoTaTetl 5 & U Ui UW g1 e & wE T 309/01 @ @iiet fhun SR gHRI Ul g1 R & u" U 328/01 @ ofifits w9 &
e febdT. SToTHE % AR Bul @ 02.04.2001 & SE @6 & T @ wa & 6.8,80,412/- 12% @i aiftiey & 9% &1 B BN
05.04.2010 &1 7ETE STa ETEd H 39 AU & A1 Uk UieleN RR fhar {6 oer % oTgER Hhusl ST SfaT &l SN arll ST &
RIS % 916, Sod EWd § S 6 T A (3.1.42 BA.) B A AT afed aed e S

SrrqaR 1992 & ot fobrar & Tl % &9 §  6.45.29 @@ @ agel % oY fwel Soa e § T6y 3hd S8 ftes & R
¥ TR gHeHT Jaig fqaras (arbitrator) @i Fgfed % fou i &, 38 99, 3909 $e&T WMiHes o 915 W seiead Us wEHiEd
Rehrezay™ (SSSUEAR) & Uh T 9o 8. ol 1 a6 (BIFR) & d9& ol Sy @l (S8 Ul %l 57ad S8 [ies &
feerd dive Aefivdl W) B ded B SIEANT & B, Wb bR giEe 99 Bl @ % o 39 qo W ke wY @ § 6 3o gegs arel
Y I WHES Bl SHIATAX B b [T IMAU B < 8. ofd: TG Bl P8 9 H (WU SRARM @ T4 &

oY i STgifea geuichel EIRT SRl &1 STHIvT IR g fHeiRor fopar man § &R g 04.04.2007 @1 %. 20.00 @ 9 s fobar
w & dfs w9 @ HaRm A (31.03.2009 @ 5. 1/-) ge f6d T @ & S &9 g, Al W akers e T g
Husl o TEE T eng fm fafies (Fremd) arr 1992 & s 6 ™ g o @ie ad $.4.00 @ @ gerr 1997 | wfesr @
G a A g9 Bl e ¥ 1997 H qui v eifqw fruem % w9 ¥ wad & 3. quf, fren 5 9 ¥ e & ke % 96
¥ oo o fore arn fopan &, ol )1 UTe U @t eren | fhd o o) e | e afufa (et & fen Sem e @ foamas
% W AN (Tewe) & e & o wer SEes ue A fOaRES 8. 6 b O B 9dlE § SN Bl T § {h (e @ e
eI W& T, T Pl WG Wel [l T 8.

¥ 1994 ¥ et 7 femis 28.9.1994 % e orgay % @ fob @ WU # SEdiS % g UG AT ST b YA B b 9gard
FieeTea® a8 WX AT & YA fbar S SR Sa Smsdrer 153 wd 155 % i gis % e & 100 e e SiEnisEe Haer
H YA A &, o wfaareTs sty & fie & 7,08,000 ® @t #1 AMT % e aran § {5 s 7 9.8.2004 gy & T
% f5e o ft Toarell % WA % 918, 9 3B Suar € df oy diuey % A e WENisT Braiee Bl SEae! bl gikueran aee
¥ WA ARG G AT % [0 GHTiaed STER Il I Bl SAUHR 8.
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Notes on Accounts to Consolidated Financial Statements - 2009-10
PART A:

Please refer Schedule-18 “Notes on Accounts of Andhra Bank”

PART B - Select Notes on Subsidiary : (ABFSL)

1.

b)

c)

d)

Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits A/c M/s. Kudremukh Iron Ore Co Ltd. The dispute between the company and M/s.
Kudremukh Iron Ore Co Ltd [KIOCL] was settled during the year 2003-04. However, KIOCL has reserved right to claim on
pro-rata basis along with other PSUs’ in case of surplus arising after meeting all liabilities, for the interest from the date of
maturity of Inter Corporate Deposits up to the date of payment.

a) A winding up petition against the company was filed by Tamilnadu Newsprint and Papers Limited [TNPL] in August
1999. The company filed an appeal before the Division Bench of Madras High Court. The company repaid TNPL Rs.6.21
crore being principal and interest up to the contracted date. The company also deposited Rs.10.50 crore with the Hon’ble
Madras High Court. The appeal filed was admitted and the winding up petition filed by TNPL was dismissed and treated
as withdrawn by AP, High Court.

The appeal filed by the company came up for hearing on 13.07.2004 before the Division Bench of Madras High Court and
passed the orders to permit the company to submit its offer for settlement to TNPL within a week and the company
submitted its offer. TNPL has informed that their Board of Directors have not accepted the offer given by the company
(ABFSL). The case was posted for hearing on 29.06.2005 and again in February 2006. The arguments and counter
arguments are completed. The judgment was announced on 20.04.2006. The court has allowed 12% as pre decree
interest, pendent lite interest as well as future interest. As per the decree TNPL has to refund around Rs. 467 lacs.

TNPL has filed an appeal against the decision of the Hon’ble High Court of Madras in the Hon’ble Supreme Court.
Despite opposition by the company’s counsel, Hon’ble Supreme Court has admitted the SLP and granted the requisite
leave. Later converted into civil appeal, which is not yet come for hearing.

Against the decree passed by the Madras High Court in the case filed by TNPL, for Rs.1.88 crore plus interest, the
company filed an appeal, which is admitted by the Division Bench Madras High Court and Company deposited Rs.1.42
crore and Rs.80,351 being one third of the decretal amount.

The appeal filed by the company came up for hearing on 13.07.2004 before the Division Bench of Madras High Court and
passed the orders to permit the company to submit its offer for settlement to TNPL within a week and the company
submitted its offer. TNPL has informed that their Board of Directors have not accepted the offer given by the company
(ABFSL). The arguments and the counter arguments were completed and the Division Bench reserved the orders. Soon
after orders were reserved, the bench was reconstituted. Later on, one of the judges was transferred on elevation. Since
the judge was transferred on elevation, cases were re-listed and heard arguments and counter arguments on 14" & 15"
December 2009. The matter has come up for judgment before Madurai Bench of Madras High Court on 21t January
2010. The Learned Judges were pleased to dismiss the OSA 309/01 preferred by TNPL and were pleased to partly allow
OSA 328/01 filed by our Company. As per the Judgment, Company is liable to pay Rs.8,80,412/- @ 12% p.a. from
02.04.2001 to TNPL till realization. On 05.04.2010, Company filed a petition in Madras High Court with a request to
refund the money deposited earlier in the High Court (Rs.1.42 cr) along with applicable interest, after adjustment of
money to be paid by the Company as per order.

The suit filed against M/s. Incab Industries Ltd in Delhi High Court, for realization of lease rentals amounting to Rs.45.29
lacs since October 1992, is pending for appointment of the third arbitrator. In the mean time M/s Incab Industries Ltd.,
submitted a proposal before the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction [BIFR]. The company filed a
petition before the Board [BIFR] who has permitted the company to take possession of the leased machinery with Incab
Industries Ltd. But the workers union is protesting to take the machinery with a plea that some interested parties are
negotiating for takeover of Incab Industries Ltd. As such, the matter is deferred for some more time.

However, the estimated market value of the asset is got assessed by approved valuers and is valued as Rs.20.00 lacs as
on 04.04.2007. As the carrying cost of the machinery (Re.1/- on 31.03.2009) is much below the valued cost, there is no
impairment loss on the machinery.

The company repaid the total Inter Corporate Deposits of Rs.4.00 crore placed in 1992 by M/s Mishra Dhatu Nigam Ltd
(MIDHANI) in 1997 with interest up to the contracted date. MIDHANI acknowledged the receipt as full and final settlement
in 1997. However, MIDHANI, subsequently, has made a claim for interest after the contracted date. On refusal by the
company to acknowledge or pay the interest, MIDHANI has approached the Committee on Disputes (COD) who directed
MIDHANI to Permanent Machinery of Arbitration (PMA) with whom the matter is pending. The company has legal opinion
saying that the claim of MIDHANI is not sustainable and hence no provision has been made.
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)

®)

i)

ii)

i)

fagw <, gE % R Bl STaaH e 6 MU ERT I & 6 TS Il B dl T og e BEe e
Fiqem faies an aER fafae a5 36 % SIHaR, A 0 f6dl i YR i S el e

ST Feadl ama ¢

foeiRor ad @ 2002-03 wa 2007-08 % fou &2 feiRer & g6ew : aq faa af #, Saq #x Feior ant & g9t i ©.15,37,375/
- g I @I, T 98 @l 3 goaratad fhar T g,

ferizor a9 : 2001-02 % fow &= fuRo & @ow . 9 o o ¥, Saa w7 FuRe aut & g6fta afir $.4,85,766/- aeE g @,
518 =21 @l ¥ g A T 8.

ferfzor e : 1999-2000 : SR YsT o0 <EW@T ERT HHA 6l SRl 9o % [T Husl aR1 fhd T ogRie i faare afafa srdier
A b & HUN A B AU [eg, v § i 18.02.2009 @1 ua fafayr afuent ‘st sifufem, 1961 % arr 14 u, fem
8 & % wed, I & 14 © % il foepa wfer &1 %.1,10,680/- & %.2,77,80,538/- 9% e g & famiaw 27.02.2007 & omaw
ST SMey B Sfaq "eiiem % U, oY #d g0 AR @l oTide el 1 duel &l o &l a1 facia 9 & wierR #l. &
ST [T § o aTaE @ HdteT we T .

3. AEANE &1 F TS H ik =

Y

FA =g I Hlie®

¥ 5. qiHTOT 5. <.

AR

2,16,742 3,82,720 2,16,742 3,82,720 =

(Freat ot & o1iehs)

(2,16,742) (2,16,736) (2,16,742) (2,16,736) =

4. TR ¥ W% b &9 H W T F@IeS 9O TF JaHiadl & wIh Bl aEd a1 SR 6 9 A H B 8, Jed {61 T § iR Sadies

iR @ s @ 5. 1 W e e R

BTG INCIEy 01.04.09 =t 01.04.2009 =t %/ e/ e/ [EEal 31.03.2010 31.03.2010
gfHTOT (®) qfHTOT 5.

Ut g 2,16,742 2,16,736 - - - 2,16,742 3,82,720

HECEIER N

freq as % sfids (2,16,742) (3,42,926) - - - (2,16,742) (2,16,736)

31.03.2010 I fod T AR % SUHE/TIUAE Aied & AER T FILS AR Fales Sl & JoH [6a1 T &, 56 SAfad Saaies
gl % it R faR haw a9 fear 7 & 919 feqies 31.3.2010 % wed A "EH % SR UH SR @7 9 el fhar T E.

5. gda e @1 gt s 16 & wiwt 2.
geer feeres e S ¥ ufatgie W ¥ oiR IFe mikefie Saq % % dar faf oy % oER g §Hg W @ SR §.

fera=r 2010 2009

R EwE@ | R E9E@ |
Jaq iR Wt 479,779 4,70,727
wfasy ffer [AeW @ sieeE 29,868 31,547
ST 1,16,864 1,04,015
TASH/GZET THAHI 0 _
Iggdl (Iuem) 24,956 24,956 24,956
T 6,51,467 6,31,245
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e) During the year 1994 the company has paid the amounts of ICD 153 & 155 to Delhi Financial Corporation to the extent of
principal sum of Rs.100 lacs each, with an agreement dt.28/9/1994 that the contracted interest shall be paid after paying
the Principal and Interest amount of ICD to all other PSUs’. There was a claim for interest of Rs.7,08,000/- for the
contracted period and the company has paid the same on 9/08/2004. However Delhi Financial Corporation has reserved
the right to claim on prorata basis along with other PSUs in case of surplus arising after meeting all liabilities, for the
interest from the date of maturity of ICD’s to date of payment.

f) Consequent to the Hon’ble Supreme Court’s judgment upholding the judgment of Special Court, Mumbai the Miscellaneous
Petition No.36 filed by Canbank Financial Services Ltd., for tracing of Securities, there will be no liability on the Company.

g) Income Tax Matters:

i) Completion of Assessment for A Y: 2002-03 & 2007-08: During the current financial year, Company received a refund
amount of Rs.15,37,375/- relating to above assessment years, which was reversed in the books of accounts.

ii) Completion of Assessment for A Y: 2001-2002. During the current financial year, Company received a refund amount of
Rs.4,85,766/- for Assessment year 2001-2002 which was reversed in the books of accounts.

iii) Assessment Year 1999-2000 : Consequent to rejection of COD permission requested by the Company, to pursue the
matter in the High Court of AP, Company filed a Miscellaneous Petition on 18.02.2009 in the ITAT, Hyderabad “Praying for
a suitable amendment of its appellate order dated 27.02.2007 as per Sec 14A Rule 8D of IT act 1961” i.e raising the
amount of disallowance u/s 14A from Rs.1,10,680/- to Rs.2,77,80,538/-. Appellate authority allowed company appeal
during the current Financial Year. Company is waiting for the refund from IT Department.

3.Stock of Public Sector Bonds NIL
Others:
Total Current Long term
Qty (Rs) Qty (Rs) (Rs)
[a] Shares 2,16,742 3,82,720 2,16,742 3,82,720 —
(Previous Year figures) (2,16,742) (2,16,736) (2,16,742) (2,16,736) —

4. The stock of Quoted Shares & Securities held as Stock in Trade are valued at Cost or Market Value whichever is lower and
Unquoted Shares & Securities are valued at Rupee one.

Quantity wise Opening Stock | Opening stock | Purchases/ | Purchase/ | Sales | Closing stock | Closing stock
01.04.09 01.04.2009 Additions Returns/ 31.03.2010 31.03.2010
Qty. Rs. Deletions Qty. Rs.
Equity Shares 2,16,742 2,16,736 - - - 2,16,742 3,82,720
fully paid up
(Previous years
figures) (2,16,742) (3,42,926) - - - (2,16,742) (2,16,736)

Segregation between quoted and unquoted shares is made based on BSE/NSE bulletin for the business transacted on
31.03.2010. Further the shares are classified as unquoted, if such shares are not traded during three months period before

31.03.2010.

5.Managing Director Remuneration included in Schedule 16.

The Managing Director is on deputation from Andhra Bank and his remuneration is in accordance with the service regulations

of the said Bank as applicable from time to time.

Particulars 2010 2009

Amtin Rs. Amtin Rs.
Salaries and Allowances 479,779 470,727
Contribution to PF/Pension 29,868 31,547
Perquisites 1,16,864 1,04,015
LTC / Encashment of Leave — —
Gratuity 24,956 24,956
Total 6,51,467 6,31,245
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6. 9T SR 3T (YA @1 sifed g 5. 10)-)

ferarom 2009-10 2008-09
7w e (%) 1.55 1.47
RS SUH (3.) 1.55 1.47
T H0E 1 TREAA

fram @y (. @l ) 77.32 73.61
ERT @ Wi Sfed | (5. @l H) 50.00 50.00
T oo 9fd SR (%) 1.55 1.47

7. 9 sWat 1997 &1 TR ST Huel % S0l 8 HRAE 57 S g1 ST a9l % oA, Wikas % U= Jedl Suaay (Td) Heaed
g 2238/waasag. 0472/2004-05 fedid 28 ekt 2005 % AR UASIUGSE & AR T & B ¢ 99 9 Hhed qRa B Db
STULT % SR U YSThIUT % O Bl ol STAE=l AR 6 T 8. 39 Sifdiad Hikas o 98 gHiyaq & & el 6 3o o=t &l
ST @ fafer & i 9 @ srafr % iR suet @t fawia enfiai @& faem #Y fimn Sar € Td due @l IR S IR fasim g % 'w "
Hrae fopan ST & O1 ufEmes fopam STar . 9egaR duet | yeu e i Sfua #iars % fae i 3.2.2005 @ S Haed i fea
HET 7 BiTed W % JERT Bl BieHT famia ol & ~Muemr 8. &a 7 09.01.2008 &7 wueit 5 ik @l facia snfar & FHues
% a4 ¥ ofR HUl &l IR S IR faci 98m % &9 § e & @ ofg Y o &, ARa Red @ 7w 05.12.2008 &1 star
feon % o5 <89 w3 & aftfa fovmr axg & Reere & e o 2.

8. wur siferem 1956 @t erggar VI % wwr 11 & @s 3,4(®) 4 (1) 4 (@) & o Amal § qafed qaem S a1 df 9 & a1 Sl Bl ar]
9. a1 a¥ % TR I Yee % [T, fUBw au % ofichel ®I, STel - Pl Sadds GHEAN T, YA:aiiga) I:Suiiea/dw: arerd fbar T &.
10. grEfies TFa Ud ard/ T 0T % &9 F FE 9T S,

F) Weg ARE &% : (T9 G )

Wee I 9% 7 HAl R oS AR TP B & 1 X HA B fgaE ®.

ok T P qa<on 2010 2009
() (5. BT H)
1 faf= s @ IR @ % 91.85 w3 (fuew av . 91.85 i) 91.85 91.85
% BT UD HUAT b AT SR 6T T e faog % @1 a@ hw
9Tt F &M % 9% H Hel T R
2 b g1 &, 55 wE (Ued av 5. 55 #IS) TEHET gRT Jiaaial & 55.00 55.00
AN B AN AT AT . TH A S BT del § o B A eTeenu
@ ufa & &, 7 5 gewfa. o wffodt Sus wm ofaika & @ o g g
3 146.85 146.85
@) T TA :
% @ < B e 2010 2009
(B A= H) (5. BAS H)
i ST | (3 o) [re 10 (J) & g2 & 10.73 11.09
ii. afteg Eited de YuE faWes - Ae @@ 2 (@) & @89 o 2.46 2.46
iil. omE®eY A - fuRe aw 2002-03 0.17
(BUMT 5T T STEST B THIT § AT gT STFBR Sdiae fegnd, gaee 20.06.2008 & S st
% s 1g fastien 09.09.2008 @1 URadt smast w fhan &, fawmr 5 ey 220 (2) % s & 2,38,665)-
@ g9 %, 21,44,100/- % &9 § aferss ot 6o & 59 9 &o & %, 17,15,199/- & g
@ H BT R, Bl | qReed § Tl B s Bed ¢ 23.09.2008 @1 v wEga e ¥ el
URSMEN SRS % T ST fohan ¥ ofiR S|e yaie 2.
iv  ofEeY 4 - faRe a9 2008-09
(foreon ergge 15, 7 g@n 10 4, WRens 2 % Si§aR) 0.05 0
ol 13.24 13.72
T TR 39T (T + ) 160.09 160.57

U At e H S SR BO ST a9 <l B faare fear T g el aan @ Ieie @ sae W T@d g0 Mol 3 39 st

% o &, 36.07 #3Ae. A IGUN BT [qaamgel g9
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6.Earning per share (face value of Rs. 10/- each)

Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Basic EPS (Rs.) 1.55 1.47
Diluted EPS (Rs.) 1.55 1.47
Calculation of Basic EPS:
Net Profit (Rs. in lacs) 77.32 73.61
Weighted Average no of shares (in lacs ) 50.00 50.00
Basic Earning per share ( Rs. ) 1.55 1.47

7. As per the directions issued by Reserve Bank of India for registration of Non Banking Financial Companies on 9™ January
1997, the Company’s application for registration was rejected by RBI vide their letter No. DNBS (H)CMS No0.2238/HYQ
0472/2004-05 dt.28" January 2005 requiring the company to pass a specific Board Resolution not to carry on the
business of a Non-Banking Financial Institution. RBI further informed the company to ensure that within a period of
3 years from the date of issue of their said letter, the financial assets of the company are disposed of and the company is
converted into a Non-Banking Non-Financial Institution or is wound up. Accordingly the company passed Board Resolution
on 03.02.2005 to explore the course of suitable action by the Managing Director at the earliest. The company has
disposed the financial assets except the shares in Physical Form. The company has informed RBI on 09.01.2008 about
disposal of the Financial Assets and requested to treat the company as Non-Banking Non-Financial Institution. RBI
replied on 05.12.2008 that it has taken the contents mentioned there in on record.

8. Information with regard to the matters in clause 3, 4 (A), 4 (C) and 4 (D) of Part-Il of Schedule VI to the Companies
Act, 1956 to the extent they are either NIL or not applicable to the Company has not been given.

9.The figures of the previous year have been regrouped/reclassified/rearranged wherever necessary to confirm the Current
Year’s presentation.

10. Contingent liabilities and Claims not acknowledged as debts.
a) Standard Chartered Bank ( SCB ):
The SCB filed various petitions on the company which the company disputed.

Sl. | Particulars of claims 2010 2009
No Rs.in Crore | Rs.in Crore
1 Bankers Cheques for Rs.91.85 crore (Previous Year Rs.91.85 crore) issued 91.85 91.85

to company on account of various brokers against which the SCB alleges of
not receiving due consideration

2 | Rs.55.00 crore (Previous Year Rs.55.00 crore) paid towards purchase of securities 55.00 55.00
by the SCB. SCB alleges that the company has given a copy of letter of allotment and
not the original and hence the securities could not be transferred in its name.

Total 146.85 146.85
b) Other claims
S Particulars of claims 2010 2009
No Rs.in Crore Rs.in Crore
i. Income Tax demand (in appeal) Refer note 10 (c) 10.73 11.09
ii. Tamilnadu Newsprints & Papers Ltd refer note No.2 (b) 2.46 2.46
i Income Tax demand - Assessment Year 2002-03:
(Company received a consequential order dated 09.09.2008 consequent to the Income 0 0.17

Tax Appellate Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench order dated 20.06.2008 giving effect to this

order. The department over calculated the interest payable under section 220(2) as
Rs.21,44,100/- instead of Rs.2,38,665/- thus demanding a payment of Rs.17,15,199/-

from the company. The company has submitted a letter on 23.09.2008 explaining

the mistake in the calculation and requested for rectification order and the same is awaited).
iv. Income Tax demand - Assessment Year 2008-09:

(Details as per Schedule 15, Point No.10 C. Paragraph 2) 0.05 0
Total 13.24 13.72
Total Contingent Liabilities (a+b) 160.09 160.57

All the claims have been disputed by the company as explained in the notes above. However the Directors considering the
complexity of the claims, felt it prudent to provide for these liabilities for Rs.36.07 crore.
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£l

. ATAFR
Huel | faRe aw 1993-94 & 2000-01 @ @iw 2008-09 % foiw s @ & o1 MuRor stftrsRy [ oy & S ey & qHH"
§u % wae faarie &, 57 ol & forarie e, SEied, s #Y ud yad @Y gedifed w2 W) frar w3 % uearq fraw @i %
faeg Igan FegER E

freieor e 2008-09:  whust W 3 &Y Sferfvem, 1961 @i arr 143 (1) % siava e 12.03.2010 = 5.5,28,790/- @i /0 @
ST U fopam. #iT W oTaese faw ¥l a1 e < 31 U9 iR fihet afviftee o/ ok %usl 3RT Ua ofgese gumn o e et
fpar B, Ul A SMESY faumT @ gw & ST uH yH 9 AR e Sffhe T % YU @ HeeR Wigdl B IRd B U, STHHT
aiferfram, 1961 &1 arr 154 % o aliferd ST S 3 % (077 SR fopan. ol Honfera omaer @i weiienm &2 & 8.
%Al 1 fesies 01.04.2008 @ ey fawm § faior av 199798 & gsfta femie 31.03.2008 @ smewr yrw fovan, /@ § fawmn
T e ifertEm, 1961 & e 271(1) (3i) % sidia $.15.70 B2 &1 &8 Tl ey, Huwl o Iod ST & Rae® STIie Tierebrl
% aey fediem 21.04.2008 @1 stdie @l e sitertEm, 1961 &7 ey 271(1) (&) % st 26.08.2008 @i @ T &8 qHHE
1 & 2 (3iw) - 1, Tewee g @i fohar @ o 3 39 Suee Sl UX S € U Sl, RaYSiE | arar Uwr fehan, S Wisharel
2. UTHeT guars & oy e 29.06.2010 @ e fear .

AT F AFAT (T-AR)
Fertzor a9 faia ad A R A& 9w HHEAA fraw waefEa wfa
=, =, =,
1997-98 1996-97 8,19,506 - 8,19,506
1998-99 1997-98 1,76,618 - 1,76,618
1999-00 1998-99 1,43,69,252 (-)1,40,72,775 2,96,477
2000-01 1999-00 13,41,169 (-)10,56,384 2,84,785
2003-04 2002-03 3,88,582 (-)3,30,545 58,037
2004-05 2003-04 3,13,778 (+)3,13,646 132
2006-07 2005-06 3,32,289 () 99,638 2,32,651
2008-09 2007-08 13,42,714 13,42,714
2009-10 2008-09 19,96,682 19,96,682
2010-11 2009-10 10,32,903 10,32,903
TTHIST X T TR BT T 6T 3,97,550
& 66,38,055
AR F (AFH) (THAR)
fgiRor au Tt ad A Fudl H
1995-96 1994-95 28,311,822
1996-97 1995-96 43,581,300
1997-98 1996-97 30,257,801
2000-01 1999-00 708,750
2008-09 2007-08 3,900,000
2010-11 2009-10 501,110
&d 107,260,783
HRM T (TSN TN ) (THAR)
Faior a9 faia ad i Fudt #
2008-09 2007-08 6,800
2009-10 2008-09 8,791
&d 15,591
WM : EEE
f&m ¢ 29.04.2010
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c. INCOME TAX

The Company had gone on appeals for the Assessment Years 1993-94 to 2000-01 & 2008-09 which are pending before the
Assessing Officer/ Hon’ble High Court of Andhra Pradesh. Pending disposal of these appeals the liabilities against the net
demand after considering the TDS, Advance Tax and Self Assessment Taxes paid is furnished here under.

Assessment Year 2008-09: Company received an order on 12.03.2010 under Section 143(1) of Income Tax Act,1961 with a
demand of Rs.5,28,790/- , wherein IT Department not taken into consideration all TDS remittances recovered by Bankers &
FBT & Income Tax remittances made by Company. Company submitted detailed proofs of original TDS certificates and FBT
remittance counterfoil copies to Income Tax Department with a request to issue modified order U/S 154 of IT Act, 1961. The
Company waiting for the modified order.

The Company has received on 01.04.2008, an order dated 31.03.08 relating to Assessment Year 1997-98 levying penalty
under section 271(1)(c) of Income TaxAct 1961, for Rs.15.70 crore. However, the company filed an appeal against the above
order before the Appellate Authority on 21.04.2008.The Penalty levied under section 271(1)(c) was cancelled on merit on
26.08.2008 by the learned CIT(Appeals)-ll, Hyderabad. The Department contested the appellate order before the ITAT,
Hyderabad, which is under process. The Case was posted for hearing on 29.6.2010.

Break up of TDS Balance (Year-wise)

AY Financial Balance TDS Adjustments Net of adjustment
Year on interest Rs. Amount Rs

Rs.
1997-98 1996-97 8,19,506 - 819,506
1998-99 1997-98 1,76,618 - 176,618
1999-00 1998-99 1,43,69,252 (-)1,40,72,775 296,477
2000-01 1999-00 13,41,169 (-)10,56,384 284,785
2003-04 2002-03 3,88,582 (-)3,30,545 58,037
2004-05 2003-04 3,13,778 (-)3,13,646 132
2006-07 2005-06 3,32,289 (-)99,638 232,651
2008-09 2007-08 13,42,714 1,342,714
2009-10 2008-09 19,96,682 1,996,682
2010-11 2009-10 10,32,903 1,032,903
TDS on Dividends 397,550
Total 6,638,055

Advance Tax (Income Tax) (Year-wise)

AY Financial Year Amount in Rs.
1995-96 1994-95 28,311,822
1996-97 1995-96 43,581,300
1997-98 1996-97 30,257,801
2000-01 1999-00 708,750
2008-09 2007-08 3,900,000
2010-11 2009-10 501,110

Total 107,260,783

Advance Tax (F B T) (Year-wise)

AY Financial Year Amount in Rs.
2008-09 2007-08 6,800
2009-10 2008-09 8,791

Total 15,591

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 29.04.2010
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G Thent B oad 31.3.2010 ¥ fau (w@twa) Rad
Ry w=a
AT

& 31 At 2010 &1 9 ST S SR 36! ST dEd
G 9 % FHIhd WIH o BN W@l T TH{hd Hehe Jeg Tereor
T TET YT B E.

SMBRI & YR W YoM gRT dOR 6 T §. g9
qe % OMYUR TR 3 faciim foerfirll W I S| gn ey
e 2.

BN AR N AT i WA bl % STgaR qufhd
faciar faaRur &t W udien & &, 39 AW B owe § 6 g
U ST BT U B b T T G SR @ I8
F: fop F fai faeror avft gaR & deariga fawia Ratér
HHaw % AFAR AR 6 T E, A faavel awgRufa & s @
. T 9dE H§ 9deu & SR R SAte B, fawia faeer @
YT T Feberl BT THIT SUHE €. TIam ULeam § WanT 5 @Rl
T A a6 FuRe 6k yeen sy e T weeet
TFhAT % AIE-ATT HYU fawi foerer wEgdie &1 g
HTA M &. &9 fagam #3d § 6 s den aden gut
% fou Sfad emaR W &l §.
g freifeea % Tawir foremor & s aden & @ &
i. equ e fac faeror 31 == 2010 =0 =.
23,61,05,873/- sniaat wa a9 % i@ A . 1,07,85,407/
- % P ITE B I E.

ii. 31 Ay 2010 o 99 F foiw 2 TEIRRERE &1 fHaw @ S.
870.40 wra F9id &.

2 facia Rl i o fawiia fere=on &l wan 9=em o=
TARI I YT &Y F o Sl UEsl ST & T RuE W OE
e 2.

&1 e &3 € T omen 8% yaee grT qafea fowie faarfomt
T (TTH) 21 &1 SIS % ST e JAR &l T §. quihd
facia faerftal & aafea facia faerfat ok wrRdE awe
TN T BRT SR W@ 23 & aihd i faarivmn §
TAIREe | Fasr &g faearer i &

USieBeuT % 1T STreRe weRY % daY § qufed fai faazor
B I 18 FAM A BT F 7 TH P IR &I A BT
T H ¥, B BrehY e ol & FMueH.

AR W&l UET % MR R SR ot facie faaRen @
T2 B o faciia go & HE § o W el & R
% SMUR TR qT BRI S| TSR & SR ok g4 & w
TISIHIT &b SR X TR qb 1 ST Bl SABRTE 3T &b
Y § 7R HURE FHT & G99 F STHIYETT T4T 0T 33T &
STIBIHVT % ST &H TE T Uhe B & 1o o it iR
Wl WX Fewfin B Ued gU @ AHihd fawi e qRd 7
AT Wigd e fAEial % o ET FE ud T foe qerian
=

%. 31 9 2010 T S b TS 3BT SIS BUAT b B
TIT TAIRRE % THGA o U1 & HE o 3R

T, 39 G B g a9 b e ot §% iR 3l S
HUAT % URDTAT b FHIGR URUIH % FHfGT @I Td g
T T N TEEeE & fed ¥ Amw A

. TH AW Bl GHIG b [T TRl TaT8 & 9§ FHRT O
EE E IR R = Rl o = M | o s o e | e B E R
e o

Fd SE Uz THIATH Fd 9. TH. FEw w© & Fd FF TS T F
TTET WEHR TE TETBR TS AETBR
THaREs - 3090905 THaTREA - 001652 THaRed - 001342u+s
(A= =) (Ta. . Hiean) (%.%. =)
arER (T 5 059828) ORER (T 7 52579) WriEr (T, 12250)
TR DB TE TETBR TS WETBR
THeRuA - 02888Ta TweRes 02910Ta theRET-003475tw

(wa. snfeamrTmT) (5. amgEes) (ikasite))

iR (T = 80976)

M TXEE
et 29.04.2010

arER (T = 20739)
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AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONSOLIDATED) FOR THE YEAR
31.03.2010

The Board of Directors,
Andhra Bank.

We have examined the attached consolidated balance sheet
of Andhra Bank and its subsidiary M/s Andhra Bank Financial
Services Limited, as on 31%t March 2010 and also the
consolidated Profit and Loss account and the consolidated
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date annexed
thereto.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Andhra
Bank’s Management and have been prepared by the
management on the basis of separate financial statements
and other financial information regarding subsidiary and
associates. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of consolidated financial statement
in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted
in India. These standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are prepared, in all material aspects, in
accordance with an identified financial reporting framework
and are free of material mis-statements. An audit includes
examining, on test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by the management as well as
evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

We have not audited the financial statements of:

i. The subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total
assets of Rs. 23,61,05,873/- as on 31t March’2010 and
total revenue of Rs. 1,07,85,407/- for the year ended on
that date.

ii. The two associates reflecting net profit of Rs.870.40 lacs
for the year ended 31t March 2010.

_
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These financial statements and other financial information
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us and our opinion is based solely on the report
of other auditors.

We report that the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared by the Andhra Bank’s management in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards
(AS) 21, Consolidated financial statements and (AS) 23 “
Accounting for investments in Associates in consolidated
Financial Statements” issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

No 7 of Part B of schedule 18 to the consolidated financial
statements regarding rejection of the application of the
Subsidiary Company for registration with the Reserve Bank
of India as a non banking financial institution and disposal of
financial assets except certain shares which are in physical
form.

Based on our Audit and on consideration of reports of other
auditors on separate financial statements and on other
financial information of the components, and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to
us and subject to non-ascertainment and non-disclosure
of interest liability in respect of Inter Corporate deposits
as contingent liability of the subsidiary of the Bank, we
are of the opinion that the attached consolidated financial
statements read with the Accounting Policies and notes on
accounts give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in case of the Consolidated Balance sheet of the state of
affairs of Andhra bank and its Subsidiary and interests in
its Associates as at 31 March 2010 and

(b) in the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
of the Consolidated results of operations of Andhra Bank,
its subsidiary and interests in its Associates for the year
ended on that date.

(c) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of
the Cash Flows for the year covered by the consolidated
financial statement.

For NUNDI & ASSOCIATES

For B.N. KEDIA & CO.

For K.K.GHEI & CO

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN-309090E FRN-001652N FRN-001342N
(Soumen Nandi) (S.K. Kedia) (K K Ghei)

Partner (M.No.059828)

For K.S.RAMAKRISHNA & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN-02888S
(S Adinarayana)
Partner (M No. 80976)

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 29.04.2010
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Partner (M. No. 52579)

For RAMAN ASSOCIATE
Chartered Accountants
FRN-02910S
(G. Vasudevan)
Partner (M. No.20739)

Partner (M.No. 12250)

For RAJU & PRASAD
Chartered Accountants
FRN-003475S
(S.Ranganathan)
Partner (M. No.22738)
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ST ek Ud gEel srgeREt A 31w 2010 w gura ad @ @afEq T garg faareft

(5.000 #)
31/03/2010 31/03/2009
THET AR THET T BT T AN 5287501 56943158
FHET SR THET o BT 3T A 111676567 52875015
At % &R el iR el ged A Mo ghg/aH 58801552 (4068143)
TN FEt 4 TS T4
Fd e @ 14396460 9010531
HAre: % B FUd R TgH 1019966 817591
SirS: o7 FOT IR AT 2426725 1395674
UeE:  SfIRTEl i {Sshl 9T o 5471 3346
T Iad @IH N ST BT @TH R T 30464 22658
qRETA® wﬁﬁﬁwmﬁﬁqﬁﬂﬁﬂ%gﬁmmﬂ 17807216 11197792
R STl T 3aamett ¥ URads &g dHEee
ST H g/ () 182972653 99526788
TUR | g/ (FH) 15212078 7207253
et 7 (3fg) &+ -39699031 -20128620
SR F (gfE) w0 -120123108 -99008745
o ot § (gfs) B 451604 566577
3T IS wd e § (ghg) w0 3200857 917611
TR | R T 59822269 (854498)
T TeoT &Y -4635352 -4423493
ARETATE FE A THE JaE (T) 55186917 (5277991)
s w@t | Twd g
S SR B T/l -1218110 -1972561
a9t FRt 4 THEr yaw () -1218110 (1972561)
Torciier iatafeR & F6ar Jare
YR IeTE A AR 0 -52
o7 T WX Yeed ST -2426725 -1395674
TN Yot (ATHIST TR B FHereh) -2553416 -1134851
ThoT T B AR /9T 9800000 9250000
TR & FHE
PHHARI Y & [T Jeem (Tea-15 doiefia) Fafva/sma fear 12886 -3537014
ot @t | TSl FarE (J) 4832745 3182409
AT % R Thal Jare d Maw gtg (+) /& (T ( )+ (3) 58801552 (4068143)
AR T IS
ey  g§Y M3erh
Fa 4l U THIATH Fa I, T, HEq T F Fd *.%. 95 US &
AL TR TE TETBR FE TETBR
THARTT - 3090903 THaTREA - 001652 THaRed - 001342u+
(dm i) (Ta. . i) (*.3%F. =)
qrierR (T 5 059828) qrieR (T 5 52579) qrierR (.. 12250)
FEE TR TE TETBR FEE TETBR
THaTREA - 02888wa TwetRea 02910TH THaRET-003475tTH
(Tg. sTiEREw) (5. amgEes) (Ta. )
qriER (T  80976) ariEr (T 5 20739) qAeR (T = 22738)
TM; FXEE
s 29.04.2010
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2010

Rs in ‘000’
PARTICULARS 31.03.10 31.03.09
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 5287501 56943158
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 111676567 52875015
Net Increase (+) / Decrease (-) of Cash and Cash Equivalent during the period 58801552 (4068143)
Cash flow from Operating Activities
Net profit before tax 14396460 9010531
Add: Depreciation on Assets 1019966 817591
Add: Interest on Subordinated Debt 2426725 1395674
Less: Profit on Sale of Assets 5471 3346
Less: Share of Profit from Associates included in above profit. 30464 22658
Operating Profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities 17807216 11197792
Adjustment for changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Deposits 182972653 99526788
Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings 15212078 7207253
(Increase)/Decrease in Investments -39699031 -20128620
(Increase)/Decrease in Advances -120123108 -99008745
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets 451604 -566577
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities and Provisions 3200857 917611
Cash Generated from Operations 59822269 (854498)
Less: Taxes Paid -4635352 -4423493
Cash Flow From Operating Activites (A) 55186917 (5277991)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
(Purchase) / Sale of fixed assets -1218110 -1972561
Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) -1218110 (1972561)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Drawn from Revenue Reserve 0 -52
Interest paid on subordinated debts -2426725 -1395674
Dividend paid (including tax on dividend) -2553416 -1134851
Issue / Redemption of Subordinated Debts 9800000 9250000
Provision for Employees Benefits (AS-15) Invested / Spent 12886 -3537014
Cash Flow From Financing Activities (C) 4832745 3182409
Net Increase (+) / Decrease (-) in cash flow during the period (A)+(B)+ (C) 58801552 (4068143)
R.S. REDDY
Chairman & Managing Director

For NUNDI & ASSOCIATES For B.N. KEDIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN-309090E FRN-001652N
(Soumen Nandi) (S.K. Kedia)

Partner (M.No.059828) Partner (M. No. 52579)

For K.S.RAMAKRISHNA & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN-02888S
(S Adinarayana)
Partner (M No. 80976)

For RAMAN ASSOCIATE
Chartered Accountants
FRN-02910S
(G. Vasudevan)
Partner (M. No.20739)

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 29.04.2010
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For K.K.GHEI & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN-001342N
(K K Ghei)
Partner (M.No. 12250)

For RAJU & PRASAD
Chartered Accountants
FRN-003475S
(S.Ranganathan)
Partner (M. No.22738)
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Qo ameer i ANDHRA Bank

(MR DR BT THH)
A Govt of India Undertaking

YN HEA@I: : . G wad, 5-9-11, dwEE, FERmEE-500 004.
Head Office: Dr. Pattabhi Bhavan, 5-9-11, Saifabad, Hyderabad — 500 004

w6
el B
(PRERS TR 9T T4 g&T&Rd e ST 8)
THEl e e Few, 16 57 2010

oA Wi Shomsd
e SR
H/gn Ferarsh
faem T AT o F NRARE €N & T UagErn A Al
[RELK EE T H AN IF F IERARE H AR, fAw 16 T,

2010 = 10.00 == farew e Afeawt, PR, Few faew, wges fd & um, uregR, Fewee 500 081 & g ari
I FLRT %, ST T T Sl Je § AR/ER faw iR A/z0rt 3R & 9 3| & fog vt & w0 7 frgaa &)

FHAT %.1/- BN
IETET T
T

TN AT/ THAT AGREIRE & Ele

am
(= a1erRi °)
LSl

iRl & EEAER Tl

HieRfl T gEATeR 3 Ud 9|1 3 6 ARy

i) iRl 99 9% U TE ert 6 a5

U) o Al JRRERS % AR H I A1 Tl w9 N Wiited I@l otel aRT gk A &

df) e URH b TE H g8 USl § 391 gud i 9eRaRes fated w9 ¥ fafraq witga
TS ST ERT SEAART o &l

) Fm Fem % a5 S8 e a1 fataa w9 fafteg mitga stel aR s 7 &l

i) wig ge fo e it o foea o el U8 SReR® % a9 &0 ¥ gweR e, S {6Hl HRUEST STueT 19 e foe qedr &1, A 39 U IEHT M @ T4 ¥
AR Tg Fem fordt =manefier, deiftey, TR o1 99 I[RER o6 SR A1 o FIH ISTIE SHETHRT a1 ST S % foer Siferer arr sty fhar sme

iil) wierdr @mer

%) HEARAM a7 3T b5 TR (afs B 8) e oiia g8 e fear e & srern,

d) el ufsas a1 AfTRe SR UEI, JEARAET A1 WRER B Ui, W S, SRl SthT THE, S §, Sf. ety wad, 5-9-11, Fwee, gawaw 500 004
A aiffep HR Yo TRH B H IR 7 b Ted T 6 qF@R, 11 57 2009 % HrEiEwg # §afta & dew orig aw 2.00 s = e S

iv) @3 off i foraa @9 o Ju TE Erm 99 9% 6 9 fafteq w=ifua T &

V) S B STHT Bl T giel foea emfaaeseig ud sifaw gr.

vi) Sivas T T A1 STHIGT STl % TS § HoR Il (e b A § U § oI B MSAad Tel [y e

vii) wTerRll @t forea femiea &9 ol SERUR® Bl S8 9@ § Aida T &9 ¥ HAaM $T & &6 el &N o1 9% § QA forad geferd gl

Viii) S et St e w1 sty a1 weEl § Sy el @t wiftga giafi @ giwl % ww § Frgea @ s
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U o 85 ANonn Bav

(ART TXHR B TUHH)
A Govt of India Undertaking

Head Office: Dr. Pattabhi Bhavan, 5-9-11, Saifabad, Hyderabad — 500 004
FORM B
PROXY FORM

(To be filled in and signed by the shareholder)
TENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, 16th JUNE, 2010

Regd. Folio No. D.P.ID No.
Client ID No.

1/We resident of in the district of

in the State of being a shareholder/shareholders of Andhra
Bank hereby appoint, Shri/Smt. resident of
in the district of in the State of or failing him / her, Shri /
Smt. resident of in the district of
in the State of as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf in the Tenth Annual General

Meeting of the Shareholders of Andhra Bank to be held on Wednesday, the 16th June, 2010 at 10.00 am at Shilpa
Kala Vedika, Shilparamam, Crafts Village, Near Hitec City, Madhapur, Hyderabad - 500 081, and at any adjournment
thereof.

Please affix
Re.1/-
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of first named/sole Shareholder

Name

(in Block letters)
Signature of Proxy Address

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SIGNING AND LODGING THE PROXY FORM

i) No instrument of proxy shall be valid unless,

a) in the case of an individual shareholder, it is signed by him/her attorney, duly authorized in writing;

b) in the case of joint holders, it is signed by the shareholder first named in the register of his/her attorney, duly authorized in
writing;

c) in the case of a body corporate signed by its officer or an attorney duly Authorised in writing;

ii) An instrument of proxy shall be sufficiently signed by any shareholder, who is, for any reason, unable to write his / her name, if
his/her mark is affixed thereto and attested by a Judge, Magistrate, Registrar or Sub-Registrar of Assurances or other Government
Gazetted Officer or an Officer of Andhra Bank.

iii) The Proxy together with

a) The power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or

b) a copy of the power of attorney or authority, certified by a Notary public or a Magistrate, should be deposited at Andhra Bank,
Merchant Banking Division, Head Office, Dr.Pattabhi Bhavan, 5-9-11, Saifabad, Hyderabad — 500004 not later than FOUR DAYS
before the date of Annual General Meeting i.e. on or before the closing hours i.e., 2.00 P.M. of Friday, 11th June, 2010.

iv) No instrument of proxy shall be valid unless it is duly stamped.

v) An instrument of Proxy deposited with the Bank shall be irrevocable and final.

vi) In the case of an instrument of proxy granted in favour of two grantees in the alternative, not more than one form shall be
executed.

vii)The shareholder, who has executed an instrument of proxy, shall not be entitled to vote in person at the Annual General
Meeting to which such instrument relates.

viii) No person shall be appointed as duly authorized representative or a proxy who is an officer or an employee of Andhra Bank.
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(RT TR T TIHH)
A Govt of India Undertaking

YN HEATET: : . 9 wad, 5-9-11, dwmEm, FaRme-500 004.

Sufeatad wat ATTENDANCE SLIP
(was1 % |9a o 0§ to be surrendered at the time of Entry)

16 = 2010

e
qg : g 10.00 T
==

16 June, 2010
10.00 A.M.

: foen Fen AR, eaRem, Fuen e, 2 e am, e, g - 500 081

Hyderabad-500 081.

Shilpa Kala Vedika, Shilparamam, Crafts Village, Near Hi-Tech City, Madhapur,

PAARE FT TRER
Signature of the Shareholder

Uik gierdl/giciie & F&er

Proxy |/ Representative present

Golighd Whiferal IR T T WS AE &
Regd. Folio DP ID & Client ID

(afe siifaws =gt 2 if not dematerialised)

(afg srefiferr ¥ if dematerialised)

SRaRs &1 9™ Name of the Shareholder

943t a €= Number of Shares

U o 85 ANona Ban

(VRA FIHR BT IUHH)
A Govt of India Undertaking

YN HE@T: : . g wad, 5-9-11, dwam, FaREE-500 004.
gast v ENTRY PASS
(=% ¥ <R @ A to be retained throughout the meeting)

USiighd Wlierl
Regd. Folio
(afe siifass =gt 2 if not dematerialised)

Ad Ed 7 7ew e € DP ID & Client 1D

(afe sriifaes ? if dematerialised)

seRaRs w1 ™ Name of the Shareholder

giERt & §en Number of Shares

| SRR/ SALETRERT & T AT WEH T & ST FRa1 AT @ 76 3 U St wel & gTe # Ja91 3 o fg ek & A1 <51 a1 SR & STgar
| Taftr geeRa & JTER TEH B TEREW AEEF GHR TN AW A (A F a1 @ g e, R o aRRaf § dow F gaw =R § el -
|q%ﬁaﬁ§ﬂﬁ!lﬁ=|ﬁﬁmﬁ.

| Shareholders | proxy or authorised representative of shareholders are requested to produce the above attendance slip, duly signed in accordance

| to the meeting.

| feomft P.S. 5 i Y9R % SRR /SUER FUT qie Tl G
No gifts/gift coupons will be distributed at the meeting.

with their specimen signatures registered with the Bank, alongwith the entry pass, for admission to the venue. The admission will, however, be
subject to verification/checks, as may be deemed necessary. Under no circumstances, any duplicate attendance slip will be issued at the entrance
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